
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

FRANKLIN CITY HALL - COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS
9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

AGENDA
TUESDAY AUGUST 20, 2024 AT 6:30 P.M.

A. Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance.

B. Citizen Comment Period.

C. Approval of Minutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of August 6, 2024.

D. Hearings.

E. Organizational: Mayoral and Aldermanic Appointments:

Mayoral Appointment:
1. Carl Budnik, 7642 W. Norwood Ln., Aid. Dist. I-Civic Celebrations, 3 year unexpired

term expiring 06/30/27.
Aldermanic Appointment:
2. Alderman Hasan appointment ofEdward Ping, 4811 W. Madison Ave., Ald. Dist. 3-

Quarry Monitoring Committee, 3 year unexpired term expiring 05/31/26.

F. Letters.

G. Reports and Recommendations:
1. Informational Council Update from City Assessors, Forward Appraisal.
2. Federal Emergency Management Agency's Floodplain Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM)

and City of Franklin Floodplain Ordinance.
3. 2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget Challenges.
4. An Ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0444 of the Unified Development Ordinance

Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park) to allow truck
terminals and freight transfer facilities as a Special Use and to revise Design
Standards (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant) (10613 S. 27th Street).

5. A Resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a Special Use
for a truck terminal and freight transfer facility business use with outdoor storage and
parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment upon property located at 10613 S. 27th
Street (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant) (Franklin Tech Center LLC A
Delaware, LLC, Property Owner).

6. A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission and Refund for 10152 S.
Ryan Creek Ct., TKN 934-0120-000.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
August 20, 2024
Page 2

7. A Resolution Conditionally approving a Preliminary Plat for Ridgewood Reserve
Subdivision (generally located to the north of W. Drexel Avenue, east of S.
Ridgewood Drive, and west of S. 76th Street) (Creative Homes, Inc., Property
Owner/Applicant).

8. A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission and Refund for O S. 5 pt
St., TKN 759-9054-000.

9. A Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Tax-Exempt Lease-Purchase
Agreement and Related Documents and Award the Sale for the Johnson Controls
Municipal Project.

10. Authorize certain City Officials to enter into an agreement with ADP for Carrier
Connections Service.

11. Stafford Rosenbaum LLP Request for Potential Conflict of Interest Informed Consent
Waiver with Regard to its Representation of the City Upon Appointments by the
City's Insurer, Currently for Polish Heritage Alliance, Inc. v City of Franklin,
Milwaukee County Case No. 23-CV-9073, and Requested Representation of Smith's
Property Services LLC Upon a Zoning Violation Unrelated to City Representation
Services Matter.

12. City Personnel Performance Evaluation-City Engineer. The Common Council may
enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(c), considering Employment,
Promotion, Compensation or Performance Evaluation Data of any Public Employee
over which the Governing Body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis.
Stat. §19.85(l)(t), Considering Financial, Medical, Social, or Personal Histories or
Disciplinary Data of Specific Persons, Preliminary Consideration of Specific
Personnel Problems, or the Investigation of Charges Against Specific Persons Except
Where Par. (b) Applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a
substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such
histories or data or involved in such problems or investigations, and Wis. Stat.§
19.85(l)(g), Conferring with Legal Counsel for the Governmental Body who is
rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with
respect to litigation in which it is likely to become involved, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it
deems appropriate.

13. Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin.
The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat§ 19.85(1)(e)
to deliberate upon the information, terms and provisions of the Wholesale Water
Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin, the provision of
public water supply to the City of Franklin as related to the City, the Franklin
Municipal Water Utility and its customers in 2024 and beyond; and the potential
negotiation of terms in relation thereto, and the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto, for competitive and bargaining reasons,
and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters
discussed therein as it deems appropriate.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of August 20, 2024.



Common Council Meeting Agenda
August 20, 2024
Page 3

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda items are available at City Hall during normal business hours

[Note Upon reasonable notice, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled indrvduals through appropriate aids and
services For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

August 22
September 2
September 3
September 5
September 1 7
September 19
September 28

Plan Commission
City Hall Closed-Labor Day
Common Council
Plan Commission
Common Council
Plan Commission
City Shredding Event (City Hall)

6:00p.m.

6:30p.m.
6:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:00p.m.
9:00 a.m.-1 :00 p.m.



ROLL CALL

CITIZEN COMMENT

JACK H. TAKERIAN
PROCLAMATION

MINUTES
JULY 16, 2024

MAYORAL
APPOINTMENTS

FRANKLIN FIRE
DEPART.
COMMUNITY
INTERNSHIP AGMT

A.

B.l.

B.2.

C.

E.

G.l.

c.
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
AUGUST 6, 2024

MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
August 6, 2024, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor John R.
Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W. Loomis
Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were present:
Alderman Peccarelli, Alderwoman Eichmann, Alderman Hasan,
Alderwoman Day, Alderman Barber and Alderman Craig. Also, in
attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City Engineer
Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski and City Clerk
Shirley Roberts.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:30 p.m. and was closed at
6:30p.m.

Mayor Nelson presented a Proclamation in Recognition of the Service
of Jack H. Takerian.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Regular
Common Council Meeting of July 16, 2024, as presented. Seconded
by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointment:

1. Joe Mercado, 10162 S. 34th St., Aid. Dist. 4-Civic
Celebrations, 3 year unexpired term expiring 06/30/27.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion
carried.

Alderwoman Day moved to confirm the following Mayoral
appointment:

2. Mira Kresovic, 8810 S. 51st St., Aid. Dist. 4-Finance
Committee, 1 year unexpired term expiring 04/30/25.

Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. On roll call, all voted Aye.
Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the Fire Department to participate
in the Franklin High School Community Internship Agreement to host
volunteer student Fire Cadets during the 2024-2025 school year.
Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
August 6, 2024
Page 2

RES. 2024-8190 G.2.
VACATE SERVICE RD
SPELLMAN
TRAILERS 5921 W.
RYAN RD

EXTERNAL AND G.3.
INTERNAL TESTING
AND REPORTING
SERVICES FROM
FORESITE CYBER
SECURITY

ORD. 2024-2628 G.4.
AMEND UDO
ADMINISTRATIVE,
ZONINNG AND LAND
DIVISION
APPLICATION FEES

FOXGLENNATURAL G.5.
RESOUCE SPECIAL
EXCEPTION

RES. 2024-8191 G.6.
WE ENERGIES
ELECTRIC SERVICE
S. LOVERS LANE
PROJECT

ORD. 2024-2629 G.7.
PARKING WHICH
PROHIBITS,
OBSTRUCTS, BLOCKS

Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8190, A
RESOLUTION TO VACATE A SERVICE ROAD FROM S. 60TH
STREET TO S. 58TH STREET LOCATED ON THE SOUTH SIDE
OF W. RYAN ROAD BETWEEN S. 60TH STREET AND S. 58TH
STREET (PART OF THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 5,
RANGE 21 EAST IN THE CITY OF FRANKLIN, MILWAUKEE
COUNTY, WISCONSIN). Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve a Professional Services Agreement
Between the City of Franklin and Foresite Cybersecurity, Inc. to
Provide External and Internal Penetration Testing and Reporting
Services - Funded by Account Numbers 01-0144-5299 and 01-0144
5214. Seconded by Alderwoman Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2628, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
ORDINANCE TEXT IN §15-9.0401 ADMINISTRATIVE FEES, $15
9.0401A. FEE SCHEDULE, TO INCREASE THE ZONING AND
LAND DIVISION APPLICATION FEES AND TO PROVIDE FOR
REQUIRING A DEVELOPER'S DEPOSIT FOR NEW PLANNED
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AND PRELIMINARY PLAT
APPLICATIONS. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to table the Standards, Findings and
Decision of the City of Franklin Common Council upon the application
of John Spitz, Fox Glen Corporate Centre, LLC, applicant, for a
Special Exception to Certain Natural Resource Provisions of the City
of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance until staff brings it back to
the common council. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8191, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE WE ENERGIES TO PROVIDE
ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR LIGHTING CABINETS ON THE S.
LOVERS LANE PROJECT (W. VENTURE DRIVE AND W.
CORTEZ CIRCLE). Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2629, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND §245-5 PARKING, STOPPING AND
STANDING REGULATED, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, TO
CREATE AN ADDITIONAL PROVISION THAT PROHIBITS



Common Council Meeting
August 6, 2024
Page 3

OR IMPEDES
TRAFFIC

RES. 2024-8192 G.8.
20 FT PRIVATE
PLANTING SCREEN
7524 S. 77TH ST

RES. 2024-8193 G.9.
WE ENERGIES
ELECTRIC SERVICE
ON S. 51°ST. AND W.
PRESERVE WAY

WATERMAIN G.10.
EASEMENT FOR
POLISH HERITAGE
ALLIANCE

WATER SERVICE TO G.11.
HALE PARK
HIGHLANDS AREA

ORD. 2024-2630 G.12.
REMOTE
ATTENDANCE OF AN
ALDERPERSON

PARKING WHICH OBSTRUCTS, BLOCKS OR IMPEDES
TRAFFIC. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye; motion
carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8192, A
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A
FENCE WITHIN THE 20 FOOT PRIVATE PLANTING SCREEN
PLAT RESTRICTION, UPON LOT 12 IN BLOCK 1 OF
TUCKAWAY GREEN SUBDIVISION (7524 S. 77TH STREET)
(CINDY DAWES, APPLICANT). Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On
roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Resolution No. 2024-8193, A
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE WE ENERGIES TO PROVIDE
ELECTRIC SERVICE FOR SIGNAL CABINET ON S. 51ST
STREET AND W. PRESERVE WAY. Seconded by Alderwoman
Eichmann. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderwoman Eichmann moved to authorize the execution by the
Mayor and City Clerk of a water main easement for the Polish Heritage
Alliance, Inc. development property in the general form and content as
presented at this meeting, with such additions and changes as approved
by the City Engineer and the City Attorney. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to postpone water service to Hale Park
Highlands area indefinitely based on the community survey results and
resident feedback which indicated the residents believe it is not the best
use of the City's resources. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2630, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND §19-lE. REMOTE MEETING
ATTENDANCE PERMITTED, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, TO
AUTHORIZE THE REMOTE ATTENDANCE OF AN
ALDERPERSON AT COMMON COUNCIL MEETINGS UPON
TEMPORARY HEALTH CIRCUMSTANCES PERTAINING TO
THE ALDERPERSON NOT ALLOWING FOR PHYSICAL
MOBILITY TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON. Seconded
by Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

ORD. 2024-2631
REMOTE
ATTENDANCE OF A
BOARD OR
COMMITTEE
MEMBER

G.13. Alderwoman Day moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-2631, AN
ORDINANCE TO CREATE § 10-26 REMOTE MEETING
ATTENDANCE PERMITTED, OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, TO
AUTHORIZE THE REMOTE ATTENDANCE OF A MEMBER AT
BOARD, COMMISSION AND/OR COMMITTEE MEETINGS
UPON TEMPORARY HEALTH CIRCUMSTANCES PERTAINING



Common Council Meeting
August 6, 2024
Page 4

CITY OF FRANKLIN
PLANNING
MANAGER
APPOINTMENT

CLOSED SESSION
POTENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT AT
3303 W. OAKWOOD
ROAD

CLOSED SESSION
POTENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT AT
THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF SOUTH
OAKWOOD PARK
DRIVE AND WEST
RYAN ROAD

TO THE MEMBER NOT ALLOWING FOR PHYSICAL MOBILITY
TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

G.14. Alderman Barber moved to confirm Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva's
appointment as the City of Franklin's Planning Manager. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

G.15. Alderwoman Eichmann motion to enter closed session at 7:32 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19.85(1)e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential commercial/industrial/ manufacturing/ development(s) and
proposal(s) and the investing of public funds and governmental actions
in relation thereto and to effect such development(s), including the
terms and provisions of potential development agreement(s) for,
including, but not limited to the propert(ies) at 3303 W. Oakwood
Road, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on
such matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by
Alderman Hasan. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Mayor Nelson called a recess at 7:33 p.m.

Mayor Nelson reconvened at 7:36 p.m.

Upon reentering open session at 7:55 p.m., no action taken.

G.16. Alderwoman Eichmann motion to enter closed session at 7:56 p.m.
pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 19 .85(1)(e), for market competition and
bargaining reasons, to deliberate and consider terms relating to
potential commercial/industrial/manufacturing development(s) and
proposal(s) and the investing of public funds and governmental actions
in relation thereto and to effect such development(s), including the
terms and provisions of potential development agreement(s) for,
including, but not limited to the propert(ies) at the southeast corner of
S. Oakwood Park Drive and W. Ryan Road, and to reenter open
session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. On
roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Upon reentering open session at 7:59 p.m., no action taken.

LICENSES AND
PERMITS

H. Alderman Day moved to approve License Committee Meeting Minutes
of August 6, 2024.

Grant Extraordinary Entertainment & Special Event to: Mulligan's
Irish Pub & Grill, Half Way to St Patricks Day Party, Brian Francis,



Common Council Meeting
August 6, 2024
Page 5

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

ADJOURNMENT

I.

J.

8933 S27th St, 8/24/24, 6-10:30 p.m. band, 55 dbl@ property line; Elf
Run 2024, Ryan Griessmeyer, Boemer Botanical Gardens, 11/24/24;
Grant 2024-25 Class B Combination, Entertainment & Amusement to
Ricky's Harrisburg Inn LLC, DBA Ricky's Double Barrel Inn, Nathan
Fabry, 11318 W St Martins Rd;
Grant Temporary Class "B" Beer & Temporary Entertainment &
Amusement to VFW Post 10394, St Martin's Labor Day Fair, Andrew
Hushek, St Martins Rd & Church St, 9/1-9/2/24;
Grant Temporary Class B Beer to Knights of Columbus Trinity
Council, St Martin's Labor Day Fair, Kenneth Keefer, 9/1-9/2/24, St
Martin ofTours Church Lot, 7963 S 116 St;
Hold for Appearance PUBLIC Grant to: Franklin Public Library
Foundation, Temporary Class B License, 10/3/24 (Fall Literary
Fundraiser), Franklin Public Library-Fadrow Mtg Room;
Grant New 2024-25 Operator License to: Bria Altamore, Mikayla
Baird, Megan Bock, Attillio Cavaiani, Antonio Chapa, Rebecca Deall,
Janel Deprey, John Felden, Cristina Ivaschin, Joseph Johnson, Brandon
Kitchner, Eric Kneir, Kim Kuklinski, Chad Lehrke, Isabelle Luther,
Harvinder Makkar, Mandy Mayrand, Kerri McCracken, Janet Miller,
Micah Modic, Meghan Pavlic, Samantha Piszczek, Jazmine Richter,
Julie Sobanski, Sean Sonnen, Brenda Stroud, Amir Trammell, Denise
Widenski;
Grant Renewal 2024-25 Operator License to David Lindner &
Rajendra Patel;
Hold New 2024-25 Operator License for Appearance to Amanda
Fecteau; and
Hold New 2024-25 Operator License Upon Correction of Application
to: Jose Amriz, Lindsay Brieske, & Daniel Mackie.

Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve City vouchers with an ending date
of August 1, 2024, in the amount of$ 3,055,202.18 and payroll dated
July 26, 2024 in the amount of $ 496,117.59 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $ 517,081.03, plus City
matching payments and estimated payroll dated August 9, 2024 in the
amount of$ 466,000 and payments of the various payroll deductions in
the amount of$ 265,000, plus City matching payments. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 8:06 p.m. Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COMMON COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral and Aldermanic Appointments

MEETING
DATE

8-20-2024

ITEM
NUMBER

E. 1
Mayoral Appointment:

1. Carl Budnik, 7642 W. Norwood Ln., Ald. Dist. 1-Civic Celebrations, 3 year unexpired term
expiring 06/30/27.

Aldermanic Appointment:

2. Alderman Hasan appointment ofEdward Ping, 4811 W. Madison Ave., Ald. Dist. 3-Quarry
Monitoring Committee, 3 year unexpired term expiring 05/31/26.

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral and Aldermanic Appointments:

Mayoral Appointment:

1. Carl Budnik, 7642 W. Norwood Ln., Ald. Dist. 1-Civic Celebrations, 3 year unexpired term
expiring 06/30/27.

Aldermanic Appointment:

2. Alderman Hasan appointment ofEdward Ping, 4811 W. Madison Ave., Ald. Dist. 3-Quarry
Monitoring Committee, 3 year unexpired term expiring 05/31/26.

ROLL CALL VOTE
CLERK.DEPT



Sh'gRobers

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Name:
PhoneNumber:
EmailAddress:
YearsasResident:
Alderman:
ArchitecturalBoard:

volunteerfactsheet@franklmnw.info
Monday, July 10, 2023 4:33 PM
Lisa Huening; Shurley Roberts; Karen Kastenson
Volunteer Fact Sheet

earl budnik

cbudnik@wi.rr.com
40

1
no

CivicCelebrations: yes
CommunityDevelopmentAuthority: no
EconomicDevelopmentCommission: no
EnvironmentalCommission: no
FinanceCommittee: no
FairCommission: no
BoardofHealth: no
FirePoliceCommission: no
ParksCommission: no
LibraryBoard: no
PlanCommission: no
PersonnelCommittee: no
BoardofReview: no
BoardofPublicWorks: no
QuarryMonitoringCommittee: no
TechnologyCommission: no
TourismCommission: no
BoardofZoning: no
WasteFacilitiesMonitoringCommittee: no
BoardWaterCommlssioners:
CompanyNameJob1:
CompanyAddressJob1:
TelephoneJob1:
StartDateandPositionJob1:
EndDateandPositionJob1:
CompanyNameJob2:
AddressJob2:
TelephoneJobZ:
StartDateandPositionJobZ:

no
Retired
7642 W Norwood Ln
4144258145
May 2010

BMO Harris Bank
MIiwaukee

1996 customer service

1



EndDateandPositionJob2:
•CompanyNameJob3:

AddressJob3:
TelephoneJob3:
StartDateandPositionJob3:
EndDateandPositionJob3:
Signature:
Date:
Signature2:
Date2:

SourceDoclD:
SourceNavName:

Address:

Prioritylisting:

Why Interested:

DescriptionofDutiesJobl:

DescriptionofDutiesJob2:

DescriptionofDutiesJob3:

AdditionalExperience:
See Current Results

2010
US Bank/Firstar
Milwaukee

1977 Collections
1996 Recovery Supervisor
Carl Budnik
July 10, 2023
Carl Budnik
Carl Budnik July 10, 2023
9278
Volunteer Fact Sheet
7642 W Norwood Ln

I have been volunteering in the beer tent and ticket booth since 1994, so l feel l
can add something to the group.

Collections of loans and overdrafts
Supervised 13 people in recovery of charged off credit card balances

2



BLANKPAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

INFORMATIONAL COUNCIL UPDATE FROM CITY
ASSESSORS, FORWARD APPRAISAL

MEETING DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM NUMBER

G.1.
Analysis

This informational update is intended to introduce the Council to Forward Appraisal, the City's assessors.
This council agenda item provides the Council with an opportunity to ask questions directly of our assessors
and gain insight into the challenges they have encountered during this year's assessment process. Forward
Appraisal will also share any applicable updates on the current year's assessments.

The meeting aims to foster transparency and ensure that the Council is well-informed about the assessment
process. It will also serve as a platform for Forward Appraisal to address any concerns and clarify the
methodologies and procedures used in determining property assessments. This interaction is crucial for
maintaining a shared understanding of the assessment process and ensuring that the Council can make
informed decisions based on accurate and up-to-date information.

Conclusion

This meeting is purely informational and serves as an essential touchpoint between the Council and Forward
Appraisal. We encourage all Council members to actively participate by asking questions and engaging with
our assessors to better understand the complexities of the assessment process and any potential implications
for the City.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

This document is informational only. Please receive and place it on file.

DOA-KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

Federal Emergency Management Agency's
Floodplain Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM)
and City of Franklin Floodplain Ordinance

MTG.DATE
08/20/24

ITEM No.
All Aid. Dist.

.9,

At the July 2, 2024 Common Council meeting, Planning introduced the Floodplain
Zoning Ordinance Update (Item G.8), to comply with Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) requirements for the community to participate in the National Flood
Insurance Program. Planning staff sought policy direction on two elements of the draft
Ordinance: Participation in Act 175, which removes cost-based requirements for
nonconforming structures in the floodplain, and the Community Rating System, which
allows for discounts on flood insurance rates if the City conducts additional work to
educate the public and regulate the floodplain.

A public hearing of the Draft Ordinance was held at Plan Commission on August 8,
2024. There were no public comments. Commissioners inquired about questions from
the general public regarding this update: the Planning Department has not had any
comment or question from the public on this item. The Plan Commission then adopted
a motion to recommend approval of an ordinance to repeal and replace the Unified
Development Ordinance UDO City of Franklin, Wisconsin Floodplain Zoning
Ordinance [Adopted 9-11-2008].

A full report on the proposed ordinance including discussion of updates to incorporate
Common Council direction, and a copy of the draft, are attached here.

The deadline for adoption of the ordinance in order to meet FEMA requirements for
this update is September 10, 2024.

Attachments

• Plan Commission Report
• DNR letter to City of Franklin, with required timeline for review and adoption
• DNR Act 175 Guidance
• Draft Ordinance

Fiscal Note
Generally, the costs are Staff time and future possible changes to permitting software.
Costs to be determined.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
A motion to approve of an ordinance to repeal and replace the Unified Development
Ordinance UDO City of Franklin, Wisconsin Floodplain Zoning Ordinance [Adopted
9-11-2008].

Department ofCity Development MX



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of July 18, 2024
Natural Resource Special Exception

Item. C.1

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of the proposed Draft
Ordinance.

Project Name:
Applicant:

Floodplain Ordinance Update
City of Franklin

Property Address/Tax Key Number: Citywide
Aldermanic District: All
Staff Planner: Marion Eeks, AICP

The City of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance includes a Floodplain Zoning Ordinance
that complies with Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) requirements for the
community to participate in the National Flood Insurance Program. The Floodplain ordinance
regulates development standards (where things can go on a lot, how they must be designed in
terms of dimensions and building features) for structures in the regulatory floodplain as
identified on the maps. There are currently 144 structures located in the floodplain in Franklin
with approximately $6.5 million in assets covered by FEMA National Flood Insurance Program
according to WI DNR and FEMA.

• The current City of Franklin Floodplain Zoning Ordinance is available on line as
Attachment 1 of the Unified Development Ordinance: https://ecode360.com/33224107

• Information about floodplain management including Federal and State requirements; the
DNR website has extensive resources: https://dnr.wisconsin.gov/topic/FloodPlains

This City's ordinance, including the maps that outline the areas subject to regulation, require
occasional updates. FEMA completed their review and public comment period for these maps in
2023, and notified the City that such an update is needed. There are no changes to the
boundaries of the Flood Insurance Rate Maps for the City of Franklin, but an update to the
ordinance text is required. The City may adopt an ordinance text that is differs from the model,
subject to WI DNR and FEMA approval.

The project was initially presented to Common Council on July 2, 2024 for feedback. Common
Council commented on possible participation in two new options for the ordinance: Act 175, and
the Community Rating System.

Staff revised the model ordinance to concord with the City's policies and requirements for
natural resource protection and administrative procedures. The areas protected by the updated
maps within the Franklin corporate boundary have not changed from the current FIRMs. The
draft ordinance was posted for review on the City website beginning July 24, 2024
(https://www .franklinwi.gov/Departments/Planning.htm) and is appended here.



Major Changes
The proposed Draft Ordinance differs from the existing ordinance primarily in that it allows for
Franklin to participate in WI Act 175. In 2020 the State of Wisconsin enacted Act 175, which
allows communities to establish standards for nonconforming structures in the floodplain that do
not rely on a calculation of the structure's value - the "50 percent rule." Under this rule,
structures that are improved beyond 50 percent of their value must either come into conformity
with the ordinances or be removed. With the proposed update, property owners instead have the
option to update structures to floodproofthem to the minimum Federal standards, and the
structures are then no longer subject to cost-based regulation. Broadly speaking, this is a less
restrictive requirement than state and local ordinances, while still requiring flood safety measures
of property owners.

Franklin may opt to participate in this provision by adopting the necessary language in the
updated ordinance. The draft ordinance reflects this language, primarily through the addition of
language to section 6.1 (4)) Nonconforming Uses. Guidance from WI DNR regarding Act 175 is
attached for additional information.

Staff also reviewed for the option to participate in the Community Rating System (CRS) program
for possible discounted rates to homeowners on flood insurance. Because the City has open
floodplain violations requiring a Community Assistance Visit (CAV), we are not eligible for this
program until the CAV is resolved. Staff recommends revisiting this discussion at the conclusion
of the CAV. Updating the ordinance would require a text amendment.

The deadline for adoption of the ordinance in order to meet FEMA requirements for this update
is September 10, 2024. An approximate timeline for the project is attached, along with the DNR
letter initiating the project.

Attachments

• Map of existing and proposed FIRM boundaries
• DNR letter to City of Franklin, with required timeline for review and adoption
• DNR Act 175 Guidance
• Draft Floodplain Ordinance

2



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date:
To:
From:
RE:

July 31, 2024
City of Franklin Plan Commission
Marion Eeks, AICP
Federal Emergency Management Agency's Floodplain Insurance Rate
Maps (FIRM) and City of Franklin Floodplain Ordinance

The City of Franklin GIS team conducted a comparison of the 100 year proposed FEMA
2024 A and AE zones (in red) vs the 2028 A and AE zones (in blue). No changes have
been made.

i
i,:
i

I i
I :

elL--···-···-···-···-···-···-···-~·---·-···-···-···-···-···-···-···- .. ·-···-···- .. ·-···-···- .. ·-···-···- .. ·-···-···- .. ·-···-···- .. •.
MX



State of Wisconsin
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
101 S Webster Street
Madison WI 53703

Monday, April 29, 2024

The Honorable Mr John Nelson, Mayor
City of Franklin
9229 W LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN WI 53132-9630

Electronic delivery via email: jnelson@franklinwi.gov

Tony Evers, Governor

Telephone 608.266.2621
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463

TTY Access via relay -. 711

ii
aSCOSI

OPT, OF NATURAL RESOURCES

Subject: Ordinance adoption notice for City of Franklin. FEMA Community ID: 550273.

Dear Mr John Nelson,

Recently, the City of Franklin received a Letter of Final Determination (LFD) date of October 24, 2024, from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) notify ing the City that updated Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) and the Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) for Milwaukee County must be adopted into the local floodplain ordinance within six months. The City
ordinance must be updated and approved by DNR and FEMA no later than October 24, 2024, or your community will be
suspended from the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).

This letter, and the information listed below explain how to set up the ordinance and the ordinance adoption process. This
information was provided as attachments to the same email that contained this letter

• FIRM and FIS Information - lists out the FIRM panels, FIS numbers and the effective dates needed for the off icial
maps section of the local floodplain ordinance.

• Checklist for standard model ordinance - used to match local sections to state model sections, to ensure all
applicable text is included. Completing this document is required if the local ordinance has language that varies from
the state model. An editable version in Word format is attached.

• WDNR current standard model ordinance - to be used for the update of your community ordinance. The state
standard model meets the minimum requirements of the NFIP and Chapter NR116, Wisconsin Administrative Code. An
editable version in Word format is attached.

• Adopting an ordinance- a step-by-step guide quick guide outlining the adoption process.

• Checklist for ordinance updates- a checklist describing what is needed for the ordinance adoption process and to
receive the DNR approval.

• Ordinance adoption timeline - an outline of steps, with timeframe for each, to receive the DNR approval before the
FEMA deadline.

DNR staff are prepared to assist you in the ordinance review and adoption process, provide example public notices and
explain state and federal regulatory requirements. Communities are encouraged to have DNR staff review the draft local
floodplain ordinance well before the ordinance is presented to the local governing body for adoption in order to ensure
compliance with the NFIP and Chapter NR116, Wisconsin Administrative Code. We advise you to start on this process as
soon as possible to allow for the time necessary to complete the adoption process and to allow for any unintentional delays.
FEMA will not permit extensions beyond the October 24, 2024, deadline. If the ordinance is not legally adopted by the
community and approved by the DNR and FEMA, the community will be immediately suspended from the NFIP.



The federal consequences of being suspended from the NFIP are

No residentwill be able to purchase a federal flood insurance policy Those that may have had pol1c1es will no
longer have coverage after the current pohcy renewal date, however no flood claims would be paid out until the
communtty rejoins the program

2 Federal officers and agencies are prohibrted from approving any financial assistance for acquisrton,
construction, repair, or maintenance purposes in an area ofspecial flood hazard in the community

3 Public fac1l1t1es and citizen owned structures, during a federally declared flood disaster, are not eligible for the
full assistance that normally would be available to communities that are members of the NFIP

4 Development potential may be affected in your community FEMA will not approve a Letter of Map Rev1s1on
based on Fill (LOMR-F) because the community acknowledgement form cannot be signed If the community Is
not a partIcIpant in the NFIP

The process for amending a local floodplain ordinance Is

• Ordinance amendment draft (recommended)- submit draft ordinance to your DNR Floodplain Management
contact for rev4ew 2-4 weeks prior to the pubhc hearing to ensure It 1s compliantwith the minimum standards of the
NFIP and Chapter NR116, Wisconsin Administrative Code before adoption We advise the Community to adopt the
DNR model as It does meet current minimum standards for the NFIP and Chapter NR116 However, the community
may be more restnctrve than the minimum standards, if desired

• Notice of public hearing (Class2) - the publication or posting of a public hearing notice for two consecutive weeks
wIth the final notice being published or posted no less than seven (7) days prior to the public hearing It is critical that
the notice Is published/posted correctly because If tt is not, it may not be valid, and the community would be required to
go through the adoption process again

• Decision of governing body- once an amended floodplain ordinance has been adopted, please submit the
following 1nformat1on in electronic format PDF to your DNR Floodplain Management contact within ten (10) days after
adoption

A certified copy of the adopted ordinance

2 An affidavit of publication of the notice of public hearing from the newspaper with the notice If the notice was
posted, a notarized affidavit by the local official (usually the clerk) stating that the notice of public hearing was
posted in three pubhc places (with date and location), together with the notice, or posted in one public place
and placed electronically on the municipality internet site per s 985 02(2)(a)

3 An affidavit of publication of the notice of the enacted ordinance from the newspaper with the notice If the
notice was posted, a notarized affidavit by the local official (usually the clerk) stating that the notice of public
hearing was posted in three public places (with date and location), together with the notice, or posted in one
public place and placed electronically on a municIpahty internet site per s 985 02(2)(a)

• Upon receipt DNR staff will review the documents to issue the approval and coordinate the FEMA approval for the
community

If you have any questions concerning this letter or need further information on the ordinance adoption process or the
Wisconsin model ordinance, please reach out to the Floodplain Management Program contact 1dent1fied In the email sent to
you



Sincerely,

a#%i.$»
Mia A Van Horn
Floodplain Zoning Ordinance Coordinator
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources
Madison office

Copy to Ms Manon Ecks - City of Franklin, va mecks@franklw gov

Shirley J Roberts - City of Franklin, via sroberts@frankhnw1 gov

Michelle M Hase, P E - Wisconsmn DNR, va mchelle hase@wisconsmn gov



"'Ccu....cua
E
0u
cu....rao

-=:I" -=:I" -=:I"
N N N

t: 0 0 0
N N Nra :;;:- - :;;:-6 .-I

-=:I"N - Ncu - LI') N -.c -=:I" 0 O"I.... N -=:I"
E ? N

0 :;;:-
E- LI) No I -Ill LL, -=:I" Ncu ..... I

.5 ' N -=:I"
0 N

5 N -cu - -=:I"ra .... .-I Ncu ra - -o "'C LI) LI)

>- >- >
±:

C C C
:::J :::J :::J
E E E
E E E
0 0 0u u u

>
-!:::!
C
:::J
E
E
0u

cuo

o
:::J
Cl..
cu....cua
E
0u

>
-!:::!
c
:::J
E
E
0u

c
0
.;:;
a.
0
-0
ni
U
c
ni

>Q)

5
Q)....
Q)
u
C:
ni
C:
3...
0....g
tlO
C:
;::
nicu:c

>
-!:::!
c
:::J
E
E
0u

0:::z
0
U
c
ni
>

-!:::!
c
:::J
E
E
0u...

0
4-
>
-0r
(lJ...

0::z
0

tlO
C:
G
:::J

-0
C
r
Q)....
Q)

a.
E
0u
Q)
.n
0....
Q)
u
C:
ni
c
-0...
0
ds
o
au.n
3>
0
ha.

.... a.o t o 6o
r: o U
±- 5

0 (O

-0 Q)
Q) .c
Nv 2

0::z
0

(lJ
o
0
E

ni .na

5
ni
3:
VI
VI
0...u

c
:::J
E
E
0u
-0
c
ni

0::z
0
"'O
C
ni
>

-!:::!
C
:::J
E
E
0u

0::z
0

<(
~
UJu.
E
0
'-4-.-cu..........
J!:!
C:
0
a.
:::J

zg
g
0.....
e-
c:
:::J
E
E
0u
0.....
•cu
:t:::
d
Vl

"O
C:cu
Vl
0:::z
0

0:::z
0

QJ....
rO
-0
c
6
(lJ
.n
0
LL
_J

<(=UJ
LL

Ill
Q.

%
C:
0z
0z
8
C:
"'C:
5...
0

cu:a·;;;
C:
0
Q.
Illcu...
.!:!!
0.c:z



t t
(] (J
0 0
({ (J- -0 t...... (J- -0 0...... ......

<(
0::: 0::: 5z z LU
0 0 LL...

0
'+-...., (]J

::i E0
V> .;:;
(]J J::.V> bD0 (]J ::i
5 V> 0
> ro c

.0 (]J
±e ro J::.c ....,
::i ro ....,
E .::, 5
E <( <(
0 5 ~u LU LU
0 LL LL...., 0 0
V>

...., ....,
.::, !:: Oc ...., (]J(]J (]J oV> $< >O uro 0C c.. ...ro c..... V>
(]J .::, (]J...., ro .0 (]J...., ..Q ...., >du c.. V> 0

::i ...
ro ::i E c..
> o c..
0 c ...., ro... ro (]J oc.. 3'
c.. 6 u C
ro ro ro
V> <( c.. >LL - -(]J ro (]J ro....,

V> > 5 >d o 0 (]J 0c.. ... ... ... ...
E 0 c.. 0 c..u a. c..0 (]J ro ....,

<(u ... <((]J -0::: 0::: ...., 5 roz z ro LU Co 0
...., -V') LL LL



DNR sends state letter to community to follow up with LFD from FEMA
DNR reaches out to community to offer assistance for Community's choice to
either (1) draft updated ord using model -- OR -- (2) creates own format with
completed crosswalk

DNR to provide community with first draft using MODEL including all Official
Maps info (only a few areas for community to complete and opportunity to
discuss with Corporate Counsel) -- OR -- Community provides DNR with draft
ordinance and a completed Crosswalk worksheet.

If not using model: DNR reviews crosswalk and community draft
Finalized and approvable draft ordinance to be complete and ready for public
hearing
Publish/Post Class 2 notice for public hearing no later than 14 days prior to
scheduled hearing date (can be completed earlier to provide more than 14 days
between notice and hearing date)
Complete Public Hearing for ordinance review and adoption
If separate board/council meeting for official adoption, hold special meeting for
community approval to adopt
Publish/post Class 1 notice of enacted ordinance
Community receives Class 1 notice Affidavit
Community submits all final documents to DNR for review and compiling state
approval packet
FEMA deadline - state approval packet must be received by FEMA on or before
this date



ACT 175 (s. 87.30 (1d)(d) Stats.) Guidance

The WDNR floodplain model ordinance includes the acceptable regulatory standards required in Ch.
NR116, Wis. Admin. Code with supplemental wording intended to ensure that the minimum
requirements for participation in the National Flood Insurance Program (44 C.F.R. §§59-72) are met or
exceeded in all circumstances. The floodplain model ordinance now includes language for communities
choosing to adopt changes consistent with 2019 Act 175.

Act 175 was enacted March 2020 and created§ 87.30 (1d) (d), Wis. Stats. This Act changes how Ch.
NR116, Wis. Adm in. Code may require local governments to regulate nonconforming structures in the
floodplain. To participate in the National Flood Insurance Program, however, communities must still
adopt and enforce regulations that meet the NFIP's minimum standards, which are unchanged.§ 87.30
(1d) (d) creates an exception to the state's "50% rule" for structures in the floodplain. The state's "50%
rule" says no modification or addition to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a
nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50% of its present
equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure is permanently changed to a
conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable requirements of the local
floodplain ordinance.

Essentially, in a floodplain zoning ordinance that has incorporated Act 175, if a nonconforming structure
is altered to meet the federal minimum standards applicable to new construction and substantial
improvements, and the living quarters in the nonconforming building are elevated to be at or above the
flood protection elevation, then the Department is prohibited from imposing cost-based regulation or
restrictions to the structure (i.e., "50% Rule"). It is important to note that structures modified to meet
the requirements of $ 87.30 (1d) (d) are not transformed into conforming structures. They are still
considered nonconforming structures and are subject to all other non-cost-based regulations and
restrictions applicable to nonconforming structures.

The NFIP minimum standards require a participating community to regulate all development, including
all improvements to all structures in special flood hazard areas. The appropriate minimum standards
must be applied to substantial improvements, modifications, additions, and repair or other
improvement of substantially damaged buildings, without regard for whether such buildings are
"nonconforming" with regard to ordinances adopted to meet Ch. NR116 regulations or other state or
local zoning regulations.

Act 175 did not change any city, village, or county floodplain ordinance authority and communities are
able to maintain their current ordinance and incorporate higher standards into their floodplain zoning
ordinance.

Communities should decide whether to incorporate Act 175 into the floodplain ordinance or maintain
their current framework for regulating nonconforming structures based on an assessment of local flood
risks. Once the local flood risks are identified and an appropriate zoning approach is determined, some
communities may choose to maintain existing floodplain zoning and implement higher standards, while
others may modify their ordinances to adopt this new minimum standard. (see WDNR floodplain model
ordinance.)



1. When Act 175 1s incorporated into an ordinance there 1s a potential for the community to allow
modifications, addrtions, substantial improvements, maintenance and repairs to existing
nonconforming structures in excess of the State's 50% Rule once the minimum requirements of
Appendix A are met This creates two class1f1cat1ons of nonconforming structures:

a. Class 1: Nonconforming structures that do not meet Appendix A minimum
requirements and continued to be subject to the State's 50% Rule.

b. Class 2: Nonconforming structures meeting Appendix A minimum requirements and no
longer subject to the State's 50% Rule.

2 For ordinances without Act 175 - repa1r/mamtenance/mod1ficat1on/substant1al improvement of
structures in the floodplain 1s limited by the 50% rule as expressed in NR116.

a No modification, addition, maintenance, or repair can be made on a structure mn the
floodway if the cost exceeds 50% of the present equalized assessed value of the
structure;

b. If a structure in the floodway 1s substantially damaged by a flood, t must be removed
from the floodway;

c. No modification, addrtion, maintenance, or repair can be made on a structure mn the
floodfringe if the cost exceeds 50% of the present equalized assessed value of the
structure unless the structure 1s modified to conform to the floodplain ordinance;

d. In addrtion all standards for nonconforming structures in the floodplain, listed in
Nonconforming Uses in Section 6.0 of the state model, must be followed



Appendix A

For communities incorporating Act 175 into its ordinance, non-conforming structures not subJect to the
State 50% Rule must meet the following minimum standards:

(1) Any living quarters in the nonconforming building are elevated to be at or above the flood
protection elevation;

(2) The lowest floor of the nonconforming building, including the basement, s elevated to or above
the regional flood elevation;

(3) The nonconforming building Is permanently changed to conform to the applicable requirements of
the general standards applicable to all floodplain districts,

(4) The building is permanently changed to conform to all applicable requirements m the community's
floodplain zoning ordinance such as Hydraulic and Hydrolog1c Analyses (H & H), lowest floor
elevations, anchoring, mechanical and utility equipment elevations, floodproofing standards, and
must not obstruct flow of floodwater or cause any increase in flood levels.

NOTE: Incorporating Act 175 mnto the local ordinance still requires the zoning administrator to
carefully review and apply applicable portions of Nonconforming Uses in section 6.0 of the model
ordinance because the structure Is still a nonconforming structure.

(5) If the nonconforming building is m the floodfrmnge, the building Is permanently changed to conform
to the applicable requirements of the floodfrmnge dustnct.

(6) New construction and substantial improvements of res1dent1al buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH
must have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood elevation.

(7) New construction and substantial improvements of non-res1dent1al buildings in zones A1-30, AE,
and AH must have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated to or above the base flood
elevation, or (together with attendant utility and sanitary fac1lit1es) be designed so that below the
base flood elevation the building Is watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage
of water and with structural components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads
and effects of buoyancy.

a. Where a non-res1dent1al structure Is intended to be made watertight below the base flood
elevation, a registered professional engineer or architect must develop and/or review structural
design, specifications, and plans for the construction, and must certify that the design and
methods of construction are in accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the
provisions of paragraph vu above.

b. The community must maintain a record of such certification including the specific elevation to
which each such structure Is floodproofed.

(8) Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor of new construction and substantial improvements in
zones A1-30, AE, and AH that are usable solely for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage,
must be designed to adequately equalize hydrostatic forces on exterior walls by allowing for the



entry and exrt of floodwaters. Designs for meeting thus requirement must erther be certified by a
registered professional engineer or architect, or meet the following criteria:

a A minimum of two openings into each enclosed area must be located below the base flood
elevation and provide a total net area of not less than one square inch for every square foot of
enclosed area;

b. The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above the adJacent grade;

c. Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings 1f they permit the
automatic entry and exit of floodwaters

9) Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-30, AE, and AH
outside of a manufactured home park or subd1v1s1on, in a new manufactured home park or
subdivision, In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or in an existmg
manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has incurred substantial
damage as a result of flood, must be elevated on a permanent foundation such that the lowest
floor of the manufactured home 1s at or above the base flood elevation, and be securely anchored
to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.

10) Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-30, AE, and AH on
existing srtes mn an existing manufactured home park that rs not undergoing expansion and on
which a manufactured home has not incurred substantial damage as a result of flood must be
elevated so that either the lowest floor of the manufactured home 1s at or above the base flood
elevation, or the manufactured home chassis 1s supported by reinforced piers or other foundation
elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than 36 inches m height above grade, and
be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist flotation, collapse,
and lateral movement.

11) Recreational vehicles placed on sites within zones A1-30, AH, and AE must either

a. Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days; or

b Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle 1s ready for highway use 1f 1t 1s
on rts wheels or jacking system, 1s attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utlrtes and
security devices, and has no permanently attached addrtions), or

c. Meet the elevation and anchoring requirements for manufactured homes m paragraph 1x above

12) In a regulatory floodway that has been delineated on the FIRM in zone A1-30 or AE,
encroachments, including new construction, substantial improvement, or other development
(including fill) must be proh1b1ted unless 1t has been demonstrated through hydrolog1c and
hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with standard engineering practice that the proposed
encroachment will not result in any increase in flood levels within the community during the
occurrence of the base flood discharge.

13) In zone A, the community must obtain, review, and reasonably ut1hze any base flood elevation and
floodway data available from a federal, state, or other source as cntena for requiring new
construction, substantial improvement, and other development to meet paragraphs (6) through



(12) (inclusive) above If floodway data are available, the community must select and adopt a
regulatory floodway based on the principle that the area chosen for the regulatory floodway must
be designed to carry the waters of the base flood without increasing the water surface elevation of
that flood more than one foot at any point.

14) In zones A1-3O or AE where a regulatory floodway has not been delineated on the FIRM, no new
construction, substantial improvement, or other development (including fill) may be permitted
unless It Is demonstrated that the cumulative effect of the proposed development, when combined
with all other existing and anticipated development, wall not increase the water surface elevation
of the base flood more than one foot at any point w1thm the community.

15) Notwithstanding the requirements of paragraphs (12) and (14) above, the community may permit
certain development in zones A1-30 and AE where a floodway has not been delineated, which will
increase the water surface elevation of the base flood by more than one foot, or in a regulatory
floodway, which will result mn an increase min base flood elevations, tf the community first obtamns a
Cond1t1onal Letter of Map RevIsIon (CLOMR) from FEMA and fulfills the requirements of Section
65.12 of Title 44, Code of Federal Regulations

16) In zone AO, new construction and substantial improvements of res1dent1al structures must have
the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as
the depth number specified in feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if no depth number Is spec1f1ed).

17) In zone AO, new construction and substantial improvements of nonres1dent1al structures must
have the lowest floor (including basement) elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as
high as the depth number specified m feet on the FIRM (at least two feet 1f no depth number Is
specified), or (together with attendant utility and sanitary fac11it1es) be structurally dry
floodproofed to that level according to the standard specified m paragraph v11 above.



Floodplain Ordinance for City of Franklin, WI

Effective Proposed for September 10, 2024

A cooperative effort of
WI Department of Natural Resource (DNR)

and
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I O STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, TITLE,
AND GENERAL PROVISIONS ...
I I STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION ...
1 2FINDING OFFACT .....
I 3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE ....
I 4 TITLE... .
I 5 GENERAL PROVISIONS ... .. .. .

(1) AREAS TO BE REGULATED .
(2) OFFICIAL MAPS & REVISIONS . . .
(3) ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN ZONING DISTRICTS
(4) LOCATING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES .
(5) REMOVAL OF LANDS FROM FLOODPLAIN .
(6) COMPLIANCE . . .
(7) MUNICIPALITIES AND STATE AGENCIES REGULATED.
(8) ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS ...
(9) INTERPRETATION ..
(10) WARNING AND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY ....
(11) SEVERABILITY... ..... .. ... . ... . ..
(12) ANNEXED AREAS FOR CITIES AND VILLAGES

2 0 GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS ..
2 1 HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC ANALYSES
2 2WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS....
2.3 CHAPTER 30, 31, WIS STATS, DEVELOPMENT
2 4 PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CAMPGROUNDS

3
.3
3
3
3

..... 3
..3
.3
4

. 4
4
5
5
5
6
6
6
6

6
7
7

. 7
7

3 0

40

FLOODW AY DISTRICT (FW)
3 1 APPLICABILITY .
3 2 PERMITTED USES
3 3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODW AY ..
3 4 PROHIBITED USES

FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF)
4 1 APPLICABILITY
4.2 PERMITTED USES
4 3 ST ANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODFRINGE

7
8
8
8

10

11
11
11
II



5 0 OTHER FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS ...
5 1 GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP)

.. 12

... 12

60 NONCONFORMING USES
6 1 GENERAL .
6 2 FLOODWAY DISTRICT
6.3 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT

13
. 13

18
. 19

7 0 ADMINISTRATION
1 1 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR . . .
7 2 ZONING AGENCY . .
7 3 BOARD OF APPEALS .. .. .. . .
7 4 TO REVIEW APPEALS OF PERMIT DENIALS . . . ..
7 5 FLOODPROOFING STANDARDS . . . . . .
7.6 PUBLIC INFORMATION

. . ... . ....19
. ... 19

24
25
27
28
29

80

9.0

10 0

AMENDMENTS
8 1 GENERAL

ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES.......... . ..

DEFINITIONS

2

29
... 29

. . . . .... 30

30



1.0 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION, FINDING OF FACT, STATEMENT OF PURPOSE, TITLE, AND
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION
This ordinance Is adopted pursuant to the authorization in s 6135 and 62 23, for vllages and crites, and
the requirements in s 87 30, Stats

1.2 FINDING OF FACT
Uncontrolled development and use of the floodplains and rivers of this mumc1pallty would ImpaIr the
public health, safety, convenience, general welfare, and tax base

1.3 STATEMENT OF PURPOSE
This ordinance Is intended to regulate floodplain development to

(1) Protect life, health and property,
(2) Min1m1ze expenditures of public funds for flood control projects,
(3) Mmnmmze rescue and relief efforts undertaken at the expense of the taxpayers,
(4) Mmnmmuze business interruptions and other economic disruptions,
(5) Mnmmrze damage to pubic facilities in the floodplain,
(6) Mmnmmze the occurrence of future flood blight areas m the floodplain,
(7) Discourage the victimization of unwary land and homebuyers,
(8) Prevent increases in flood heights that could increase flood damage and result in conflicts

between property owners, and
(9) Discourage development in a floodplain rf there is any practicable alternative to locate the activity,

use or structure outside of the floodplain

1.4 TITLE
Thus ordinance shall be known as the Floodplamn Zoning Ordinance for the City of Franklin, Wisconsin

1.5 GENERAL PROVISIONS
(1) AREAS TO BE REGULATED

This ordinance regulates all areas of special flood hazard 1dent1fied as zones A, AO, AH, A1-30,
AE, on the Flood Insurance Rate Map Add1t1onal areas 1dent1fied on maps approved by the
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and local community may also be regulated under the
provisions of ths ordinance, where applicable

(2) OFFICIAL MAPS & REVISIONS
Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHA) are designated as zones A, A1-30, AE, AH, AO, on the
Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) based on flood hazard analyses summarized In the Flood
Insurance Study (FIS) listed mn subd (a) below Add1t1onal flood hazard areas subject to
regulation under this ordinance are identified on maps based on studies approved by the DNR
and listed m subd (b) below These maps and revIsIons are on file in the office of the City
Clerk, City of Franklin, WI

(a) OFFICIAL MAPS Based on the Flood Insurance Study (FIS

1 Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), panel number 55079C0137F, 55079C0139F,
55079C0141F, 55079C0142F, 55079C0143F, 55079C0144F, 55079C0161F,
55079C0162F, 55079C0163F 1 55079C0164F 1 55079C0206F , 55079C0207F,
55079C0209F, 55079C0226F, 55079C0227F, 55079C0228F, 55079C0229F,
dated 10/24/2024

2 Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for Milwaukee County here, dated 10/24/2024

3



3 (If applicable) Letter of Map Rev1s1on (case number and effective date)

7. (If applicable) Cond1t1onal Letter of Map Change (case number and issue date)

Approved by The DNR and FEMA

(3) ESTABLISHMENT OF FLOODPLAIN ZONING DISTRICTS
The flood hazard areas regulated by thus ordinance are duded into districts as follows

a) The Floodway District (FW), 1s the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the
floodplain adjoining the channel required to carry the regional floodwaters, wthmn AE Zones
as shown on the FIRM, or within A Zones shown on the FIRM when determined according
to s 5 1(5)

b) The Floodfrmnge District (FF) is that portion of a riverine special flood hazard area outside
the floodway within AE Zones on the FIRM, or, when floodway limits have been determined
according to s 5 1(5), within AZones shown on the FIRM

c) The General Floodplain District (GFP) is those riverine areas that may be covered by
floodwater during the regional flood in which a floodway boundary has not been delineated
on the FIRM and also includes shallow flooding areas 1dent1f1ed as AH and AO zones on
the FIRM

(4) LOCATING FLOODPLAIN BOUNDARIES
D1screpanc1es between the exterior boundaries of zones A1-30, AE, AH, or A on the official
floodplain zoning map and actual field cond1t1ons may be resolved using the cntena in subd (a)
or (b) below If a significant difference exists, the map shall be amended according to s 8 O
Amendments The zoning administrator can rely on a boundary derived from a profile elevation
to grant or deny a land use permit, whether or not a map amendment Is required The zoning
administrator shall be responsible for documenting actual pre-development field cond1t1ons and
the basts upon which the district boundary was determined Disputes between the zoning
administrator and an applicant over the district boundary hne shall be settled according to s
7 3(3) and the cntena In (a) and (b) below. Where the flood profiles are based on established
base flood elevations from a FIRM, FEMA must approve any map amendment or revIsIon
pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments

a) If flood profiles exist, the map scale and the profile elevations shall determine the d1stnct
boundary The regional or base flood elevations shall govern 1f there are any
discrepancies

b) Where flood profiles do not exist for proJects, including any boundary of zone A, AO, the
location of the boundary shall be determined by the map scale

(5) REMOVAL OF LANDS FROM FLOODPLAIN
a) Compliance with the provisions of thus ordinance shall not be grounds for removing land from

the floodplain unless 1t 1s filled at least two feet above the regional or base flood elevation, the
fill is contiguous to land outside the floodplain, and the map ts amended pursuant to s 8 0
Amendments

4



b) The delineation of any of the Floodplain Districts may be revised by the community where
natural or man-made changes have occurred and/or where more detailed studies have been
conducted However, prior to any such change, approval must be obtained from the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and Federal Emergency Management Agency
A completed Letter of Map Rev1s1on Is a record of this approval The floodplain administrator
shall not sign a community acknowledgement form unless all criteria set forth In the following
paragraphs are met

1 The land and/or land around the structure must be filled at least two feet above the
regional or base flood elevation,

2 The fill must be contiguous to land outside the floodplain, Applicant shall obtain floodplain
development permit before applying for a LOMR or LOMR-F,

c) Removal of lands from the floodplain may also occur by operation of §87 30(1)(e), Wis Stat
1f a property owner has obtained a letter of map amendment from the federal emergency
management agency under 44 C F R 70

(6) COMPLIANCE
a) No structure or use within areas regulated by this ordinance shall hereafter be located,

erected, constructed, reconstructed, repaired, extended, converted, enlarged, or altered
without full compliance with the terms of these regulations and all other applicable regulations
that apply to uses within the jurisdiction of these regulations

b) Failure to obtain a floodplain development permit shall be a v1olat1on of these regulations and
shall be punishable in accordance with s 9 0

c) Floodplain development perrrnts issued on the basis of plans and applications approved by
the Floodplain Administrator authorize only the use, and arrangement, set forth in such
approved plans and applications, or amendments thereto 1f approved by the Floodplain
Administrator Use, arrangement, or construction contrary to that authorized shall be deemed
a v1olat1on of these regulations and punishable in accordance with s 9 0

(7) MUNICIPALITIES AND STATEAGENCIES REGULATED
Unless specifically exempted by law, all c1tIes, villages, towns, and counties are required to
comply with thus ordinance and obtamn all necessary permits State agencies are required to
comply 1f s 13 48(13), Stats , apples The construction, reconstruction, maintenance and
repair of state highways and bridges by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation Is exempt
whens 30 2022, Stats, applies Although exempt from a local zoning permit and permit fees,
DOT must provide sufficient project documentation and analysis to ensure that the community
Is In compliance with Federal, State, and local floodplain standards If a local transportation
project is located within a Zone A floodplain and is not aWIsDOT project under s 30 2022,
then the road project design documents (mncluding appropriate detailed plans and profiles) may
be sufficient to meet the requirements for issuance of a local floodplain permit 1f the following
apply The applicant provides documentation to the Floodplain Administrator that the proposed
project 1s a culvert replacement or bridge replacement under 20' span at the same location, the
project 1s exempt from a DNR permit under s 30 123(6)(d), the capacity Is not decreased, the
top road grade is not raised, and no floodway data Is available from a federal, state, or other
source If floodway data 1s available in the impacted area from a federal, state, or other source
that existing data must be utilized by the applicant in the analysis of the project site

(8) ABROGATION AND GREATER RESTRICTIONS
a) This ordinance supersedes all the provisions of any municipal zoning ordinance enacted

5



under s 62 23 for cItIes, ors 87 30, Stats, which relate to floodplains A more restrictive
ordinance shall continue in full force and effect to the extent of the greater restrictions, but
not otherwise

b) Thus ordinance is not intended to repeal, abrogate, or impair any existing deed restrictions,
covenants, or easements If this ordinance imposes greater restrictions, the provIsIons of
this ordinance shall prevail

(9) INTERPRETATION
In therr Interpretation and application, the provisions of thus ordinance are the minimum
requirements liberally construed in favor of the governing body and are not a ilm1tat1on on or
repeal of any other powers granted by the Wisconsin Statutes If a provIsIon of this ordinance,
required by ch NR 116, Wis Adm Code, is unclear, the provision shall be interpreted in light
of the standards in effect on the date of the adoption of this ordinance or in effect on the date
of the most recent text amendment to this ordinance

(10)WARNINGAND DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY
The flood protection standards in this ordinance are based on engineering experience and
research Larger floods may occur, or the flood height may be increased by man-made or
natural causes This ordinance does not imply or guarantee that non-floodplain areas or
permitted floodplain uses will be free from flooding and flood damages This ordinance does
not create hab1hty on the part of, or a cause of action against, the murnc1pallty or any officer or
employee thereof for any flood damage that may result from reliance on this ordinance

(11)SEVERABILITY
Should any portion of this ordinance be declared unconstItutIonal or invalid by a court of
competent Junsd1ct1on, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected

(12)ANNEXED AREAS FOR CITIESAND VILLAGES
The Milwaukee County floodplain zoning prov1sIons in effect on the date of annexation shall
remain in effect and shall be enforced by the municipality for all annexed areas until the
municipality adopts and enforces an ordinance which meets the requirements of ch NR 116,
Wis Adm Code and 44 CFR 59-72, Natonal Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) These
annexed lands are described on the municipality's official zoning map County floodplamn
zoning provisions are Incorporated by reference for the purpose of administering this section
and are on file in the office of the municipal zoning administrator All plats or maps of
annexation shall show the regional flood elevation and the floodway location

2.0 GENERAL STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO ALL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS
The community shall review all permit applications to determine whether proposed building sttes will
be reasonably safe from flooding and assure that all necessary permits have been received from
those governmental agencies whose approval Is required by federal or state law

1) If a proposed building site 1s in a flood-prone area, all new construction and substantial
improvements shall

a be designed and anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the
structure resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, mcludmg the effects of
buoyancy,

b be constructed with flood-resistant materials,

c be constructed by methods and practices that minImIze flood damages, and

d Mechanical and ut1hty equipment must be elevated to or above the flood protection
elevation

6



2) If a subd1v1s1on or other proposed new development Is in a flood-prone area, the community shall
assure that

a such proposed subdivision or other proposed new development Is consistent with the
need to mInimIze flood damagewithin the flood-prone area,

b pubhc ut1htIes and fac1ht1es such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems are located
and constructed to mmnimze or eliminate flood damage, and

c adequate drainage Is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards

All subd1v1s1on proposals (including manufactured home parks) shall include regional flood
elevation and floodway data for any development that meets the subdivision definition of thus
ordinance and all other requirements in s 7 1(2)

2.1 HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC ANALYSES
1) No floodplain development shall

a Obstruct flow, defined as development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters by
Itself or with other development, causing any Increase in the regional flood height, or

b Cause any increase in the regional flood height due to floodplain storage area lost

2) The zoning administrator shall deny permits rf it is determined the proposed development will
obstruct flow or cause any increase in the regional flood height, based on the officially adopted
FIRM or other adopted map, unless the provIsIons of s 8 0 Amendments are met

2.2 WATERCOURSE ALTERATIONS
No land use permit to alter or relocate a watercourse in a mapped floodplain shall be issued until the
local official has notified mn writing all adjacent municipalities, the Department and FEMA regional
offices, and required the applicant to secure all necessary state and federal permits The standards
of s 2 1must be met and the flood carrying capacity of any altered or relocated watercourse shall be
maintained

As soon as Is practicable, but not later than six months after the date of the watercourse alteration or
relocation and pursuant to s 8 0 Amendments, the community shall apply for a Letter of Map
Rev1s1on (LOMR) from FEMA Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by FEMA and
the DNR through the LOMC process

2.3 CHAPTER 30, 31, WIS. STATS., DEVELOPMENT
Development which requires a permit from the Department, under chs 30 and 31, Stats, such as
docks, piers, wharves, bridges, culverts, dams, and nav1gat1onal aids, may be allowed 1f the
necessary permits are obtained and amendments to the floodplain zoning ordinance are made
according to s 8 0 Amendments

2.4 PUBLIC OR PRIVATE CAMPGROUNDS
Public or private campgrounds shall not be permitted m flood hazard areas

3.0 FLOODWAY DISTRICT (FW)

7



3.1 APPLICABILITY
This section applies to all floodway areas on the floodplain zoning maps and those 1dent1f1ed pursuant
to s 51(5)

3.2 PERMITTED USES
The following open space uses are allowed m the Floodway District and the floodway areas of the
General Floodplain District, 1f

• they are not proh1b1ted by any other ordinance,
• they meet the standards in s 3 3 and 3 4, and
• all permits or certificates have been issued according to s 7 1

1) Agricultural uses, such as farming, outdoor plant nurseries, horticulture, v1t1culture, and wild crop
harvesting

2) Nonstructural industrial and commercial uses, such as loading areas, parking areas and airport
landing strips

3) Nonstructural recreational uses, such as golf courses, tennis courts, archery ranges, picnic
grounds, boat ramps, swimming areas, parks, wildlife and nature preserves, game farms, fish
hatcheries, shooting, trap, and skeet actvites, hunting and fishing areas and hkmng and
horseback rding trails, subject to the fill lim1tat1ons of s 3 3(4)

4) Uses or structures accessory to open space uses or classified as historic structures that comply
withs 33and34

5) Extraction of sand, gravel or other materials that comply withs 3 3(4)

6) Functionally water-dependent uses, such as docks, piers orwharves, dams, flowage areas,
culverts, nav1gat1onal aids and river crossings of transmission lines, and pipelines that comply
with chs 30 and 31, Stats

7) Public ut1l1t1es, streets and bridges that comply withs 3 3(3)

8) Portable latrmes are not permitted mn flood hazard zones

9) Public or private wells used to obtam potable water for recreational areas are not permitted in
flood hazard zones

10) Wastewater treatment ponds or fac1ht1es permitted under s NR 110 15(3)(b), Wis Adm Code

11) Sanitary sewer or water supply Imes to service ex1stmg or proposed development located outside
the floodway that complies with the regulations for the floodplain area occupied

3.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODWAY
1) GENERAL

a Any development in the floodway shall comply with s 2 0 and have a low flood damage
potential

b Applicants shall provide an analysis calculatmg the effects of this proposal on the
regional flood height to determine the effects of the proposal according to s 21and
7 1(2)(c) The analysis must be completed by a registered professional engineer in the
state of Wisconsin

c Any encroachment in the regulatory floodway 1s proh1b1ted unless the data submitted for

8



subd 3 3(1)(b) above demonstrates that the encroachment will cause no increase In
flood elevations in flood events up to the base flood at any location or removes the
encroached area from the regulatory floodway as provided in s 15(5)

2) STRUCTURES

Structures accessory to permanent open space uses, including utility and sanitary fac1l1t1es, or
functionally dependent on a waterfront location may be allowed by permit 1f the structures comply
with the following criteria

a Not designed for human habitation, does not have a high flood damage potential and Is
constructed to min1m1ze flood damage,

b Shall either have the lowest floor elevated to or above the flood protection elevation or
shall meet all the following standards

1 Have the lowest floor elevated to or above the regional flood elevation and be dry
floodproofed so that the structure 1s watertight with walls substantially impermeable
to the passage of water and completely dry to the flood protection elevation without
human intervention during flooding,

2 Have structural components capable of meeting all prov1s1ons of Section 3 3(2)(g)
and,

3 Be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, through the use of a
Federal Emergency Management Agency Floodproofing Certificate, that the design
and methods of construction are in accordance with Section 3 3(2)(g)

c Must be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement,

d Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated to or above the flood protection
elevation, and

e Must not obstruct flow of flood waters or cause any increase m flood levels during the
occurrence of the regional flood

f For a structure designed to allow the automatic entry of floodwaters below the Regional
Flood Elevation, the applicant shall submit a plan that meets s 3 3(2)(a) through 3 3(2)(e)
and meets or exceeds the following standards

1 The lowest floor must be elevated to or above the regional flood elevation,

2 a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch
for every square foot of enclosed area subyect to flooding,

3 the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above the lowest
adJacent grade, openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other
coverings or devces provided that they permit the automatic entry and exrt of
floodwaters, otherwise must remain open

4 The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

g Certification Whenever floodproofing measures are required, a registered professional
engineer or architect shall certify that the following floodproofing measures will be
utilized, where appropriate, and are adequate to withstand the flood depths, pressures,
velocities, impact and uplift forces and other factors associated wth the regional flood

9



1 Reinforcement of floors and walls to resist rupture, collapse, or lateral movement
caused by water pressures or debris buildup,

2 Construction of wells, water supply systems and waste treatment systems so as to
prevent the entrance of flood waters rn such systems and must be rn accordance
with provisions in Sections 3 4(4) and 3 4(5),

3 Subsurface drainage systems to relieve external pressures on foundation walls and
basement floors,

4 Cutoff valves on sewer lrnes or the elimination of gravity flow basement drams, and

5 Placement of ut11it1es to or above the flood protection elevation

3) PUBLIC UTILITIES, STREETS AND BRIDGES
Public utilities, streets and bridges may be allowed by permit, If

a Adequate floodproofing measures are provided to the flood protection elevation, and

b Construction meets the development standards of s 2 1

4) FILLS OR DEPOSITION OF MATERIALS
Fills or deposition of materals may be allowed by permit, If

a The requirements of s 21aremet,

b No material rs deposited mn navigable waters unless a permit is Issued by the Department
pursuant to ch 30, Stats , and a permit pursuant to s 404 of the Federal Water Pollution
Control Act, Amendments of 1972, 33U SC 1344 has been issued, 1f applicable, and all
other requirements have been met,

c The fill or other materials will be protected against erosion by riprap, vegetative cover,
sheet piling or bulkheadmng, and

d The fill is not classified as a solid or hazardous material

3.4 PROHIBITED USES
All uses not listed as permitted uses m s 3 2 are proh1b1ted, mcludmg the following uses

1) Habitable structures, structures with high flood damage potential, or those not associated with
permanent open-space uses,

2) Stonng materials that are buoyant, flammable, explosive, mJunous to property, water quality, or
human, animal, plant, fish or other aquatic life,

3) Uses not in harmony with or detrimental to uses permitted in the adjoining districts,

4) Any private or public sewage systems,

5) Any public or private wells which are used to obtam potable water,

6) Any solid or hazardous waste disposal sites,

7) Any wastewater treatment ponds or fac1ht1es, except those permitted under s NR 110 15(3)(b),
Wis Adm Code, and

10



8) Any sanitary sewer or water supply Imes, except those to service exIstmg or proposed
development located outside the floodway which complies with the regulations for the floodplain
area occupied

4.0 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT (FF)

4.1 APPLICABILITY
This section applies to all floodfringe areas shown on the floodplain zonmg maps and those 1dent1f1ed
pursuant to s 51(5)

4.2 PERMITTED USES
Any structure, land use, or development Is allowed in the Floodfringe District if the standards mn s 4 3
are met, the use Is not proh1b1ted by this, or any other ordinance or regulation and all permits or
certificates specified ins 7 1have been issued

4.3 STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOODFRINGE
Section 2 0 shall apply m add1t1on to the following requirements according to the use requested Any
existing structure in the floodfringe must meet the reqwrements of s 6 0 Nonconforming Uses,

(1) RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL, MANUFACTURING AND INDUSTRIAL USES

Residential, commercial, manufacturing and mndustnal uses are prohibited mn floodfringe
areas Sees 7 3(4) for variance information

(2) ACCESSORY STRUCTURES OR USES
In add1t1on to s 20, new construction and substantial improvements of Accessory
structures shall be constructed on fill with the lowest floor at or above the regional flood
elevation

(3) STORAGE OF MATERIALS
Storage of materials Is prohibited in floodfrmnge areas

(4) PUBLIC UTILITIES, STREETS AND BRIDGES
All utilities, streets and brdges shall be designed to be compatible with comprehensive
floodplain development plans, and

a) When failure of pubhc ut1ht1es, streets and bridges would endanger public health
or safety, or where such facilities are deemed essential, construction or repar of
such fac1ht1es shall only be permitted 1f they are designed to comply with s 7 5

b) Mmor roads or non-essential ut1ht1es may be constructed at lower elevations If
they are designed to withstand flood forces to the regional flood elevation

(5) SEWAGE SYSTEMS
All sewage disposal systems shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of
flood water into the system, pursuant to s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and
meet the provIsIons of all local ordinances and ch SPS 383, Wis Adm Code

(6) WELLS

11



All wells shall be designed to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the
system, pursuant to s 7 5(3), to the flood protection elevation and shall meet the
provisions of chs NR 811 and NR 812, Wis Adm Code

(7) SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL SITES
Disposal of sold or hazardous waste Is prohibited in floodfrmnge areas

(8) DEPOSITION OF MATERIALS
Any deposited materal must meet all the provisions of this ordinance

(9) MANUFACTURED HOMES
Manufactured homes are proh1b1ted m floodfnnge areas. Sees. 7 3(4) for variance
standards.

(10)MOBILE RECREATIONAL VEHICLES
Mobile recreational vehicles are prohibited mn floodfrmnge areas. See s. 7.3(4) for variance
standards.

5.0 OTHER FLOODPLAIN DISTRICTS

5.1 GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT (GFP)

1) APPLICABILITY
The provisions for the General Floodplamn District shall apply to development mn all floodplains
mapped as A, AO, AH, and in AE zones within which a floodway Is not delineated on the Flood
Insurance Rate Maps 1dent1fied ins 1 5(2)(a)

2) FLOODWAY BOUNDARIES
For proposed development in zone A, or in zoneAE within which a floodway Is not delineated on
the Flood Insurance Rate Map Identified mn s 15(2)(a), the boundaries of the regulatory floodway
shall be determined pursuant to s 5 1(5) If the development Is proposed to encroach upon the
regulatory floodway, the development is subject to the standards of s 3 0 If the development Is
located entirely within the floodfrnge, the development is subject to the standards of s 4 0

3) PERMITTED USES
Pursuant to s 5 1(5) it shall be determined whether the proposed use Is located within the
floodway or floodfrnge Those uses permitted in the Floodway (s 3 2) and Floodfrnge (s 4 2)
Districts are allowed wthin the General Floodplamn District, according to the standards of s 5 1(4)
provided that all permits or certificates required under s 7 1have been issued

4) STANDARDS FOR DEVELOPMENT IN THE GENERAL FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT
Section 3 0 applies to floodway areas, determined to pursuant to 5 1 (5), Section 4 O applies to
floodfringe areas, determined to pursuant to 51(5)

a) New construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AO shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated

To or above the depth, in feet, as shown on the FIRM above the highest adjacent
natural grade, or

2 If the depth is not specified on the FIRM, two feet (2) above the highest adjacent
natural grade or higher

12



b) New Construction and substantial improvement of structures in zone AH shall have the
lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the flood protection elevation

c) In AO/AH zones, provide adequate drainage paths to guide floodwaters around structures

d) All development in zones AO and zone AH shall meet the requirements of s 4 0 applicable
to flood fringe areas

5) DETERMINING FLOODWAY AND FLOODFRINGE LIMITS
Upon receiving an application for development within zone A, or within zone AE where a floodway
has not been delineated on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps, the zoning administrator shall

a) Require the applicant to submit two copies of an aerial photograph or a plan which shows
the proposed development with respect to the general floodplain district hm1ts, stream
channel, and existing floodplain developments, along with a legal description of the property,
fill l1m1ts and elevations, building floor elevations and flood proofing measures and the flood
zone as shown on the FIRM

b) Require the applicant to furnish any of the following information deemed necessary by the
Department to evaluate the effects of the proposal upon flood height and flood flows,
regional flood elevation and to determine floodway boundaries

1 A Hydrolog1c and Hydraulic Study as specified in s 7 1(2)c)

2 Plan (surface view) showing elevations or contours of the ground, pertinent structure,
fill or storage elevations, size, location, and layout of all proposed and existing
structures on the site, location and elevations of streets, water supply, and sanitary
facilities, soul types and other pertinent information

3 Specifications for building construction and materals, floodproofing, filling, dredging,
channel improvement, storage, water supply and sanitary fac1lit1es

6.0 NONCONFORMING USES

6.1 GENERAL
1) Applicability

a) The standards in this section shall apply to all uses and buildings that do not conform to the
provstons contained within a floodplain zoning ordinance or with s 87 30, Stats and SS NR
116 12-14, Wis Adm Code and 44 CFR 59-72, these standards shall apply to all
mod1ficat1ons or add1t1ons to any nonconforming use or structure and to the use of any
structure or premises which was lawful before the passage of this ordinance or any
amendment thereto A party asserting existence of a lawfully established nonconforming use
or structure has the burden of proving that the use or structure was compliant with the
floodplain zoning ordinance in effect at the time the use or structure was created

b) As permit applications are received for additions, modifications, or substantial Improvements
to nonconforming buildings In the floodplain, municipalities shall develop a list of those
nonconforming buildings, their present equalized assessed value, and a hst of the costs of
those activities associated with changes to those buildings

13



2) The ex1stIng lawful use of a structure or its accessory use which 1s not in conformity with the
provisions of thus ordinance may continue subject to the following conditions

a) No mod1ficat1ons or add1t1ons to a nonconforming use or structure shall be permitted unless
they comply wth this ordinance The words "modification" and "addition" include, but are not
limited to, any alteration, addition, modification, structural repair, rebuilding or replacement of
any such existing use, structure or accessory structure or use Maintenance 1s not considered
a modification, thus Includes painting, decorating, paneling and other nonstructural
components and the maintenance, repair or replacement of ex1st1ng private sewage or water
supply systems or connections to public ut11it1es Any costs associated with the repair of a
damaged structure are not considered maintenance

The construction of a deck that does not exceed 200 square feet and that 1s adjacent to the
exterior wall of a principal structure is not an extension, modification, or addition The roof of
the structure may extend over a portion of the deck in order to provide safe ingress and egress
to the principal structure

b) If a nonconforming use or the use of a nonconforming structure 1s discontinued for 12
consecutive months, 1t 1s no longer permitted and any future use of the property, and any
structure or building thereon, shall conform to the applicable requirements of this ordinance,

c) The municipality shall keep a record which lists all nonconforming uses and nonconforming
structures, their present equalized assessed value, the cost of all mod1ficat1ons or add1t1ons
which have been permitted, and the percentage of the structure's total current value those
mod1ficat1ons represent,

d) No mod1ficat1on or add1t1on to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a
nonconforming use, which over the life of the structure would equal or exceed 50% of its
present equalized assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure Is permanently
changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable
requirements of thus ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for residential
and commercial uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) The costs of elevating the lowest floor of a
nonconforming building or a building with a nonconforming use to the flood protection
elevation are excluded from the 50% prov1s1ons of this paragraph,

e) No maintenance on a per event basis to any nonconforming structure or any structure with a
nonconforming use, the cost ofwh1ch would equal or exceed 50% of its present equalized
assessed value, shall be allowed unless the entire structure 1s permanently changed to a
conforming structure with a conforming use in compliance with the applicable requirements of
thus ordinance Contiguous dry land access must be provided for residential and commercial
uses in compliance withs 4 3(1) Maintenance to any nonconforming structure, which does
not exceed 50% of its present equalized assessed value on a per event basis, does not count
against the cumulative calculations over the life of the structure for substantial improvement
calculations

f) If on a per event basis the total value of the work being done under (d) and (e) equals or
exceeds 50% of the present equalized assessed value, the work shall not be permitted unless
the entire structure is permanently changed to a conforming structure with a conforming use in
compliance with the applicable reqwrements of this ordinance Contiguous dry land access
must be provided for res1dent1al and commercial uses in compliance with s 4 3(1)

g) Except as provided in subd (h), 1f any nonconforming structure or any structure with a
nonconforming use Is destroyed or Is substantially damaged, tt cannot be replaced,
reconstructed, or rebuilt unless the use and the structure meet the current ordinance
requirements A structure 1s considered substantially damaged tf the total cost to restore the

14



structure to its pre-damaged cond1t1on equals or exceeds 50% of the structure's present
equalized assessed value

h) For nonconforming buildings that are substantially damaged or destroyed by a nonflood
disaster, the repair or reconstruction of any such nonconforming building shall be permitted In
order to restore It to the size and use in effect prior to the damage event, provided that the
following minimum requirements are met, and all required permits have been granted prior to
the start of construction

1 Res1dent1al Structures

a Shall have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the base flood
elevation using fill, pilings, columns, posts, or perimeter walls Perimeter walls must
meet the requirements of s 7 5(2)

b Shall be anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral movement of the structure
resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of buoyancy,
and shall be constructed with methods and materials resistant to flood damage

c Shall be constructed wth electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and arr conditioning
equipment and other service fac1ht1es that are designed and/or elevated so as to
prevent water from entering or accumulating within the components during conditions
of flooding

d In A Zones, obtain, review, and utilize any flood data available from a federal, state or
other source

e In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, meet the standards ins 5 1(4)

f in AO Zones, shall have adequate drainage paths around structures on slopes to
guide floodwaters around and away from the structure

2 Nonres1dent1al Structures

a Shall meet the requirements of s 6 1(2)(h)1a-f

b Shall either have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to or above the
regional flood elevation, or, together with attendant utility and sanitary fac1l1t1es, shall
meet the standards ins 7 5 (1) or (2)

c In AO Zones with no elevations specified, shall have the lowest floor, including
basement, meet the standards ins 5 1(4)

3) A nonconforming historic structure may be altered 1f the alteration will not preclude the structure's
continued designation as a historic structure, the alteration will comply wth s 33(1), flood
resistant materials are used, and construction practices and floodproofing methods that comply
with s 7 5 are used Repair or rehabilitation of hstonc structures shall be exempt from the
development standards of s 61(2)(h)1 if it is determined that the proposed repair or rehabil1tat1on
will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a hustorc structure and is the minimum
necessary to preserve the h1stonc character and design of the structure

4) Notwithstanding anything mn this chapter to the contrary, modifications, additions, maintenance,
and repairs to a nonconforming building shall not be prohibited based on cost and the building's
nonconforming use shall be permitted to continue 1f

15



a) Any living quarters in the nonconforming building are elevated to be at or above the flood
protection elevation,

b) The lowest floor of the nonconforming bwlding, including the basement, Is elevated to or
above the regional flood elevation,

c) The nonconforming building Is permanently changed to conform to the applicable
requirements of 20,

d) If the nonconforming building Is in the floodway, the building Is permanently changed to
conform to the applicable requirements of 3 3(1), 3 3(2)(b) through (e), 3 3(3), 3 3(4), and 6 2
Any development that adds add1t1onal fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from
beyond the ongmal nonconforming structure's 3-D bwldmg envelope must determine the
floodway in accordance with section 51(5) If the encroachment Is in the floodway, It must
meet the standards In section 3 3(4),

e) If the nonconforming building is in the floodfrnge, the building rs permanently changed to
conform to the applicable reqwrements of 4 3 and 6 3,

f) Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial improvements of
res1dent1al bwldings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must have the lowest floor (including
basement) elevated to or above the base flood elevation,

g) Repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial improvements of non
res1dent1al buildings in zones A1-30, AE, and AH must have the lowest floor (including
basement) elevated to or above the base flood elevation, or (together with attendant ut1l1ty
and sanitary facilities) be designed so that below the base flood elevation the building Is
watertight with walls substantially impermeable to the passage of water and with structural
components capable of resisting hydrostatic and hydrodynamic loads and effects of
buoyancy

1 Where a non-res1dent1al structure 1s intended to be made watertight below the
base flood elevation, a registered professional engineer or architect must
develop and/or review structural design, spec1ficat1ons, and plans for the
construction, and must certify that the design and methods of construction are In
accordance with accepted standards of practice for meeting the provisions of s
6 1(4)(g) above

nu The community must maintain a record of such certification including the specific
elevation to which each such structure Is floodproofed,

h) Fully enclosed areas below the lowest floor of repair or reconstruction of nonconforming
structures and substantial improvements in zones A1-30, AE, and AH that are usable solely
for parking of vehicles, building access, or storage, must be designed to adequately equalize
hydrostatic forces on exterior walls by allowing for the entry and exit of floodwaters
Subsequent improvements to repaired or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not
Increase the degree of their nonconformity Designs for meeting this requirement must either
be certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, or meet the following criteria

1 A minimum of two openings into each enclosed area must be located below the
base flood elevation and provide a total net area of not less than one square inch
for every square foot of enclosed area

16



11 The bottom of all openings must be no higher than one foot above the adJacent
grade

111 Openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings 1f
they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters,

1) Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-30, AE, and
AH outside of a manufactured home park or subd1v1s1on, in a new manufactured home park
or subdivision, In an expansion to an existing manufactured home park or subdivision, or in
an existing manufactured home park or subdivision on which a manufactured home has
incurred substantial damage as a result of flood, must be elevated on a permanent
foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home Is at or above the base flood
elevation, and be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system to resist
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement,

J) Manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A1-30, AE, and
AH on existing sites in an existing manufactured home park that is not undergoing expansion
and on which a manufactured home has not incurred substantial damage as a result of flood
must be elevated so that either the lowest floor of the manufactured home 1s at or above the
base flood elevation, or the manufactured home chassis Is supported by reinforced piers or
other foundation elements of at least equivalent strength that are no less than 36 inches in
height above grade, and be securely anchored to an adequately anchored foundation system
to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement,

k) Recreational vehicles placed on srtes wthin zones A1-30, AH, and AE must either

1 Be on site for fewer than 180 consecutive days, or

11 Be fully licensed and ready for highway use (a recreational vehicle Is ready for
highway use if rt is on its wheels or jacking system, Is attached to the srte only by
quick disconnect type utilities and security devices, and has no permanently
attached additions), or

111 Meet the elevation and anchoring reqwrements for manufactured homes In s
6.1(4)() above,

I) In a regulatory floodway that has been delineated on the FIRM in zone A1-30 or AE,
encroachments, including repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures, substantial
improvement, or other development (including fill) must be proh1b1ted unless It has been
demonstrated through hydrologc and hydraulic analyses performed in accordance with
standard engineering practice that the proposed encroachment will not result in any increase
In flood levels within the community during the occurrence of the base flood discharge
Subsequent improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not
increase the degree of their nonconformity,

m) In zone A, the community must obtain, review, and reasonably utilize any base flood
elevation and floodway data available from a federal, state, or other source as criteria for
requiring repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures, substantial improvement, and
other development to meet ss 6 1 (4)(f) through (I) (inclusive) above Any development that
adds add1t1onal fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from beyond the original
nonconforming structure's 3-D bwlding envelope must determine the floodway in accordance
with section 51(5) If the encroachment us in the floodway, tt must meet the standards in
section 3 3(4) Subsequent improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming
structures must not increase the degree of their nonconformity,

17



n) In zones A1-30 or AE where a regulatory floodway has not been delineated on the FIRM,
repar or reconstruction of nonconforming structures, substantial improvement, or any
development that adds add1t1onal fill or creates an encroachment in the floodplain from
beyond the ongmnal nonconforming structure's 3-D building envelope must determine the
floodway in accordance with section 5 1(5) If the encroachment is in the floodway, it must
meet the standards in section 3 3(4) Subsequent improvements to repair or reconstructed
nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their nonconformity,

o) In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial
improvements of res1dent1al structures must have the lowest floor (including basement)
elevated above the hghest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth number specified In
feet on the FIRM (at least two feet if no depth number Is specified) Subsequent
improvements to repair or reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the
degree of their nonconformity, or

p) In zone AO, repair or reconstruction of nonconforming structures and substantial
improvements of nonresidential structures must have the lowest floor (including basement)
elevated above the highest adjacent grade at least as high as the depth number specified m
feet on the FIRM (at least two feet 1f no depth number 1s specified), or (together with
attendant utility and sanitary facilities) be structurally dry-floodproofed to that level according
to the standard specified in s 6 1(4)g) above Subsequent improvements to repair or
reconstructed nonconforming structures must not increase the degree of their nonconformity

6.2 FLOODWAY DISTRICT
1) No modification or addition shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with

a nonconforming use in the Floodway District, unless such modification or addition

a) Has been granted a permit or variancewhich meets all ordinance requirements,

b) Meets the requirements of s 61,

c) Shall not increase the obstruction to flood flows or regional flood height,

d) Any addrtion to the existing structure shall be floodproofed, pursuant to s 7 5, by means
other than the use of fill, to the flood protection elevation, and,

e) If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation Is enclosed, the following
standards shall apply

1 The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for the
efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention A minimum of two
openings must be provded with a minimum net area of at least one square inch for every
one square foot of the enclosed area The lowest part of the opening can be no more
than 12 inches above the adjacent grade,

2 The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be
constructed of flood-resistant materials,

3 Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the flood
protection elevation, and

4 The use must be hm1ted to parking, building access or hm1ted storage

18



2) No new on-srte sewage disposal system, or addition to an existing on-srte sewage disposal
system, except where an add1t1on has been ordered by a government agency to correct a hazard
to public health, shall be allowed in the Floodway District Any replacement, repair or
maintenance of an existing on-site sewage disposal system in a floodway area shall meet the
applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s 7 5(3) and Ch SPS 383, Wis Adm Code

3) No new well or mod1ficat1on to an existing well used to obtain potable water shall be allowed in
the Floodway District Any replacement, repair, or maintenance of an existing well in the
Floodway District shall meet the applicable requirements of all municipal ordinances, s 7 5(3)
and chs NR 811 and NR 812, Wis Adm Code

6.3 FLOODFRINGE DISTRICT
1) No mod1ficat1on or add1t1on shall be allowed to any nonconforming structure or any structure with

a nonconforming use unless such modification or addition has been granted a permit or variance
by the municipality and meets the requirements of s 4 3 except wheres 6 3(2) Is applicable

2) Where compliance with the provIsIons of subd (1) would result in unnecessary hardship and only
where the structure will not be used for human hab1tat1on or be associated with a high flood
damage potential, the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals, using the procedures established In
s 73, may grant a variance from those provisions of subd (1) for modifications or additions using
the criteria listed below Modifications or additions which are protected to elevations lower than
the flood protection elevation may be permitted if

a) No floor Is allowed below the regional flood elevation for res1dent1al or commercial
structures,

b) Human lives are not endangered,

c) Public fac1ht1es, such as water or sewer, shall not be installed,

d) Flood depths shall not exceed two feet,

e) Flood veloc1t1es shall not exceed two feet per second, and

f) The structure shall not be used for storage of materials as described ins 4 3(5)

3) All new private sewage disposal systems, or add1t1on to, replacement, repair or maintenance of a
private sewage disposal system shall meet all the applicable provIsIons of all local ordinances, s
7 5 (3) and ch SPS 383, Wis Adm Code

4) All new wells, or addition to, replacement, repair, or maintenance of a well shall meet the
applicable provIsIons of this ordinance, s 7 5 (3) and ch NR 811 and NR 812, Wis Adm Code

7.0 ADMINISTRATION
Where a zoning administrator, planning agency or a board of appeals has already been appointed to
administer a zoning ordinance adopted under ss 59 69, 59 692 or 62 23(7), Stats , these officials
shall also administer this ordinance

1.1 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR
1) DUTIES AND POWERS

The zoning administrator ts author1zed to administer this ordnance and shall have the following
duties and powers

19



a) Advise applicants of the ordinance provisions, assist in preparing permit applications and
appeals, and assure that the regional flood elevation for the proposed development Is shown
on all permit applications

b) Issue permits and inspect properties for complance with provisions of this ordinance and
issue cert1f1cates of compliance where appropriate

c) Inspect and assess all damaged floodplain structures to determine 1f substantial damage to
the structures has occurred

d) Keep records of all official actions such as
1 All permits issued, inspections made, and work approved,
2 Documentation of certified lowest floor and regional flood elevations,
3 Floodproofing certificates
4 Water surface profiles, floodplain zoning maps and ordinances, nonconforming uses

and structures including changes, appeals, variances and amendments
5 All substantial damage assessment reports for floodplain structures
6 List of nonconforming structures and uses

e) Submit copies of the following items to the Department Regional office
1 Withmn 10 days of the dec1s1on, a copy of any decisions on variances, appeals for map

or text interpretations, and map or text amendments,

2 Copies of case-by-case analyses and other required information

3 Copies of substantial damage assessments performed and all related correspondence
concerning the assessments

f) Investigate, prepare reports, and report violations of thus ordinance to the municipal zoning
agency and attorney for prosecution Copies of the reports shall also be sent to the
Department Regional office

g) Submit copies of amendments to the FEMA Regional office

2) LAND USE PERMIT
A land use permit shall be obtained before any development, repair, mod1ficat1on, or add1t1on to
an existing structure, or change in the use of a building or structure, including sewer and water
facilities, may be initiated Application to the zoning administrator shall include

a) GENERAL INFORMATION

1 Name and address of the applicant, property owner and contractor,

2 Legal descnpt1on, proposed use, and whether 1t 1s new construction or a mod1ficat1on,

b) SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN
A site plan drawn to scale shall be submitted with the permit application form and shall
contamn

1 Location, d1mens1ons, area and elevation of the lot,

2 Location of the ordinary h1ghwater mark of any abutting navigable waterways,

20



3 Location of any structures with distances measured from the lot Imes and street center
Imes,

4 Location of any existing or proposed on-site sewage systems or private water supply
systems,

5 Location and elevation of existing or future access roads,

6 Location of floodplain and floodway limits as determined from the official floodplain zoning
maps,

7 The elevation of the lowest floor of proposed buildings and any fill using the vertical datum
from the adopted study - either National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or North
American Vertical Datum (NAVD),

8 Data sufficient to determine the regional flood elevation in NGVD or NAVO at the location
of the development and to determine whether or not the requirements of s 3 O or 4 0 are
met, and

9 Data to determine 1f the proposed development will cause an obstruction to flow or an
Increase In regional flood height or discharge according to s 21 Thus may Include any of
the information noted ms 3.3(1)

c) HYDRAULIC AND HYDROLOGIC STUDIES TOANALYZE DEVELOPMENT
All hydraulic and hydrolog1c studies shall be completed under the direct supervIsIon of a
professional engineer registered m the State The study contractor shall be responsible for
the technical adequacy of the study All studies shall be reviewed and approved by the
Department

1 Zone A floodplains and in AE zones wIthm which a floodway Is not delineated
a Hydrology

The appropriate method shall be based on the standards in ch NR 116 07(3),
Wis Admmn Code, Hydrologc Analysis Determination of Regional Flood
Discharge

b Hydraulic modeling
The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in ch NR 116 07(4), Wis
Admin Code, Hydraulic Analysis Determination of Regional Flood Elevation and the
following

determination of the required limits of the hydraulic model shall be based on
detailed study information for downstream structures (dam, bridge, culvert) to
determine adequate starting WSEL for the study

11 channel sections must be surveyed

111 mm1mum four-foot contour data in the overbanks shall be used for the
development of cross section overbank and floodplain mapping

IV a maximum distance of 500 feet between cross sections Is allowed m developed
areas with additional intermediate cross sections required at transtttons in
channel bottom slope mcludmg a survey of the channel at each location

21



v the most current version of HEC-RAS shall be used

v a survey of bridge and culvert openings and the top of road 1s required at each
structure

vu add1t1onal cross sections are required at the downstream and upstream limits of
the proposed development and any necessary intermediate locations based on
the length of the reach 1f greater than 500 feet

vu standard accepted engineering practices shall be used when assigning
parameters for the base model such as flow, Manning's N values, expansion and
contraction coeff1c1ents or effective flow limits The base model shall be
calibrated to past flooding data such as high-water marks to determine the
reasonableness of the model results If no h1stoncal data 1s available, adequate
Just1ficat1on shall be provided for any parameters outside standard accepted
engineering practices

1x the model must extend past the upstream limit of the difference in the ex1st1ng
and proposed flood profiles m order to provide a tie-in to existing studies The
height difference between the proposed flood profile and the existing study
profiles shall be no more than 0.00 feet

c Mapping
A work map of the reach studied shall be provided, showing all cross-section locations,
floodway/floodplain limits based on best available topographic data, geographic limits
of the proposed development and whether the proposed development 1s located 1n the
floodway

If the proposed development 1s located outside of the floodway, then 1t 1s
determined to have no impact on the regional flood elevation

11 If any part of the proposed development is mn the floodway, it must be added to
the base model to show the difference between ex1stmg and proposed
cond1t1ons The study must ensure that all coefficients remain the same as in the
existing model, unless adequate Just1ficat1on based on standard accepted
engineering practices Is provided

2 Zone AE Floodplains
a Hydrology

If the proposed hydrology will change the existing study, the appropriate method to be
used shall be based on ch NR 116 07(3), Wis Admin Code, Hydrologuc Analysis
Determmatlon of Regional Flood Discharge

b Hydraulic model
The regional flood elevation shall be based on the standards in ch NR 116 07(4), Wis
Admin Code, Hydraulic Analysts Determmatton of Regional Flood Elevation and the
following

Duplicate Effective Model
The effective model shall be reproduced to ensure correct transference of the
model data and to allow integration of the revised data to provide a continuous
FIS model upstream and downstream of the revised reach If data from the
effective model 1s available, models shall be generated that duplicate the FIS
profiles and the elevations shown in the Floodway Data Table in the FIS report to
within 0 1 foot

22



11 Corrected Effective Model
The Corrected Effective Model shall not include any man-made physical
changes since the effective model date but shall import the model into the most
current version of HEC-RAS for Department review

uu Existing (Pre-Project Conditions) Model
The Existing Model shall be required to support conclusions about the actual
impacts of the project associated with the Revised (Post-Project) Model or to
establish more up-to-date models on which to base the Revised (Post-ProJect)
Model

Iv Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model
The Revised (Post-Project Conditions) Model shall incorporate the Existing
Model and any proposed changes to the topography caused by the proposed
development This model shall reflect proposed cond1t1ons

v All changes to the Duplicate Effective Model and subsequent models must be
supported by certified topographic information, bridge plans, construction plans
and survey notes

v1 Changes to the hydraulic models shall be limited to the stream reach for which
the rev1s1on 1s being requested Cross sections upstream and downstream of
the revised reach shall be 1dent1cal to those in the effective model and result in
water surface elevations and top widths computed by the revised models
matching those in the effective models upstream and downstream of the revised
reach as required The Effective Model shall not be truncated

c Mapping
Maps and associated engineering data shall be submitted to the Department for
revew which meet the followmg conditions

Consistency between the revised hydraulic models, the revised floodplain and
floodway delineations, the revised flood profiles, topographic work map,
annotated FIRMs and/or Flood Boundary Floodway Maps (FBFMs), construction
plans, bridge plans

11 Certified topographic map of suitable scale, contour interval, and a planmmetrc
map showing the applicable ttems lf a digital version of the map Is available, it
may be submitted in order that the FIRM may be more easily revised

111 Annotated FIRM panel showing the revised 1% and O 2% annual chance
floodplains and floodway boundaries

1v If an annotated FIRM and/or FBFM and d1g1tal mapping data (GIS or CADD) are
used, then all supporting documentation or metadata must be included with the
data subm1ss1on along with the Universal Transverse Mercator (UTM) pr0Ject1on
and State Plane Coordinate System in accordance with FEMA mapping
specifications

v The revised floodplain boundaries shall tie into the effective floodplain
boundaries

v All cross sections from the effective model shall be labeled in accordance with
the effective map and a cross section lookup table shall be included to relate to
the model input numbering scheme

23



vu Both the current and proposed floodways shall be shown on the map

VIII The stream centerline, or profile baseline used to measure stream distances m
the model shall be v1s1ble on the map

d) EXPIRATION
All permits issued under the authority of this ordinance shall expire no more than 180 days
after issuance The permit may be extended for a maximum of 180 days for good and
sufficient cause If the permitted work has not started within 180 days of the permit date, the
development must comply with any regulation, including any revision to the FIRM or FIS, that
took effect after the permit date

3) CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
No land shall be occupied or used, and no building which Is hereafter constructed, altered, added
to, modified, repaired, rebuilt, or replaced shall be occupied until a certificate of compliance Is
Issued by the zoning administrator, except where no permit is required, subject to the following
provisions

a) The certificate of compliance shall show that the building or premises or part thereof, and
the proposed use, conform to the provIsIons of this ordinance,

b) Application for such certificate shall be concurrent with the application for a permit,

c) If all ordinance provisions are met, the certificate of compliance shall be Issued wth1n 10
days after written notification that the permitted work is completed,

d) The applicant shall submit a certification signed by a registered professional engineer,
architect, or land surveyor that the fill, lowest floor and floodproofing elevations are In
compliance with the permit issued Floodproofing measures also require cert1ficat1on by a
registered professional engineer or architect that the requirements of s 7 5 are met

e) Where applicable pursuant to s 5 1(4), the applicant must submit a cert1ficat1on by a
registered professional engineer or surveyor of the elevation of the bottom of the lowest
horizontal structural member supporting the lowest floor (excluding pilings or columns), and
an md1cat1on ofwhether the structure contains a basement

f) Where applicable pursuant to s 5 1(4), the applicant must submit cert1f1cat1ons by a
registered professional engineer or architect that the structural design and methods of
construction meet accepted standards of practice as required bys 5 1(4)

4) OTHER PERMITS
Prior to obtaining a floodplain development permit the applicant must secure all necessary permits
from federal, state, and local agencies, including but not limited to those required by the U S Army
Corps of Engineers under s 404 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, Amendments of 1972,
33 USC 1344

7.2 ZONING AGENCY
1) The Plan Commission shall

a) oversee the functions of the office of the zoning administrator, and

b) review and advise the governing body on all proposed amendments to this ordinance, maps,
and text

24



c) publish adequate notice pursuant to Ch 985, Stats , specifying the date, time, place, and
subject of the public hearing

2) The Plan Commission shall not

a) grant variances to the terms of the ordinance in place of action by the Board of Zoning and
Building Appeals, or

b) amend the text or zoning maps in place of official action by the governing body

7.3 BOARD OF APPEALS
The Board of Appeals, created under 62 23(7)(e), Stats , for cities or villages, is hereby authorized or
shall be appointed to act for the purposes of this ordinance The Board shall exercise the powers
conferred by Wisconsin Statutes and adopt rules for the conduct of business The zoning
adm Inistrator shall not be the secretary of the Board

1) POWERS AND DUTIES
The Board of Appeals shall
a) Appeals - Hear and decide appeals where rt is alleged there rs an error in any order,

requirement, decision or determination made by an administrative official m the enforcement
or administration of thus ordinance,

b) Boundary Disputes - Hear and decide disputes concerning the district boundaries shown on
the official floodplain zoning map, and

c) Variances - Hear and decide, upon appeal, variances from the ordinance standards

2) APPEALS TO THE BOARD
a) Appeals to the board may be taken by any person aggrieved, or by any officer or department

of the municipality affected by any decision of the zoning administrator or other administrative
officer Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days unless otherwise provided by the rules of
the board, by filing wth the official whose decision is mn question, and with the board, a notice
of appeal specifying the reasons for the appeal The official whose decrston Is in question
shall transmit to the board all records regarding the matter appealed

b) NOTICEAND HEARING FOR APPEALS INCLUDING VARIANCES

1 Notice - The board shall

a Fix a reasonable time for the hearing,
b Publish adequate notice pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, specifying the date, time,

place, and subject of the hearing, and
c Assure that notice shall be mailed to the parties in interest and the Department

Regional office at least 10 days in advance of the hearing

2 Hearng - Any party may appear in person or by agent The board shall
a Resolve boundary disputes according to s 7 3(3),
b Decide variance applications according to s 7 3(4), and
c Decide appeals of permit denials according to s 74

c) DECISION The final dec1s1on regarding the appeal or variance apphcat1on shall

1 Be made within a reasonable time,

25



2 Be sent to the Department Regional office within 10 days of the dec1s1on,

3 Be a written determination signed by the chairman or secretary of the Board,

4 State the specific facts which are the basis for the Board's decrston,

5 Either affirm, reverse, vary or modify the order, requirement, decision, or determination
appealed, mn whole or in part, d1sm1ss the appeal for lack of Jurisd1ct1on or grant or deny the
varance application, and

6 Include the reasons for granting an appeal, describing the hardship demonstrated by the
applicant in the case of a variance, clearly stated m the recorded minutes of the Board
proceedings

3) BOUNDARY DISPUTES
The following procedure shall be used by the Board in hearing disputes concerning floodplain
district boundaries

a) If a floodplain district boundary Is established by approximate or detailed floodplain
studies, the flood elevations or profiles shall prevail in locating the boundary

b) The person contesting the boundary location shall be given a reasonable
opportunity to present arguments and technical evidence to the Board, and

c) If the boundary Is incorrectly mapped, the Board should inform the zoning
committee or the person contesting the boundary location to petition the governing
body for a map amendment according to s 8 0 Amendments

4) VARIANCE
a) The Board may, upon appeal, grant a variance from the standards of this ordinance 1f an

applicant convincingly demonstrates that

1 Literal enforcement of the ordinance will cause unnecessary hardship,

2 The hardship Is due to adoption of the floodplain ordinance and unique property
cond1t1ons, not common to adJacent lots or premises In such case the ordinance or map
must be amended,

3 The variance Is not contrary to the public interest, and

4 The variance is consistent with the purpose of thus ordinance in s 13

b) In add1t1on to the criteria in subd (a), to qualify for a variance under FEMA regulations, the
Board must find that the following criteria have been met

1The variance shall not cause any increase in the regional flood elevation,

2 The applicant has shown good and sufficient cause for issuance of the variance,

3 Failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship,

26



4 Granting the variance will not result In add1t1onal threats to public safety, extraordinary
expense, create a nuisance, cause fraud on or victimrzaton of the public, or conflict with
existing local laws or ordinances,

5 The variance granted Is the mmImum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford
relief

c) A variance shall not

1 Grant, extend or increase any use prohibited in the zoning district,

2 Be granted for a hardship based solely on an economic gam or loss,

3 Be granted for a hardship which Is self-created

4 Damage the rights or property values of other persons m the area,

5 Allow actions without the amendments to this ordinance or map(s) required m s 8 0
Amendments, and

6 Allow any alteration of an historic structure, mcluding its use, which would preclude its
continued designation as an historc structure

d) When a floodplain variance Is granted, the Board shall notify the applicant in writing that it
may increase risks to life and property and flood insurance premiums could increase up to
$25 00 per $100 00 of coverage A copy shall be maintained with the variance record

7.4 TO REVIEW APPEALS OF PERMIT DENIALS
(1) The Zoning Agency (s 7 2) or Board shall review all data related to the appeal This may include

a Permit application data listed in s 71(2),

b Floodway/floodfringe determination data in s 5 1(5),

c Data listed ins 3 3(1)(b) where the applicant has not submitted this 1nformat1on to the
zoning administrator; and

d Other data submitted with the application or submitted to the Board with the appeal

(2) For appeals of all denied permits the Board shall

a Follow the procedures of s 7 3,

b Consider zoning agency recommendations, and

c Either uphold the denial or grant the appeal

(3) For appeals concerning increases in regional flood elevation the Board shall

a Uphold the denial where the Board agrees with the data showing an increase In flood
elevation Increases may only be allowed after amending the flood profile and map and all
appropriate legal arrangements are made with all adversely affected property owners as per
the requirements of s 8 0 Amendments, and

27



b Grant the appeal where the Board agrees that the data properly demonstrates that the
project does not cause an increase provided no other reasons for denial exist

7.5 FLOODPROOFING STANDARDS
(1) No permit or vanance shall be issued for a non-residential structure designed to be watertight

below the regional flood elevation until the applicant submits a plan certified by a registered
professional engineer or architect that the floodproofing measures will protect the structure or
development to or above the flood protection elevation and submits a FEMA Floodproofing
Certificate Floodproofing 1s not an alternative to the development standards in ss 2 0, 3 0, 4 0,
or 5 1

(2) For a structure designed to allow the entry of floodwaters, no permit or variance shall be issued
until the applicant submits a plan either

a certified by a registered professional engineer or architect, or

b meeting or exceeding the following standards
1 a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch

for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding,
2 the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade, and
3 openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves, or other coverings or

devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of floodwaters

(3) Floodproofing measures shall be designed, as appropriate, to

a Withstand flood pressures, depths, veloc1t1es, uplift and impact forces and other regional
flood factors,

b Protect structures to the flood protection elevation,

c Anchor structures to foundations to resist flotation and lateral movement,

d Minimize or eliminate mnfiltration of flood waters,

e Mmnmmrze or eliminate discharges into flood waters,

f Placement of essential ut1ht1es to or above the flood protection elevation, and

g If any part of the foundation below the flood protection elevation 1s enclosed, the following
standards shall apply

1 The enclosed area shall be designed by a registered architect or engineer to allow for
the efficient entry and exit of flood waters without human intervention A minimum of
two openings must be provided with a minimum net area of at least one square inch
for every one square foot of the enclosed area The lowest part of the opening can
be no more than 12 inches above the adjacent grade,

2 The parts of the foundation located below the flood protection elevation must be
constructed of flood-resistant materials,

3 Mechanical and ut1hty equipment must be elevated or floodproofed to or above the
flood protection elevation, and

4 The use must be limited to parking, building access or limited storage

28



7.6 PUBLIC INFORMATION
(1) Place marks on structures to show the depth of inundation during the regional flood

(2) All maps, engmeenng data and regulations shall be available and widely d1stnbuted

(3) Real estate transfers should show what floodplain d1stnct any real property Is m

8.0 AMENDMENTS
Obstructions or increases may only be permitted 1f amendments are made to this ordinance, the
official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface profiles, m accordance with s 8 1

(1) In AE Zones with a mapped floodway, no obstructions or increases shall be permitted unless
the applicant receives a Cond1t1onal Letter of Map Rev1sIon from FEMA and amendments are
made to this ordinance, the official floodplain zoning maps, floodway Imes and water surface
profiles, m accordance with s 81 Any such alterations must be reviewed and approved by
FEMA and the DNR

(2) In A Zones increases equal to or greater than 10 foot may only be permitted 1f the applicant
receives a Conditional Letter of Map Revision from FEMA and amendments are made to this
ordinance, the official floodplain maps, floodway Imes, and water surface profiles, In
accordance with s 8 1

8.1 GENERAL
The governing body shall change or supplement the floodplamn zoning drstnct boundaries and thIs
ordinance in the manner outlined ms 8 2 below Actions which require an amendment to the
ordinance and/or submittal of a Letter of Map Change (LOMG) include, but are not limited to, the
following

(1) Any fill or floodway encroachment that obstructs flow causing any increase In the regional
flood height,

(2) Any change to the floodplain boundaries and/or watercourse alterations on the FIRM,

(3) Any changes to any other officially adopted floodplain maps listed Ins 15 (2)(b),

(4) Any floodplain fill which raises the elevation of the filled area to a height at or above the flood
protection elevation and is contiguous to land lying outside the floodplain,

(5) Correction of d1screpanc1es between the water surface profiles and floodplain maps,

(6) Any upgrade to a floodplain zoning ordinance text required bys NR 116 05, Wis Adm Code,
or otherwise required by law, or for changes by the munic1pahty, and

(7) All channel relocations and changes to the maps to alter floodway Imes or to remove an area
from the floodway or the floodfringe that Is based on a base flood elevation from a FIRM
requires prior approval by FEMA

8.2 PROCEDURES

Ordinance amendments may be made upon petition of any party according to the provisions of s
62 23, Stats The petItIons shall include all data required bys 5 1(5) and 7 1(2) The Land Use Permit
shall not be issued until a Letter of Map Rev1s1on 1s issued by FEMA for the proposed changes

29



(1) The proposed amendment shall be referred to the zoning agency for a public hearing and
recommendation to the governing body The amendment and notice of public hearing
shall be submitted to the Department Regional office for review prior to the hearing The
amendment procedure shall comply with the prov1s1ons of s 62 23, Stats

(2) No amendments shall become effective until reviewed and approved by the Department

(3) All persons pet1t1oning for a map amendment that obstructs flow causing any increase in
the regional flood height, shall obtain flooding easements or other appropriate legal
arrangements from all adversely affected property owners and notify local units of
government before the amendment can be approved by the governing body

9.0 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES
Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance by any person shall be unlawful and shall be referred
to the municipal attorney who shall expeditiously prosecute all such violators A violator shall, upon
conv1ct1on, forfeit to the municipality a penalty of not more than $50 00 (fifty dollars), together with a
taxable cost of such action Each day of continued v1olat1on shall constitute a separate offense
Every violation of thus ordinance ts a public nuisance, and the creation may be enyomned, and the
maintenance may be abated by action at suit of the municipality, the state, or any citizen thereof
pursuant to s 87 30, Stats

10.0 DEFINITIONS
Unless spec1f1cally defined, words and phrases in this ordinance shall have their common law
meaning and shall be applied in accordance with their common usage Words used 1n the present
tense include the future, the singular number includes the plural and the plural number includes
the singular The word "may" Is permissive, "shall" Is mandatory and rs not discretionary

1 A ZONES - Those areas shown on the Official Floodplain Zoning Map which would be inundated
by the regional flood These areas may be numbered or unnumbered A Zones The A Zones
may or may not be reflective of flood profiles, depending on the ava1lab1hty of data for a given
area

2 AH ZONE -- See "AREAOF SHALLOW FLOODING"

3 AO ZONE -See "AREAOF SHALLOW FLOODING"

4 ACCESSORY STRUCTURE OR USE-A facility, structure, building or use which 1s accessory or
incidental to the principal use of a property, structure or bu1ld1ng An accessory structure shall not
be used for human hab1tat1on

5 ALTERATION -- An enhancement, upgrade or substantial change or mod1ficat1on other than an
addition or repair to a dwelling or to electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating, ar conditioning and
other systems within a structure

6 AREA OF SHALLOW FLOODING-A designated AO, AH, AR/AO, AR/AH, or VO zone on a
community's Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) with a 1 percent or greater annual chance of
flooding to an average depth of 1 to 3 feet where a clearly defined channel does not exist, where
the path of flooding is unpredictable, and where velocity flood may be evident Such flooding Is
characterized by ponding or sheet flow

7 BASE FLOOD - Means the flood having a one percent chance of being equaled or exceeded 1n
any given year, as published by FEMA as part of a FIS and depicted on a FIRM

30



8 BASEMENT - Any enclosed area of a building having its floor sub-grade on all sides

9 BUILDING - See STRUCTURE

10 BULKHEAD LINE - A geographc line along a reach of navigable water that has been adopted by
a municipal ordinance and approved by the Department pursuant to s 30 11, Stats , and which
allows limited filling between this bulkhead line and the original ordinary hghwater mark, except
where such filling Is prohibited by the floodway provisions of this ordinance

11 CAMPGROUND -Any parcel of land which Is designed, maintained, intended, or used for the
purpose of providing sites for nonpermanent overnight use by 4 or more camping units, or which
Is advertised or represented as a camping area

12 CAMPING UNIT - Any portable device, no more than 400 square feet in area, used as a
temporary shelter, including but not limited to a camping trailer, motor home, bus, van, pick-up
truck, or tent that is fully licensed, tf required, and ready for highway use

13 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE -A cert1ficat1on that the construction and the use of land or a
building, the elevation of fill or the lowest floor of a structure Is in compliance with all of the
provisions of this ordinance

14 CHANNEL -A natural or art1fic1al watercourse with definite bed and banks to confine and conduct
normal flow of water

15 CRAWLWAYS or CRAWL SPACE-An enclosed area below the first usable floor of a building,
generally less than five feet in height, used for access to plumbing and electrical ut1ht1es

16 DECK-An unenclosed exterior structure that has no roof or sides and has a permeable floor
which allows the mnfiltration of precipitation

17 DEPARTMENT -The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

18 DEVELOPMENT -Any art1fic1al change to improved or unimproved real estate, including, but not
limited to, the construction of buildings, structures or accessory structures, the construction of
add1t1ons or alterations to buildings, structures or accessory structures, the repair of any damaged
structure or the improvement or renovation of any structure, regardless of percentage of damage
or improvement, the placement of buildings or structures, subdivision layout and site preparation,
mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations, the storage, deposition
or extraction of materials or equipment, and the installation, repair or removal of public or private
sewage disposal systems or water supply fac1lit1es

19 DRYLAND ACCESS -A vehicular access route which Is above the regional flood elevation, and
which connects land located mn the floodplain to land outside the floodplain, such as a road with
its surface above regional flood elevation and wide enough for wheeled rescue and relief
vehicles

20 ENCROACHMENT - Any fill, structure, equipment, use or development m the floodway

21 FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) -- The federal agency that
administers the National Flood Insurance Program

22 FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) -- A map of a community on which the Federal
Insurance Admm1stration has delineated both the floodplain and the risk premium zones
applicable to the community This map can only be amended by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency

31



23 FLOOD or FLOODING -A general and temporary cond1t1on of partial or complete inundation of
normally dry land areas caused by one of the following cond1t1ons

• The overflow or rise of inland waters,
• The rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source,
• The inundation caused by waves or currents of water exceeding ant1c1pated cyclical

levels along the shore of Lake M1ch1gan or Lake Superior, or
• The sudden increase caused by an unusually high-water level in a natural body of water,

accompanied by a severe storm, or by an unant1c1pated force of nature, such as a seiche,
or by some s1m1larly unusual event

24 FLOOD FREQUENCY - The probability of a flood occurrence which is determined from statistical
analyses The frequency of a particular flood event 1s usually expressed as occurring, on the
average once in a specified number of years or as a percent (%) chance of occurring m any given
year

25 FLOODFRINGE - That portion of the floodplain outside of the floodway which 1s covered by flood
waters during the regional flood and associated wth standing water rather than flowing water

26 FLOOD HAZARD BOUNDARY MAP -A map designating approximate flood hazard areas
Flood hazard areas are designated as unnumbered A-Zones and do not contain floodway Imes or
regional flood elevations This map forms the basis for both the regulatory and insurance aspects
of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) until superseded by a Flood Insurance Study
and a Flood Insurance Rate Map

27 FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY - A technical engineering examination, evaluation, and
determination of the local flood hazard areas It provides maps designating those areas affected
by the regional flood and provides both flood insurance rate zones and base flood elevations and
may provide floodway Imes The flood hazard areas are designated as numbered and
unnumbered A-Zones Flood Insurance Rate Maps, that accompany the Flood Insurance Study,
form the basis for both the regulatory and the insurance aspects of the National Flood Insurance
Program

28 FLOODPLAIN - Land which has been or may be covered by flood water during the regional
flood It includes the floodway and the floodfrnge and may include other designated floodplain
areas for regulatory purposes

29 FLOODPLAIN ISLAND - A natural geologic land formation within the floodplain that Is
surrounded, but not covered, by floodwater during the regional flood

30 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT - Polley and procedures to ensure wise use of floodplains,
Including mapping and engineering, mitigation, education, and administration and enforcement of
floodplain regulations

31 FLOOD PROFILE - A graph or a longitudinal profile line showing the relationship of the water
surface elevation of a flood event to locations of land surface elevations along a stream or nver

32 FLOODPROOFING -Any combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments to
properties and structures, water and sanitary facilities and contents of buildings subject to
flooding, for the purpose of reducing or eliminating flood damage

33 FLOOD PROTECTION ELEVATION -An elevation of two feet of freeboard above the Regional
Flood Elevation (Also see FREEBOARD)

34 FLOOD STORAGE - Those floodplain areas where storage of floodwaters has been taken mto
account during analysis mn reducing the regional flood discharge

32



35 FLOODWAY- The channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adJ01ning the
channel required to carry the regional flood discharge

36 FREEBOARD -A safety factor expressed in terms of a specified number of feet above a
calculated flood level Freeboard compensates for any factors that cause flood heights greater
than those calculated, including ice Jams, debris accumulation, wave action, obstruction of bridge
openings and floodways, the effects of watershed urbanization, loss of flood storage areas due to
development and aggregation of the river or stream bed

37 HABITABLE STRUCTURE -Any structure or portion thereof used or designed for human
habitation

38 HEARING NOTICE - Publication or posting meeting the requirements of Ch 985, Stats For
appeals, a Class 1 notice, published once at least one week (7 days) before the hearing, Is
required For all zoning ordinances and amendments, a Class 2 notice, published twice, once
each week consecutively, the last at least a week (7 days) before the hearing Local ordinances
or bylaws may require add1t1onal notice, exceeding these minimums

39 HIGH FLOOD DAMAGE POTENTIAL - Damage that could result from flooding that includes any
danger to life or health or any significant economic loss to a structure or building and its contents

40 HIGHEST ADJACENT GRADE -The highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure

41 HISTORIC STRUCTURE-Any structure that s erther
• Lusted mdrvdually in the Natonal Register of Historic Places or preliminarily determined by

the Secretary of the Interior as meeting the requirements for ind1v1dual listing on the National
Register,

• Cert1f1ed or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of the Interior as contributing to the
historical significance of a registered historic dustnct or a district preliminarily determined by
the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district,

• Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states wIth historic preservation
programs which have been approved by the Secretary of the Interior, or

• Indvdually listed on a local inventory of hustonic places in communities with historIc
preservation programs that have been certified either by an approved state program, as
determined by the Secretary of the Interior, or by the Secretary of the Interior in states without
approved programs

42 INCREASE IN REGIONAL FLOOD HEIGHT -A calculated upward rise in the regional flood
elevation greater than O 00 foot, based on a comparison of existing cond1t1ons and proposed
condItIons which 1s directly attributable to development in the floodplain but not attributable to
manipulation of mathematical variables such as roughness factors, expansion and contraction
coefficients and discharge

43 LAND USE-Any nonstructural use made of unimproved or improved real estate (Also see
DEVELOPMENT)

44 LOWEST ADJACENT GRADE - Elevation of the lowest ground surface that touches any of the
exterior walls of a building

45 LOWEST FLOOR - The lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area (including basement)

46 MAINTENANCE -The act or process of ordinary upkeep and repairs, including redecorating,
refinishing, nonstructural repairs, or the replacement of existing fixtures, systems or equipment
with equivalent fixtures, systems, or structures

33



47 MANUFACTURED HOME - A structure transportable in one or more sections, which Is built on a
permanent chassis and Is designed to be used with or without a permanent foundation when
connected to required ut1lit1es The term "manufactured home" includes a mobile home but does
not include a "mobile recreational vehicle "

48 MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION --A parcel (or contiguous parcels)
of land, d1v1ded into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale

49 MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK OR SUBDIVISION, EXISTING-A parcel of land,
d1v1ded into two or more manufactured home lots for rent or sale, on which the construction of
facilities for servcmg the lots is completed before the effective date of this ordinance At a
minimum, this would include the installation of ut1lit1es, the construction of streets and either final
site grading or the pouring of concrete pads

50 MOBILE/MANUFACTURED HOME PARK, EXPANSION TO EXISTING - The preparation of
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the manufactured
homes are to be affixed This includes installation of ut1litIes, construction of streets and either
final site grading, or the pouring if concrete pads

51 MOBILE RECREATIONAL VEHICLE-A vehicle which Is built on a single chassis, 400 square
feet or less when measured at the largest horizontal projection, designed to be self-propelled,
earned or permanently towable by a licensed, light-duty vehicle, Is licensed for highway use If
registration is required and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling, but as
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel or seasonal use Manufactured homes
that are towed or earned onto a parcel of land, but do not remain capable of being towed or
earned, including park model homes, do not fall within the definition of "mobile recreational
vehicles"

52 MODEL, CORRECTED EFFECTIVE - A hydraulic engineering model that corrects any errors
that occur in the Duplicate Effective Model, adds any add1t1onal cross sections to the Duplicate
Effective Model, or incorporates more detailed topographic information than that used In the
current effective model

53 MODEL, DUPLICATE EFFECTIVE - A copy of the hydraulic analysis used in the effective FIS
and referred to as the effective model

54 MODEL, EFFECTIVE - The hydraulic engineering model that was used to produce the current
effective Flood Insurance Study

55 MODEL, EXISTING (PRE-PROJECT) -A mod1ficat1on of the Duplicate Effective Model or
Corrected Effective Model to reflect any man-made mod1ficat1ons that have occurred within the
floodplain since the date of the effective model but prior to the construction of the project for
which the revIsIon 1s bemg requested If no mod1ficat1on has occurred since the date of the
effective model, then this model would be 1dent1cal to the Corrected Effective Model or Duplicate
Effective Model

56 MODEL, REVISED (POST-PROJECT) - A modification of the Existing or Pre-Project Conditions
Model, Duplicate Effective Model or Corrected Effective Model to reflect revised or post-proiect
conditions

57 MUNICIPALITY or MUNICIPAL - The county, city or village governmental units enacting,
administering, and enforcing thus zoning ordinance

58 NAVO or NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM- Elevations referenced to mean sea level
datum, 1988 adjustment

34



59 NGVD or NATIONAL GEODETIC VERTICAL DATUM - Elevations referenced to mean sea level
datum, 1929 adJustment

60 NEW CONSTRUCTION - Structures for which the start of construction commenced on or after
the effective date of a floodplain zoning regulation adopted by this community and includes any
subsequent improvements to such structures

61 NON-FLOOD DISASTER - A fire or an ice storm, tornado, windstorm, mudslide, or other
destructive act of nature, but excludes a flood

62 NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE -An exIstmg lawful structure or building which is not in
conformity with the d1mens1onal or structural requirements of this ordinance for the area of the
floodplamn whch rt occupies (For example, an existing residential structure in the floodfrmnge
district Is a conforming use However, tf the lowest floor Is lower than the flood protection
elevation, the structure Is nonconforming)

63 NONCONFORMING USE -An existing lawful use or accessory use of a structure or bu1ldmg
which is not in conformity wth the provisions of this ordinance for the area of the floodplain which
It occupies (Such as a residence m the floodway)

64 OBSTRUCTION TO FLOW -Any development which blocks the conveyance of floodwaters such
that this development alone or together with any future development will cause an Increase mn
regional flood height

65 OFFICIAL FLOODPLAIN ZONING MAP - That map, adopted and made part of this ordinance, as
descnbed in s 15(2), which has been approved by the Department and FEMA

66 OPEN SPACE USE - Those uses having a relatively low flood damage potential and not
Involving structures

67 ORDINARY HIGHWATER MARK-The pomt on the bank or shore up to which the presence and
action of surface water Is so continuous as to leave a d1stmctIve mark such as by erosion,
destruction or prevention of terrestrial vegetation, predominance of aquatic vegetation, or other
easily recognized characterstIc

68 PERSON - An individual, or group of mndrvduals, corporation, partnership, association,
municipality, or state agency

69 PRIVATE SEWAGE SYSTEM -A sewage treatment and disposal system serving one structure
with a septic tank and soil absorption field located on the same parcel as the structure It also
means an alternative sewage system approved by the Department of Safety and Professional
Services, Including a substitute for the septic tank or soil absorption field, a holding tank, a
system serving more than one structure, or a system located on a different parcel than the
structure

70 PUBLIC UTILITIES - Those utilities using underground or overhead transmIssIon Imes such as
electric, telephone and telegraph, and d1stnbut1on and collection systems such as water, sanitary
sewer, and storm sewer

71 REASONABLY SAFE FROM FLOODING - Means base flood waters will not inundate the land or
damage structures to be removed from the floodplain and that any subsurface waters related to
the base flood will not damage existing or proposed buildings

72 REGIONAL FLOOD - A flood determined to be representative of large floods known to have
occurred in W1sconsm A regional flood Is a flood with a one percent chance of bemg equaled or

35



exceeded in any given year, and 1f depicted on the FIRM, the RFE Is equivalent to the BFE

73 START OF CONSTRUCTION - The date the building permit was issued, provided the actual
start of construction, repair, reconstruction, rehab1htat1on, add1t1on, placement, or other
improvement was within 180 days of the permit date The actual start means either the first
placement of permanent construction on a site, such as the pouring of slab or footings, the
installation of piles, the construction of columns, or any work beyond in1t1al excavation, or the
placement of a manufactured home on a foundation Permanent construction does not include
land preparation, such as clearing, grading, and filling, nor does tt include the Installation of
streets and/or walkways, nor does It include excavation for a basement, footings, piers or
foundations or the erection of temporary forms, nor does It include the installation on the property
of accessory buildings, such as garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the
main structure For an alteration, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of any
wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of a building, whether or not that alteration affects the
external dimensions of the building

74 STRUCTURE -Any manmade object with form, shape and ut1hty, either permanently or
temporarily attached to, placed upon or set into the ground, stream bed or lakebed, including, but
not l1m1ted to, roofed and walled buildings, gas or hqu1d storage tanks, bridges, dams and
culverts

75 SUBDIVISION - Has the meaning given ins 236 02(12), Wis Stats

76 SUBSTANTIAL DAMAGE - Damage of any origin sustained by a structure, whereby the cost of
restoring the structure to its pre-damaged cond1t1on would equal or exceed 50 percent of the
equalized assessed value of the structure before the damage occurred

77 SUBSTANTIAL IMPROVEMENT -Any repair, reconstruction, rehab1htat1on, add1t1on or
improvement of a building or structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the
equalized assessed value of the structure before the improvement or repar ts started If the
structure has sustained substantial damage, any repairs are considered substantial improvement
regardless of the work performed The term does not include either any project for the
Improvement of a building required to correct existing health, sanitary or safety code violations
Identified by the building official and that are the minimum necessary to assure safe vng
conditions, or any alteration of a historic structure provded that the alteration will not preclude the
structure's continued designation as a historic structure

78 UNNECESSARY HARDSHIP -Where special cond1t1ons affecting a particular property, which
were not self-created, have made strict conformity with restrictions governing areas, setbacks,
frontage, height, or density unnecessarily burdensome or unreasonable In light of the purposes of
the ordinance

79 VARIANCE -An authorization by the board of adjustment or appeals for the construction or
maintenance of a building or structure n a manner whtch ts Inconsstent wtth dimensional
standards (not uses) contained in the floodplain zoning ordinance

80 VIOLATION -The failure of a structure or other development to be fully compliant with the
floodplain zoning ordinance A structure or other development without required permits, lowest
floor elevation documentation, floodproofing certificates or required floodway encroachment
calculations is presumed to be in violation until such time as that documentation ts provided

81 WATERSHED-The entire region contributing runoff or surface water to a watercourse or body of
water

82 WATER SURFACE PROFILE -A graphical representation showing the elevation of the water
surface of a watercourse for each posItIon along a reach of river or stream at a certain flood flow

36



A water surface profile of the regional flood 1s used in regulating floodplain areas

83 WELL - means an excavation opening in the ground made by digging, boring, drilling, driving or
other methods, to obtain groundwater regardless of its intended use

37



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget
Challenges

MEETING DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

B 3.
Analysis
As we approach the 2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget, the Director of Finance & Treasurer, the Director
of Administration, and the Mayor face significant challenges. The City of Franklin has historically strived to
maintain a flat budget compared to prior years. However, there are pressing concerns that must be addressed.
It is essential to recognize that the Mayor's Recommended Budget is a preliminary representation of the final
budget. Changes will be discussed over the next 8-12 weeks, and decisions will be made to refine the budget.

Challenge #1: Tax Rate and Developable Land
The City of Franklin has the lowest tax rate in Milwaukee County and possesses the most developable land.
The City remains committed to maintaining a high level of public safety and public works services, always
prioritizing the needs of its citizens and promoting community growth. Franklin, as one of the largest
communities in Milwaukee County, offers significant development opportunities. However, with growth
comes the challenge of infrastructure. Increasing infrastructure costs have driven up project expenses,
prompting businesses and developers to request additional incentives. Addressing these challenges will be
crucial as we move forward.

2022 Milw County Tax Rates by City
30

29

2$

26

25

23

22

21

20

19

JS

17

!
I I I I I II I



Challenge #2: Revenues & Expenditures
The State of Wisconsin imposes strict limits on how much cities can raise property taxes and other revenues.
As inflation and rising costs occur, these restrictions prevent revenues from increasing proportionately.
Although Act 12 allows for an additional shared revenue increase, with restrictions on public safety services,
the increased revenues barely cover the rise in expenditures. Over the past five years, the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) has averaged a 4% increase, yet the City of Franklin has maintained a relatively flat budget. It is
important to note that Franklin is not alone in facing these challenges; it is a statewide issue in Wisconsin.
Nevertheless, Franklin remains committed to maintaining a high level of service to the community. Ensuring
we have sufficient staff to continue providing these services will be a challenge in the 2025 budget.

Challenge #3: Aging Infrastructure and Equipment
As Franklin strives to maintain our high level of service to the community, significant investment in equipment
and infrastructure is required. Over the years, the City has struggled to secure sufficient funding for these
needs. Tax levy constraints have made funding Department ofPublic Works (DPW) equipment and fire safety
apparatus challenging. The City has recently entered into an agreement with Enterprise Fleet to reduce the cost
of most City vehicles. However, financing will still be required to fund the replacement of aging, costly
apparatus beyond its useful life.

Franklin also faces challenges with aging infrastructure, which has led to unexpected expenditures beyond the
City's budget. To update the aging infrastructure, the city has engaged Johnson Controls in a performance
agreement and energy-saving contract to minimize the impact on residents. Moving forward into the 2025
Budget, the City will continue to pursue agreements that facilitate infrastructure updates to serve residents at
the highest possible capacity.

Challenge #4: Assessments and Levy Limits
The City of Franklin has engaged Forward Appraisal to reevaluate the 2024 assessment year. Despite their
hard work, ensuring accurate tax assessments and determining final assessment values remains challenging.
The 2025 Mayor's Recommended Budget will be extremely preliminary due to revenue projections based on
assumptions from the Department of Revenue and the assessors. Balancing the budget will be ongoing, with
adjustments likely necessary until the final stages.

Conclusion
The City of Franklin will continue to take the necessary steps to maintain a balanced budget over the next 8
12 weeks. The City is committed to passing a balanced budget while ensuring the highest level of service to
its residents and safeguarding its financial interests. As the Mayor, Director of Finance, and Director of
Administration work through these challenges, we encourage solutions and recommendations that prioritize
the city's needs and safety.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

This document is informational only. Please receive and place it on file.

Finance Dept - DB



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0444 of
the Unified Development Ordinance Planned
Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use

Business Park) to allow truck terminals and
freight transfer facilities as a Special Use and to
revise Design Standards (Saia Motor Freight
Line, LLC, Applicant) (10613 South 27th

Street)

MEETING
DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #4

At its August 8, 2024, regular meeting, the Plan Commission unanimously recommended
approval of an ordinance to amend Section 15-3.0444 of the Unified Development
Ordinance Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park) to allow
truck terminals and freight transfer facilities as a Special Use and to revise Design
Standards (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant) (10613 South 27th Street).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2024-oamend Section 15-3.0444 of the
Unified Development Ordinance Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business Park) to allow truck terminals and freight transfer facilities as a Special Use and
to revise Design Standards (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant) (10613 South 27th
Street).

Department ofCity Development NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 15-3.0444 OF THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT NO. 39

(MIXED USE BUSINESS PARK) TO ALLOW TRUCK TERMINALS AND
FREIGHT TRANSFER FACILITIES AS A SPECIAL USE AND TO REVISE

DESIGN STANDARDS (SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE, LLC, APPLICANT)
(10613 SOUTH 27TH STREET)

WHEREAS, Section 15-3.0444 of the Unified Development Ordinance
provides for and regulates Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business
Park), same having been created by Ordinance No. 2016-2238, with such District
primarily being located within the South 27th Street corridor area lying south of West
Oakwood Road;

WHEREAS, Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park)
includes those lands more particularly described below; and

That part of the Northeast 1/4, Southeast 1/4 and all that part of Northeast 1/4,
Southeast 1/4, and the Southwest 1/4 of Section 36, Township 5 North, Range 21
East, in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and
described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast comer ofNortheast 1/4 of Section 36 also the place
of beginning of the land to be described; thence S 00° 11' 55" E, along the East
line of said 1/4 Section, 2658.94 feet to the East 1/4 comer section monument;
thence S 00° 25' 34" E, along the East section line of the Southeast 1/4 of said
Section, 2655.53 to the Southeast comer section monument; thence S 88° 57'44"
W along the South section line of Southeast 1/4 of said Section, 2619.46 to the
South 1/4 comer section monument; thence S 88° 35' 08" W along the South
section line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section, 42.90 feet to the section corner
monument; thence S 88° 35' 08" W along the South line of the Southwest 1/4 of
said Section, 2588.10 feet to the Southwest corner section monument; thence N
00° 21' 45" W along the West section line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section,
2644.21 feet to the West 1/4 corner section monument; thence N 88° 36' 18" E,
along the North section line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section, 1808.39 feet to
West line of the East fifty (50) acres of the Northwest 1/4 of said Section; thence
N 00° 20' 45" W, along the West line of the East fifty (50) acres of the Northwest
1/4 of said Section, 2651.28 feet to the North section line of the Northwest 1/4 of
said Section; thence N 88° 27 28° E along the North section line of the
Northwest 1/4 of said Section, 821.90 feet to the North 1/4 corner section



ORDINANCE NO. 2024
Page 2

monument; thence N 88° 34' 33" E, along the North section line of the Northeast
1/4 of said Section, 2624.35 feet to the point of beginning.

Containing in all 504 acres of land, more or less.

WHEREAS, Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC having petitioned for an
amendment to Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park), to
allow Truck Terminals and Freight Transfer Facilities as a Special Use and to revise
PDD No. 39 Design Standards; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Plan Commission having considered the
application on the 8th day of August, 2024, and the Plan Commission having
determined that the proposed amendment was a major amendment and having
recommended to the Common Council that the proposed amendment to Planned
Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park) be approved; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered the application and having
concurred with the recommendation of the Plan Commission and having determined that
the proposed amendment to Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District) is consistent with the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin and that it will promote the health, safety and welfare of the
Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

$15-3.0444 Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District), of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, specifically Section 15
3.0444A.B.3. of Ordinance No. 2016-2238, is hereby amended
to add a new sub "k. Truck terminals and freight transfer
facilities with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers,
and equipment." and re-letter accordingly.

$15-3.0444 Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District), of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, specifically Section 15
3.0444A.B.4. of Ordinance No. 2016-2238, is hereby amended
to delete sub "d. Truck terminals and freight transfer facilities."
and re-letter accordingly.



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-
Page 3

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

SECTION 7:

SECTION 8:

§15-3.0444 Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District), of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, specifically Section 15-3 .0444A.D.
of Ordinance No. 2016-2238, is hereby amended to revise
Planned Development District No. 39: Design Standards as
proposed by the applicant, Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC,
attached hereto, and presented to the Plan Commission on the
8th day of August, 2024.

§15-3.0444 Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District), of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, specifically Section 15-3.0444B.B.3.
of Ordinance No. 2016-2238, is hereby amended to add a new sub
"i. 'Truck terminals and freight transfer facilities with outdoor
storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment." and re
letter accordingly.

§15-3.0444 Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business District), of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, specifically Section 15-3.0444B.B.4.
of Ordinance No. 2016-2238, is hereby amended to delete sub "d.
Truck terminals and freight transfer facilities." and re-letter
accordingly.

All other applicable terms and provisions of §15-3.0444 Planned
Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business District) not
inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance, and the Unified
Development Ordinance of the City of Franklin, as amended
from time to time, shall apply to the Saia Motor Freight Line,
LLC development, and all terms and provisions of $15-3.0444
Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business
District) as existing immediately prior to the adoption of this
Ordinance and not amended by this Ordinance, shall remain in
full force and effect.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable.
Should any term or provision of this ordinance be found to be
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms
and provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.



ORDINANCE NO. 2024-
Page 4

SECTION 9: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
its passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 20th day of August, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 20th day of August, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Planned Development District No. 39: Mixed Use Business Park

Design Standards

Purpose. The Mixed Use Business Park Design Standards are intended to create a high quality,
attractive, office/light industrial/commercial mixed use development, and are adopted by
reference in Ordinance No. 2016- Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use
Business Park). These Design Standards are intended to:

• apply whenever new principal and/or accessory buildings are constructed in the
District;

• apply whenever building additions in the District result in an increase in floor area of
50 percent or more;

• allow existing structures to otherwise remain conforming with regard to this
Ordinance;

• incorporate the design standards as set forth within the Unified Development
Ordinance Part 5 as mandatory standards;

• incorporate certain additional design standards as herein set forth; and
• allow the Plan Commission to waive any of the additional design standards as herein

set forth provided that supplemental design elements or improvements (as set forth
below in the Supplemental Design Guidelines) are incorporated into the project (over
and above those which are otherwise required) which compensate for the waiver of
the particular standard.

SECTION 15-3.0444A.D. Gateway Area Design Standards. The Gateway Area Design
Standards are intended to create a high quality, attractive, primarily office and commercial
mixed use development adjacent to South 27 Street. Mixed use buildings with
commercial and office uses layered vertically, horizontally, or among multiple
buildings are encouraged. Efficient land use is also encouraged by facilitating
developments that minimize the amount of land needed for surface parking through
creative design, lessened setbacks, and shared parking among complimentary uses.

1. PARKING STANDARDS

Off-street parking, loading, and unloading shall be provided as set forth in Division
15-5.0200 of the Unified Development Ordinance. The following additional
standards also apply:

a. Parking required and location regulated

Not more than fifty (50) percent of the off-street parking spaces shall be
located directly between the front facade of the building and the public street,
unless additional buildings in the overall development are or will be located
between the main building and the public street, and/or additional

1



enhanced landscaping or decorative fencing is used to screen such parking.
Such additional buildings and/or landscaping or fencing must be sufficient
in size, location, and number to provide an effective visual break between
the public street and the parking lot. This requirement applies to all new
developments but expressly excepting Truck Terminals and Freight
Transfer Facilities constructed prior to 2016.

2. GENERAL SITE DESIGN STANDARDS
The following additional site furnishings and bicycle and pedestrian amenities
standards apply:
a. Site furnishings required and coordination regulated

Lighting and site furnishings (benches, trash receptacles, bicycle racks,
etc.) shall complement the character of the building, and provide an
attractive and strong relationship with adjoining properties and the public
sidewalk.

b. Bicycle and pedestrian amenities required
1. New streets proposed as part of new developments shall provide

"bicycle and pedestrian friendly" streetscapes.
Large parking areas shall include walkways to allow safe pedestrian
access to the building entrance and to connect the site to adjacent
streets and properties. Pedestrian walkways shall be designed with
amenities such as special paving treatments (colored paver blocks or
textured concrete), lighting (see lighting discussion below) and
furnishings to create a pedestrian-friendly character. Where the
building entrance of an existing building is facing a private roadway
and is not adjacent to a public street, pedestrian walkways shall
connect to off-street vehicle and bicycle parking areas and shall be
designed with identifiable walkway striping.
Sidewalks shall be provided along the entire length of any facade
containing a public entrance, leaving room for foundation planting
beds, and shall connect to existing or planned public sidewalks or
pedestrian/bike facilities. Where the facade containing a public
entrance is facing a private roadway and is not adjacent to a public
street, pedestrian walkways shall connect to off-street vehicle and
bicycle parking areas and shall be designed with identifiable
walkway striping.

3. LANDSCAPE STANDARDS
Landscaping shall be provided as set forth in Division 15-5.0300 of the Unified
Development Ordinance. The following additional standards also apply:
a. Landscaping required and location regulated

1. Each new development which contains a building over forty
thousand (40,000) square feet in area shall provide extensive
building foundation landscaping for all building frontages facing
public streets or parking lots to provide visual breaks in the mass of
the building.

11.

Ill.



b. Central Areas/Features required

Each new development which contains a building over forty-thousand
(40,000) square feet in area shall provide central area(s) or feature(s) such as
a patio/seating area, pedestrian plaza with benches, outdoor playground area,
water feature, and/or other such deliberately designated areas or focal

2



points that adequately enhance the development or community. All such
areas shall be openly accessible to the public, connected to the public and
private sidewalk system, designed with materials compatible with the
building and remainder of the site, and maintained over the life of the
building and project.

4. ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS
The following additional building character and design standards apply:

a. Building Character and Design regulated
1. All principal buildings shall be multi-story and exhibit quality

architectural design. Comer buildings shall also serve as
landmarks with distinctive architectural character, including such
features as towers, rounded walls, recessed entries, or other unique
features. This requirement applies to all new developments but
expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway
and that are not adjacent to a public street.

11. All exterior materials shall be durable, of high-quality, utilized true
to form (such as stone below wood rather than the opposite), and
appropriate for external use. This requirement applies to all new
developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that face a
private roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

111. Brick and stone are preferred primary materials for the solid (non
window) portion of new buildings or additions. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing
buildings that face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a
public street.

1v. Precast concrete, cast stone, concrete masonry units, terra cotta,
stucco, and wood siding are acceptable accent and secondary
materials for the solid portion of new buildings or additions. This
requirement applies to all new developments but expressly
excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway and that are
not adjacent to a public street.

v. Other materials may be allowed subject to Plan Commission
approval. This requirement applies to all new developments but
expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway
and that are not adjacent to a public street.

vi. Color choice shall complement the style and materials of the
building's facade and provide a pleasing relationship with adjoining
buildings. This requirement applies to all new developments but
expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway
and that are not adjacent to a public street.

vu. Trash, service, and mechanical areas shall be entirely screened from
view and located on the side or rear of properties. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing
buildings that face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a
public street.

v1. Roof mounted equipment shall be so located and/or screened to
minimize visibility from adjacent streets and sites. This requirement



applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing
buildings that face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a
public street.
All visible sides of the building shall be designed with details that
complement the front facade. Side facades that are visible from the
public street shall receive equal design attention. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing
buildings that face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a
public street.
For each new building more than 40,000 square feet in area, building
massing that creates modulation and articulation is required.
Commercial buildings shall have at least 60% of their ground floor
front elevation with transparent windows.

5. SIGNAGE STANDARDS

All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal Code, as amended, approved
by the Plan Commission, and be subject to issuance of a Sign Permit through the
Inspection Department. On-site directional signage may be allowed in any area
needed to control traffic or parking provided such signage has received approval
from the Department of City Development.

3

1X.

X.

xi.



6. LIGHTING STANDARDS

All exterior lighting shall be provided as set forth in Division 15-5.0400 of the
Unified Development Ordinance.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN GUIDELINES

It is intended that the applicable design guidelines set forth in the South 27Street
Corridor Plan, and the applicable design standards in the South 27 Street Design
Overlay District, be utilized-as a supplemental guide-- to the mandatory design
standards set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance pertaining to the Gateway Area
portion of Planned Development District No. 39. The purpose of these
supplemental guidelines are to serve as general recommendations to further
encourage good quality design in new building and site design, which in turn will
support an attractive, interesting, safe, and sustainable District. It is also intended
that these supplemental guidelines serve as the supplemental design elements or
improvements to be incorporated into any project which requires compensation for
any waiver of the additional design standard as set forth in this Ordinance. In
particular, it is encouraged that the design standards set forth in Section 153.0355B.
and Section 15-3.0355C. of the South 27 Street Design Overlay District be
considered. This requirement applies to all new developments but expressly
excepting Truck Terminals constructed prior to 2016.

SECTION 15-3.0444B.D. Business Park Area Design Standards. The Business Park Area
Design Standards are intended to create a high quality, attractive, primarily office and light
industrial business park development (excluding the Gateway Area adjacent to South 27h
Street).

1. PARKING STANDARDS

Off-street parking, loading and unloading shall be provided as set forth in Division
15-5.0200 of the Unified Development Ordinance. The following additional
standards also apply:

a. Parking required and location regulated

1. No parking will be permitted on any street, driveway, or any place
in the District other than in approved parking spaces.

ll. Overnight parking of campers, mobile homes, boats, trailers, and
similar vehicles is prohibited.

HI. Overnight parking of trucks and service vehicles over 8,000 pounds
manufactured Gross Vehicle Weight shall be allowed only with a
Special Use. Overnight parking of trucks and service vehicles under
8,000 pounds Gross Vehicle Weight shall be behind landscape
screening so as to minimize visibility from adjacent roadways.

4



1v. Parking in front of buildings shall be designed primarily for visitors
and high turnover usage, with employee parking to be located to the
side-yard or rear-yard.

v. Loading and unloading areas shall be located to the side-yard or rear
yard and screened so as to minimize their view from adjacent streets
and sites.

v1. All parking, loading, and unloading areas shall be screened from
adjacent streets and sites utilizing landscaping, berms, and/or
decorative fences.

2. GENERAL SITE DESIGN STANDARDS

The following additional open space, site maintenance, and bicycle and pedestrian
amenities standards apply:

a. Open Spaces required and location regulated

i. Not less than one-half of the required building setback area from any
dedicated street shall be devoted solely to lawns, trees, shrubs, and
other landscaping.

11. Significant woodlands, wetlands, and other protected natural
resource features, as defined by the Unified Development
Ordinance, exist within the District. All such resources shall be
protected as set forth in Division 15-4.0100 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

b. General Site Maintenance required

1. The owner of any site shall have the duty and responsibility for
keeping the buildings, paving, landscaping, lighting, and other
improvements on the site in a well-maintained, safe, clean, and
attractive condition at all times.

11. Each owner shall be responsible for removal of any weeds,
rubbish, or trash of any character which may accumulate on the
site.

m1. Damaged or cracked areas of parking lots, sidewalks, and other
hard surfaces shall be promptly repaired or replaced.

c. Bicycle and pedestrian amenities required

1. New streets proposed as part of new developments shall provide
"bicycle and pedestrian friendly" streetscapes.

11. Large parking areas shall include walkways to allow safe pedestrian
access to the building entrance and to connect the site to adjacent
streets and properties.

u. Sidewalks shall be provided along the entire length of any facade
containing a public entrance, leaving room for foundation planting
beds, and shall connect to existing or planned public sidewalks or
pedestrian/bike facilities.

5



3. LANDSCAPE STANDARDS

Landscaping shall be provided as set forth in Division 15-5.0300 of the Unified
Development Ordinance. The following additional standards also apply:

a. Landscaping required and location regulated

1. Each development which contains a building over forty-thousand
(40,000) square feet in area shall provide extensive building
foundation landscaping for all building frontages facing public
streets or parking lots to provide visual breaks in the mass of the
building.

ii. A minimum landscape buffer of 10 feet is required between paved
areas and all sides of the building except at entrances and loading
areas.

4. ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

The following additional building character and design standards apply:

a. Building Character and Design regulated

1. All buildings shall incorporate the design principles of composition,
detail, proportion, rhythm, scale and unity within the architectural
design of all exterior facades, to achieve design integrity and
coherence.

11. All exterior materials shall be durable, of high-quality, utilized true
to form (such as stone below wood rather than the opposite), and
appropriate for external use.

m. Brick, stone, tile, and custom architectural masonry units are
preferred primary materials for the solid (non-window) portion of
new buildings or additions.

1v. Precast concrete, cast stone, plain/smooth concrete masonry units,
and EIFS are acceptable accent and secondary materials for the solid
portion of new buildings or additions.

v. Aluminum framed doors, windows and skylights are preferred.
v1. Metal copings, fascia, soffits, exposed structural elements, and

architectural canopies are only permitted as an accent material.
vii. Other materials may be allowed subject to Plan Commission

approval.
viii. Color choice shall complement the style and materials of the

building's facade and provide a pleasing relationship with adjoining
buildings.

ix. Trash, service, and mechanical areas shall be entirely screened from
view and located on the side or rear of properties.

x. Roof mounted equipment shall be so located and/or screened to
minimize visibility from adjacent streets and sites.

6



x1. Outside loading docks shall be located to the side-yard or rear-yard and
screened from view from adjacent streets and sites by extended
building walls, berms, decorative fencing, and/or landscaping.

XII. All utility connections, including all electrical and telephone connections
and other installation of wires to buildings, shall be
made underground from the nearest available source. No
transformer, electric, gas, or other meter of any type or other
apparatus shall be located on any power pole nor hung on the outside
of any building. All transformers and meters shall be placed on or
below the surface of the property and where placed on the surface
shall be screened and/or landscaped so as to minimize visibility from
adjacent streets and sites. No electric utility boxes or transformers
shall be located between a building and an abutting street.

xiii. All visible sides of the building shall be designed with details that
complement the front facade.

5. SIGNAGESTANDARDS

All signs must be in accordance with the Municipal Code, as amended, approved
by the Plan Commission, and be subject to issuance of a Sign Permit through the
Inspection Department. On-site directional signage may be allowed in any area
needed to control traffic or parking provided such signage has received approval
from the Department of City Development. The following additional standards
also apply:

a. Wall signs are prohibited.

6. LIGHTING STANDARDS

All exterior lighting shall be provided as set forth in Division 15-5.0400 of the
Unified Development Ordinance.

7. SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN GUIDELINES

It is intended that the applicable design guidelines set forth in the South 27" Street
Corridor Plan, and the applicable design standards in the South 27 Street Design
Overlay District, be utilized-as a supplemental guide-- to the mandatory design
standards set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance pertaining to the Business Park Area
portion ofPlanned Development District No. 39. The purpose of these supplemental
guidelines are to serve as general recommendations to further encourage good
quality design in new building and site design, which in turn will support an
attractive, interesting, safe, and sustainable District. It is also intended that these
supplemental guidelines serve as the supplemental design elements or
improvements to be incorporated into any project which requires compensation for
any waiver of the additional design standard as set forth in this Ordinance. In
particular, it is encouraged that the design standards set forth in Section 153.0355B.
and Section 15-3.0355C. of the South 27 Street Design Overlay District be
considered.

7



CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of August 8, 2024

Planned Development District Amendment, Special Use, and Site Plan

Item C.4.
;ran
Franklin

Wt SC O N S I N

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends denial of the Planned Development
District Amendment, Special Use, and Site Plan applications related to the Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC
use and development project.

Project Name:

Project Address/Tax Key:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Saia Motor Freight Line Planned Development District
Amendment, Special Use, and Site Plan

10613 South 27 Street / 951 9996 019

Franklin Tech Center LLC A Delaware LLC

Chris Burgum, Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC

District 4

Planned Development District No. 39

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Introduction/Background
Please note:

• Recommendations are underlined, mn italcs and are included in the draft resolution.

The applicant has filed a Major Planned Development District Amendment, Special Use, and Site Plan
Application related to the Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC use and development project located at l 0613
S. 27 Street.

Planned Development District (PDD) Amendment
The requested PDD Amendment proposes to amend Section 15-3.0444 of the Unified Development
Ordinance Planned Development District No. 39 (Mixed Use Business Park) to allow "truck terminals
and freight transfer facilities with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, equipment, and trailers" as
a Special Use.

To not be in conflict, the draft ordinance also removes truck terminals and freight transfer facilities as a
prohibited use within the PDD.

The subject property is located within the Gateway Area of the PDD; however, the draft ordinance
makes this same change for both the Gateway Area and the Business Park Area of the PDD. The
Common Council could elect to continue to prohibit this use in the Business Park Area of the PDD as
it is not a required change to allow this proposed use.

Note the attached ordinance is drafted based upon staffs recommendations.



The PDD amendment also revises PDD No. 39 Design Standards as proposed by the applicant. See
attached.

Note that this is being proposed as a Major Amendment. Staff concurs that this should be a major
amendment as it includes a change of use.

Special Use
The Special Use is specific to Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, a truck terminal and freight transfer
facility business use with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment, to locate
and operate upon property located at 10613 South 27th Street.

Site Plan
The proposed site plan changes generally consist of the following:

• Painting of the buildings
• Maintenance, repairs, and potential re-paving of drives and parking lot areas
• Installation of new landscape plantings

Project Description/Analysis
Site Plan
As noted above, the applicant is not proposing significant changes to the site or buildings. The
applicant intends to paint the buildings, perform general maintenance and repairs of the buildings and
paved areas onsite, and install new landscaping. The existing fencing onsite will remain, but the main
entry gate will be replaced with an automated gate.

Staffrecommends that a minimum IO-footparkang_setback be established throughout the ste, pror to
issuance ofan Occupancy Permt.

Parking
According to the applicant, 118 parking spaces are provided. In addition, there are 10 bicycle spaces
and 4 motorcycle spaces as well as parking for 18 tractor trailers, 32 tractor cabs, and I 02 pup or
shorter semi-trailers.

Parking spaces vary in size throughout the site, but all meet or exceed the minimum required size of 9'
wide and 180 square feet.

Landscape Plan
The Landscape Plan identifies 19 existing canopy trees, 6 existing decorative trees, and 9 existing
evergreen trees. The applicant is proposing to add 8 canopy trees, 9 decorative trees, 12 evergreen
trees, and 36 shrubs.

Combined, the total plantings onsite consist of27 canopy trees, 15 decorative trees, 21 evergreen trees,
and 36 shrubs.

PDD No. 39 refers to Division 15-5.0300 of the UDO regarding landscape requirements. The UDO
requires one planting of each type per 10 provided parking spaces for industrial uses. Considering the
passenger vehicle, bicycle, and motorcycle parking, there are 132 parking spaces provided, which
require 14 plantings of each type. If trailer and cab parking were included, there are a total of 286
parking spaces provided, which would require 29 plantings of each type.

2



Lighting Plan
No exterior lighting changes are proposed.

Architecture
The applicant is proposing to paint the exterior of the buildings onsite.

The overhead doors will all remain. The applicant has noted that any damaged doors will be replaced
as needed.

Signage
Building signage is anticipated as depicted in the renderings provided by the applicant. Signage will
require separate sign review and sign permits prior to installation. All signage must comply with the
City's sign regulations.

Engineering and Storm Water Management
It is recommended that final approval ofgrading, eroson control, storm water management, and
utiltes, as may be applcable, be granted by the EngmneerngDepartmentprior to any land
disturbance actvtes.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends denial of the PDD Amendment, Special Use, and Site Plan
applications for Saia Motor Freight Line. LLC.

Staff recommends that the City maintain its original vision for this area when creating and adopting the
Ordinance and Design Standards for PDD No. 39. The proposed use and development are a significant
deviation from that vision and plan. Staffexpects that the site will be redeveloped in the future in a
manner more consistent with the requirements of PDD No. 39.

With that said, it is also recommended that the Plan Commission and Common Council consider the
recommendation below by John Regetz, Director of Economic Development.

The proposed SAIA project will improve the aesthetics of the existing, cross-dock-facility in
question and the planned landscaping will also improve the appearance of the whole site.
Currently, the proposed SAIA project is the only method to improve appearances of its
intended parcel without spending substantial TID funds, that are not available, to tear down the
existing building and foundation.

To make this happen the Plan Commission and Common Council should permit the special use,
approve the site plan amendment and remove the prohibition on truck terminals, or freight
transfer facilities, in PDD 39. The project approvals could also help us address similar parking
considerations for other proposed projects in PDD 39, by setting precedent.

The proposed SAIA parcel is the largest on Elm Road (12.941) acres, therefore having the most
impact on uses of any parcel on the street. While it may not attract targeted business to the
Franklin Corporate Park, the remodeled building will help discourage degrading land uses on
Elm Road. Extensive facade renovations and landscaping will also improve the aesthetics of the
street.

3



The 100 jobs and freight services that SAIA provides will benefit the Milwaukee region.

Sincerely,

John G. Regetz
Director, Economic Development

4



gs
Franklin◄

WISCONSIN

10613 S. 27th Street
TKN: 951 9996 019

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 275 550 1,100 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor.
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



gen
Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

10613 S. 27th Street
TKN: 951 9996 019

--

Property
L __

[g'gy']
I

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 275 550 1,100 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared bya professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and may not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



Application Narrative for
Planned Development District Amendment, Special Use Request, and Site Plan Review

at 10613 South 27 Street

May 24, 2024 (Restated July 31, 2024)

This narrative is submitted for a Planned Development District Amendment and Special Use
Request (Common Council Review Application), as well as a Site Plan Review (Plan Commission
Review Application), filed by SAIA Motor Freight Line, LLC ("Saia" or "Applicant") through its
attorneys Amundsen Davis, architects Design 3 Architecture, and civil engineers Kimley-Horn.

1. Introduction

1.1 Saia History & Industry
1.1. l Saia is a nearly l 00 year old company that is publicly traded and employs over

14,000 people and has over 190 facilities throughout the continental United
States. Saia is a freight carrier and transportation logistics company that has
outgrown its current facility in the City ofMilwaukee.

1.2 Location & History of the Property
1.2.1 The parcel is located at l 0613 South 27th Street (Tax Key No. 951 9996 019)

(the "Property"). The Property consists ofa single parcel that totals approximately
13 acres with an existing 47,000 square foot structure located near the center of
the Property.

1.2.2

1.2.3

The Property is within the 500+ acre Franklin Commerce Park and it is located
to the west of South 27th Street and adjacent to West Elm Road. The primary
access to the Property is via a private roadway to South 27th Street shared with
XPO Logistics at 1060 l South 27th Street. An emergency-only access to Elm
Road is at the southeast corner ofthe Property.

For decades the Property served as a truck terminal for American Freightways
and FedEx. The site and cross-dock building remain configured for a truck
terminal operation. The Property has been variously listed for sale since FedEx
moved out approximately 6 years ago.
Saia is now under contract to purchase
the Property and invest in substantial
updates.



1.3
1.3.1

Land Use Designation, Zoning, and Surrounding Uses
The Property is designated by the 2025 Comprehensive Master Plan as "Mixed
Use."

1.3.2 The Property is zoned Planned Development District ("PDD) 39 and is located
in the "Gateway" area of the PDD, which is tailored to office and administrative
uses, and excludes most industrial uses. POD 39 was adopted in 2016.

1.3.3 Areas within the Franklin Commerce Park -particularly vacant land or previous
agricultural uses-have been sequentially developed since PDD 39 was adopted
in 2016. The City and its development partners have also installed and improved
infrastructure and roadways. However, the Property itself is surrounded by
longtime uses that are owner-occupied and many of which are
essential/supportive services to local and regional industry and businesses
forming an "Existing Services Cluster." The surrounding uses include the XPO
Logistics truck terminal, a Waste Management facility for storing and dispatching
garbage trucks, an auto body shop, an adult entertainment facility, a Waste
Management facility for storing dumpsters, roller bins, and trucks, a Schmitz
Redi-Mix concrete plant, the BTL Pallet production and storage facility, and the
WE Energies Root River Substation.

2. Project Summary

2.1 The Property has been vacant for approximately 6 years when FedEx moved out.
Saia is under contract to purchase the Property and it will make a multi-million
dollar investment in the purchase, substantial updates at the site, and renovations of
the building.

-2



2.2 Saia will retain a significant number of mature plants at the Property, add
approximately 20 trees within the site at the north edge of the stormwater pond,
plant significantly enhanced perimeter landscaping along Elm Road, and comply
with ordinance requirements by adding 8 interior trees in the off-street vehicle and
bicycle parking area. In total, 31 existing trees will be preserved, 41 new trees will
be planted, and 51 shrubs will be planted.

I
•} $>i'

',"t-,

Elm Road- From Southwest

Elm Road - From Southeast

- 3 -



2.3 Saia will resurface the terminal yard paved surface to accommodate the trucking
operations and it will renovate the existing building including HVAC upgrades,
LED lighting, clean and professional-style office environment, and exterior metal
building repairs and refreshed paint.

.en,
".

2.4 Terminal operations will be 24/7 with peak truck traffic between 7 am - 10 pm.
Saia will have site security including the existing security fence around the
Property, 24-hour monitored security, and state-of-the-art cameras.

2.5 Although the Property is in Tax Incremental District No. 8, Saia does not require
any new infrastructure or services from the City. Saia is not asking the City for any
development incentive payment. However, the current assessment for the Property
of $3,958,800 will likely increase to benefit the City generally and TID 8
specifically.

2.6 Saia will relocate 60+ jobs to the City, pay $3 million per year in total wages, and
is expected to grow to 100 jobs within 10 years.

3. PDD 30 Major Amendment

3.1 For the project to proceed with Saia's substantial investment, a Major Amendment
to PDD 39 is required to allow for the uses and to accommodate the design as
proposed.

ea i i «# t ot, .,. ..,. ,.,,. __ _, ., .
to t oo ate t at oout #........ .,, .. , .......... .,,, ,.,.,,.,.,, ..,,,,... .,, ,, _,......, .
oioiota,to
:7:7%

----
:<ii:rs

+«i i , l i l t »i i i «

- 4 -



3.2 Use Amendments
3.2.1 A "Truck Terminal" is a permitted use.

3.2.2 "Outdoor Storage" is a permitted use but limited to Truck Terminal vehicles and
equipment; outdoor stockpiles of materials are prohibited.

3.3 Gateway Area Design Standards
3.3.1 The following amendments to the Gateway Area Design Standards are necessary

to accommodate the design as proposed. The amendments are identified in red
within the existing ordinance sections as copied below

3 .3 .2 $15-3 04444 D 1 a Not more than fifty (50) percent of the off-street parking
spaces shall be located directly between the front facade of the building and the
public street, unless additional buildings in the overall development are or will be
located between the main building and the public street, and/or additional
enhanced landscaping or decorative fencing is used to screen such parking. Such
additional buildings and/or landscaping or fencing must be sufficient in size,
location, and number to provide an effective visual break between the public
street and the parking lot. This requirement applies to all new developments but
expressly excepting Truck Terminals constructed prior to 2016.

3.3.3 $15-3 04444 D 2.b ii. Large parking areas shall include walkways to allow safe
pedestrian access to the building entrance and to connect the site to adjacent
streets and properties. Pedestrian walkways shall be designed with amenities such
as special paving treatments (colored paver blocks or textured concrete), lighting
(see lighting discussion below) and furnishings to create a pedestrian-friendly
character. Where the building entrance of an existing building is facing a private
roadway and is not adjacent to a public street, pedestrian walkways shall connect
to off-street vehicle and bicycle parking areas and shall be designed with
identifiable walkway striping.

3.3.4 $15-3 04444.D.2.b Sidewalks shall be provided along the entire length of any
facade containing a public entrance, leaving room for foundation planting beds,
and shall connect to existing or planned public sidewalks or pedestrian/bike
facilities. Where the facade containing a public entrance is facing a private
roadway and is not adjacent to a public street, pedestrian walkways shall connect
to off-street vehicle and bicycle parking areas and shall be designed with
identifiable walkway striping.

3.3.5 $ 15-304444 D.3 a.1 Each new development which contains a building over
forty-thousand (40,000) square feet in area shall provide extensive building
foundation landscaping for all building frontages facing public streets or parking
lots to provide visual breaks in the mass of the building.

3.3.6 $15-3 04444 D 3 b. Each new development which contains a building over forty
thousand (40,000) square feet in area shall provide central area(s) or feature(s)

- 5 -



such as a patio/seating area, pedestrian plaza with benches, outdoor playground
area, water feature, and/or other such deliberately designated areas or focal points
that adequately enhance the development or community. All such areas shall be
openly accessible to the public, connected to the public and private sidewalk
system, designed with materials compatible with the building and remainder of
the site, and maintained over the life of the building and project.

3.3.7 § 15-3 0444A D 4 a. All principal buildings shall be multi-story and exhibit
quality architectural design. Comer buildings shall also serve as landmarks with
distinctive architectural character, including such features as towers, rounded
walls, recessed entries, or other unique features. This requirement applies to all
new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private
roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

3.3.8 § 15-3 0444A D 4.a ii All exterior materials shall be durable, of high-quality,
utilized true to form (such as stone below wood rather than the opposite), and
appropriate for external use. This requirement applies to all new developments
but expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway and that
are not adjacent to a public street.

3.3.9 § 15-3 0444A D 4 am Brick and stone are preferred primary materials for the
solid (non-window) portion of new buildings or additions. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that
face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

3.3.10 $15-3 04444 D.4 a v. Precast concrete, cast stone, concrete masonry units, terra
cotta, stucco, and wood siding are acceptable accent and secondary materials for
the solid portion of new buildings or additions. This requirement applies to all
new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private
roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

3 .3 .11 § 15-3 0444A.D. 4 av Other materials may be allowed subject to Plan
Commission approval. This requirement applies to all new developments but
expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway and that are
not adjacent to a public street.

3 .3 .12 § 15-3 0444A.D 4 a vi Color choice shall complement the sty le and materials of
the building's facade and provide a pleasing relationship with adjoining
buildings. This requirement applies to all new developments but expressly
excepting existing buildings that face a private roadway and that are not adjacent
to a public street.

3 .3 .13 § 15-3 0444A D 4 a vu Trash, service, and mechanical areas shall be entirely
screened from view and located on the side or rear of properties. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that
face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

- 6 -



3.3.14 $ 15-304444 D.4 a vi Roof mounted equipment shall be so located and/or
screened to minimize visibility from adjacent streets and sites. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that
face a private roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

3 .3 .15 $ 15-3 04444 D.4 a ix All visible sides of the building shall be designed with
details that complement the front facade. Side facades that are visible from the
public street shall receive equal design attention. This requirement applies to all
new developments but expressly excepting existing buildings that face a private
roadway and that are not adjacent to a public street.

3.3.16 $ 15-3 04444.D 4 ax For each new building more than 40,000 square feet in
area, building massing that creates modulation and articulation is required.

3 .3.17 $15-3 04444 D 7 It is intended that the applicable design guidelines set forth in
the South 27th Street Corridor Plan, and the applicable design standards in the
South 27th Street Design Overlay District, be utilized - as a supplemental guide 
to the mandatory design standards set forth elsewhere in this Ordinance pertaining
to the Gateway Area portion of Planned Development District No. 39. The
purpose of these supplemental guidelines are to serve as general
recommendations to further encourage good quality design in new building and
site design, which in tum will support an attractive, interesting, safe, and
sustainable District. It is also intended that these supplemental guidelines serve
as the supplemental design elements or improvements to be incorporated into any
project which requires compensation for any waiver of the additional design
standard as set forth in this Ordinance. In particular, it is encouraged that the
design standards set forth in Section 15-3.0355B. and Section 15-3.0355C. of the
South 27th Street Design Overlay District be considered. This requirement
applies to all new developments but expressly excepting Truck Terminals
constructed prior to 2016.

- 7 -



4. Special Use Request -Truck Terminal and Freight Transfer Facility

4.1 Operations at the Property will involve a truck terminal and freight transfer facility
business use with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment.
Saia therefore requests that a special use be approved.

4.2 General Standards for Special Uses under Sec. 15-3.0701.A.

4.2.1 Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent: Saia's use will
be consistent with the Franklin Commerce Park and PDD 39 general and specific
purposes where the use is located within the Existing Services Cluster and
whereby freight services support the existing and future businesses in the City
thereby allowing new developments to reduce loading docks and outdoor storage
areas. Further, Saia will make a multi-million dollar investment in the purchase,
substantial updates at the site, and renovations of the building without asking the
City for any new infrastructure or services or a development incentive payment.

4.2.2 No Undue Adverse Impact: Saia's use will not have a substantial or undue
adverse impact on adjacent properties or their property values where the use is
located within the Existing Services Cluster and because Saia will make a multi
million dollar investment in the purchase, substantial updates at the site, and
renovations of the building without asking the City for any new infrastructure or
services or a development incentive payment. For the same reasons, the use will
not endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare
within the community or neighborhood. To the contrary, Saia will enhance the
community by relocating 60+ jobs to the City, paying $3 million in total annual
wages, and growing to 100 jobs within 10 years.

4.2.3 No Interference with Surrounding Development: Saia's use will not dominate the
immediate vicinity or interfere with the use and development of neighboring
property where it is reactivating an existing purpose-built facility within the
Existing Services Cluster that will not expand such services uses to other areas of
Franklin Commerce Park. To the contrary, Saia's freight services will support
the existing and future businesses in the area and the City overall thereby allowing

-8



new developments to reduce loading docks and outdoor storage areas. Further,
Saia will make a multi-million dollar investment in the purchase, substantial
updates at the site, and renovations of the building without asking the City for
any new infrastructure or services or a development incentive payment thereby
leaving more capacity in TIO 8 for other projects. Yet following Saia's significant
investment, the current assessment for the Property of $3,958,800 will likely
increase to benefit the City generally and TIO 8 specifically.

4.2.4 Adequate Public Facilities: Saia does not need any new infrastructure or services
to operate its facility.

4.2.5

4.2.6

No Traffic Congestion: Saia's use will not cause undue
traffic congestion nor will it draw traffic through residential
streets because the Property has easy access to the freeway
system and there are not any residential streets in close
proximity. In fact, for decades the Property served as a
truck terminal for American Freightways and FedEx. The
primary access is via a private roadway to South 27th Street
that is shared with XPO Logistics, a similar use. The
private roadway access and South 27th Street (STH 241)
route are suitable for the use. Further, Saia previously
submitted a traffic study to the City following the Wisconsin DOT 2023 traffic
impact analysis guidelines (submitted again herewith).

No Destruction of Significant Features: The use will not result in the destruction,
loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant importance
where it is reactivating a purpose-built facility that has existed in the same site
layout for decades serving as a truck terminal for American Freightways and
FedEx. Rather than destroying any features, Saia will make a multi-million dollar
investment in the purchase and substantial updates at the site including retaining
a significant number of mature plants at the Property, adding approximately 20
trees within the site at the north edge of the stormwater pond, planting
significantly enhanced perimeter landscaping along Elm Road, and complying
with ordinance requirements by adding 8 interior trees in the off-street vehicle
and bicycle parking area.

Kimley »Horn

4.2.7 Compliance with Standards: The special use shall, in all other respects, conform
to the applicable regulations of POD 39, as amended herewith, and as approved
by the Common Council and/or the Plan Commission.

4.3 Special Standards for Specified Special Uses under Sec. 15-3.0701.B.
4.3. l Not applicable.

4.4 Considerations for Special Uses under Sec. 15-3.0701.C.
4.4.1 Public Benefit: Saia's use is necessary or desirable to provide a service that is in

the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare
of the neighborhood or community where it is reactivating an existing purpose
built facility within the Existing Services Cluster that will not expand such
services uses to other areas of Franklin Commerce Park. Further, Saia's freight

-9



services will support the existing and future businesses in the area and the City
overall thereby allowing new developments to reduce loading docks and outdoor
storage areas. Finally, Saia will make a multi-million dollar investment in the
purchase, substantial updates at the site, and renovations of the building providing
a public benefit and without asking the City for any new infrastructure or services
or a development incentive payment from TID 8.

4.4.2 Alternative Locations: Recognizing that the City has previously discouraged
truck terminals in PDD 39 and other areas of the Comprehensive Master Plan,
limiting such a use to the Property and not any alternative location will serve
several public goals including (i) reactivating an existing purpose-built facility
and not establishing such a use in a new location, (ii) limiting the use to the
Existing Services Cluster that will not expand such services uses to other areas of
Franklin Commerce Park, and (iii) the freight services use will be proximately
located to support the existing and future businesses in the City thereby allowing
new developments to reduce loading docks and outdoor storage areas.

4.4.3 Mitigation of Adverse Impacts: Saia's use will minimize any adverse effects on
the immediate vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and
screening where the use is located within the Existing Services Cluster and
because Saia will make a multi-million dollar investment in the purchase,
substantial updates at the site, and renovations of the building without asking the
City for any new infrastructure or services or a development incentive payment.
Saia's multi-million dollar investment in the purchase and substantial updates at
the site will include retaining a significant number of mature plants at the
Property, adding approximately 20 trees within the site at the north edge of the
stormwater pond, planting significantly enhanced perimeter landscaping along
Elm Road, and complying with ordinance requirements by adding 8 interior trees
in the off-street vehicle and bicycle parking area. Finally, Saia previously
submitted a traffic study to the City following the Wisconsin DOT 2023 traffic
impact analysis guidelines demonstrating that no adverse traffic impacts will
occur or that cannot be reasonably mitigated (submitted again herewith).

4.4.4 Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area: The
use will not establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible
uses in the surrounding area because it will be limited to reactivating an existing
purpose-built facility in the Existing Services Cluster that was constructed prior
to 20 I 6. The approval will not result in such a facility being established in a new
location and the proximity of freight services will enable the City to continue its
precedent of requiring new developments to reduce loading docks and outdoor
storage areas.

5. Site Plan Review

5.1 Upon approval of the Planned Development District Amendment and the Special
Use Request, for the project to proceed with Saia's substantial investment, a Site
Plan Review approval is required to accommodate the design as proposed, as
discussed herein, and as shown in the project plans.

- 10



5.2 Again, although the Property is in TID No. 8, Saia does not require any new
infrastructure or services from the City and Saia is not asking the City for any
development incentive payment. However, the current assessment for the Property
of $3,958,800 will likely increase to benefit the City generally and TID 8
specifically.

5.3 With respect to timing, Saia is under contract to purchase the Property and it will
proceed swiftly upon approval. While the facility was purpose-built as truck
terminal, Saia will need several months to make its multi-million dollar investment
in the renovations of the building (HVAC upgrades, LED lighting, buildout of a
clean and professional-style office environment, and exterior metal building repairs
and refreshed paint) and substantial updates at the site (retaining a significant
number of mature plants at the Property, adding approximately 20 trees within the
site at the north edge of the stormwater pond, planting significantly enhanced
perimeter landscaping along Elm Road, and complying with ordinance
requirements by adding 8 interior trees in the off-street vehicle and bicycle parking
area).

6. Conclusion

6.1 Beginning with our Concept Review application and February 21, 2024
presentation - and together with the accompanying Planned Development District
Amendment, Special Use Request, and Site Plan Review application and support
materials - and as supplemented by the information to be presented at the City's
meetings-Saia respectfully requests that the POD Major Amendment, Special Use,
and Site Plan Review be granted.

Respectfully Submitted,

SAIA Motor Freight Line, LLC
Brett Rabe, Cris Burgum, Jeannie Kennedy

Amundsen Davis LLC
Brian C. Randall, Esq.
John F. D'Jock, Esq.

Design 3 Architecture, P.C.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Attachments: Site Plan EX-00; Landscape Plan (LX-01 and LX-02); Site Renderings
(SAIA Elm Road from SW Rendering and SAIA Elm Road from SE
Rendering); and Building Renderings (SAIA Building from East NE
Rendering, SAIA Building from NE Rendering, SAIA Building from North
Rendering, and SAIA Building from SE Rendering)

-11



A AMUNDSEN
LA DAVIS

July 29, 2024

VIA E-MAIL
NFuchs@franklinwi.gov
Mr. Nick Fuchs
Planning Associate
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re: Saia -Applicationfor PlannedDevelopment DistrictAmendment, Special Use
Request, andSite Plan Review (10613 South 27 Street - Parcel 951-9996-019)

Dear Nick:

It is our understanding that Kimley-Horn, the civil engineers for our project, have had recent
dialogue with you regarding the Development Department staff review comments shared in
response to our original application. We further understand that Kimley-Hom will file revised
plans (Site Plan and Landscaping Plan) under separate cover.

However, this is to provide written replies (inline below in talcs) to all of the staff comments
including those questions that we received from you via email.

Emailed Questions

1. Will the entire building exteriors be painted? Yes.

2. Will the overhead doors be replaced? No but damaged doors to be replaced as needed

3. Will the smaller building near Elm Road be retained and used? Yes, the buzldzng will
be usedfor safety nspectons andflud checks.

4. Will the exterior fencing be changed? No but the man entry gate on the north to the
private roadway wll be replaced wth an automated roll gate

City Development Department comments*

1. General
a. As previously mentioned, the project narrative lists amendments to the South 27th

Street Design Overlay District standards. Please be aware that these are not
necessary.... Acknowledged and understood

Please be advised that certam of the staff review comments are excerpted to reduce the length of thus letter

WWW AMUNDSENDAVISLAW COM 111East Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 1400, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202



A AMUNDSEN
LADAVIS

Mr Nick Fuchs
July 29, 2024

Page 2

2. Planned Development District Amendment and Special Use
a. Please be aware that staff anticipates including multiple recommendations in the

staff report for Plan Commission consideration. Planning Staff anticipates
recommending denial of the PDD Amendment.. .. Alternatively, the Economic
Development Director is recommending approval.... Acknowledged and
understood

b. Also note that staff is recommending and proposing a draft ordinance that would
allow truck terminals and freight transfer facilities with outdoor storage and
parking of vehicles, equipment, and trailers as a Special Use. Acknowledged and
understood.

3. Site Plan
a. Please complete and submit the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations

worksheets found in Division 15-3.0500 of the Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO). Not applicable perfollow up by Kimley-Horn

b. Are there any proposed exterior lighting changes? If so, please submit a Lighting
Plan in compliance with Division 15-5.0400 of the UDO. No exterior lighting
changes are proposed so a Lighting Plan is not requzred

c. Please indicate the amount of existing and proposed impervious surfaces (in
square feet) on the site plan. Quanttes ofexisting andproposed mpervous
surfaces wll be shown on the Ste Plan mn the "Landscaping Summary' note.

d. Please indicate the Landscape Surface Ratio on the site plan. Note that a 25%
LSR is required. This does not appear to be met. Staff recommends adding
sufficient greenspace to the site to comply with this standard. 25% LSR will be
shown on the revzsedplans

e. Staff recommends that a minimum 10-foot parking setback be established
throughout the entire site. Theproposedparking area wll only require
maintenance and rehabltaton so the exstng setbacks may be maintained If
durng theproject design phase t s determined that afull depth replacement of
pavement is needed, a revisedplan wll be submitted to staff

f. Note that 5 ADA spaces are required per Table 15-5.0202(1)(1) of the UDO, not 4
as indicated on the site plan. The "Parking Summary" site plan table wll be
updatedfor 5 ADA spaces beng required and 5 ADA spaces will contmue to be
shown on the plans

WWW AMUNDSENDAVISLAW COM 111 East Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 1400 Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202



A AMUNDSEN
lADAVIS

Mr Nick Fuchs
July 29, 2024

Page 3

g. How was the required quantity of parking calculated? What ratio and square
footage were utilized? Theparking requzrements were calculated as ndcated n
the ste plan table under the "Parkang Summary, " Caty standard sfor 99 spaces
(94 spaces/S accessible spaces) and 1 18 spaces are provded, under the "Zonng
Informaton" summary, parkang requirementsfor Truckang (No Loading or
Warehousing) are 1 511,000 squarefeet ofgrossfloor area so wth 49,709 square
feet oftotal building area, 74 56 spaces are required and 118 spaces are
provded Fally, the number ofparking spaces are provded n accordance wth
Saa's operatonal experencefor simlarfaclites and what s sufficent.

h. How was the landscaping quantity determined? The POD No. 39 Design
Standards refer to Division 15-5.0300 of the UDO. Table 15-5.0302 requires I
planting of each type (Canopy Tree, Evergreens, Decorative Trees, and Shrubs)
per 10 provided parking spaces. Please update the site plan table accordingly.
Landscaping quantity has been updated and will be shown on the revsedplans n
the ste plan table.

1. Please ensure all new plantings are located within the property, and not located in
City right-of-way. The location oftheplantings are wthmn the property and will
be shown on the revisedplans

J. It is recommended to provide irrigation in accordance with Section I 5-5.0303D of
the UDO. Irrgaton s notproposed because the ste s currently servzced by well
water

k. Staff recommends providing a minimum 2-year plant replacement guaranty for all
landscaping provided. Acknowledged and understood, the scope ofworkfor the
selected contractor will include this guaranty

I. It is recommended that a snow storage plan in compliance with Section 15-5.0210
of the UDO be provided. Note snow storage areas should not interfere with
landscaping. Snow storage is planned to be provded onste mn the "assumed
septic dramfield" locaton that is believed not to be operatwnal Ifdurzng the
project design phase t s confirmed that the dranfield s stll actve, the snow
storage area wll be relocated and a revsedplan wll be submtted to staff

m. Are dumpsters located onsite? Staff recommends that dumpsters be kept within an
enclosure. If a dumpster enclosure is planned onsite, please show the location on
the site plan and also provide elevations and material details. No dumpsters are
planned but a trash compactor will be located next to the buldng and wll be
shown on the revzsedplans

WWW AMUNDSENDAVISLAW COM 111 East Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 1400, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202



A AMUNDSEN
LADAVIS

Mr Nick Fuchs
July29 2024

Page 4

n. Note that site plan approval will be conditioned upon final utility, grading, erosion
control, and storm water management plans being reviewed and approved by the
Engineering Department. Acknowledged and understood

Fire Department Comments

5. Follow all relevant WI DSPS and IBC code requirements for fire protection systems
for given occupancy, use, and construction types. Acknowledged and understood

6. Pre-existing fire alarm and fire sprinkler systems shall be maintained in compliance
with relevant code. Acknowledged and understood

7. Fire Extinguisher placement as per NFPA 10. Acknowledged and understood.

8. At no time may any Hazardous, Combustible, or Flammable Materials exceed
allowable quantities. Acknowledged and understood

9. Master Key set required for placement in Knox Box. Acknowledged and understood

Please do not hesitate to contact us should you or any other City official of staff member have
immediate questions, wish to discuss these replies or the forthcoming revised plans filed by
Kimley-Horn, or need anything further from us.

Very truly yours,

Amundsen Davis, LLC

.kl
Brian C. Randall

cc: (All via Email)
generalplanning@franklinwi.gov
Ms. Gail Olsen, Department of City Development/ Planning
Mr. John Regetz, Economic Development Director
Mr. Brett Rabe, Director of Real Estate
Mr. Cris Burgum, Vice President
Ms. Jeannie Kennedy, Real Estate Manager
Mr. David Lane
John F. D'Jock, Esq.

WWW AMUNDSENDAVISLAW COM 111 East Kilbourn Avenue, Suite 1400, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202



A6I ]IVG NJ:, -.~o,.-.v,,. ► "·"·"·
~-Lu-on '1'«1 1'<1

s 0% M "33 9 2nsrd d 73u .... 1Cl •
:, .-. 1 'Sl!YOOSSY IN't MICl<-J.TII) •lCl o l'<YOHSSV J.WJS

HOZ/Ol/110
JlVO

& z o rc;9 119 1
1230±a w

NVld 311S 03SOdOcld
IM 'Nll>IN\l~cJ

'vTv'S

0
0

><UJ

>- WR#Gi Si W#a:: &.&.&.M\ ei&. &.ei&.
(f)<{ .,.. - ·e w'.2 11101 I I 001 I-

'.2 0
::>

w I·· z
'(f) w
('.) !ti CL
z <{

z - ··I • •ij; u
(f)a:: gjj ! ff} 0<{ %±jj $} {} zCL ··n• I •·• <{r; " ±5; -'it# ij?•• •• ¥ !,~

>-a::
<{ I. .
'.2 ±; ±!
'.2 3: ±:
::>
(f)

('.)
z · 1· .ii: ,: •' .,
<{ i &s ?i
u
(f)

i0 iz ;<{ ;
-' i &

(f)
w
loz
>w:.::

al
~~~~~~~~~ . ,. I

I
J !J .. •.:ucuI •J-:8.JS .0

i ..
'¥i
(

Tc2:5¢
437s +ud +0s

: I

. :Jz J.:Jc:,,;.,-a.1s .a;



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

8/20/24

REPORTS & A Resolution imposing conditions and
restrictions for the approval of a Special Use

RECOMMENDATIONS for a truck terminal and freight transfer facility
business use with outdoor storage and parking

of vehicles, trailers, and equipment upon
property located at 10613 South 27th Street
(Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant)

(Franklin Tech Center LLC A Delaware, LLC,
Property Owner)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #4

At its August 8, 2024, regular meeting, the Plan Commission unanimously
recommended approval of a resolution imposing conditions and restrictions for the
approval of a Special Use for a truck terminal and freight transfer facility business use
with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment upon property
located at 10613 South 27th Street (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Applicant)
(Franklin Tech Center LLC A Delaware, LLC, Property Owner).

Note the staff report and applicant's narrative have been included with the POD
Amendment materials.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a Special Use for a truck terminal and freight transfer facility
business use with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment
upon property located at 10613 South 27th Street (Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC,
Applicant) (Franklin Tech Center LLC A Delaware, LLC, Property Owner).

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A TRUCK TERMINAL AND FREIGHT

TRANSFER FACILITY BUSINESS USE WITH OUTDOOR STORAGE AND PARKING
OF VEHICLES, TRAILERS, AND EQUIPMENT UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT
10613 SOUTH 27TH STREET (SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE, LLC, APPLICANT)

(FRANKLIN TECH CENTER LLC A DELAWARE, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, having petitioned the City of Franklin for
the approval of a Special Use for a truck terminal and freight transfer facility business use
with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers, and equipment upon property located
at 10613 South 27th Street, zoned Planned Development District No. 39. The property which
is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 951 9996 019 and is more particularly
described as follows:

All that part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 36, Town 5 North, Range 21 East,
in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, bounded
and described as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the
Northeast 1/4 of Section 36; thence South 88°41 '08" West along the South
line of said Northeast 1/4 , 726.00 feet to the place of beginning of the lands
herein to be described; thence 0°11 '45" West 660.03 feet; thence South
88°41 '08" West 902.71 feet; thence South 0°21 '20" East 660.00 feet to a point
on the South line of said Northeast 1/4; thence North 88°41 '08" East along
said South line 900.87 feet to the place of beginning and containing 13 .661
acres.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 8th day of August 2024, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and



SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE, LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 2

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, for the
approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Saia
Motor Freight Line, LLC, successors and assigns, for a truck terminal and freight
transfer facility business use with outdoor storage and parking of vehicles, trailers,
and equipment, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and
operated and maintained by Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, pursuant to those plans
dated __, 2024 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit A.

2. Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin,
for the Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC, Special Use, within 30 days of invoice for
same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Saia Motor Freight Line,
LLC, Special Use for the property located at 10613 South 27th Street: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders
and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits,
licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Saia Motor Freight Line, LLC,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any
of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten ( 10) day
notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon
notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than



SAIA MOTOR FREIGHT LINE, LLC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 3

$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
20th day of August, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 20th day ofAugust, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



J.6/ JIVO j s,;(),S'AJH IIC:)1>1;0H-J.}"i1,1'.~ .w,,
c<.~-,11,-on ;..c1-1,1

,;,;sc, 11 ·n·.,:-.}n'I'.¥. "009 wns ·G,cli GlJi.,~ .... tco
' $3,w2cs Cw Mc-ir» »dz Cl

<!Jr •101lQJK:I

rra ••~•.a
'"f' l&C;.'¢S;Q

:.. Y.lJj,;'i S'f' l"/f' ~S

tZOl/OZ/;O
]IYO

6Z0£'i9i9\
!J YO l! d 'f'H)j

N'v'ld 3.LIS 03S0d0tld IM 'Nll>iN'<f~H
v'l'v'S

0
0
X:w

>-
O'.
<( I. .
2 ±! #!
2 3: +:
::>
Cf)

('.)
z

· 1· .0:: , : ~~ ii°'
<( 3 E ±!u
Cf)

i0 gz i I<( i-' x ;

z
9i
<(
2
O'.
0
LLz
('.)
zz:
0
N

0 iz
fw ; i('.) ; I a ~w i i I t ii-' ! ~ I ~ i I tClJ : i i • $O'. i : i ! : i::> ; I , i ! 8u ' ; i • £ i I0 • ' i ' ' !z I • £ $ i • ! I •' I<( i i ~ A ' • I~ □- D ~ ~ D □ 0 ~I Ia

CL

ssx;:,
'

reg?±g?
1
,J JY, S ,½U~ f-'1-'!0S

: '-,

nu
,;-,e,1:; ., ;



flCIJ-.tiC'l-,1,.lT.,> •••·"
C~ -tV•-Crt j-.QOf<I

~,;o, 11 Jl'A.-;)l!t,-Y ... 00, }!11$ 'C'f'O lj O rn.,, .... :c , ~

2 $ 3 w$ 5¥ ad-i)» »dz o

:=::==t=======t=: UJOH <<<Aa1w1)1
ctr ~• ci11Q1-o

N'O ~• ...,'ftll

·r •&ci;, ,sJO

"OHS" '" ' N\fld 3dv':)SON\fl
tlOl/ OZ/VO

Jt't'O
6Z0 £ <;9VSl
tJY'O~C '1'10 •

IM 'Nll>lNv1J~
VIVS

0~
...J

"' Jt't'O I

~
i~ 5°# £

5
z "iii ~ ~
(% 3
Tl

I
t
I
i

!~; ;
} i Iii ~I I I i
i ~

ll . 1• §? 3 • 3

5
I ~ ~ ~ It II , ,
> ; ; t:i 5

3 ~
!

3! ~
i <~
i ±
i ; i
! § ~ §~

I 3 : 3

i i i' I ! ~
~ g I ~ i $

~ ! Ii • I I ;; i ;~ " • i i i!! 3 i I §
~ ~ 3 ~

i 0 i i ~
~ g • $

I • ii 5 I 8 3

• ~ I i ; £ ; ~
i i 1 I 8 i¥i . i 0

! 3 ~ j ; j jl! i ii

! i ~ 8 3 ! a 3ii

z
4'.
-'
Cl.
-'
4'.>0
5
w
Cl'.
w
w
Cl'.
f-

f-
-'w
coz
w
w
Cl'.
CJ
w
CJ
4'.
f-z
0
Cl'.
LL
f-w

Xxw
Cl'.
f-
<f)



J.6 ]lY<l I SMISiA]ll ,,o::rNtitl1t-u --...1>1-
~-Lb-Ot"t ~ 1<c1

dU' AIOll<J~

rro .r.11MY¥0

"l" ~IOi!CS M

SMOHS sY Jll':IS

i-zoUoUvo
JiVO

6ZOS"i9"l
1 :l1 l'O lld V+t >t

SllVl.30 ONV
S3l.ON 3dv':>S0N'o'l

1M Nll>IN'v'lH
'o'l'o'S

0

~

w
0
0
(.)
w

3en
0z
::s

2
I
i

I ii
II
I-

! I
I ll

I
• I

1f I Ip I

! i
• !
I Ia II••i ~j'··{1,.h++x

I s'¥d·:
I u;~
I ~hi

: i !i !

lnu.J

Iii~.h;$~~··

;

•'•• I«}a #I W% III ! 1(1 11 II ==

I
§• II i I

i. , I·] ~ '!, E!
Ii. ht;, I
I ll•~ iI ""
i!

~ Ig
!1 i
ii•i
I i
I I

in, "3 I• zre :

~ ht·1 e ;r
-II

l[!D2 g

i "g ! g
h ! !!h i u
11 I ~!:i: ~ I ;;

!n!¥ I 9i

I » • H•= I &I ~~-- iI !
;i; ti

I I I•

n htn 4u, I ·!
I ·+"j I'•n- I 4n

3 H I a!
s-, •

' I•
%

I--- -·

_;

i • Ia I IIU !~ I ?
' B ;ju l~ I hi
~ !h

i is± e
~

!!f I
i g=• ;11

" ! ll

!

i
i ~
• ~ ·iii!! ~! I %z

I , Hu ,.
:1!5 . I .s

i 111H s 0
I §ii•~ I ih • B·
1 3±ti . ;Iii

j « I

4 ! hft i 'ii I i •II-"q{ sj ~ 2 • !yI! i a i iI B O • ·F3!£3° 2 I i 3 ±sm
4' i"= $33

'7 4 ~ g;;=!i;s It iI :·I s£ --~i id•· # .,,
~ ~gl i I 1l •I
'~4e "; ! i Hg5 I• ~ :. ! e& s¢

ii ·gal rt i !l H
; g :. I I ; g l•

11 I 1

st

N

i
I I ·
e • i I
I I I



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0DF09FAD-C253-4064-89AE-C0837193482C

Kimley)Horn
April 8", 2024

Jeannie Kennedy
Real Estate Manager
Saia LTL Freight, Inc.
11465 Johns Creek Parkway
Johns Creek, GA 30097

RE: Natural Resource Summary- 10613 S. 27th Street, Franklin, WI

We understand that Saia LTL Freight, Inc. (the "Client") is applying to re-zone their property at 10613
S. 27 Street in Franklin, WI to an updated POD Zoning. The City of Franklin requires all
development to comply with their natural resource protection ordinance 15-4.0100 as part of the
Zoning review. Ordinance 15-4.0100 identifies the following Natural Resources to be protected and
which Kimley-Horn does not believe are present on the site:

Table 15-4.0100

Natural Resource Protection Standards

Zoning District Type

Natural Agricultural (g) Residential (a), (g) Nonresidential (b), (g)

Resource Protection Mitigation Protection Mitigation Protection Mitigation
Feature Standard Permitted Standard Permit- ted Standard Permitted

SteeSlopes: o% N/A 6o%(d) No 0% (d) \Jo
10-19% 65% (0) No 75% (@) No 70%(d) \Jo
20-30% 90% (d) No 85% (@) No 80%(d) \Jo
-30%
Woodlands & 70% (d)(e) No 70% (d)(e) No 70% (e) Yes
Forests: 50% (d)(e) No 50(e) Yes 50% (e) Yes
Mature
Young

Lakes & Ponds 100% (d) No 100% Yes 100% Yes

Streams 100½ (c)(d) No 100% (c)d) No 007 ()(d) i'-Jo

Shore Buffers 100()d) No 100% (c)d) No(f) ·oo()(6) No(f)

Flood- plains/ 100(€)(d) No 100% (c)d) i'-Jo 00%(c) Yes
Flood- ways

Wetlands & 100% (c)(d) No ,co% (c)(d) No 100% (c) Yes
Shoreland
1Netlands

Wetland Buffers 100C:6 (c)(d) No 100% (c)(d) No 100% (c) Yes

Steep Slopes - Kimley-Horn has reviewed the topographic survey data provided by Xcel
Consultants and dated November 7th, 2023 and has confirmed that the only large area with
steep slopes is the storm water detention pond side slopes. Per the City, storm water
detention ponds are not applicable to the Natural Resource Protection Ordinance.

wo, at¢ 4%sf/3
kimley-horn.com 111 West Jackson Boulevard, Suite 700, Chicago, IL 60604 312 726 9445



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0DF09FAD-C253-4064-89AE-C0837193482C

Kimley)Horn Page 2

2. Woodlands & Forests - Kimley-Horn has verified that no woodlands or forests exist on site
through a review of aerial photography and a site visit on March 13",2024.

3. Lakes & Ponds - Kimley-Horn has verified that no lakes or ponds exist on site through a
review of aerial photography and a site visit on March 13, 2024. A storm water detention
pond does exist on site, and Kimley-Horn confirmed with the City that a detention pond is not
applicable to Natural Resource Protection.

4. Streams - Kimley-Horn has verified that no streams exist on site via desktop research and a
site visit on March 13, 2024.

5. Flood-plains - Kimley-Horn has verified through desktop research of the FEMA Flood Map
Service Center that the site lies within Zone X of the FEMA Flood Map 55079C0227E dated
9/26/2008.

6. Wetlands - Kimley-Horn has verified through desktop research of the USFWS Wetland
Mapper that no wetlands exist on site.

7 Wetland Buffers - Kimley-Horn has verified through desktop research of the USFWS that
existing wetlands are more than 30' away.

Kimley-Horn has not been contracted to complete a Natural Resource Determination of the site, but
we do believe that based on our desktop review and a previous site visit that no natural resources
exist on the site.

Sincerely,

GDocuSigned by:

9
84EBAOE8687D410.

Eric Tracy, P.E.

111West Jackson Boulevard, Suite 700, Chicago, IL 60604 312 726 9445













,:,.•
1... _.,A°• •l,· ..',:'



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax
Rescission and Refund for Parcel #934-0120-000

MEETING DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
Per Wisconsin State Statutes, the removal of property taxes needs to be authorized by the Common Council.
Statutes enumerate specific conditions under which a rescission/refund is appropriate and necessary. There
is currently one property that was incorrectly assessed for the 2022 tax year. Back in 11 /2021, the property
owner received a building permit for a new house on this parcel. The previous City Assessor determined the
house was 100% complete for the 2022 tax year which is only 6 weeks after the building permits were
issued. In the assessment system, our current assessor determined that the "Date Visited" field was blank,
leaving the current assessor to believe there was no true confirmation in person by the previous assessor that
the parcel was 100% complete.

ANALYSIS
Parcel: 934-0120-000
Owner: Venkata & Raghuram Hari
Address: 10152 Ryan Creek Ct. S

The current City Assessor has reviewed inspection records and photos that were supplied by the home owner
of the construction process around 1/1/22. Based on this evidence, it is the recommendation of the current
City Assessor to suggest that the 2022 assessed value should be only 25% and approve this rescinded tax and
refund request.

FISCAL NOTE
The impact of the above rescission/refund is likely a bad debt expense for the City in the amount of
$1,344.53. There is a formal process that allows the City to notify the Department of Revenue (DOR) of
rescissions in October of each year, and, as long as the total of all rescissions, for the tax year, for the City of
Franklin, meet the statutory dollar threshold, $250 or more per any single property, the chargeback will be
authorized, and the other taxing entities will be responsible for their share. Staff will complete the statutory
submittal and make the request to be reimbursed by the other taxing entities for their prorated shares totaling
approximately $4,497.68.

The resident did not pay their 2022 tax bill in full. The Director of Finance reached out to the Department of
Revenue and determined that the City needs to send a property tax payment to the Milwaukee County
Treasurer and refund the resident the remaining chargeback amount.

Total Chargeback Request - $5,842,21
Check to Milwaukee County Treasurer - $4,974.02
Refund check to resident - $868.19

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council authorize this resolution to partially rescind and refund the above noted taxes
as outlined.



COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2024-A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission
and Refund for Parcel #934-0120-000; and direct staff to file the chargeback request with the DOR to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities.

Finance De t-DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---
RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND

FOR PARCEL #934-0120-000

WHEREAS, the following property taxes were assessed improperly, per Wisconsin State
Statutes 74.33 (1) (b), which states that the assessment included real property improvements that
did not exist on the assessment date, and a partial rescission and refund of the tax due is
appropriate:

Raghuram & Venkata Hari
10152 Ryan Creek Ct. S
Franklin, WI 53132
(Parcel #934-0120-000) $5,842.21

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the proper City Officials are hereby authorized and directed to rescind and refund the sum of
$5,842.21 with Milwaukee County Treasurer's Office receiving $4,974.02 and the resident receiving
$868.19; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper City Officials authorized and directed to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities, if applicable, per Wisconsin State Statutes 74.41.

Fundsfor thispurpose are appropratedfrom thefollowingAccountNumbers:
01-0000-1415 Milwaukee County $1,183 50
01-0198-5543 City ofFranklmn $1,344.53
01-0000-1412 MATC $277.10
01-0000-1411 Franklin School Dustrct $2,617.32
01-0000-1413 MMSD $419. 76

Resolution introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this_ day of 2024.

Passed at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin thisday
of 2024.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



5,842.21

0.00
2,921.11
1,460 55
1,460.55

4,178.55

0.00
2,089.28
1,044.64
1,044.64

10,020 76

Venkata & Raghuram Hari
934-0120-000 equated

$568,600
$237,100
-331,500

0.00
5,010.38
2,505.19
2,505 19

Original
Revised

Name
Parcel ID
Assessed Value -
Assessed Value -
Payments Due
Lottery Credit
1/31
3/31
5/31

GLA/RAcct
State Tax
Milwaukee County 010000 1415
Sales Tax Credit

City of Franklin 01 0198 5543
MATC (VTAE) 010000 1412

1 Franklin Schools 010000 1411
State School Levy credit

1 MMSD 010000 1413

GL Entry
State

2022 Original Adjusted Report
Rate Amount Amount Difference Difference

0.0000000 0.00 0 00 0.00 0.00
3.8525531 2,190.56 913.44 1,277.12 1,183.50
0.0000000 0.00 0.00 0.00
4.3767079 2,488.60 1,037.72 1,450.88 1,344.53
0.9020463 512.90 213.88 299.02 277.10
8.5199369 4,844 44 2,020.08 2,824.36 2,617.32
-1 3940767 -792 67 -330.54 -462 13
1.3663933 776 93 323.97 452.96 419.76

17.6235608 10,020.76 4,178.55 5,842.21 5,842.21

Milwaukee County ts entitled to the Sales tax credit
The School levy credit is proportioned among all taxing distrncts
The State when calculating the amounts wll calculate the TIF mmpact and include that with the City total
Franklin Schools 0100001411 8.5199369
Oak Creek/Franklin School 01 0000 1418 8.2934600
Whitnall Schools 010000 1419 8.4144050
No Sewer 0.0000000

TOTAL



Ii

QJ-s
g
QJs
J:>

Ee
0--c
0
"'_,,
C:

"'E
,!!!

il
""--c±
5
£
0
QJ.s~-s
%z
--0
QJ
::,
"'!a
"'"';:
:
E
QJ
Q.
L.,
t
"'.l2.,.,
;:
"'.!d'
µ

"'s
N
Na
N
Lg.,
t
C.
E
8
'#-a
0
rl

"'"';:
%
::,
0.c:
QJ-s

--0.,
C

E.,
t--c
1:'
0u~

'5~:::
"' tl.,
t: 'li... E
N 0
0 us 1:
rl &'5 QJ

0 "-
C ""Cg il!!
i C:.,

..c:
] ;:

C:

"' 0
Q. e
,!!! QJ.s Q.

C: .5
0 "'e £::,
0..c: .,
:;: .s., --0
C .,
"' ELg "'C
µ 8~ '§ ±"' .,

E Q.
E .,

%::, .c:
Vl f- "'

.
'._,.;.;
'. . N
:, ,; 1""I

J':.
':';



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Conditionally approving a
Preliminary Plat for Ridgewood Reserve

Subdivision (generally located to the north of
West Drexel Avenue, east of South Ridgewood
Drive, and west of South 76th Street) (Creative

Homes, Inc., Property Owner/Applicant)

MEETING
DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM NUMBER
H.7,
Aid. #2

At its August 8, 2024, regular meeting, the Plan Commission unanimously approved a
motion to recommend approval of a resolution conditionally approving a Preliminary
Plat for the Ridgewood Reserve subdivision (generally located to the north of West
Drexel Avenue, east of South Ridgewood Drive, and west of South 76th Street)
(Creative Homes, Inc., Property Owner/Applicant).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2024- conditionally approving a Preliminary
Plat for the Ridgewood Reserve subdivision (generally located to the north of West
Drexel Avenue, east of South Ridgewood Drive, and west of South 76th Street)
(Creative Homes, Inc., Property Owner/Applicant)

Department ofCity Development NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR RIDGEWOOD RESERVE SUBDIVISION

(GENERALLY LOCATED TO THE NORTH OF WEST DREXEL AVENUE, EAST OF
SOUTH RIDGEWOOD DRIVE, AND WEST OF SOUTH 76TH STREET)

(CREATIVE HOMES, INC., PROPERTY OWNER/APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, having received an application for
approval of a preliminary plat for Ridgewood Reserve subdivision, such plat being Outlot A
of Certified Survey Map No. 3410, as recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for
Milwaukee County as Document No. 5239312, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9456,
as recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No.
11306731, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9457, as recorded in the Register of Deeds
Office for Milwaukee County as Document No. 11306732, and additional lands, all being a
part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East,
City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:
Commencing at the southeast comer of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9; thence South
88°35'08" West along the south line of said Southeast 1/4, 990.40 feet; thence North
00°15'17" West along the west line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9456, 200.49
feet to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing North 00°15'17" West, 681.33 feet; thence
North 88°37' 15" East, 330.40 feet to the west line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No.
3416; thence South 00° 15' 13" East along said west line, 220.00 feet to the south line of said
Parcel 1; thence North 88°37'15" East along said south line of said Parcel 1, 165.00 feet to
the east line of Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9457; thence South 00°15'17" East
along said east line, 421.51 feet to the north line of Parcel 1 of said Certified Survey Map
No. 9457; thence South 88°35'08" West along said north line and then along the north line of
Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 3410, 290.00 feet; thence South 77°44'20" West along
the north line of Parcel 1 and Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 9456, 209.95 feet to the
Point of Beginning. Containing 285,580 square feet (6.5560 acres) of land., more
specifically, of the properties bearing Tax Key Nos. 792-9003-000, 792-9005-000, 792
9994-000, and 792-9996-003, Creative Homes, Inc., applicant; and

WHEREAS, said preliminary plat having been reviewed by the City Plan
Commission and the Plan Commission having recommended approval thereof at its meeting
on August 8, 2024, pursuant to certain conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed such application and Plan
Commission recommendation and the Common Council having determined that such
proposed preliminary plat is appropriate for approval pursuant to law upon certain
conditions.



RICK J. PRZYBYLA, CREATIVE HOMES, INC. - PRELIMINARY PLAT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Preliminary Plat of Ridgewood Reserve subdivision,
as submitted by Rick J. Przybyla, Creative Homes, Inc., as described above, be and the same
is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions:

1. That any and all objections made and corrections required by the City of Franklin, by
Milwaukee County, and by any and all reviewing agencies, shall be satisfied and
made by the applicant.

2. That all land development and building construction permitted or resulting under this
Resolution shall be subject to impact fees imposed pursuant to §92-9 of the Municipal
Code or development fees imposed pursuant to §15-5.0110 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, both such provisions being applicable to the development
and building permitted or resulting hereunder as it occurs from time to time, as such
Code and Ordinance provisions may be amended from time to time.

3. Creative Homes, Inc., successors and assigns and any developer of the Ridgewood
Reserve nine lot and one outlot subdivision development shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Ridgewood Reserve nine lot and one outlot subdivision development, within 30
days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

4. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes,
Inc. and the Ridgewood Reserve nine lot and one outlot subdivision development
project for the properties generally located to the north of West Drexel Avenue, east
of South Ridgewood Drive, and west of South 76th Street, bearing Tax Key Nos. 792-
9003-000, 792-9005-000, 792-9994-000, and 792-9996-003: (i) being in compliance
with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances;
and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like,
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

5. The Ridgewood Reserve nine lot and one outlot subdivision development project
shall be developed in substantial compliance with the terms and provisions of this
Resolution.



RICK J. PRZYBYLA, CREATIVE HOMES, INC. - PRELIMINARY PLAT
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-
Page 3

6. A written conservation easement shall be submitted as part of the Final Plat
Application for Common Council review and approval, and recording with the
Milwaukee County Register ofDeeds Office at the time of recording the Final Plat.

7. A "Conservation Easement Restrictions" note shall be depicted on the face of the plat
as part of the Final Plat application.

8. A draft of the declaration of deed restrictions, protective covenants, and the legal
instruments and rules for any proposed Wisconsin non-profit membership corporation
(homeowners association) whereby the subdivider intends to regulate land uses in the
proposed subdivision and otherwise protect the proposed development shall be
submitted to the City as part of the Final Plat for review and approval solely as to
form and as such may pertain to existing city rules and regulations.

9. Any proposed subdivision monument sign(s) shall be subject to review and approval
by the Plan Commission and issuance of a Sign Permit. Other signage, such as
conservation easement signs, shall comply with Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and be subject to Planning Department review and approval and issuance of a Sign
Permit.

10. The Final Plat shall be in full compliance with all pertinent City of Franklin Design
Standards and Construction Specifications.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
20th day of August, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 20th day ofAugust, 2024.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk



AYES__NOES__ABSENT



w CITY OF FRANKLIN
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of August 8, 2024

Preliminary Plat

g
Franklin

Item E.2.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development staff recommends approval of the Ridgewood
Reserve Preliminary Plat, subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

Project Name:

Project Address:

Applicant:

Agent:

Property Owner:

Zoning:

2025 Comprehensive Plan:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Applicant's Action Requested:

Planner:

Ridgewood Reserve Preliminary Plat

Not Assigned

Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes, Inc.

Anthony Zanon, Pinnacle Engineering

Creative Homes, Inc.

R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District and FW
Floodway District

Residential and Areas of Natural Resource Features

Single-family residential to the north, south, east, and west

Approval of the proposed Preliminary Plat

Nick Fuchs, Associate Planner

Project Description/Analysis

The applicant filed a Preliminary Plat Application for the creation of nine single-family
residential lots and one outlot upon four existing parcels generally located to the north of West
Drexel Avenue, east of South Ridgewood Drive, and west of South 76th Street.

The four parcels have an area of approximately 6.56 acres. The proposed subdivision consists of
an extension and dedication of South Ridgewood Drive into a cul-de-sac with nine single-family
lots around the new street. Lot sizes range from 13,918 square feet to 35,896 square feet with an
average lot size of 19,866 square feet. The proposed subdivision will be served by municipal
water and public sanitary sewer.

A stormwater pond is proposed within Outlot 1. The applicant must submit a Stormwater
Management Plan and calculations to the Engineering Department for review, and final
Engineering Department approval will be required as part of the review of the future Final Plat
Application.

R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence District
The R-6 District allows a gross and net density of 2.972. This equates to a potential allowed
density of 19 and 16 dwelling units for this development, respectively. As such, the development
of nine lots conforms to this standard. Furthermore, all lots exceed the minimum lot size
requirement of 11,000 square feet and all lots have a lot width at the building setback line of at
least 90 feet.



In review of the Preliminary Plat, staff finds that all development standards of the R-6 District
are met.

Natural Resource Protection Plan (NRPP)
The property contains a mature woodland, a stream and associated shore buffer, floodplain,
wetlands, wetland buffers, and wetland setbacks. The wetlands were delineated by Dave Meyer
of Wetland & Waterway Consulting, LLC on January 31, 2022.

The applicant is proposing to temporarily disturb portions of the wetland setback; however, these
areas will be restored to their natural state.

The applicant is also disturbing 22% of the mature woodland onsite. Part 4 of the UDO requires
that 70% of mature woodlands be protected. As such, the development complies with that
standard.

All other natural resources will be protected. The majority of protected natural resources onsite
are located within Outlot 1 of the Preliminary Plat, except for portions of floodplain located in
the northwest corner of Lot 1 and the northeast corner of Lot 4. These areas are outside of the
required minimum building setbacks for these lots.

Staff_recommends that a separate wrtten Conservaton Easement be submtted for Common
Councl revew and approval at the tme ofFnal Plat. The Conservation Easement boundary is
shown on the Preliminary Plat.

Signage:
Currently, a subdivision monument sign is not anticipated.

The applicant may propose signage to demarcate the conservation easement boundary and no
trespassing.

Any proposed signage will require separate City review and approval.

Other required documents
§15-7.0603 requires submittal of any Declaration of Deed Restrictions, Protective Covenants,
Conservation Easements, and Homeowners' Association prior to approval of the Final Plat. The
applicant has provided draft Covenants and Declarations of Restrictions.

Improvements including streets and utilities must be installed prior to recording of the Final Plat
(§ 15-2.0303 .A). If complete construction is not practicable, the applicant may enter into a
Subdivider' s ("Developer's") agreement with the City of Franklin, and provide a letter of credit
for improvements (§15-2.0303.B). It is not anticipated, but should the final plat be recorded in
two phases, the applicant would need to provide the financial guaranty in the amount required for
each phase of the final plat prior to the recording of that phase.

Recommendation

2



City Development staff recommends approval of the Ridgewood Reserve Preliminary Plat,
subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

3



>,. :.,
t
Q)
c..
0
!....a..
C

<
C
ro
!....
LL
'+-
0
> '......
0

-.E V,

E u:c~ .,; C.~ ,..._ ~
c:i 0,

0c:i .,
(.'.)

a
.c:
t::
"'w-
~s:j" c'..,- 50o c

a, gt o 0 u.··o c:i 0.,-
~ >,

.£ o
:;z

C") '<t C
0 0 s
c:i c:i u.

0
>,

6
k
X

0 0 "':::;
c5
0..

%w
Cf)

=<{
s:j"
I.!)

ro
N
0 Q)
.,- {.).....
s:j" co
N D....
0
N D--C")
N;::::



■
■--- ■ PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

7/16/2024

Nick Fuchs
Planning Associate
City of Franklin
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Re. Preliminary Plat Submittal for Plan Commission
Ridgewood Reserve
PEG #5407.00-WI

Plan I Design I Deliver
www.pinnacle-engr.com

Dear Mr Fuchs,

For your review and distribution please fmnd the following for the Ridgewood Reserve preliminary
plat submittal for Plan Commission

1 Project Narrative
2 Legal Description of property
3 Site Intensity Calculations
4. Response letter to City review comments
5 Response letter to Milwaukee County review comments
6 DOA plat review form
7 Natural Resources Protection Plan
8 Preliminary civil plans
9. Preliminary Plat

The application and associated application fees were submitted to the City with the first submittal
to staff

In addition to the documents attached, Creative Homes rs requesting a model home permit for
either Creative Homes or another builder Please include this request with the preliminary plat
approval request

Please free to contact me 1f you have any questions.

Sincerely,

PINNACLE ENGINEERING GROUP

Anthony S Zanon, P E.
Senior Project Manager ] Principal

MILWAUKEE REGIONAL OFFICE 20725 WATERTOWN ROAD ]SUITE 10o]WAUKESHA, WI 53186

P 262 754 8888 ]F 262754 8850 [ WWW PINNACLE ENGR COM MILWAUKEE I CHICAGO NATIONWIDE



PROPOSED RIDGEWOOD RESERVE

PROJECT SUMMARY

• Located just east of Ridgewood Drive and behind 7832 W. Drexel Avenue
• Site Area of Proposed Subdivision is 6.55 Acres
• All lots serviced by municipal sewer and water
• 9single family, with some estate srzed lots
• Architecturally controlled community
• Anticipated minimum square foot requirements - Ranch 1,900sq. ft/2-st0ry 2,300 sq.ft
• Lot sizes ranging from approximately 13,918-35,896 square feet with an average lot size of approximately

20,000 sa. ft

DEVELOPER/ COMPANY PROFILE

Creative Homes, Inc., is a small family owned and operated business, located in the City of Franklin, which has been a
builder of quality homes and developments for over 41 years. Creative Homes, Inc. has developed over 500 lots
throughout the communities of Franklin, Muskego, and Greenfield, with significant concentration in the City of Franklin
(Croat/a Hmac, Inc. alcn hllc comi_ructnm homes.,

MARKET ANALYSIS/ FINANCIAL PLAN

• 9 single family sized lots
• Packages starting at approximately $ 750,000, with an average of $ 750,000 - $ 950,000
• 9lot/home packages x$ 850,000 =$ 7,650,000 (approximate assessed)
• School impact= less than .5 / lot X 9 lots = 4/5 students

BENEFITS

• High demand for single family lots m Franklin, especially those open to other builders
• Tax benefrt to the City of Franklin with higher priced homes

SCHEDULE FOR PROPOSED TIME FRAME

• Development for installing all utilities will be approximately 6-8 months
• Total sales completion will take approximately 12-18 months
• Approximate development costs of$ 600,000



DRAFT

COVENANTS AND DECLARATIONS OF RESTRICTIONS

PROPOSED RIDGEWOOD RESERVE
FRANKLIN, WI

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned, CREATIVE HOMES, INC., being the owner of lots 1-9 being described as

LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO FOLLOWWITH NEW TITLE

And intending to establish a general plan for the use, occupancy and enjoyment of said Subdivision, does hereby declare that all lots therein shall be
subject to the following restrictions and covenants, which shall remain in force for a period of thirty (30) years from the dale of recording hereof

1 GENERAL PURPOSES. The purpose of this Declaration 1s to insure the best use and most appropriate development and improvement of each
building site thereof; to protect owners of building sites against such use of surrounding building sites as will detract from the residential value of their
property; to preserve as far as is practical, the natural beauty of said property, to guard against the erection thereon of poorly designed or poorly
proportioned structures; to obtain harmonious use of material and color scheme; to insure the highest and best residential development of said
property, to encourage and secure the erection of attractive homes hereon with appropriate locations thereof on building sites; to prevent haphazard
and inharmonious improvements of building sites, to secure and maintain proper setbacks from street and adequate free spaces between structures,
and in general, to provide adequately for a high quality of improvement in said property, and thereby to preserve and enhance the value of
investments made by purchasers of building sites therein

2 STRUCTURES. No lot shall be used for anything other than single-family residence purposes All structures shall be designed by a registered
architect or professional engineer or designer, experienced in residential design The plans shall show the square footage for both first floor and
second floor if a two story Each dwelling shall have a minimum of two full baths. Each dwelling shall have a minimum roof pitch of 7/12, however
actual roof pitch shall be at the developer's discretion and may vary depending on the type of home Roof color shall be limited to that of weathered
wood, driftwood, black, deep browns, or similar color tones Roof color must be approved by Developer There shall be no bare walls allowed It is
at the sole discretion of the Developer to add windows, brick, shutters, trim boards, vents or any item that will enhance said dwelling Vinyl windows
will be allowed only when accompanied with trim boards and/or shutters around each vinyl window, or at Developer's discretion All siding, comer
boards and fascia boards must be of natural material, Hardi Plank LP or equal Soffit material may be vinyl or aluminum. It shall be solely at
Developer's discretion to require front elevation of home to include some type of brick or stone
Please note· Developer would like to see some bnck or stone on the front elevation of homes, with the exception of a salt-box style home Additional
restrictions may be required for that of a salt-box style home Please contact Developer for further information on such Exterior of all homes shall
be of a traditional, colonial, French, country, or Tudor design. No contemporary or Spanish style homes will be allowed. All exterior color selections,
including, but not limited to siding, trim, gutters, roof, front door, shutters, garage door, etc. MUST be approved by Developer PRIOR to submitting
plans to the City of Franklin for architectural approval
Lot owner Is encouraged to get approval prior to purchasing said Lot if there Is a doubt about home to be constructed

The following Items MUST be submitted to Developer/Creative Homes, Inc PRIOR to obtaining any approvals, (this includes architectural
approval), from the City of Franklin

A Three (3) sets of final home plans
B Three (3) copies of final survey showing location of home on said lot
C. Final Color Selections indicating all final color selections for siding, trim, roof, front door, etc

.... Creative Homes, Inc will not grant any approvals unless all of the required information is submitted "
" Creatve Homes, Inc will process and conduct an architectural review, within 30 Days,

once all required information is submitted
" Creatve Homes, Inc encourages buyer(s) to plan ahead in the submission of required information "

1



3 RESTRICTION ON SUBDIVISION. There shall be no further division or subdivision of lots mn this Subdivision wthout approval of the Plan
Commission of the City of Franklin

4 DWELLING STRUCTURE. No Dwelling shall exceed two stories m height, excluding exposed areas The ground area within the perimeter of the
building at grade exclusive of porches, garages, bays, patios, breezeways and similar additions, shall not be less than the following schedule· (a)
Not less than 1,900 square feet in the case of a one-story dwelling, (b) Not less than 2,300 square feet total in the case of a dwelling of one and
one-half stories; (c) Not less than 2,300 square feet in the case of a dwelling of two stories, and the floor area of the first floor shall not be less than
1,100 square feet (d) Not less than 2,300 square feet total In the case of a dwelling of one and one-half stories,

For purposes of figuring total area, the undersigned, In his sole discretion, shall determine what constitutes a two-story or a one and one-half story
dwelling. All buildings shall be completed within the allotted time set by the City of Franklin in its ordinance Three (3} sets of plans, and three (3)
copies of the survey, showing the location of the homes, and naming the roof color, trim color, and the siding color, shall be submitted to
Creative Homes, Inc., I Developer 9244 W Grandview Court, Franklin, WI 53132, of which one set will be signed by owner if it meets numbers 1,
2 and 4 above.

5 GARAGES. No garage shall be larger than necessary to accommodate four (4) cars and all garages shall be attached to the dwelling either
forming an integral part with the dwelling house or by connection of porch or breezeway Garage design at Developer's discreton

6 TEMPORARY STRUCTURES. No structures of any kind shall be moved onto any lot and no living quarters of temporary character shall be
permitted at any time, it being the intention that only permanent, private dwellings and garages shall be permitted All garages shall be built at the
same time as the private dwellings and shall be large enough to accommodate a minimum of two (2) cars No boats, trailers, moble homes, RV's, or
commercial trucks may be parked on the premises outside the garage other than for the delivery of materials or merchandise, except during the
construction or remodeling periods

7. STORAGE. No lot shall be used in whole or in part for the storage of rubbish of any character whatsoever, nor for the storage of any property
that will cause such lots to appear in an unclean or untidy condition, or that will be obnoxious to the eye, nor shall any substance be kept upon any lot
that will omit foul or obnoxious odor Also prohibited is anything that will cause any noise that will or might disturb the peace, quiet, comfort or
serenity of the occupants of surrounding properties Storage sheds which are constructed, must comply with City requirements These said sheds
must match the home constructed on said lot in color, roof material and siding material and be approved by developer prior to obtaining approval
from the City of Franklin (See No 12)

8 UTILITY LINES. All electric, cable and telephone lines shall be placed underground

9 CONCRETE APPROACH. No curb cuts have been installed on any lots within the Ridgewood Reserve development. It shall be solely the lot
owner(s) responsibility to install a curb cut per City of Franklin requirements This requirement includes maintaining the flow line in the curb and
gutter per the City of Franklin requirements and standards It 1s the sole responsibility of the lot owner(s) to work directly with the City of Franklin
regarding obtaining any necessary guidelines If curb and gutter are installed incorrectly, it shall be the sole responsibility of the lot owner(s) to
correct and pay for any and all fees incurred to make any and all correcbons that the City of Franklin requires If Creative Homes, Inc. / Developer 1s
required to make any corrections to the lot owner(s) installed curb cut per the City of Franklin requirements and instruction, lot owner(s) shall
reimburse Creative Homes, Inc / Developer the cost of repair plus 30% administrative fee within 3 days of receipt of invoice Also, if curb, gutter,
and/or sidewalks are damaged and the city requires replacement, it shall be paid for by the owner of the lot. Buyer and Developer to Inspect curb,
gutters, and sidewalks prior to closing and to ensure they meet City of Franklin standards

10 ANIMALS. No animals, livestock or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred, or kept on any lot except two dogs, two cats, and other small
household pets such as canaries or parakeets, provided they are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes.

11 GRADES. The undersigned reserves the nght to set finished yard grades It is the sole responsibility of the lot owner to remove the excess dirt
from excavation that is not needed All dirt from excavation of any lot which is not used on the premises shall be deposited In such place mn the
Subdivision as shall be directed by the undersigned, or if not needed in the Subdivision, within a three (3) mile radius of said Subdsion, if and only
f the undersigned specifies and approves a need for the dirt. Trucking of such drt shall be solely at the cost of the lot owner. If the undersigned
does not want or need the excess dirt, it shall be the sole responsibility of the lot owner to remove the excess dirt from excavation

11 a SPLIT LEVEL LOTS To be determined per final master plan Any change from said plan must be approved by Developer and the City of
Franklin Engineering Department.

11b LOT GRADES. Some of the lots within the Subdivision may have been filled and graded to different elevations than that of the ongnal
topography to satisfy the master gradng plan

2



11c DRIVEWAYGRADES. The City of Franklin recommends grades less than 6%, however they do allow driveway grades up to 10% All driveway
grades shall be at the sole discretion of the City of Franklin A waiver from the City of Franklin is required to be signed by the homeowner at the time
of building permit processing Homeowners have the option, and are recommended and encouraged by Developer/ Creative Homes, Inc to add an
additional step(s) in the garage from the garage floor to dwelling With each additional step added, the grade percentage is lowered
All subdivision grading has been specifically designed for driveways to be located on the high side of the lot

Buyer(s) are to solely follow the master grading plan, which specifies this information Any desired change from said plan must be submitted to
Developer/ Creative Homes, Inc. in the form of a grading plan completed by a registered engineering firm, for review by Developer Changes from
master grading plan must be approved first by Developer, and second from the City of Franklin Engineering Department Approval from both is
required

11d BASEMENT GUIDELINE. Seller advises Buyers that some of the lots within the Subdivision may have been filled and graded to different
elevations than that of the original topography Seller does not guarantee topsoil / subsoil conditions on any lot, against any abnormal soil conditions
or those which may add additional building costs. Seller has made no representations as to the soil conditions to Buyers
Buyers are also aware that an excess or shortage of soil may be generated by such factors such as the size of the home, required drainage patterns,
or other factors Buyers are aware that responsibility of acquisition of or disposal of sol is the sole responsibility of the Buyers Seller encourages
Buyers to perform whatever soil tests Buyers deem necessary to verify subsoil conditions, at Buyers expense Buyers are therefore granted
permission to enter upon the lot for soil testing purposes The tests shall be at the sole expense of the Buyers

12 CONTROL. In order to maintain harmony in appearance and to protect the owners of the lots in the Subd1vis1on, no building, fence, sign, wall,
solar panels, satellite dish, 24 or larger, cyclone fences (landscape fences, open rail type, are the exception) or other structure shall be erected,
constructed or maintained upon any lot, nor shall any change or alteration be made thereon unless the complete plans and specifications, thereof (a
plot plan showing the exact location of such buildings, garage, fence, wall or other structure, the elevation thereof and the grade of the lot and sketch
or view of such building or structures or changes), shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the undersigned or his assigns as herein
provided The decision of the undersigned with respect to any such matter shall be final and bindmg upon all parties (Upon the undersigned
owner being divested of all rights, will, and interest in and to any lot in said Subdivision, control hereunder shall be passed to a
committee, to be designed by a majorityof the owners of record of the lots of the Subdivision.) See# 18

(In-ground swimming pools shall be allowed, but must be located as close as possible to rear of home, with extensive landscaping and/or privacy
fence surrounding swimming pool, per Developer's approval A plan showing the exact location of the swimming pool, and landscape and/or privacy
fence specifications must be submitted to Developer I Creative Homes, Inc PRIOR lo construction or installation)

13 LANDSCAPE · ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL. All landscaping, including driveway, must be completed wthin 18 months after the completion
of the residence, or, if home is completed during the winter season, landscaping shall be completed at the earliest opportunity season permits, and
should conform to the grading as set forth by the City of Franklin Engineering Department. Landscaping is the sole responsibility of the homeowner
Driveway shall consist of concrete or similar material No permanent gravel drive will be permitted Developer will select and approve a mailbox and
post which shall be purchased by Developer and the cost charged to buyer at time of closing ($795 00) Installation shall be the sole responsibility of
the lot owner and installed per Postal Service requirements At least two trees, minimum caliper of 1-1/2 to 2 inches shall be installed on each lot at
me of landscaping Also, developer will install a city tree (per city requirements) at a cost to the lot owner of$ 500 00 per tree, to be paid at the lime
of closing Note Corner lots may require 2 trees per the City of Franklin requirements
It Is the sole responsibility of the lot owner to cut grass and/or noxious weeds per city requirements.

14 VIOLATION. Any violations of these restrictions, which exist for a period of three years without a written protest thereof being received by the
owner of the lot involved, shall not be considered a violation thereafter These restrictions shall be deemed and construed to run with the land and
shall be binding upon the respective owners of each of said lots and upon all persons holding or claiming under or through them. Upon the violation
of any one or all of these restnctions by any owner or owners of said lots, their heirs, executors, administrators or assgns, the owner shall have the
night to proceed at law or inequity against the person or persons violating or attempting to violate any such covenant or restrictions and shall be
entitled to both equitable and legal relief Invalidation of any one of these covenants and restrictions by Judgment of Court order shall be construed
and deemed sever able and all of which are not so invalidated, shall remain m full force

15 UTILITIES. Developer reserves the right for a period of three months after the execution of this document hereof, to grant easements to WE
Energies and SBC, or other similar applicable companies, for utility purposes over, upon, under and across ALL lots in this Subdrvsion, whether
owned by the developer or third parties Such easements shall, so far as is reasonably possible, be confined to areas within 20 feet of all lot Imes
and be granted on standard utility forms

16 CONSTRUCTION. The owner's builder and/or owner of sad lot, shall be responsible for cleaning up the debris that has blown from their building
site under construction. The owner's builder and/or owner of sad lot, shall also be responsible for cleaning up the mud and drt on the roadways
caused by their construction The owner's builder and/or owner, shall clean roadway of debris and dirt within twelve (12) hours after receiving verbal

3



or written notice. Owner/builder is to advise Developer of any cracks or damage to curbs, gutters, and/or sidewalks pnor to closing of lot. The
owner's builder and/or owner shall be responsible for any damage done to curbs and/or gutters after closing

17 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION. Owner and/or builder shall begn construction wthin two (2) years from date of closing, unless otherwse
approved in writing by Developer Owner and/or builder shall complete dwelling within one (1) year from start of construction
It is the sole responsibility of the lot owner to cut grass and/or noxious weeds per city requirements.

18. HOMEOWNERS' MEMBERSHIP/ ASSOCIATION. Each Homeowner/ Lot-owner shall be a Member of the Association Such membership
shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot. Every member of the assoc1at1on shall have one vote for each Lot
owned by the Member When more than one person or entity holds an interest in a Lot, who votes shall be determined among themselves. So long
as Developer, or its successors, shall own 1 or more Lots, the authority and functions of the Board of Directors of the Membership Association shall
remain in and be exercised solely by the Developer, or its successors When Developer, or its successors no longer own 1 or more Lots, Developer
shall select two Homeowners to serve as the temporary Board of Directors of the Associabon unbl an annual meeting of Members is held At that
time the Board of Directors shall be elected After Developer appoints the temporary Board of Directors of the Association, it is the sole responsibility
for this temporary Board of Directors to act on behalf of the Members The Members of the Board of Directors shall not be entitled to any
compensation for therr services Any Member who is delinquent in the payment of assessments charged against his Lot shall not be entitled to vote
until all such assessments have been paid mn full It shall be the sole respons1b1hty of the homeowners to form such association upon Developer
and/or it's successors divesting their rights

19 GENERAL PROVISIONS; TERMS & EXTENSIONS. The restrictions and covenants herein contained shall be binding upon all persons, parties,
and entities having an interest in the land affected thereby, claiming under them for a period of thirty (30) years from the date hereof, at which time
these Declarabons of Restricl1ons shall be automatically renewed for successive periods of ten (10) years, unless, prior to the end of the initial or any
successive period, a document signed by the owners of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the lots has been recorded term1nal1ng or amending
these Declarations of Restrictions either in whole or in part.

20 AMENDMENT. It shall be understood that the contents found within these Declarations of Restnctions, or any provisions to these Declaration of
Restrictions, may be annulled, waved, changed, modified, or amended, at any tme, by a written declaration, executed in such manner as to be
recordable, setting forth such annulment, warver, change, modification, or amendment, as executed,

a Solely by Developer / Creative Homes, Inc., or its successors or assigns, unlll such lime the Developer / Creative Homes, Inc
shall no longer own 1 ormore Lots

b Thereafter, by the owners of at least seventy-five percent (75%) of the Lots.

21 ANNUAL GENERAL ASSESSMENT FOR MEMBERSHIP. There will be an annual Homeowners Membership Assessment each year, which
shall be used exclusively for the care, maintenance, operallon, and preservallon of the common lands of Faithway Reserve The assessed fee shall
include, but shall not be limited to, the cost of labor, equipment, materials, insurance, management, and supervision thereof, and fees paid for
auditing the books of the Membership, and for necessary legal services and counsel fees to the Board of Directors No lot owner shall be
responsible for more than one eighth (1/8) of the total cost of upkeep and maintenance of any common areas, if applicable. Payment may be made
by special assessment or annual assessment, as the Membership determines The Homeowners Membership shall have the power to levy
assessments against the owners of individual lots for the purposes of carrying on the business of the Membership, and for payment of expenses
properly incurred by the Members There shall be an annual assessment added to the Homeowners Membership each year, which shall be payable
to Faith Community Church for the use and maintenance of their storm water pond See recorded document; First amendment to Agreement
Document #10852881, Recorded 3-6-2019

21a DETERMINATION OF THE MEMBERSHIP. The Board of Directors of Fa1thway Reserve, once appointed by Developer, shall prepare and
annually submit to Homeowners a budget of expenses for the coming year lsting all costs contemplated withm the purposes of the annual general
assessment described in # 18 above Upon adoption and approval of the annual budget by a maJority of the Members, the Board shall determine the
assessments by dividing the amount of the budget among the Lots equally

22b. METHOD OF ASSESSMENT. The assessment for each lot shall be levied at approximately the same time each year The Board shall declare
the assessments so levied due and payable within 30 days from the date of such levy The Secretary or other officer shall notify the Homeowner of
each lot as to the amount of the assessment and the date such assessment becomes due and payable Such notice shall be mailed to the
Homeowners at the last known post office address by United States mail, postage prepaid

22c INTEREST ON UNPAID ASSESSMENTS. Any assessment which is not paid when due shall thereafter until paid in full, bear interest at the
rate of 12% per annum or the highest rate permitted by law, whichever is hgher

4



23 CITY OF FRANKLIN . In the event that the Association fails to mantamn the Common Area as required hereunder, the Common Council of the
City of Franklin may serve written notice upon the Association and/or upon the owners of the Property subject to this Declaration, setting forth the
manner in which the Association has failed to maintain the Common Area as required, and demanding that such deficiencies be remedied within
thirty (30) days thereof. The notice shall specify a date and place for hearing thereon, to be held within fourteen (14) days of the notice date At
such hearing the Common Council may modify the terms of the original notice as to the deficiencies and my give an extension of time within which
they shall be remedied If the deficiencies set forth in the original notice or in any modification thereof, shall not be remedied as required, the City, in
order to preserve taxable values in the area and to preserve the Common Area from becoming a public nuisance, may enter upon said Common
Area and maintain the same for a period not to exceed one year. Said entry and maintenance shall not vest n the public any rights to use the
Common Area except in the event same is voluntarily dedicated to the public. If the Common Council shall determine that the Association is ready
and able to maintain said Common Area as required hereunder, the City shall them cease to maintain said Common Area and give notice thereof to
the Association and/or Property owners. If the Common Council shall determine that the Association rs not ready or willing or able to maintain sad
Common Area as required hereunder, the Common Council may, in its d1scret1on, continue to maintain said Common Area subject to a similar
hearing and determination in the next succeeding year and in each year thereafter The cost of such maintenance by the City shall be assessed
ratably against the Lots subject to thrs Declaration and shall become a tax lien on said Lots, which may be enforced and collected by all methods
available under the laws or the State of Wisconsin pertaining to such liens. The City at the time of entry upon said Common Area for the purpose of
maintenance, shall file a notice of hen against the Lots In the office of the Milwaukee County Register of Deeds and/or the Milwaukee County Clerk of
Circuit Court, as may be required Nothing contained herein nor any act or omission of the City of Franklin hereunder, shall be construed to create
any obligation or liability on the part of the City of Franklin, its agents or designees, whatsoever.

24, MODEL HOMES. "MODEL HOMES" or "SPEC HOMES" will be allowed ONLY with wntten permission by CREATIVE HOMES, INC on any lot
in the subdivision except those as may be constructed by CREATIVE HOMES, INC. No owner, therefore, of any lot may construct thereon a home,
which is not going to be occupied as a principal residence by the owner of sad lot without written permission by CREATIVE HOMES, INC. For the
purposes of this paragraph, a model home and/or spec home are defined as any home constructed on any lot with the intent, purpose, or result of
being displayed, presented, and/or advertised as a home which is capable of bemg duplicated and/or constructed again elsewhere, and is advertised
as a model or spec for such purposes This clause may be enforced by injuncton against any such use of the lot.

25 STORM WATER/ IMPERVIOUS Each property owner's impervious area for their lot is estimated at 5,000 square feet. When surveying lot at
time of building, surveyor MUST include on survey all impervious areas with percentages At developer's discretion, if unused impervious area in
excess of 5,000 square feet rs able to be used on another person's lot, the developer, at his discretion, may allow the excess to be used, but ONLY
with developers signed acceptance as well as the City of Franklin's engineering department.

26. EXCROW FOR DAMAGE CURB, ISLANDAND ROAD At time of closing, developer will wthhold $1,500 00 to insure that upon inspection of the
final lift, no damage has been incurred per the City Inspectors If damage has been incurred, Developer with refund part or all of the initial $1,500 00
to the lot owner

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY

CREATIVE HOMES, INC
Rick J Przybyla

PLEASE RETURN TO

RICK J PRZYBYLA
CREATIVE HOMES, INC
9244 West Grandview Court
Franklrn, WI 53132

5



Signature of Rck J Przybyla authenticated thedayof, 2024

Notary Public

My commission expires

6



RIDGEWOOD RESERVE
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
05/09/2024

Outlot A of Certified Survey Map No. 3410, as recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for
Milwaukee County as Document No. 5239312, Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9456, as
recorded mn the Register of Deeds Office for Milwaukee County as Document No. 11306731,
Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9457, as recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for
Milwaukee County as Document No. 11306732, and additional lands, all being a part of the
Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of
Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:
Commencing at the southeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9; thence South
88°35'08" West along the south line of said Southeast 1/4, 990.40 feet; thence North 00°15'17"
West along the west line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 9456, 200.49 feet to the Point
of Beginning; thence continuing North 00°15'17" West, 681.33 feet; thence North 88°37'15"
East, 330.40 feet to the west line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 3416; thence South
00°15'13" East along said west line, 220.00 feet to the south line of said Parcel 1; thence North
88°37'15" East along said south line of said Parcel 1, 165.00 feet to the east line of Outlot 1 of
Certified Survey Map No. 9457; thence South 00°15'17" East along said east line, 421.51 feet to
the north line of Parcel 1 of sand Certified Survey Map No. 9457; thence South 88"35'08" West
along said north line and then along the north line of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 3410,
290.00 feet; thence South 77°44'20" West along the north line of Parcel 1 and Parcel 2 of
Certified Survey Map No. 9456, 209.95 feet to the Point of Beginning.
Containing 285,580 square feet (6.5560 acres) of land.



SECTION 15-3.0502 CALCULATION OF BASE SITE AREA

Ridgewood Reserve
PEG #5407.00
5/9/2024

The base site area shall be calculated as mdtcated m Table 15-3 0502 for each parcel of land to be used
or bmlt upon m the City ofFranklm as referenced in Sect10n 15-3.0501 ofth1s Ordmance.

Table 15-3.0502

WORKSHEET FOR THE CALCULATION OF BASE SITE AREA
FOR BOTH RESIDENTIAL AND NONRESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

STEP 1: Indicate the total gross site area (mn acres) as determmed by an actual on-site
6.55boundary survey of the property acres

Subtract (- ) land whch constitutes any existing dedicated public street rghts-of-
STEP 2: way, land located wthin the ultmmate road rghts-of-way of existing roads, the rights

0.00of-way ofmayor utuhties, and any dedicated publc park and/or school srte area. - acres

STEP 3: Subtract (-) land which, as a part of a previously approved development or land
0.00drvson, was reserved for open space - acres

In the case of "Ste Intensty and Capacty Calculatons" for a proposed
residential use, subtract (-) the land proposed for nonres1dentJal uses,

STEP 4: or
In the case of "Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations" for a proposed
nonresidental use, subtract (- ) the land proposed for res1dentaluses

0.00- acres

STEP 5: Equals "Base S1te Area" = 6.55 acres

SECTION 15-3.0503 CALCULATION OF THE AREA OF NATURAL
RESOURCES TO BE PROTECTED

All land area with those natural resource features as described mn DIv1s1on 15-4.0100 of thus Ordmnance
and as listed m Table 15-3.0503 and lying within the base site area (as defined m Sect1on 15-3 0502),
shall be measured relative to each natural resource feature present. The actual land area encompassed by
each type of resource 1s then entered mto the column of Table 15-3 0503 titled "Acres of Land m
Resource Feature" The acreage of each natural resource feature shall be multiplted by its respective
natural resource protection standard (to be selected from Table 15-4 0100 of this Ordmance for
apphcable agricultural, res1dent1al, or nonres1dent1al zoning dustr1ct) to determme the amount of resource
protect1on land or area required to be kept 1n open space mn order to protect the resource or feature The
sum total of all resource protection land on the site equals the total resource protection land The total
resource protection land shall be calculated as indicated m Table 15-3 0503.

City ofFranklin UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance
Part 3 Zonung Dstrcts Dstrct Establishment, Dmensonal, and Use Regulatons Page 3-111



Table 15-3.0503

WORKSHEET FOR THE CALCULATION OF RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND

Protection Standard Based
Upon Zoning District Type

(circle applicable standard from

Natural Resource Feature Table 15-4.0100 for the type of zoning Acres of Land in Resource Featuredistrict in which the parcel is located)

Agricultural Residential Non-
ResidentialDistrict DIstr1ct District.

Steep Slopes
10-19% 0 00 0 60 040 X

:7-

20-30% 0 65 0 75 0 70 X
=

+30% 0 90 0 85 0 80 X
=

Woodlands & Forests

@ X 0.40 0.28
Mature 0 70 070 =

X
Young 0 50 0 50 0 50 =

Lakes & Ponds I 1 1 X
=

Streams I D I X 0.U 0.01=

Shore Buffer I O 1 X u.z1 0.21
Floodplains I o I X 0.53 0.53
Wetland Buffers I o I X 0.10 0.10=

Wetlands & Shoreland I 0 I X 0.03 0.03Wetlands =

TOTAL RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND 1.16(Total of Acres of Land m Resource Feature to be Protected)

Note In conductng the calculatons n Table 15-3 0503, ftwo or more natural resourcefeatures are present on the same area
ofland, only the most restrctve resource protecton standard shall be used For example, ffloodplan and young woodlands
occupy the same space on a parcel ofland, the resource protecton standard would be I 0 whch represents the hgher ofthe two
standards

City ofFranklin UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance
Part 3 Zonng Dstrcts Dstrct Establishment, Dmensonal, and Use Regulations Page 3-112



SECTION 15-3.0504 CALCULATION OF SITE INTENSITY AND CAPACITY
FOR RESIDENTIAL USES

R-6

In order to determme the maximum number of dwelhng umts which may be permitted on a parcel of
land zoned in a res1dent1al zonmng d1strict, the srte intensity and capacity calculations set forth 1n Table
15-3.0504 shall be performed.

Table 15-3.0504

WORKSHEET FOR THE CALCULATION OF SITE INTENSITY AND
CAPACITY FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

CALCULATE MINIMAL REQUIRED ON-SITE OPEN SPACE

Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 n Table 15-3 0502) 6.55
STEP 1: Multiple by Mm1mum Open Space Ratio (OSR)

(see specific res1dental zoning distrct OSR standard) X 0.00
(TABLE 15-3.0207) 0.00 acresEquals MINIMUM REQUIRED ON-SITE OPEN SPACE =

CALCULATE NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA:

Take Base SiteArea (from Step 5 1 Table 15-3 0502) 6.55

STEP 2: Subtract TotalResource Protecton Land from Table 15-3 0503) or
Minimum RequiredO11-Site Open Space (from Step 1 abov,, whichever 1s
greater _1., 6

Equals NET BUILDABLE SITE AREA 5.39 acres
=

CALCULATE MAXIMUM NET DENSITY YIELD OF SITE:

Take NetBuldable Site Area (from Step 2 above) 5.39
STEP 3: Multiply by Max1mum NetDensty (ND)

(see specific res1dental zoning districtND standard) X 2.972
(TABLE 15-3.0207) 16 DU sEquals MAXIMUM NET DENSITY YIELD OF SITE =

CALCULATE MAXIMUM GROSS DENSITY YIELD OF SITE:

Take Base Site Area (from Step 5 ofTable 15-3 0502) 6.55
STEP 4: Mulliple by Maximum GrossDensity (GD)

(see specific res1dental zoning distnct GD standard) y 2.972rTABLE 15-3.0207) 19 DUsEquals MAXIMUM GROSS DENSITY YIE D OF SITE =

DETERMINE MAXIMUM PERMITTED D.U.s OF SITE:

STEP 5: Take the lowestof Maxmmum Net Dens1ty Yield of Site (from Step 3 above) or
16Maximum Gross Dens1ty Yield of Site (from Step 4 above) DUs

calculated gross density = proposed 9 lots /6.55 ac (base site area)= 1.37
calculated net density = proposed 9 lots / 5.39 ac (net buildable area) = 1.67
calculated open space= 1.81 ac (open space is outlot 1) / 6.55 ac (base site area) = 0.27

City ofFranklin UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance
Part 3 Zonng Dstrcts Dstrect Establishment, Dmensonal, and Use Regulations Page 3-113



City of Franklin
Department of City Development

Date: June 14, 2024

To: Rick Przybyla, Creative Homes, Inc.
Anthony Zanon, Pinnacle Engineering

From: Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

RE: Staff Comments - Ridgewood Reserve Preliminary Plat

Below are review comments and recommendations for the above-referenced application submitted by
Creative Homes, Inc.

Department of City Development

1. Does the Building Setback line encroach into the floodplain on Lot 4? The building setback line
should not encroach into protected natural resource features. No, the floodplain line does not
impact the building setback. The 2-ft above 100-yr floodplain line is on the lot but that does not
impact the building setback.

2. Is any signage anticipated? No subdivision sign. The developer may put conservation signs and "no
trespassing signs" along the conservancy and pond area.

3. What is the length of the cul de sac? Please confirm it does not exceed 800 feet in length. The
length from the centerline of W Drexel Ave to the centerline of the cul-de-sac is 800'. The
centerline is 531.84' within Tuckaway Brook to the west (thus is labeled along the centerline of
South Ridgewood Drive) and 268.16' in the proposed Ridgewood Reserve subdivision. This
distance is now labeled on the centerline of the road in the proposed subdivision.

4. On the NRPP Exhibit, is the wetland delineation date correct? Should the year be 2022, not 2021?
The NRPP Exhibit was revised to note 2022.

5. As discussed, please address all Milwaukee County Department of Administration comments. See
the attached County review letter with the responses noted.

Engineering Department Comments

6. There are no comments on the proposed preliminary plat. The construction plan is under
Engineering review.

Inspection Services Department Comments

7. Inspection Services has no comments on the proposal at this time.

Fire Department Comments

8. No Fire Department comments

Health Department Comments

9. Health Dept has no comments on this development

1

Pinnacle Engineering Group responses 6/25/24



DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Milwaukee County

June 7, 2024

Dept of Administration
Plat Review Pinnacle Engineering Group responses 6/25/24
101 East Wilson St FL 9
Madison, WI 53703
P 0. Box 1645
Madison, Wisconsin 53701

RE: Ridgewood Reserve
Preliminary Plat - File C-12-788
State File: 121933

Dear WI Dept of Administration -- Plat Review

A copy of the Prehmmary Plat of Ridgewood Reserve located in the SE¼ of Section 9, Townshp 5 North,
Range 21 East, In the City of Franklin has been reviewed by Milwaukee County in accordance with
Section 236 12 of the Wisconsin Statutes

We object to the above preliminary plat This objection may be rescinded if certamn conditions are met by
the developer The special cond1t1ons are as follows

The following comments are from the Register of Deeds Office

1 Review fee of $150 does not appear to have been paid Please remit by sending to the attention
of Kristine Kampa at 901 N. Ninth Street; Rm 103, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53233 to avoid
delay in recording/processing The City of Franklin mailed the check on 6/12/24 See the

2 Plat Is made up of multiple recorded CSMs and unplatted lands Three of those lots are owned by attached Quit
Creative Homes Inc, and one (792-9005) 1s owned by Rick J Przybyla and Mary A Przybyla All Claim Deed
lots that make up this plat should have the exact same owner to avoid delay in processing 11428932
Deed(s) should be recorded to correct this prior to recording the plat. ---------- Creative

3 We are reviewing the preliminary plat for closure issues and verify ownership Please refer to Homes Inc
Wisconsin State Statutes and local ordinances for any further requirements owns all the
Comment only, no change property

lf you require additional information or clarification on the above comments, please contact Ms Kristine
Kampa at Milwaukee County Register of Deeds office at 414-278-4048 or via email at
knstine kampa@m1lwaukeecountyw1 gov

The following comments are from the Economic Development Office.

1 There should be language that the Outlets of this plat are owned and shall be mamtamed by the
homeowner's association of this plat and each md1v1dual lot owner shall have an und1v1dable
fractional ownership of Outlots and that Milwaukee County and the City of Franklin shall not be
liable for any fees or special assessments in the event Milwaukee County or the City of Franklin
should become the owner of any lot m the subd1v1s1on by reason of delinquency The
homeowner's association shall mamntamn sad Outlots mn an unobstructed condition so as to
maintain its intended purpose This note was shown on the plat as General Note 13



Final Plat - File C-12-788
State File 121933

lf you require additional information or clarification on the above comments, please contact Ms Emily
Streff at Milwaukee County Economic Development office at 414-897-2384 or via email at
emtly streff@mwaukeecountyw1 gov

Very truly yours,

Max Sauchek

cc Sarah Toomsen, Parks
Emily Streff, Economic Development
Knstme Kampa, Register of Deeds
John Konopacki, Surveyor
City of Franklin Planning

0 \WPDOC\SITEDEV\DSGDOC\SUBDIVIS\C12788\Submitta1_05-23-2024\C12788Itr1 doc

MILWAUKEE COUNTY • 633W WISCONSIN AVENUE SUITE 1000 • MILWAUKEE, WI 53203

PHONE NUMBER - Architecture & Engineering 278-4861 FAX NUMBER - Architecture & Engineering 223-1366



wIfe
THIS DEED, made between Rick J Przybyla and Mary A Przybyla, husband and

--,-----------------("Grantor," whether one or more),
and Creative Homes lnc

__________________ ("Grantee," whether one or more)
Grantor quit claims to Grantee the followmg described real estate, together with the
rents, profits, fixtures and other appurtenant interests, in Milwaukee
County, State of W1sconsmn ("Propeny") (1f more space 1s needed, please attach
addendum)

Outlot 1 of Cerfied Survey Map No. 9457, recorded m the Register of Deeds Office
for Milwaukee County on December 16, 2022, as Document No 11306732 being all
that part of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East, m the City ofFranklm, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

DOC# 11428932
RECORDED

06/21/2024 11:25 AM
ISRAEL RAMON

REGISTER OF DEEDS
Milwaukee County, WI

AMOUNT: 30.00
TRANSFER FEE:

FEE EXEMPT #: 77.25 (15)
***This document has been

electronically recorded and
returned to the submitter.•••

Name and Return Address
Creative Homes, Inc
9244 W GrandviewCt.
Franklin, WI 53132

Re<:ordmg Area

Docwncnt Name

State Bar of Wisconsin Form 3-2003
QUIT CLAIM DEED

Document Number

792-9005-000
Parcel ldenuficaton Number (PIN)

Th,s 1< not
(1s) (as not)

homestead property

(SEAL)

-----------------\SEAL),-,- (SEAL)
• •

to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing
led d the same

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Personally came before me on .la 2 7-82£.
the above-named Rick J Przybyla and Mary A Przyya

STATE OF WISCONSfN )
) ss

_W_A_U_K_E_S_H_A COUNTY )

:4- 1Ro»a: >GG --bl- 
TITLE MEMBER STATE BASwscoNsnz gs

:- -u 
foot, 2...... sS
authorzea y ws sa sf9,, ."Zs·, ·;<,4"

THIS NSTRUMENTDRAFTEDBY
Rick J Przybyla

•

AUTHENTICATION
S1gnature(s) ....,_,,..- _m.mm,

" e e,

mission (is permanent) (exprcs9Zl72OZ
(Signatures may be, a11thtntitated or acknowlcdgtd Both arc: not necessary.)

NOTE: THIS IS A STANDARD FORM. ANY MODIFICATIONS TO THIS FORM SHOULD DE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED
QUIT CLAIM DEED €2003 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM NO 3-2003
• Type name below s1gnatwes

Doc Yr 2024 Doc# 11428932 Pagcri 1 of I



Request for
Land Subdivision Plat Review
Department of Administration

Plat Review -DOA
Mailing Address: PO Box 1645

Madison WI 53701
Phone: 608-266-3200
Email: plat.reyiew@w1.gov
Web: https.//doa.wi.gov/platreview

Online Submittal and Payment: Instead of this form go to https:/appengine.egov.com/apps/wi/DIR/PlatRevew
Mauling a check adds about a week to the process

Subdivision Name: Ridgewood Reserve
Surveyor's Saal

Surveyor, Company & StreetAddress:
License #: 2461

Name: John P. Konopacki

Company: Pinnacle Engineering Group, LLC

Street address: 20725 Watertown Road, Sulte 100

(no PO boxes): Waukesha, WI 53186

Phone: 262-754-8888

Email: john.konopackl@plnnacle-engr.com

Complete: 1-7 forFINAL Plats; 3-7 forPRELIMINARYPlats;4 & 6 forASSESSOR'S Plats; or 3-4 & 6 for CSMs
I certify that, as the Wisc. Professional Land Surveyor responsible for the field survey & preparation of this plat:

1. (J» monuments have been set per s. 236.15 (1), Wis. Stats.
OR
DAll exterior boundary monuments have been set, but the town, village or city has temporarily waived

placing Interior monuments per s. 236.15 (1 ){h), Wis. Stats.
2. Preliminary plat name:
3. Subdivider's name, Creative Homes Inc and Rick. & Mary Przybyla

and email: rickprzybyla@hotmail.com
4. [] Email plat PDF (not scanned) and this form to plat.review@wi.gov. Number of sheets!
5. Is this plat served by public sewer? Iii Yes D No □
6. [!]Mall a check or money order covering the Department ofAdministration, Plat Review fee with this form. □
7. DOT: [@Not abutting a S.T.H., U.S.H. or I.H., OR [DOT form enclosed. D

Surveyor's Receipt & Transmittal Record Shaded Area for Office Use Only
Date Received: I Date Time Limit Expires: Preliminary

DOT:
By: I Plat Review Officer

Final

Assessor CSM

Date Copies Sent:
Countv:

DD-326 (Rev November 2022) g:\pletreview\forms\wplatreviewform.docx



Fee Schedule
A Guide for Calculating the Fee Required by Adm 49, Wis. Admin. Code
PRELIMINARY PLAT
$12 $125 Filing Fee
$ 100 $100 Review Fee
$4o Reprographics & Postage Fee - $40/sheet x' sheets (required for all plats)

FINAL PLAT
$ $125 FIing Fee***
(Required unless a preliminary plat has been previously submitted. Also required for subsequent

additions or phases of a plat.)
$ Parcel Fee- $30/parcelx parcels (outlots + lots) ($120 minimum) (required for all plats)
$ Reprographics & Postage Fee - $40/sheet x sheets (required for all plats)

ASSESSOR'S PLAT
$ $125 Filing Fee

Parcel Fee - $30/parcel xparcels (outlots + lots) ($120 minimum) (required for all plats)
$ Reprographcs & Postage Fee- $40/sheet X sheets (required for all plats)

REVISED PLAT (not certified)
$ $120 Review Fee
$ Reconfiguration Fee (add/remove lots/outlots or move streets)-$30/parcel x__ parcels

RESUBMITTED PLAT (previously certified or withdrawn)
$ $120 Review Fee. Includes 2 sheets, additional sheets $40/sheet x sheets-- --
$___ Reconfiguration Fee (add/remove lots/outlots or move streets)-$30/parcel x parcels

MISC
$$100 Certified Survey Map
$$ 50 Written pre-submission consultation request.

$3 TOTAL FEE DUE
Mail this form with check or money order, payable to: Department ofAdministration

DON'T use staples or tape on the check.

Shaded Area for Office Use Only
Date fee received: _
Payer: Check Number: _

Check Date: ----
Amount:----



~ ii • l!##~~ N 1~~ I I i1 '! 1 1gs l~[ilfai,i llihh
I

o ii
i!

<w
1 l!w,. ~ i"" l43

&iU111ae
"' !:. »& g g g gI ~2 ·- h ;-~i3 et ·• ..ae
a::

II<C I I Iw ~ I! i ja:: ~ I I I:::, ,... § I I #
~

ii!

LL
w

!10
I£t: I I I I I::,

0 i"'w I£t:
...J 3e I I 1 g
~ <g I 1 t

~~~ I::, ~ilwI- g&<C
"1< •ii l! !iz 0- W 1 ~ l! •• $.xi;!l! %¢ ,. ••

$ !. nf i W k/: i ! #;~ ti ! 35I • •' i• ii•~I sf □ E3 IIii! ..

'<:I" 0N o0.. ~ I"-
0o (!) '<:I"32 0 It)-It)" ±i -g

0 :j:j:%.5
j

Oo8 o,-o c~ ~~.,, ~~~~ 05 ±KG3
-+0u. ...§ ~~ 'zl ~ i:: ! ~ u!i
wt; 6sez wi "+ g-· Q.z Q)~ • :.::.88sf<.awI ~
:i,i

~-" jiiji
J- ~rsi

~oa.i:: iii aI aJU. -ct :r:-li $!f I # .' >< ~
0 ~ rll .. d w iii! Pee wg 0

0 o;lil.._ z C' au
::s z

~a.
z
0-J-uw
Jo
0:::a.
w
(.)
0:::
::>
0
(J)
w
0:::

L ::,_l s ,Ci!S

I I I I-f--7---:---7 -

7
I
(

Ii I
'I

\
~N",a:rt·'»-~sn, m,111S•!QO'I ,,,,.r.,tt'< c::otc-.s\~11s,,.Ki\01:i\1M-oo·,c1~\noz\s1



z
I-<
V)
z
0uw (/)> I-<

~ ~-w o
V) u
w t±la g
C <(z0 I-<

?w I-<

(,!) S2
0z
1-1 ~
~ u..

u..
0

r
I-<u

I
LU
LU
J:
V)

cc:
LU
>
0u

1111

1111

1111

1111

tu .-t M
w I I~ u u

ffi, I
>' ;,:::; w,we
O, rg
z. tjCJ· ,%:
0 '.

0.¥3 5%
.J' 5o.•

C::'."d
oi
z!zl
uri
LJz·
Gzw
w
..Ju
<!zza:

I--~.

.,.,,---rm
~ G"'"h "'ln •!S

nv--- ... ,, J<

pa'/4s o »

iii
)
)

(.!)z
o1 V)

t±l 1-z U
I-< <(
(.!) 1-
z z
LU 0
-' u
I-<>I-<u

l 0 ~~ 11 \l 111111

111.--,0~~!\!l1 uljr. I 11

11 I I!
• ·Pjjl/

·...nili

i

woYJ6ua-apeuu1d·,vw1M -;,·

w
V) >z a:::5 w0..
I- (/) oz w 1-1 z :5w ~ <( >-l: a::w .. cc: u ca 5,e> z 0 z >- s: :'.) ~1-1 u.. 1-1 N0 C ..J Cl (/) ~ u V)0:: ::ii::: LU I-< 11'1 0\ I-
a. cc: w 0.. >,i LUer:: 0 z <( ~ >- ~ s: If LU z
l: 0 £ a. J: 2u.. LU o0 ~

-<I" V)z,... "1-1

0 cc: (,!)'.j<I" u.. z
(,!) LL a. :::c <( 0 0 · i X

;,lz u. s: z z 0z LU ffi1-1 0 3> a ±9 Cl 50:: 1-1 ~ u.. B: zz i- I-< :w 0\w w <( uz 1-1 w 1-1
1-1 C, u o c
(,!) u v z Mu .!,z Cw .....a::



1111

d;4;

f;; N M
w I IiiU u
p·yrvg
Ft-ur¢us
~ ...11i.

~•oc11;.,

1111

ill ? ! 1111

i:1,11 ,-1111Ii

,,.--'
I

I

I ol~ ➔ ➔ 11- n' / -"'i;

' ' -- : ,' ,--- '
➔ ➔ ......, ---~

' \ ,,
\_ ---- --J ~

'---._

"'-
'---._

-----\
\_

--------------

" '---._
'-.....

"\
L

'.. p;

,_
/'/0.,/ 8

wo:> J6ua-a :>euu1d MMM ·\a



wo:i J5ua-a :ieuu1d MMM -'pt 311:!0lld 18 N'fid

! 1111

AT

1111



1111

g 1111

Ant

NVld 33ll.L .L33ll.LS

,, /

#
ld.

wo::i J6ue-e ::ieuu 1d MMM ·1"



LUO:> J6ua-a :,euu1d MMM ·'pi· .LYld AllVNilllll73lld

1111

B 1111

Tl

I

e-3=>,0-&j
03
Zi

IBIz
C5zw
w
..Ju
<(zz
E

IIi'



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax
Rescission and Refund for Parcel #759-9054-000

MEETING DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
Per Wisconsin State Statutes, the removal of property taxes needs to be authorized by the Common Council.
Statutes enumerate specific conditions under which a rescission/refund is appropriate and necessary. There
is currently one property that was incorrectly assessed for the 2023 tax year. This parcel is a retention pond
for a homeowner' s association. The 2023 assessment valued the lot as if it were a buildable lot rather than a
pond, which the current City Assessor confirmed with the previous City Assessor by phone.

ANALYSIS
Parcel: 759-9054-000
Owner: Pleasant View Reserve HOA, Inc.
Address: 51 st St. S

The current City Assessor has had contact with the previous City Assessor by phone. For retention ponds,
the City Assessor typically use the land model for the neighborhood it's in, but then make a negative
adjustment to account for the are underwater. The adjustment is usually anywhere between -90% to -99%,
with the most typical being -95% Based on the phone conversation and assumptions, it is the
recommendation of the current City Assessor to suggest that the 2023 assessed value should be a -95%
reduction and approve this rescinded tax and refund request.

FISCAL NOTE
The impact of the above rescission/refund is likely a bad debt expense for the City in the amount of
$1,137.77. There is a formal process that allows the City to notify the Department of Revenue (DOR) of
rescissions in October of each year, and, as long as the total of all rescissions, for the tax year, for the City of
Franklin, meet the statutory dollar threshold, $250 or more per any single property, the chargeback will be
authorized, and the other taxing entities will be responsible for their share. Staff will complete the statutory
submittal and make the request to be reimbursed by the other taxing entities for their prorated shares totaling
approximately $3,855.83.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council authorize this resolution to partially rescind and refund the above noted taxes
as outlined.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve Resolution No. 2024- A Resolution Approving a Partial Property Tax Rescission
and Refund for Parcel #759-9054-000; and direct staff to file the chargeback request with the DOR to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX RESCISSION AND REFUND
FOR PARCEL #934-0120-000

WHEREAS, the following property taxes were assessed improperly, per Wisconsin State
Statutes 74.33 (1) (b), which states that the assessment included real property improvements that
did not exist on the assessment date, and a partial rescission and refund of the tax due is
appropriate:

Pleasant View Reserve HOA, Inc
51St. S
Franklin, WI 53132
(Parcel #759-9054-000) $4,993.60

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, that the proper City Officials are hereby authorized and directed to rescind and refund the sum of
$4,993.60; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proper City Officials authorized and directed to seek
compensation from the other taxing authorities, if applicable, per Wisconsin State Statutes 74.41.

Fundsfor thspurpose are appropriatedfrom thefollowingAccount Numbers.
01-0000-1415 Milwaukee County $947.01
01-0198-5543 City ofFranklmn $1,137.77
01-0000-1412 MATC $241.90
01-0000-1411 Franklin School Dstrict $2,295.63
01-0000-1413 MMSD $371.29

Resolution introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2024.

Passed at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin thisday
of2024.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



"C
C:
G
V,

~
5
-0
C:

&
>ro
E
6.::t
-5
C:
0
55

3
a,
.c:...-0>-0_g
Ill)
C:
i:

t
a,
.c:...

a, 0u 0

5a, 0!I: I'll
"?

V,
QJ:,

7N C:
0 QJ
N E
"C QJ 0
a, > i/l-
t; e
QJ
Ill) Eg

V')

+°C: Mo
.-t
ill-

!:!!....
C:
QJ
E
ii\:,
5ro
QJ

.c:
I-

g
V,

eg i:
C: ~

?£
£....
.l!l
C:
QJ
V,g
C.
~

e
QJ
C:zz
QJ ME .-tg
·3g
-0 a,
C:
0
C.

QJ
.c:....
-0
QJ:,
"iii
>....
C:
QJ

E
V,

G
V,
V,ro
M
Na
N
QJ

.c:
I-
C:
0
55ro
U
$
ro

ro
!:!!

z 4i
ro ::
E ro

C.
E V,

3 i:
V') I-

a

aaa
U'l ir
)



0.00
2,496.80
1,248.40
1,248 40

0.00
131.84
65.92
65.92

Pleasant View HOA Inc.
759-9054-000 equated

$325,000
$16,300 does not match the resolution
-308,700

0.00
2,628 64
1,314.32
1,314.32

Original
Revised

Name
Parcel ID
Assessed Value -
Assessed Value -
Payments Due
Lottery Credit
1/31
3/31
5/31

4 993 60263 675 257.27I '
GL Entry
State

2023 Original Adjusted Report
Rate Amount Amount Difference Difference

0.0000000 0 00 0.00 0.00 0 00
3.3711542 1,095.63 54.95 1,040.68 947.01
0.0000000 0.00 0.00 0.00
4.0502260 1,316.32 66.02 1,250.30 1,137.77
0.8611245 279.87 14.04 265.83 241.90
8 1719422 2,655.88 133.20 2,522.68 2,295 63
-1.5999288 -519.98 -26 08 -493.90
1.3217058 429.55 21.54 408.01 371.29

16.1762239 5,257 27 263 67 4,993.60 4,993.60

GLA/RAcct
State Tax
Milwaukee County 0100001415
Sales Tax Credit

CIty of Franklin 010198 5543
MATC (VTAE) 0100001412

1 Franklin Schools 01 0000 1411
State School Levy credit

1 MMSD 01 0000 1413

Milwaukee County is entitled to the Sales tax credit
The School levy credit is proportioned among all taxing districts
The State when calculating the amounts will calculate the TIF impact and include that wth the City total
Franklin Schools 01 0000 1411 8.1719422
Oak Creek/Franklin Schools 01 0000 1418 8.2508137
Whitnall Schools 010000 1419 7.4508424
No Sewer 0.0000000

TOTAL



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIO
NS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION
OF A TAX-EXEMPT LEASE-PURCHASE

AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS AND
AWARD THE SALE FOR THE JOHNSON
CONTROLS MUNICIPAL PROJECT

MEETING DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Analysis

The Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-8186, which authorized certain officials to execute a
Performance Contract, Schedule 5 Supplemental Terms & Conditions Agreements, and Master Energy Service
Agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc. Furthermore, that resolution added a provision that the above be
contingent upon and subject to terms of Financing determination to be undertaken and approved by the Director
of Finance. It was further resolved that the funding for the provision of the services and products agreements shall
be administered by the Director of Finance and Treasurer.

The total project costs for the work being performed in this contract is $3,025,616.00 Prior to the execution of
the Agreements, the Financing Structure was reviewed with the Director of Finance, Director of Administration
and Mayor.

On July 16, 2024, the Common Council approved Ordinance No. 2024-2627, an Ordinance amending the 2024
Annual Budget to transfer and repurpose unused appropriations for the Johnson Controls Comprehensive
Efficiency Program Project. The total 2024 capital contribution is $896,050.

After further consideration on the debt issuance of the remaining $2,129,586.00, a few options were available.
1. General Obligation Bonds
2. Tax-Exempt Lease-Purchase (TELP")
3. Contingent Payment Funding Structure

Comparison I Performance Contract Funding Options

Topic GO Bonds TELP Contingent Payment
Rate Baseline GO Bonds + 50 BP TELP + 120 BP

Closing costs 50 BP+ $100k legal $12k legal None
Pledge Tax revenues Equipment lien Equipment lien

Max term 40 years 20 years 25 years

Obligated term Full term 1 budget cycle 1 budget cycle

Commitment Full term commitment Budget appropriation Budget appropriation
Termination 0-2% after 10 years 1-3% anytime 3-4% after construction

Issuance Public issuance Private placement Direct with JCI

Approval Voter referendum' Governing body Governing body

'Some states have 'home rule' laws that allow local governments to issue LTGO debt without voter approval



The Director of Finance met with Johnson Controls, Inc. finance team and deemed the TELP was the best
option for the City of Franklin. There are a few factors that were considered in making this decision:

1. Rate: extremely comparable to the TID 9 GO Bond taken out in July. Due to timing of bond issuance
and contract approvals, we were not able to add this funding to the July 16" Bond sale.

2. Closing costs: As noted in the proposals, most offers have $0 closing costs except City's legal costs to
execute the necessary agreements and documents.

3. Obligation Term/Commitment: As noted in the cash flow, an annual budget cycle contribution is all
that's needed to appropriate annual funding.

In speaking with the City's Financial Advisor, the downside to a TELP would be there is no tax pledge. That
means the City cannot levy for the debt service. However, based on the cash flow of the project, and the
significant utility savings, it was determined that this concern was very low risk and not a significant factor in
determining the best financing option.

The City of Franklin Finance Team has worked extremely close with JCI Finance team to prepare an RFP and
that was distributed to financial institutions that actively finance Performance Contract projects for
governmental customers. The contemplated transaction involves a TELP between the City, as the lessee, and
the financial institution, as the lessor. The financial institutions were asked to submit proposals for a Bank
Qualified ("BQ") assumption. All other details on the proposed transaction can be found in the RFP document.
The financial institutions were asked to submit proposals based upon project data that was provided in the RFP.
The RFP asked bidders to assume a financed project amount of$3,025,636.00 (+/- 10%), $896,050.00 provided
capital from the City, resulting in a financed amount of $2,129,586.00, a 20-year financing term with a six
month construction phase, and a financing close date of 8/30/2024. Interest during construction would either
accrue to the balance or be capitalized upfront.

RFP proposals were due 7/31/24.

There were 3 banks that submitted a response.
1. Bank of America
2. Huntington Bank
3. Webster Bank

Due to the expiration date being 10 days (due to volatile market conditions) on these proposals and approval
requirements, the banks are submitting updated proposals by August 19, 2024. The updated proposals will have
updated rates locked in. Market conditions have been favorable compared to 3 weeks ago. Each proposal will
be directly emailed to each Council member and given a paper copy at August 20, 2024 Council meeting.

The Finance Committee was set to review this debt issuance plan; however, the July 23, 2024 Finance
Committee meeting was cancelled due the Finance Department finalizing the 2023 Financial Audit and
Municipal Financial Report due on July 31, 2024.

Staff is recommending the Common Council adopt a resolution to authorize the execution of a Tax-Exempt
Lease-Purchase Agreement and related documents. Furthermore, after reviewing the proposals, staff is
recommending the Common Council award the sale to the lowest rated bank. After award of the sale, a meeting
will be set up with the Director of Finance, Director ofAdministration, City Attorney and the Lessor's team to
finalize all documents and bring forward the proper closing documents and resolutions for Council approval.



Fiscal Note

The Common Council previously awarded a Performance Contract with Johnson Controls in the amount of
$3,025,636 on July 16, 2024. Funding in the 2024 Annual Budget appropriates $896,050, resulting in a financed
amount of $2,129.586.

A sample cash flow is attached, but will be updated with each proposal. Measured total utility savings and rebates
are expected to be roughly $2.6 million over the 20-year life of the TELP.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2024 - ., a Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Tax-Exempt Lease-
Purchase Agreement and Related Documents and Award the Sale for the Johnson Controls Municipal Project.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2024---

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TAX-EXEMPT LEASE
PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS AND AWARD THE SALE FOR

THE JOHNSON CONTROLS MUNICIPAL PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (the "City") is presently
in need of approximately $2,129,586.00 for improvements and positive additions to the City's
facilities, including, but not limited to, facilities lighting, boiler replacement, installation of new
solar photovoltaic systems, water heater replacement, furnace replacement, air cooled
condensing unit replacement, City Hall interior remodel and replacement of fixtures to provide
for water conservation (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, it is desirable to borrow said funds through the issuance of a structured Tax
Exempt Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement between the City of Franklin (Lessee) and the
Tax-Exempt Leasing Corporation (Lessor) chosen by the Common Council; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that the Master Lease Purchase
Agreement and Schedules approved on July 16, 2024, are in the best interests of the Lessee for
the acquisition of such equipment; and

WHEREAS, the Director ofFinance has performed extreme due diligence in determining
the best financing option for the City and present competitive proposals of a Tax-Exempt Lease
Purchase Agreement to the Common Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, that:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Issuance of the Tax-Exempt Lease-Purchase Agreement. The City shall issue the
Agreement in the approximate amount of2,129,586.00 for the Project.

Approval and Authorization. The Common Council approves the entering into of
the Agreement and Schedule by the Lessee and hereby designates the Director of
Finance and Treasurer, Mayor, City Clerk and with review by the City Attorney,
to execute and deliver the Agreement and Schedule of the Lessee's behalf. The
Director of Finance and City Attorney will bring forth closing documents and
resolutions for proper approvals when finalized and appropriate.

Reimbursement. The Common Council hereby officially declares its intent
pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 to reimburse any expenditures
made in connection with the Project prior to the issuance of the Tax-Exempt
Lease-Purchase with the proceeds in an amount not to exceed $2,129,586.00.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024.



Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of2024.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
draft 7/11124

RESOLUT NO. 2024

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZ AIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
PERFORMANCE CONTRACT AND SCHEDULE 5 SUPPLEMENTAL TERMS &

CONDITIONS AGREEMENTS WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC. IN
FURTHERANCE OF THE MASTER ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT

PREVIOUSLY ENTERED INTO WITH JOHNSON CONTROLS, INC., TO IMPLEMENT
ENERGY EFFICIENCY, SAFETY, SECURITY AND RENEWABLE ENERGY

MEASURES ATVARIOUS CITY BUILDINGS AND INFRASTRUCTURE

WHEREAS, the Common Council previously sought to create and now is working to
continue a Comprehensive Efficiency Program to benefit the City's municipal buildings and
infrastructure and create cost-saving efficiencies and safe and secure facilities; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council adopted Resolution No. 2024-8133 on April 3,
2024, approving a Master Energy Services Agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc., to create
and commence the Program, which Agreement provides for a number of further actions and
activities to occur in the furtherance and operation of the Program, including a Performance
Contract which provides for improvements and positive additions to City facilities,
including, but not limited to, facilities lighting, boiler replacement, installation of new solar
photovoltaic systems, water heater replacement, furnace replacement, air cooled condensing
unit replacement, City Hall interior remodel, and replacement of fixtures to provide for water
conservation; and

WHEREAS, Schedule 4 Price and Payment Terms of the Performance Contract
provides for the price to be paid for the work to be performed in the total amount of
$3,070,548.00, to be paid in increments over time; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Administration and the Department of Finance and
Treasury have reviewed and conferred with City staff regarding the provision of the subject
improvements in furtherance and operation of the Program and recommend the approval of
the Performance Contract and Schedule 5 Supplemental Terms & Conditions Agreements,
with provision from the Department of Finance and Treasury that approval be contingent
upon and subject to the terms of financing determination to be undertaken and approved by
the Director of Finance and Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having reviewed the Performance Contract and
Schedule 5 Supplemental Terms & Conditions Agreements with Johnson Controls, Inc., and
having determined same to be reasonable and in the public interest.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Performance Contract and Schedule 5 Supplemental



Resolution No. 2024
Page 2

Terms & Conditions Agreements with Johnson Controls, Inc., in the form and content as
annexed hereto, subject to changes approved by the Director of Administration, Director of
Finance and Treasurer and the City Attorney, be and the same are hereby approved,
contingent upon and subject to the terms of financing determination to be undertaken and
approved by the Director of Finance and Treasurer.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, City Clerk and Director of Finance
and Treasurer be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver such agreements.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that funding for the provision of the services and
products agreements hereunder shall be administered by the Director of Finance and
Treasurer.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2024.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:
John R. Nelson, Mayor

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

AYESNOES_ABSENT



Schedule 4

PRICE AND PAYMENT TERMS

Customer shall make payments to JCI pursuant to this Schedule 4

Work The pnce to be paid by Customer for the Work shall be $ 3,025,636 Payments (including
payment for materials delivered to JCI and work performed on and off-site) shall be made to JCI as
follows

First payment due
Second payment due

Third payment due
Fourth payment due

Fifth payment due
Final payment due

$1,512,818
$302,564
$302,564
$302,564
$302,564
$302,562

8/30/24
9/30/24

10/30/24
11/30/24
12/30/24
2/30/25

2 M&V Serv,ces The total pnce for JCl's M&V Services, as detailed on Schedule 2 of this Agreement, Is
$44,912 Ths amount will be paid to JCI 1n annual installments per the schedule below These
payments will be due and payable when Customer recewves JCl's mnvotce and mn advance of the
services JCI 1s to provide, and shall be made throughout the 3 year Guarantee Term The total price for
JCl's M&V Services Is not included m the Work pnce above

Annual amount due Year 1 $14,530 Due Date 3/1/2025
Annual amount due Year 2 $14,966 Due Date 3/1/2026
Annual amount due Year 3 $15,416 Due Date 3/1/2027

Frst payment due Upon project Substantial Completion

Performance Conlract [Rev 15] 04/08
Johnson Contro ls Inc - Propnetary
e 2008 Johnson Controls Inc

53



"BANK OF AMERICA<

Tax-Exempt Lease/Purchase Financing Proposal For:
City of Franklin, WI
August 15, 2024

Bank of America has committed to deploying
and mobilizing $1 trillion by 2030 in our
Environmental Business Initiative in order to
accelerate the transition to a low-carbon,
sustainable economy. Through lending,
investing, capital raising, advisory services and
developing financing solutions for clients
around the world, the bank has deployed more
than $200 billion since 2007 in support of
environmental business efforts across the
globe.



BANK OF AMERICA"-
l rd; t

t Ve[re fey

TRANSMITTAL VIA EMAIL

MA5 7 8 1
163 edera Stree boston MI 02.10

61/434 /10 Ml 2.0)z66
holy 3nd zz c A.or

Attn·

Date:

Mr. Steve Goldberg
Lead Financial Associate
Johnson Controls Capital

August 15, 2024

Re: Tax-Exempt Lease-Purchase Agreement for the City of Franklin, WI
("CITY")

Thank you for the opportunity to present to you the attached terms and cond1tIons for the
financing of the above private placement transaction for the City of Franklin, WI ("City", or
"Lessee"). Banc of America Public Capital ("BAPCC" or "Lessor'') looks forward to the opportunity
to provide our tax-exempt equipment lease financing services for this important energy efficiency
project.

BAPCC offers unique financing features and qualifications that can be leveraged on behalf
of CITY to complete this transaction at a low interest cost and mn a smooth and efficient manner.
These features and qualifications include:

1. TAX-EXEMPT PRIVATE PLACEMENT EXPERIENCE: We are a leading provider
of private placement capital to the state government, municipal local government,
K-12, housing authority, and higher education tax-exempt markets. Our team is
highly experienced in documenting and closing tax-exempt lease purchase
transactions;

2 ENERGY EFFICIENCY FINANCING EXPERIENCE: The Energy Services group Is
a leading provider of financial solutions for energy efficiency, renewable energy,
water system, and energy generation equipment and assets;

3. PRIVATE PLACEMENT: The proposed transaction is a private placement that will
not require (i) any additional public ongoing disclosure requirements, (ii) any
additional public offering document generation requirements, or (iii) any
underwriting or related fees

This cover letter and term sheet include only a brief description of the principal terms of the
proposed transaction. Please understand that this proposal is not a commitment or offer to lend,
and does not create any obligation for Lessor or BAPCC Lessor and BAPCC will not be
responsible or llable for any damages, consequential or otherwise, that may be incurred or alleged
by any person or entity, including Lessee, as a result of this letter. Lessor will notify you in writing
of its decision if Lessor agrees to proceed with the proposed transaction after completing its review
and analysis.



Please feel free to contact me at 617.434.7760 to discuss the proposed transaction, or to
accept this proposal, please sign the enclosed copy of this letter within ten (10) business days
and return 1t to Banc of America Public Capital Corp. Attention: Holly Andreozzi at
holly.andreozz1@bofa.com.

I look forward to the opportunity to work with you on the proposed transaction for the City

Very truly yours,

Global Leasing Energy Services

By: Holly Andreozzi
Senior Vice President

The undersigned, by its authorized representative below, accepts the above proposal, agrees to
furnish Lessor, its successors and assigns, any information relating to the business or financial
condition of borrower or its affiliates, and authorizes Lessor, Bank of America and their affiliates to
disclose to, discuss with and distribute such information (and any information they may already
have) to any other affiliates or proposed assignees or successors of Lessor.

City of Franklin, WI

By: _

Title.

Date

Tax ID: _

"Bank of Amenca" 1s the marketing name used by certain Global Bankmg and Global Markets busmesses of Bank of America
Corporation Lending, leasmng, equipment finance and other commercial banking actrvates, and trading in certamn financ1al
mstruments are perfo1med globally by bankmg affiliates of Bank of Amenca Corporation, mcludmg Bank of Amenca, N.A., Member
FDIC Banc of Amenca Public Cap1tal Corp, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of America, National Assoc1at1on, 1s not a mun1c1pal
advisor and 1s not subject to the fiduciary duty established in Sect1on 15B(c)I) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
wIth respect to any mun1cmpal financial product or Issuance of municipal securities. The 1format1on provided m ths document Is not
mtended to be and should not be construed as "advice" wIthn the meanmng of Sect1on 15B of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and
the muntcmpal advisor rules of the SEC 2024 Bank of America Corporation All rghts reserved



BANK OF AMERICA <
SUMMARY OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. Lessee. Lessor and Project Information - Introduction

Lessee: City of Franklin, WI (the "City")

Lessor: Banc of America Public Capital Corp or its affiliate or designee

Lessor Background: Our Energy Services team has extensive experience in funding tax
exempt equipment lease transactions for energy efficiency projects that
benefit governmental entities, K-12, and public higher education
institutions throughout the country.

Commitment to energy efficiency and the environment" Bank of America
is a proud supporter of energy efficiency and initiatives that have a
positive impact on the environment.

Financial profile and strength. As mentioned, Bank of America is one of
the nation's largest financial holding companies. Our annual report can
be found on the following internet link:

http://investor.bankofamerica com/phoenix zhtml?c=71595&p=Irol
reportsannual

II. Lease Structure, Project Description

Purpose:

Structure:

Security:

The purpose of this transaction is to provide financing for the acquisition,
construction and installation of energy conservation equipment
(collectively, the "Equipment") by Johnson Controls ("Vendor") under an
energy performance contract with the City.

This transaction will be structured as a tax-exempt equipment lease
purchase agreement ("Lease/Purchase") between Lessee and Lessor.
Repayments under the Lease/Purchase shall be absolute and
unconditional, subject only to annual appropriation of funds by the
Lessee's governing body and in accordance with the laws of the State of
Wisconsin. The lease will be a net financial lease, and all expenses,
including but not limited to insurance, maintenance, and taxes, will be for
the account of Lessee.

Upon acceptance of the Equipment, title to the Equipment shall be vested
in Lessee The Lessorwill obtain, a first priority perfected security interest
in the Equipment under the Lease Purchase that shall be evidenced by
the filing of UCC financing statements and fixture filings At maturity of the
Lease/Purchase, upon payment of all outstanding amounts under the
Lease/Purchase, Lessor's security interest in the Equipment shall be
released and Lessee shall retain the Equipment. Lessee shall be required
to maintain the Equipment free and clear of other lens, to Insure the
Equipment (public liability and property damage insurance), to promptly
repair or replace any damaged or destroyed Equipment and to pay any
applicable taxes.



Proceeds:
]Estimated Project Cost

Ill. Funding. Interest Rate, Closing

1 $2,129,586

Funding:

Anticipated
Escrow Agent:

Closing Date:

Indicative
Interest Rate:

Closing Costs:

Lessor's Counsel:

Proceeds from the Lease will be deposited into an Escrow fund account
("Escrow Fund") acceptable to Lessor. Lessee wll be required to direct
investments in the Escrow Fund and any interest earned will be for the
benefit of Lessee. Disbursements will be made from the Escrow Fund to
pay for project costs upon delivery by Lessee of a disbursement request
subject to compliance by Lessee with all applicable regulations under the
Internal Revenue Code, including but not limited to arbitrage reporting.

BOKF or other mutually acceptable bank

TBD

3.97%

If this proposal is signed and returned to Lender within ten (10)
business days:

The Tax-Exempt Interest Rate is locked until September 30, 2024 and
will be locked so long as the transaction is funded on or before such
date lf closing of the transaction occurs after such rate lock expiration,
the respective Interest Rate for the transaction is subject to repricing at
the discretion of Lessor seven (7) business days prior to the scheduled
closing date.

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE PRICING AND RATE ABOVE ARE BASED
ON THE AVERAGE LIFE OF THE ATTACHED DRAFT AMORTIZATION
SCHEDULES. TO THE EXTEXT THAT THE AVERAGE LIFE OF THE
FINAL SELECTED AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE CHANGES FROM THE
ATTACHED, THE RESPECTIVE RATE ABOVE IS SUBJECT TO
MODIFCATION BY LENDER TO ACCOUNT FOR ANY LENGTHENING
OF THE AVERAGE LIFE OF THE FINAL SCHEDULE.

Lesseewill be responsible for its own closing costs, including its own legal
costs for provided any legal opinions for the transaction Lessee may
Include legal and financing costs in the transaction amount.

Lessee will need to obtain a validity opinion from counsel

Lessor will responsible for Lessor's outside attorney fees, if any.

IV. Repayment. Prepayment and Other Terms

Payments:

Prepayment:

Lessee shall make rental payments per the attached amortization
schedule.

Beginning in year 3, on any periodic rental payment date and following 30
days advance written notice, Lessee shall have the option to prepay its



Documentation:

Payment and
Performance
Bonds:

Bank Qualification:

Opinion of
Counsel:

Tax Exempt
Lease/Purchase:

obligations (in whole and NOT in part) under the Lease/Purchase upon
payment of the then-applicable Purchase Price, which will be calculated
as 103% of the outstanding principal balance.

Lessor will use its standard form of lease documentation; such terms and
conditions in Lessor's lease documentation.

Lessee shall secure from Vendor directly employed by Lessee in
connection with the acquisition, construction, installation, improvement or
equipping of the Equipment, a payment and performance bond ("Surety
Bond") executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the
State, having a financial strength rating by A.M. Best Company of "A-" or
better, and otherwise satisfactory to Lessor and naming Lessor as a co
obligee in a sum equal to the entire amount to become payable under the
Vendor Agreement

This transaction will NOT be considered Bank-Qualified.

Counsel to Lessee shall deliver an opinion to Lessor at closing in form and
substance satisfactory to Lessor. The opinion of counsel will provide,
among other matters:

(a) counsel has examined, approved and attached the text of the
enabling resolution of Lessee's governing body authorizing Lessee
to enter into the Lease/Purchase, and

(b) the Lease/Purchase has been duly executed by Lessee and Is a
valid, binding and enforceable obligation against Lessee.

The rental payments have been calculated on the followmng assumptions
and representations by Lessee that Lessee·

1. is a state or political subdivision of a state within the meaning of
Section 103(c) of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code") and duly
created and validly existing under the laws of the State of
Wisconsin;

4. is authorized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin to enter into
the Lease/Purchase and the transactions contemplated thereby
and to perform all of Lessee's obligations thereunder; and

5. has duly authorized the execution and delivery of the
Lease/Purchase under the terms of a resolution of its governing
body or by other appropriate official approval, and all requirements
and procedures have been satisfied in order to ensure the
enforceability of the Lease/Purchase, and Lessee has complied
with all applicable public bidding requirements; and

Lessee shall provide Lessor with such evidence as Lessor may request to
substantiate and maintain such tax status, and shall make such further



Final Approval:

Assignment:

Proposal Expiration
Date:

Market
Disruption:

USA Patriot Act
Compliance:

representations and certifications as are customary in tax exempt
transactions.

This proposal and the terms set forth herein are an indication of interest In
the transaction, and are not and should not be construed as a commitment
nor obligation of Lessor or its affiliates to provide any financing. The
proposed transaction and the terms set forth herein are subject to all
credit, risk, documentation and legal approvals of Lessor as well as
execution and delivery of documentation acceptable to all parties. All
disbursements are subject to no material adverse change in the financial
condition of Lessee from the time of approval.

Lessor shall be entitled to assign its right, title and interest in the Lease
and leased equipment on a private placement basis to qualified
purchasers. In addition, Lessor shall be entitled to assign its right, title
and interest mn the Lease/Purchase to a trustee for the purpose of Issumg
certificates of participation or other forms of certificates evidencing an
undivided interest in such Lease, provided such certificates are sold only
on a private placement basis (and not pursuant to any "public offering") to
a purchaser(s) who represent that (I) such purchaser has sufficient
knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to be able to
evaluate the risks and merits of the investment (1i) such purchaser
understands neither the Lease or certificates will be registered under the
Securities Act of 1933, (iii) such purchaser is either an "accredited
investor" within the meaning of Regulation D under the Securities Act of
1933, or a qualified institutional buyer within the meaning of Rule 144A,
and (iv) that 1t is the intention of such purchaser to acquire such certificates
(A) for investment for its own account or (B) for resale mn a transaction
exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933.At any time,
Lessor may sell, assign or encumber all or any part of its right title and
interest in the Lease/Purchase, however, In no event shall the Lessor
assign this agreement as a public offer of participation. Lessee consents
to a private placement transaction within the meaning of applicable federal
securities laws

This proposal must be accepted within ten (10) business days to be valid.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING CONTAINED HEREIN TO THE
CONTRARY, IN THE EVENT ANY MATERIAL CHANGE SHALL OCCUR
IN THE FINANCIAL MARKETS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS PROPOSAL
LETTER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY GOVERNMENTAL
ACTION OR OTHER EVENT WHICH MATERIALLY ADVERSELY
AFFECTS THE EXTENSION OF CREDIT BY BANKS, LEASING
COMPANIES OR OTHER LENDING INSTITUTIONS, LESSOR MAY
MODIFY THE INDEX PRICING DESCRIBED ABOVE.

The Lessee acknowledges that pursuant to the requirements of the USA Patriot
Act (Title Ill of Pub. L. 107-56 (signed into law October 26, 2001)) (the "Patrot
Act"), the Lessor is required to obtain, verify and record information that
identifies the Lessee, which information includes the name and address of the
Lessee and other information that will allow the Lessor to identify the Lessee in
accordance with the Patrot Act.



Standard Disclosures and Disclaimers

The transaction described in this document Is an arm's length, commercial transaction between
you and Banc of America Public Capital Corp ("BAPCC") in which: () BAPCC is acting solely as a
prmc1pal (1.e., as Lender) and for its own interest, (ii} BAPCC is not acting as a municipal advisor or
financial advisor to you, (111) BAPCC has no fiduciary duty pursuant to Section 15B of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 to you with respect to this transaction and the discussions, undertakings and
procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether BAPCC or any of its affiliates has provided other
services or Is currently providing other services to you on other matters); (v) the only obligations
BAPCC has to you with respect to this transaction are set forth in the definitive transaction
agreements between us; and (v) BAPCC Is not recommending that you take an action with respect to
the transaction described in this document, and before taking any action with respect to the this
transaction, you should discuss the information contained herein with your own legal, accounting, tax,
financial and other advisors, as you deem appropriate. If you would hke a municipal advisor in this
transaction that has legal fiduciary duties to you, you are free to engage a municipal advisor to serve in
that capacity

This proposal s submitted in response to your Request for Proposal. The contents of this proposal
and any subsequent discussions between us, including any and all information, recommendations,
opinions indicative pricing, quotations and analysis with respect to any municipal financial product or
issuance of municipal securities, are provided to you in reliance upon the exemption provided for
responses to requests for proposals or qualifications under the municipal advisor rules (the "Rules") of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (240 CFR 15Ba1-1 et seq.)

The Staff of the SEC's Office of Municipal Securities has issued guidance which provides that, m order
for a request for proposals to be consistent with this exemption, It must (a) identify a particular objective,
(b) be open for not more than a reasonable penod of time (up to six months being generally considered
as reasonable), and (c) involve a competitive process (such as by being provided to at least three
reasonably competItIve market participants) or by being publicly posted to your official website. In
submitting thus proposal, we have relied upon your compliance with this guidance.

In submitting this proposal, we are not undertaking to act as a "municipal advisor" to you or any other
person within the meaning of the Rules. In connection with this proposal and the transactions described
herein, we are not subject to, and we hereby disclaim, any fiduciary duty to you or to any other person.
We understand that you will consult with and rely on the advice of your own municipal, financial, tax,
legal and other advisors as and to the extent you deem necessary in connection with your evaluation of
this proposal and the transactions described herein.



Sample Amortization

Lease Proceeds 2,129,586.00

Interest Rate 3.970%
Closing/Funding Date (est.) 8/30/24

Average Life 10.741

Pmt. Year Payment Funding Payment Interest Principal Outstanding
No. No. Date Amount Amount Portion Portion Balance

0 8/30/2024 2,129,586 00 2,129,586 00
1 1 2/1/2025 140,581.00 35,461.75 105,119 25 2,024,466 75
2 2 2/1/2026 114,233 00 80,371 33 33,861 67 1,990,605 08
3 3 2/1/2027 285,162 00 79,027 02 206,134 98 1,784,470 10
4 4 2/1/2028 137,107 00 70,843 46 66,263 54 1,718,206 56
5 5 2/1/2029 129,132.00 68,212 80 60,919.20 1,657,287 36
6 6 2/1/2030 133,005 00 65,794 31 67,210 69 1,590,076 67
7 7 2/1/2031 137,032 00 63,126 04 73,905 96 1,516,170 71
8 8 2/1/2032 141,220.00 60,191 98 81,028 02 1,435,142 69
9 9 2/1/2033 145,577.00 56,975 16 88,601 84 1,346,540 85
10 10 2/1/2034 150,107 00 53,457 67 96,649 33 1,249,891.52
11 11 2/1/2035 154,819 00 49,620 69 105,198 31 1,144,693 21
12 12 2/1/2036 159,72100 45,444 32 114,276 68 1,030,416 53
13 13 2/1/2037 164,820 00 40,907 54 123,912 46 906,504 07
14 14 2/1/2038 170,124 00 35,988 21 134,135 79 772,368 28
15 15 2/1/2039 153,580 00 30,663 02 122,916 98 649,451 30
16 16 2/1/2040 158,437 00 25,783 22 132,653 78 516,797 52
17 17 2/1/2041 163,492 00 20,516 86 142,975 14 373,822 38
18 18 2/1/2042 168,750 00 14,840 75 153,909 25 219,913 13
19 19 2/1/2043 174,223 00 8,730 55 165,492 45 54,420 68
20 20 2/1/2044 56,581.18 2,160 50 54,420 68

2,129,586.00 3,037,703.18 908,117.18 2,129,586.00



Sample Cash Flow*

Measured Utility Operational Capital Available for
Year Savings Uti lity Savings Savings Contribution Rebates Program Savings M&V Cost Debt Service Debt Service Net Savings

o
1 59,338 12 782 23,350 30,000 29,641 155111 14530 140 581 140,581 00
2 61 613 13 302 24,284 30,000 129199 14,966 114,233 114,233.00
3 63 976 13,844 25 256 30000 167,501 300 577 15,415 285162 285 162 00
4 66,433 14,408 26,266 30,000 137107 137 107 137 107 00
5 68985 14997 15,150 30000 129 132 129 132 129,132 00
6 71 638 15,611 15,756 30,000 133,005 133,005 133,005.00
7 74 396 16,250 16 386 30000 137,032 137 032 137 032 00
8 77 262 16,917 17041 30,000 141 220 141,220 14122000
9 80241 17,613 17723 30,000 145,577 145,577 145,577 00

10 83 338 18,337 18,432 30000 150 107 150107 150,107.00
11 86 557 19,093 19 169 30,000 154,819 154 819 154 819 00
12 89904 19,881 19 936 30,000 159721 159 721 159,721 00
13 93,383 20703 20,734 30,000 164,820 164,820 164,820.00
14 97000 21561 21583 30,000 170124 170124 170,124.00
15 100 761 22,455 364 30000 153,580 153,580 153,580.00
16 104 672 23,387 378 30,000 158,437 158,437 158,437.00
17 108 738 24360 394 30000 163,492 163,492 163,492.00
18 112 966 25,375 409 30000 168 750 168 750 168,750.00
19 117 363 26,434 426 30,000 174,223 174,223 174,223.00
20 121 936 27,539 30,000 179,475 179,475 56,581 18 122 893 82

1740500 384,849 283017 600000 197142 3 205,508 44911 3160,597 3 037 703 122,894

*Uses savings from RFP



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Financing Proposal Letter

4k?by Huntington
July 31, 2024

Mr. Steve Goldberg
Johnson Controls, Inc.
507 East Michigan Street
Milwaukee, WI 53201
steve.1.goldberg@jci.com

Subject: TELP Financing Proposal

Dear Mr. Goldberg,

In response to your Request for Proposal (RFP) dated July 17, 2024, I am pleased to present this
proposal subject to the terms and conditions set forth below.

LENDER INFORMATION

Lender Name: The Huntington National Bank
Address: 525 Vine Street

14h Floor
Cincinnati, OH 45202

Contact: Thomas Rath
Telephone: (404) 445-8935

Email: thomas.rath@huntington.com

FINANCING STRUCTURE

Contract:

Borrower:

Lender:

Vendor:

Purpose:

Energy Performance
Contract:

Tax-Exempt Lease PurchaseAgreement (the "Lease")

City of Franklin, Wisconsin (the "City")

Huntington Public Capital Corporation ("Huntington")

Johnson Controls (the "Contractor")

To finance equipment (the "Equipment") for energy-efficiency and water
conservation improvements designed and installed in City-owned
facilities by Contractor under an Energy Performance Contract with the
City.

Contractor and the City shall enter into an Energy Performance Contract
(the "Project Agreement"), pursuant to which Contractor shall, among
other things, (1) guarantee to the City the completion of the Project at a
maximum cost by the date specified in the Project Agreement, (2)
provide to the City the measurement & verification and other services
specified in the Project Agreement, (3) guarantee to the City the
achievement of a minimum amount of energy and/or operational savings
each year during the term of the Project Agreement, and (4) agree to
make payments to the City to the extent actual, realized savings



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Financing Proposal Letter

Project:

Project Ownership:

Security:

Lease Commencement
Date:

OPTION #1

Financed Amount:

Term.

Payments:

Final Maturity Date:

Fixed Interest Rate

OPTION #2

Financed Amount:

Term:

Payments:

Final Maturity Date:

Fixed Interest Rate:

Pre-payment Option:

July 31, 2024
Page 2

calculated on an annual basis are less than guaranteed by Contractor in
the Project Agreement.

Contractor shall implement the Energy Conservation Measures ("ECMs")
as Identified mn the RFP, located at various City-owned facilities (the
"Project").

Title to the Project will vest immediately with the City, and the City shall
remain the owner of the Project during the Lease Term.

The Lease shall be payable from legally available funds of the City
Pursuant to the documentation of the Lease, title shall vest with the City
and the City shall grant Huntington a continuing, first-priority security
interest in all the Equipment.

On or before September 1, 2024. The Financed Amount will be
deposited with the Escrow Agent on the Lease Commencement Date for
the benefit of the City. Disbursements wll be made by the Escrow Agent
at the direction of the Crty wth approval from Huntington.

$2,087,086.00

Twenty (20) years

Twenty (20) annual principal and interest payments that will commence
on February 1, 2025. Please see Attachment A for the estimated debt
schedule.

On or about February 1, 2044

4.53% (Non-Bank Qualified)

$2,153,586.00

Twenty-one (21) years

Twenty-one (21) annual principal and interest payments that will
commence on February 1, 2025. Please see Attachment A for the
estimated debt schedule.

On or about February 1, 2045

4.57% (Non-Bank Qualified)

Estimated prepayment schedule is provided in Attachment A. With 30
days prior written notice, the Lease may be pre-paid mn whole or in part,
on any payment date, as follows.

On or before February 1, 2039 - 102% of the outstanding
balance, plus accrued interest.

On or after February 1, 2040 - 100% of the outstanding
balance, plus accrued interest.



City of Franklin, Wisconsin July 31, 2024
Financing Proposal Letter Page 3

Rate Lock Expiration Date: The rate lock for the Fixed Interest Rate will expire on September 28,
2024 If the Lease Commencement Date occurs after the Rate Lock
Expiration Date, the Final Interest Rate will be set (10) days prior to the
Lease Commencement Date in accordance with the following formula:

(10-year SOFR swap rate+ 2.20%) x 79%

https·//www.the1ce.com/marketdata/reports/180

Origination Fees:

Additional Transaction
Fees:

Escrow Agent:

Escrow Account Fee:

Escrow Investment Interest:

Documentation:

Tax Opinion:

Payment and Performance
Bonds:

Warranties:

Maintenance, Taxes
and Insurance:

Subject to Final
Credit Approval:

None

Any additional transaction fees, including those of Contractor, a
municipal advisor or legal/bond counsel to the City, shall be the
responsibility of the City.

The Huntington National Bank

None

During the construction period, the undrawn balance in the Escrow
Account may be Invested in interest bearing financial securities In
accordance with the Contractor's draw schedule. When Project
construction Is completed and the Escrow Account Is closed, Escrow
Investment Returns will be applied toward City's outstanding principal
balance

Documents shall be prepared by in-house counsel for Huntington and
will contamn customary representations and warranties for transactions
similar in amount and type.

Huntington will require the City to obtamn a tax opinion letter from bond
counsel.

Contractor shall provide payment and performance bonds in connection
with the Project from a surety company with an A.M. Best rating of at
least "A". Huntington shall be named as dual obligee on each policy.

Huntington will make no warranties expressed or implied. The City's sole
warranty rights are any provided by Contractor and/or the manufacturers
of the Equipment

All maintenance, taxes, and insurance in connection with the Project and
the Lease are the responsibility of the City. The City shall bear all risk of
loss or damage to the Project and shall be responsible for keeping the
Project insured with companies satisfactory to and for such amounts as
required by Huntington. Huntington and its affiliates, successors and
assigns must be named as loss payee and additional insured as
applicable on all insurance policies Evidence of such insurance must be
satisfactory to Huntington.

The terms set forth herein reflect a proposed, preliminary structure and
are subject to final credit approval by Huntington and the negotiation of



City of Franklin, Wisconsin
Financing Proposal Letter

Assignment:

Private Placement:

Expiration:

July 31, 2024
Page 4

mutually acceptable documentation. The City has already been pre
screened by Huntington and there are no perceived issues with a formal
credit approval for this proposed financing. There is no additional
information required at this time. Final credit approval Is expected within
ten business days of proposal acceptance.

Huntington may assign its rights to receive payments, but each
assignment must specifically mention the City's rights regarding
prepayment

Huntington shall represent that it is a Qualified lnst1tut1onal Buyer or an
Accredited Investor and shall fund the Lease on a private-placement
basts.

These terms shall expire at Huntington's option if (a) Huntington has not
received the City's acceptance by August 14, 2024, and (b) 1f closing on
the Lease does not occur on or before October 1, 2024.

Thank you for the opportunity to offer a proposal on this request I appreciate your cons1derat1on and look
forward to your favorable response. Should you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do
not hesitate to contact me.

Respectfully submitted,

Thomas J. Rath
The Huntington National Bank
Vice President - Energy Finance

ACCEPTED BY:
City of Franklin, WI

Signature

Name

Title

Date

Huntington Public Capital ("HPC"). a division of The Huntington National Bank (the "Bank"), is providing the information contained in ths document ta
dis/ssxn purposes only in connection rth an arm's-length transaction under dscussio between you and HPC {f you are a municpal entity' or
'obligated per.son'within the meaning of the muniopal advisorres (the "Rules') of the Secrties and Echange Comission Rule 15a1-t et seq this
information is provided to you pursuant to and in mlianoe upon the bank exemption "and/orotherexemptions and/or the "general information' exclusion
provided underthe Rules HPC isacting for ts own interest andhas financial and otherinterests that differ from yours HPC is not acing as a municipa
advisor or financial adv«sor, and has no fiduciary duty to you or any otherperson pursuant to the Rules The information provided m this document is not
intended to be and should not be constrved as advice" within the meaning of the Rules HPC rs not recommen:Jing that yoo take or refrain from taking
any action wrth reseat to the informatn contained mn thisdocument Before actng on this formation you shoulddsuss it with yourown financwl and/or
municipal legal, scouting tax and otheradvisors as you deem appropriate As used in this notice the "Rules' means Section 15 of the Securities
Exchange Ad of 1934 the Securities and Exchange Commission's Rule 15Ba1-1, et seq and any related municipal advisormies of the Munrcipa
Securities Ruemaking Board all as they may beamended from tme to time



N
o1i

.... ~ ltl 1!l - g2 g g co ~ i'ii !;:: "' 3 g 1:2 co LO

~
2 e "' o o "1 '' co $ a> lo ~

LO - g s gj co co .... 0 ;:I; G 8 <D co
3 ... <D "' LO 3 LO LO LO·] o > U!. n "'- "l. "I. "l. o OC!. o .... "l. .... "I.

<D LO a> .. 12 5 "' LO ;: .... LO "' a> <D ;: 3 Sl ¥ ..e ~ .. .... cq_ "' LO .... .... eg "' 0 !;::- 0 OC!. .... .... <D "'- .... "l "I. o. a> .... ...
Q.

N N N - - - - - - - -... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
.... "' "' ta :1i g 2 "' ., N LO LO co 0 tee

11 '
.... ¥ "l "! 2 .... oq oq e .... "l ' ' ' ' ' '.... 8 "' ., e "' 5 "' LO ~ ,! a> "' ;:i;;: <D ~ .... LO ~ <D LO..,_ 7 a> U!. U!. "l. OC!. "l. o ....

i a> 0, LO .., :;; 0 0) t:::; LO "' ;;:; g !;:: :!"' "' .., .., .., y N N
Q. Q. ... "' ... "' ... ... "' .,. "' ... ... ... .. .,. ... .,. ... ... ... ... ... ...

& LO 3 .!: .. .... "' ., .... - ., .., 0, .., ., N

~
N "' ..

2 % ? 2 "' 5 3 23 .... "l. ";;i .., .... .... .., O'\ ' '(§ ! e <D "' "' 0) LO 0 g "'co !;:: g. g 3 A ., :! ,! g g ;: 0) <O "'co <O "' ~ :;} % z3 co "'an G "' 00 <D "" .; 0, "' .. N .... 0, 0

# ., <O 0 "' ill. "' <O .. 0, g 0) S; It) "' w !;j: "' !;::0 "l. "l. ... .... <O "l. ± "'· "I. 0 .. .... "'"' - - a - - - -... .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. .,. ... ... ... ... ... ... .,. ... .,. ... ... ... ... ...
It) ... i::: e ui It)

o1i ~ 9 .., :l{ It) <O "' & "" !it 0, LO "" %' "I "I 3 "I 3 .... 3 .... 3 3 3... N 0) «l ie ;;:; CX) .., ., .., "' ... CX) ID

3s g ... g $2 l!l .., % g :! 0, ... 0, LO 5
.., CX) "' CX)

N <D ... "' N .... "l. r-- N LO 0

gE ..;: ,,; r-- ;;; [;:; ... ;: 0, .... <D It) an LO :! .,; "' ,.: O> ci ,-..·
0 "' 0) LO <D .... .. 0, 0 • e 2 :! LO !;:: ..- - - - - o2a a- N... ... .,. .,. ... ... ... ... ... ... .,. ... .,. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...
LO <D "' LO a> 2 g a> LO ... LO LO ;:i; LO cl; N e "' "' e LOr-- r-- "! ., .... r-- 0 r-- .... - <D "' <D "1
"' 0 G «l 0 U) 0 y .,; «l U) 1'i <D ..; .,; .,; "' i 0 "' (0., C 0) ID <O ., "' 5 ., "' "' r-- ... N "' 5 "' 0 ... "' 0

"' 0) ., 0) "' 0 .... "I. <O <D "' "l. "' (0 r-- U!. a> r-- "'e & O> O> 00 O> ,.: "' "' a> (0 N 00 ..;: a> 1 ., .., r-- ;;:; :! r-- i-I! 0
.., ., ., .... .... ... r-- <O (0 U) II) "' ... "' "' N r--o-- . -... ... ... ... ... .,. .,. .,. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .,. "' "' ... ...
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 II) "'o 0 o o o C! 0 0 0 0 0 o o o 0 0 0 o o "1 "1
5 .,; 5 .... "' II) i ;;; .... ... ci 1'i 0 ... 0 ..: i ;;; "' ., "'te .., 0 .., 0 "' r-- 0 "' N e· .. .., a> N II) 0,g LO "I. - 0 0 "I. "' .. r-- CX) It) .... ... .... "' "' "'ci :! .,; .... O> "' .... ;! .,; ci ..;: 0) ..;: 0 .; CX) .; CX) ..;: 00 O>ea :! CX) g2 • .., .., :! ~ e e g !;:: e g g g .... !;:: eN - - -[L: "'.,. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...

LO II).... ....e <D <D

~ ~2% - -a:,;. a)
0 .,. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... "' ... ...

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
... 1: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C! o C! 0 C! C! C! o C! o C! 0

.g I ~i 3 § r-- "' .,; N ;;; r-- r-- 8 ;;; ci 3 0 r-- SI ,;; "' It) a>e g2 0 "' !;:;_ g y .. .., y !;j:_ 0
"l 2 o. "l .. .... "'· "'- ... .... .... "l '°·4a £ :! II) .... 0) "' r-- ;! 3 $ ~

0) ± ci 3 8 g .. .!: 0) 8., 2 e! 2 2 p2 !;:: g !;::

2 - "' ..,
... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .,.

1 'ii'- 'ii'- 'ii'- 'ii'- 'i! 'ii'- 'ii'- "' 'ii'- 'ii'- 'ii'- 'ii'- 'ii'- .,_ .,_ .,_ .,_ .,_ .,_ .,_ Jll.., .., .., "' .., "' "' .., .., .., .., "' "' "' "' .., .., "' "' "' ~3 3 "1 ? % ? LO 3 3 3 "1 "1 3 II) II) ¥ 2 II) "' LO... ..; ... ... ..; ..; .. .. ..;

£ 0 0 0 8 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0e <D <D <D <D <D "' <D <D <D <D ID <D <D <D <D.., "' .., .., .., "' "' "' .., "' "' "' "' "' "' "' .., "' "'

i a & t:::; co 0) :;i - i::J "' 3 LO <D r-- 15! 2 0 i N .., ::i:fd "' "' "' "' "' "' "' z ... ...
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 g ls! 0 0 0 0 g 0 0
C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:! C:!C 5 l;i l;i l;i l;i 5 l;i :,:: l;i l;i R l;i 5 ~ l;i l;i ;;j l;i ;;j ;;j l;iN

± f - "' "' ... LO <D r-- ., 0, e e e 2 :! 2 g !;:: e g 0

5 - "'u.



N "' :::i co g g N g g % ;:! l!l -'i O> e "' i:i
~

g 2 T"'. "! "l CX\ "l CX\ ... q T"' .ii "' "' ,.; "' "' O> 8 co a ~ 8 "' "' 0 8 "' "' G N
~ ... 0 "' a ... ~ co "' 5 ~ g O> "'"'· .... o 3 "'· "!. "!. s .... "'· l8 t- ~ ....
"' ::8 "' ;;; "' ... "' ;;; :.I 3 ;;; "' ... "' N ~"' g 0 "' O> "' ::: ... ;;; g T"' "'"!. O!. O!. «t ... ... U> n .... "'· "!. 0 "' "' "'..I "' "' "' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"'

"' "' "' "' "' "' "'
.,. .,. "' "' "' "' ... "' "' ... ... ... ... ... ... ...

g U> co g ,;; "' g O> 0 ... N ... co 0 co. ... "I .... "l ... "l o q "l ... "l . . . . ' .ii 0 I:::! co g ;;; i;i 3 ... Pl O> co "' l!l "' Pl00 ~ ~ co !:i. co 0q_ U!. co ... n. ... 0 "!. q_ ... ;5 0 U> "' ;:I; "' "' ;;; O> co <D < ~ g... "' "' "' "' "' N N
o,;o,;
"' ... "' ... ... "' ... "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' ... "' "' "' "' ... "' ...
g ... 0 "' ... ... "' ± ... ... co ~ 0 <D 00 "' "' N 0 g "'3 ~ $ % "I ... 3 i 2 <"! g T"' T"' g "! .... ;;j . .r <D 0 T"' T"' N oti 00 "' <D 0

8 "' "' <D 8 ;::: t;; g "' g gg "' "' ;_ "' (;; i;iIi % .... .... 0 % oo. 00 U> ¥ :"' 3 ~ ::8 ~
... ... 0 3 "' ... 3 "' U) O> ... "'"' "' 00 !,I U> 00 ~ R 00 ... "' N co "' :::....A 0 o ... U!. o .... .... O> co ..... U) ... "'"' N N T"' T"' T"' T"' T"' T"'

... "' "' "' "' "' "' "' ... .. ... ... ... ... "' ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ...
2 ..... "' g ll\ % O> ..... 0 O> g SI 3 ..... 3 O> 3 "' ~ ± 2 "'. 0 ..... <D .... CX\ ..... ..... o CX\ CX\
"' "' "' ... O> ..... ;:t; ... ..... "' 00 "' ..... "' O> % U> .,,; "'gs 00 l!l "' "' O> "' 0 & e "' lo "' "' "' ..... 3 "' 3 N U>

"' "' O> "' .... O!. oo. U!. (') <D "' (') «t "' 0

ge O> 0 i i ,..: "' O> U> -i N 0 .,; .,; .,; co rt) rt) .,; ... ,,; gO> "' O> "' ... "' "' U> ..... 00 O> O> g 0 e! g2 "' g £-"&,~ T"' T"' T"' O!.
e... "' "' "' ... "' ... "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' "' ... .... .... "' "' ...

..... "' "' "' "' ~ "' 0 ~ : 00 <D "' U> ;;; ~ co O> co co "''
co O> "' co U) .... .,, "' q ..... "' O> ... O> O> T"'... .... ,...: .,,; .,,; co ... $ .,,; O> $ "' U> ci "' "' '$, U> U> O> "'t 0 U> "' "' "' U> e "' "' 3 co O> "' ;;; "' U> "' N ;g0 co O> T"' ..... "' "' o O> .... .... 0 0 U> ..... "' .... O>e8 5 ,,; i ... ;,;; .,; .... -i ;::: ,..: ... 0 "' 0 .,; 0 ;:t; rt) i e ,..: i± O> O> co .... .... ..... U) "' co "' "' ... ... N "' e

T"'... "' "' ... .... .... "' "' "' "' .... ... .... ... "' ... ... ... .... "' "' "' "'
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 T"' 0q 0 o q q 0 0 o 0 0 q 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 T"' 2
5 i <D .... N oti .,,; .;; .... ,...: 8 .;; 0 ... ci ,...: N ;;; .., oti N O>

E "' 0 "' 0 .., .... 0 "' ~ co "' O> N ..... "' 0
___G)

"' "' T"' T"' T"' 0 0 "!. "' T"' «t ..... 00 "' .... ... .... "' ... .... U!.

£ o -f_ "' .... O> ,,; ,..: : "' 0 ;1i O> f 0 "' co ,,; co f .,; 8:'!: co .., • g2 2 :'!: "' e e ::: e "' e e ::: ::: co
T"' "' T"' T"' e T"'

0. "'
"' .... "' .... "' .... .... .... .... .... .... "' .... .... .... "' "' .... .... .... "' .... "'. . . :'!: .

' ~- ....
ts 0 0

± ......,
a-8

"' .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... .... "' .... "' "' "' .... .... "' "' .... .... ...
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 "' 0. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 q 2 q q q 0 q q q q :;J "! a-; I ;;; "' Es

..... j g "' 5 ... ..... :sl ,;; ~ & ci ... s i'o ::i O>

"' g "' .... g co ~- t.:. "'"'· "!. o 0 "!. "'· 3 ...... co. "'· .... .... "!. co
j,)! 0 :'!: .,, ... O> "' ... : "' 8 O> 3 ci "' 8 g co ;:! O> $ 8:'!: 00 g2 e 2 "' :'!: p2 ::: e e :::2 T"' "' T"'

"'... "' "' ... ... "' ... ... ... "' "' ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... "'

I 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- -,. e 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- 11'- "If!. 11'- "If!. ./ll
(;; .... ... ..... ... ..... ..... .... .... .... ; (;; ..... .... .... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... $3 2 ; u> "' "' 3 ¥ "l 3 3 2 "' "' ; ; 2 "l.f ... .f .f ... .f .f .f ... I-

1 8 0 0 0 0 8 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0
U) U> <D <D <D <D <D :g co co co co co co co co co"' (') "' "' "' "' "' "' "' .., "' "' "' .., .., .., .., "' ..,

3 .,, g ... ~ gi 0 ;;; Pl "' ;:t; "' <D ..... :6l 2 3 3 3 .., ± 3% N "' "' "' "' .., "' ...
&8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ~ 8 & & 0 0~ ~ ~ e ~ ~ ~ ~ ! ! ~ ~ ~Q 5 K ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 5 ~ ~ 5 ~ 5 R 5 ~ R R ~ 5 ~ ~

.. g
£ '6 T"' N "' ... "' U) ..... 00 O> g T"' ~ g2 :'!: ye :!? t£- g2 g 0 ;;;C: T"' "':,

u.



(C) webster
TERM SHEET

Troy Grasinger
Managing Director
Webster Bank, N.A.

310 415 1791
Email tgrasinger@websterbank com
Website. www.websteronhne com

TYPE OF FINANCING:

LESSEE:

ASSIGNEE:

AMOUNT:

TAX-EXEMPT INTEREST RATE:

FINAL MATURITY DATE:

ANTICIPATED CLOSE DATE:

INTEREST RATE LOCK:

SECURITY:

ESCROW FUNDS:

PREPAYMENT:

FEES OF LENDER:

An annually appropriated lease-purchase agreement {the
"Lease") in an amount not to exceed $2,130,000.

The City of Franklin, WI (the "City")

Webster Bank, N.A. or an affiliated entity ("Webster")

Not to exceed $2,130,000

4.645% - Fxed through Maturity Date

2/1/2044

On or around September 10, 2024.

The Interest Rate quoted above is valid for a closing on or before
September 10, 2024.

The Lease will be secured by lease payments made by the City as
well as a security interest in the financed equipment.

Lease proceeds can be funded into an escrow account ("Escrow
Fund") at Webster Bank, N.A. with disbursements made as the
equipment 1s accepted by the City. Should the Escrow account be
established at Webster there will be no fees charged for this
service.

The City shall have the right to pre-pay the Bonds in whole but
not in part on any date by paying the Purchase Prce, provided
that the City gives the Lender at least thirty (30) days prior
wrtten notice of its mntent to do so. The Purchase Prce, as a
percentage of the then-outstanding balance, shall be equal to:

Year: Percentage:
Close- 1/31/2027 No Call

2/1/2027 - 1/31/2029 103%
2/1/2029 -1/31/2031 102%
2/1/2031- 1/31/2033 101%
2/1/2033 -Maturity 100%

$3,400 required by Webster. The costs of issuance incurred by
the City, such as fees for legal counsel or escrow services if
provided by other than Webster, are payable by the City.



DOCUMENTATION:

IRS CIRCULAR 230 DISCLOSURE:

DIRECT BANK LOAN:

ADVISORY DISCLOSURE:

CREDIT APPROVAL:

PROPOSAL EXPIRATION:

Webster Confidential Term Sheet

Webster understands that documents will be prepared by
counsel to the City. It 1s assumed that these documents shall
include an opinion of legal counsel attesting to the legal, valid,
binding and enforceable nature of the Lease as well as a tax
opinion.

Webster and its affiliates do not provide tax advice. Accordingly,
any discussion of U.S. tax matters contained heremn (including any
attachments) is not written or intended to be used, and cannot
be used, in connection with the promotion, marketing or
recommendation by anyone unaffiliated with the Lender of any
of the matters addressed herein or for the purpose of avoiding
U.S. tax-related penalties.

Webster intends to classify the obligation as a privately placed
obligation. As such, the obligation will feature (but will not be
limited to) the following restrictions:

• The obligation will not be assigned a CUSIP
• The obligation will not be registered with the DTC;
• The obligation will feature transfer restrictions such that

transfer is restricted to Bank affiliates, or to Qualified
Institutional Buyers, each of which is a commercial bank
with minimum capital, etc.;

• The obligation cannot be marketed pursuant to an
offering document;

• The obligation will be issued as a single obligation mn an
authorized denomination equal to the amount of the
borrowing.

Webster is not a registered municipal advisor as defined under
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act
and its related rules and regulations. In providing this Term
Sheet, Webster is not providing any advice, advisory services, or
recommendations with respect to the structure, timing, terms,
or similar matters concerning an issuance of municipal securities.
This Term Sheet 1s a commercial, arms-length proposal that does
not create a f1duc1ary duty by Webster to the City. The City may
engage, separately and at its own cost, an advisor to review this
Term Sheet and the proposed transaction on the City's behalf.

This Term Sheet is subject to formal credit approval by Webster
and the negotiation of mutually acceptable documentation.

Unless accepted by the City or extended in writing by Webster at
its sole d1scret1on, this Term Sheet shall expire on August 7,2024.
Once accepted by the City, this Term Sheet shall expire if the
Lease 1s not funded by September 10, 2024.

2[Page



Upon receipt of the signed Term Sheet, we will endeavor to provide you with a timely commitment and
we will use good faith efforts to negotiate and finance the Lease based on the terms herein. It is a pleasure
to offer this financing proposal to the City, and we look forward to your favorable review.

Respectfully,

Troy Grasinger
Managing Director
tgrasinger@websterbank.com

Agreed to and Accepted by:
The City of Franklin, WI

___________________(Name)

___________________(Title)

___________________ (Date)

Webster Confidential Term Sheet 3[Page



Sample Amortization

Sample Amortization - Franklin, WI
Date Payment Interest Principal Balance

9/10/2024 2,130,000.00
2/1/2025 152,032.78 39,032.78 113,000.00 2,017,000.00
2/1/2026 128,710.23 95,710.23 33,000.00 1,984,000.00
2/1/2027 300,144.32 94,144.32 206,000.00 1,778,000.00
2/1/2028 136,369.25 84,369.25 52,000.00 1,726,000.00
2/1/2029 128,901.76 81,901.76 47,000.00 1,679,000.00
2/1/2030 132,971.53 79,671.53 53,300.00 1,625,700.00
2/1/2031 136,642.35 77,142.35 59,500.00 1,566,200.00
2/1/2032 141,118.97 74,318.97 66,800.00 1,499,400.00
2/1/2033 145,149.19 71,149.19 74,000.00 1,425,400.00
2/1/2034 149,637.76 67,637.76 82,000.00 1,343,400.00
2/1/2035 154,246.71 63,746.71 90,500.00 1,252,900.00
2/1/2036 158,952.33 59,452.33 99,500.00 1,153,400.00
2/1/2037 163,830.87 54,730.87 109,100.00 1,044,300.00
2/1/2038 169,553.89 49,553.89 120,000.00 924,300.00
2/1/2039 152,859.67 43,859.67 109,000.00 815,300.00
2/1/2040 158,187.43 38,687.43 119,500.00 695,800.00
2/1/2041 163,016.94 33,016.94 130,000.00 565,800.00
2/1/2042 167,848.21 26,848.21 141,000.00 424,800.00
2/1/2043 173,657.51 20,157.51 153,500.00 271,300.00
2/1/2044 284,173.67 12,873.67 271,300.00 0.00
Total 3,298,005.37 1,168,005.37 2,130,000.00

Webster Confidential Term Sheet 4[Page



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AUTHORIZE CERTAIN CITY OFFICIALS TO
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENTWITH ADP FOR

CARRIER CONNECTIONS SERVICE

MEETING DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM NUMBER

9.10.
Analysis
Staff seek authorization for City officials to enter into an agreement with ADP to implement the Carrier
Connections service. This service enables secure transmission of new enrollments, terminations, and other
benefits-related changes directly from our ADP system to our insurance carriers. ADP will collaborate
closely with the City and our carriers to configure, test, and validate these connections, ensuring seamless
integration.

ADP Carrier Connections enhances employee benefits management by automating data transmission
between the City and its insurance carriers. This service streamlines benefits administration and supports
compliance with state and federal mandates, such as ACA reporting and state-mandated retirement plans.

ADP Carrier Connections can significantly reduce the City's liability by automating and streamlining
benefits administration. The service enhances accuracy, minimizes the risk of overbilling, reduces
administrative burden, and ensures secure data handling. Collectively, these benefits contribute to greater
efficiency, compliance, and cost-effectiveness in managing the City's benefits programs.

Key Benefits of ADP Carrier Connections:

• Automation of Benefits Enrollment: This process automates sending new enrollments, terminations,
and other changes directly to insurance carriers, reducing manual tasks and the potential for errors.

• Improved Accuracy: Ensures accurate election and dependent information, which helps avoid
overcharges and reduces the likelihood of costly duplication and errors.

• Time Savings: Automating the process significantly reduces the time spent submitting benefits data to
carriers.

• Cost Reduction: Minimizes unnecessary benefit premium payments by avoiding errors, missteps, and
oversights.

Implementing ADP Carrier Connections aligns with the City's strategic goals of enhancing operational
efficiency and managing costs. By reducing the administrative burden on our HR department and minimizing
errors, the service allows for more effective resource allocation and supports the City's broader strategic
initiatives.

Fiscal Impact
The ADP Carrier Connections service is a capital outlay fund (Fund 41) request from the Department of
Administration and Human Resources. The attached proposal includes a potential savings of $1,725
annually, contingent upon Council approval before the end of August.



Conclusion
Adopting ADP Carrier Connections represents a significant step in modernizing and optimizing the City's
benefits administration processes. By authorizing this agreement, the Council will enable the City to enhance
efficiency, reduce costs, and ensure the highest standards of accuracy and compliance in managing employee
benefits.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to authorize certain City officials to enter into an agreement with ADP for Carrier Connections.

DOA-KH



The mlor111,1tion contained in this proposal lS confidential and proprietary, and .shoulrl 11ot he shared with individuals outside of your
C,)1npar1~•. The r\DP logo :md ADP are registered tradema,ks uf ADP. Inc. ADP Workfor,e Now is a s e r v i c e rm,rk of /\DP. Inc. J\!I othi?r

t r a d e m a r k s and s e r v i c e marks a r e the property of ther r e s p e c t i v e owners ) 20?0 A D P , l . All rights reserved.



Investment Summary
Quote Number 02-2024-391171 2

Company Information

City Of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, WI 53132-9630
United States

Executive Contact
Kelly Hersh
Director of Administration
khersh franklinwi.aov
414 427-7504

250
Total

Employees

$3 750.00
Implementation

Costs

$6 900.00
Total Annual
Investment

II
($1,725.00)

Total Annual Savings during
promotional period; See Terms

ADP Sales Associate

Kyle Schaefer
UMDM
kyle.schaefer@adp.com
2623880899

Expiration
8/30/2024

** The Implementation Costs and Total Annual Investment listed out on this Investment Summary are estimates based on
the services, frequencies, recurrina rates and pay counts outlined on the sales order and are shown for illustrative purposes
only. These numbers are not bindina amounts and shall not become incorporated into or made a part of any sales order or
services agreement governing the services contemplated therein.



Sales Order
Quote Number 02-2024-3911712

Company Information

City Of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Rd
Franklin, W1 53132-9630
United States

Recurring Fees and Considerations
Number of Employees: 250 on City Of Franklin, Company Code XDD

Executive Contact

Kelly Hersh
Director of Administration
khersh ov
414 4 

[T cawwiseso
Workforce Now HCM Solutions
• Onboarding
• Health & Welfare Carrier Connections

Count

250

Min Base Rate

$2.30

Monthly

$575.00

Annual

$6,900.00

@)"oaAnnuat1vestment

Workforce Now Services

t} other Considerations
ardware and other Fees
• Standard Connections - UMR (United Medical

Resources)
• Standard Connections - Vision Service Plan (VSP)
• Standard Connections - Delta Dental
• Standard Connections- Care Plus Dental
• Standard Connections - NICE Healthcare

Implementation

($)"oat omher considerations

Implementation and One-Time Fees
Discount Value
Total Net Implementation and One-Time Fees

Total Annual

$6,900.00

Count Rate Total

1 $750.00 $750.00

1 $750.00 $750.00
$750.00 $750.00
$750.00 $750.00

1 $750.00 $750.00

Total Setup

$7,000.00
($3,250.00)
$3,750.00



Sales Order
Quote Number 02-2024-391171 2

Important Project and Billing Information

Billing for all modules bundled under HCM Solutions will begin on the date the ADP Product or Service is available for use by
the CLIENT in a production environment. The billing count is based on all unique lives in the database paid in the previous
calendar month. Any non-terminated employees based outside the United States will be billed separately as International
Employees

Promotion
Client will receive 6 months free spread over 2 years, applying to months 7-9 and 19-21 from each product/controls billing start
date (also referred to as the Promotional Period). Items specifically excluded: implementation, tax and banking {including
reverse wire), jurisdiction, year-end, maintenance and professional Services fees. Actual promotional value may vary based on
a number of reasons, including but not limited to: start date, number of processings and employees paid during the promotional
month(s). Services added after the date hereof are not eligible for the Promo.

Other
ADP Fees for service frequency and method will follow that of the parent company code. ADP will send all invoices to khersh@franklinwi.gov
Ex !ration Date: 8 30 2024
Summary
Estimated Annual Net Investment:

Estimated Annual Net Investment
durmn promotional erod

$6,900.00

$5,175 00

Total Net
Implementation

$3,750.00

The ADP Services Listed on this Sales Order are provided at the prices set forth herein and in accordance with the ADP
Master Services Agreement (or other similar agreement governing ADP's services), which shall include any appendix,
exhibit, addendum, schedule or other similar document attached thereto or accompanying this Sales Order By signing
below you are acknowledging and agreeing to such terms and conditions and to the listedprices

ADP, Inc

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Client City Of Franklin

Signature:

Name:

Title:

Date:



Sales Order
Quote Number 02-2024-391171 2

Workforce Now Included Services
Onboarding

• Customizable new hire experience for desktops, tablets and • Collection and acknowledgement of required information
phones

• Practitioner and manager workflow • Electronic Form I-9 with E-Verify Integration (optional)

Health & Welfare Carrier Connections
• Integration with insurance carriers for enrollment and
eligibility

• Real-time API integration with strategic carrier partners

• Pass changes tied to new hires, life events, open enrollment
and terminations

• EDI integration for enrollment and eligibility with more than
700 carrier partners

Thank you for your consideration



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Stafford Rosenbaum LLP Request for Potential Conflict
of Interest Informed Consent Waiver with Regard to its
Representation of the City Upon Appointments by the
City's Insurer, Currently for Polish Heritage Alliance,
Inc. v. City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Case No. 23

CV-9073, and Requested Representation of Smith's
Property Services LLC Upon a Zoning Violation
Unrelated to City Representation Services Matter

MEETING
DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Annexed hereto is a copy of an informed consent request from Attorney Ryan Braithwaite (currently
representing the City for Polish Heritage Alliance, Inc. v. City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Case No. 23
CV-9073). The City Attorney's office does not see any conflict of interest problem occurring from the
requested representation on totally unrelated matter(s).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to authorize the Mayor and the City Attorney to execute the informed consent letter in the form and
content as annexed hereto and with the Mayor's signature provision to be added.

Legal Services Dept.: jw



,-,- StaffordRosenbaumup
Attorneys

Ryan Braithwaite

222 West Washington Avenue, Suite 900
PO Box 1784
Madison, WI 53701-1784
RBrathwaite@staffordlaw com
608.259.2638

July 24, 2024

Jesse Wesolowski
City Attorney - City of Franklin
Wesolowski, Reidenbach &
Sajdak, S.C.
11402 W. Church Street
Franklin, WI 53132

RE: Smith's Property Services LLC - Zoning Violation

Dear Atty. Wesolowski:

VIA EMAIL

One of my colleagues at Stafford Rosenbaum LLP, Olivier Reiher, has been asked by Smith's
Property Services LLC ("Smith's") to represent it in connection with a zoning violation (the
"Violation") from the City of Franklin (the "City''). We currently represent the City in Polish
Heritage Alliance, Inc. v. City ofFranklin, Milwaukee County Case No. 23-CV-9073.

We believe that our representation of Smith's related to the Violation would not adversely affect
our ability to represent you in other unrelated matters, current and future. However, in situations
like this, which happen from time to time, we are allowed to represent both clients in unrelated
matters only if both clients consent. We, therefore, ask you whether you will consent to our
representation of Smith's related to the Violation while we continue to represent the City in other
unrelated matters. Ifyou consent, please confirm this by signing this letter and returning it to me.

Thank you. Please call if you have any questions.

Best regards,

STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP

2
RGB:nkb

222 West Vaslgon erue
PO Box 1784
Madison Wisconsm
53701 1784

608.256.0226
888.655 4752
ax 608.259.2600

wuw staftordlnw.com I 1200 Norah Mayfair Road
unte 430
Mikaukee, WV'isconsn
532263282

414 982.2850
888.655.4752
Fa414 982.2889
www.staffordlaw.mm

Madison Office Milwaukee Office



July 24, 2024
Page 2

CONSENT GRANTED:

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By: Jesse Wesolowski, City Attorney Date

ILsrl-pl01 staffordlaw com\PerfectLaw\Docs\0 19028\000595\4GREE\43E567I DOCX
7/24/2024 3 06 PM



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

City Personnel Performance Evaluation-City Engineer.
The Common Council May Enter Closed Session
Pursuant To Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(c), Considering
Employment, Promotion, Compensation Or

Performance Evaluation Data Of Any Public Employee
Over Which The Governing Body Has Jurisdiction Or

Exercises Responsibility, Wis. Stat. $19.850)(£),
Considering Financial, Medical, Social, Or Personal
Histories Or Disciplinary Data Of Specific Persons,
Preliminary Consideration Of Specific Personnel
Problems, Or The Investigation Of Charges Against

Specific Persons Except Where Par. (b) Applies Which,
IfDiscussed In Public, Would Be Likely To Have A
Substantial Adverse Effect Upon The Reputation Of
Any Person Referred To In Such Histories Or Data Or
Involved In Such Problems Or Investigations, and Wis.
Stat.$ 19.85(0)(g), Conferring With Legal Counsel For
The Governmental Body Who Is Rendering Oral Or

Written Advice Concerning Strategy To Be Adopted By
The Body With Respect To Litigation In Which It Is
Likely To Become Involved, And To Reenter Open

Session At The Same Place Thereafter To Act On Such
Matters Discussed Therein As It Deems Appropriate.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

MEETING
DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM
NUMBER

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(c), considering employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the governing body has
jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(1 )(f), considering financial, medical, social, or
personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems, or the investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if
discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person
referred to in such histories or data or involved in such problems or investigations, and Wis. Stat. § 1
9.85(l)(g), conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral or written
advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is likely to
become involved, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate.

DOA-KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement Between
Oak Creek and Franklin. The Common Council may

enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat§ 19.85(1)(e)
to deliberate upon the information, terms and provisions
of the Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement

Between Oak Creek and Franklin, the provision of public
water supply to the City of Franklin as related to the City,
the Franklin Municipal Water Utility and its customers in
2024 and beyond; and the potential negotiation of terms
in relation thereto, and the investing of public funds and
governmental actions in relation thereto, for competitive
and bargaining reasons, and to reenter open session at the

same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed
therein as it deems appropriate

MEETING
DATE

August 20, 2024

ITEM NUMBER

Annexed hereto is a copy of a draft Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and
Franklin. Also annexed is a draft A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute a Wholesale Water
Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat§ 19.85(1)(e) to deliberate upon the information, terms
and provisions of the Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin, the
provision of public water supply to the City of Franklin as related to the City, the Franklin Municipal Water
Utility and its customers in 2024 and beyond; and the potential negotiation of terms in relation thereto, and the
investing of public funds and governmental actions in relation thereto, for competitive and bargaining reasons,
and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein as it deems
appropriate.

DOA - KH; Legal Services Dept. jw



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2024

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draft 8116/24

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE A
WHOLESALE WATER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT BETWEEN OAK

CREEK AND FRANKLIN

WHEREAS, the City has been receiving public water supply from the City of Oak Creek
and the Oak Creek Water and Sewer Utility pursuant to an Agreement for Oak Creek to Provide
Water at Wholesale to Franklin entered into with them by the City of Franklin and the Franklin
Water Utility on April 4, 1994, for a period ofthirty years; and

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed the provision of public water service to all persons,
uses, and properties in the City for a number of years, considering a number of sources, various
services to be provided including alternatives thereof, and receiving the benefits from consultants
contracted to provide detailed studies and recommendations with regard to the future public
water supply in the City; and

WHEREAS, the conclusion reached after the number of years of study and review and
the evolution and changes of some of the factual circumstances over the years, is that the
proposed Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin, to
provide the City with public water service public health and safety, and the basic human
existence needs and benefits to the public receiving such service, for the next forty years, is in
the best interests of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Wholesale Water Purchase and Sale Agreement
Between Oak Creek and Franklin, in such form and content as annexed hereto, subject to
minor and/or technical changes approved by the Director of Administration, the
Superintendent of the Sewer & Water Department, and the City Attorney, be and the same is
hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor, the City Clerk and the City Attorney
be and the same are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Wholesale Water Purchase
and Sale Agreement Between Oak Creek and Franklin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of __, 2024.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2024.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024
Page 2

ATTEST:

Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES ABSENT



WHOLESALE WATERPURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
BETWEENOAK CREEKAND FRANKLIN

THIS AGREEMENT, made this_ day of,2024, by and between the
City of Oak Creek, including its Water and Sewer Utility, (hereinafter referred to "Oak Creek")
and the City of Franklin, including its Water Utility, (hereinafter referred to as "Franklin"). Oak
Creek and Franklin are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties" or individually as a
"Party".

WHEREAS, Oak Creek and Franklin entered into a wholesale water purchase and sale
agreement dated April 4, 1994 ("1994 Agreement) at rates approved by the Public Service
Comm1ss1on of Wisconsin, (hereinafter referred to as "PSC") and at standards of service
prescribed by the PSC; and

WHEREAS, Oak Creek has constructed and will continue to construct facilities
within the City of Oak Creek to ensure that all Oak Creek customers receive an adequate
water supply; and

WHEREAS, in order to plan for its future capital facility needs, Oak Creek seeks
Franklm' s contractual commitment to continue purchasing wholesale water from Oak Creek;
and

WHEREAS, Franklin is willing to extend its contractual commitment to purchase
wholesale water from Oak Creek in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Oak Creek and Franklin, on March 19, 2024, individually approved a term
sheet containing items to be included in a new wholesale water agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set
forth in ths Agreement, Franklin and Oak Creek agree as follows:

1 PROVISION OFWATER

1.1 Oak Creek as Sole Provider. Franklin agrees to obtain water supply from Oak Creek to
serve the entire City of Franklin that is not, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement,
receiving retail water service from the City of Milwaukee. Oak Creek shall be the sole,
exclusive provider of water supply for all areas of Franklin that are not receiving retail
water service from the City of MIiwaukee on the Effective Date of this Agreement.

1.2 Uniform Treatment. Oak Creek shall not discriminate or differentiate in quality of
service or in its method of establishing rates between Franklin and its other wholesale
customers.

1
August 7, 2024



2 SERVICE AREA

2.1 Service Area. Oak Creek agrees to provide wholesale water to the City of Franklin which
will in tum provide retail water service to the entire City of Franklin that is not, as of the
Effective Date of this Agreement, receiving retail water service from the City of
Milwaukee. The corporate boundaries of the City of Franklin as of the Effective Date of
this Agreement are shown on Exhibit A. The area in Franklin that is receiving retail water
service from the City of Milwaukee as of the Effective Date of this Agreement is also
shown on Exhibit A. Oak Creek's agreement to provide wholesale water is based upon the
City of Franklin's corporate hmits as they exist on the Effective Date of this Agreement.
Oak Creek shall have no duty or obligation under this Agreement to provide wholesale
water for any area other than the service area described in this Article 2.

2.2 FranklinExpansion. In the event that the City of Franklin's corporate limits are extended
or enlarged as a consequence of any consolidation or merger of Franklin with any other
municipality entity or political subdivision, Oak Creek may, but is not required to, provide
wholesale water supply for any extended area of Franklin. Oak Creek shall have the first
option to provide wholesale water supply for any expanded area of Franklin.

2.3 Franklin Limited Retail Service to the Village of Raymond. If Franklin obtams all
necessary approvals from the PSC and the Village of Raymond, Oak Creek agrees that the
City of Franklin may use wholesale water purchased from Oak Creek to provide retail
water service to the I-94 corridor in the Village of Raymond. For purposes of this Sect1on,
the Village of Raymond's I-94 corridor extends from I-94 to the west for one (1) mile and
from W. South County Line Road to the south for 6-miles and is shown on Exhibit B. Thus
corridor may be expanded with the approval of Oak Creek.

3 WATERQUALITYAND QUANTITY

3.1 Water Quality. Oak Creek shall provide Franklin water which meets all primary drinking
water quality standards established by the State of Wisconsin and Federal governments.

3.2 Water Pressure. Beginning on the Effective Date, Oak Creek will provide Franklin with
water at a minimum hydraulic grade equivalent (hge), at the meter locations, of 870 (USGS
datum). Hydraulic grade equivalent is the sum of the water pressure, expressed m feet
above sea level, plus the ground elevation at any given location.

3.3 Franklin's 5-Year Water Demand Plan. To enable Oak Creek to meet future water
service demands, Franklin shall develop a five (5) year water demand plan which shall be
reviewed and updated by Franklin on an annual basis. By April l of each calendar year,
Franklin shall provide Oak Creek its updated five (5) year plan. Oak Creek agrees to meet
the water demand identified in the plan. IfFranklin does not provide Oak Creek an update
of its five (5) year plan by April 1st, Year 1 of the prior year's plan will become Year 1 of
the updated plan.

2
August 7, 2024



3.4 Maximum Flow Limit. At no time during the initial term of thus Agreement shall the total
flow of water to Franklin exceed 12.3 MGD measured at any point in time without the
approval of Oak Creek. At no time after the initial term of this Agreement shall the total
flow of water to Franklin exceed 13.0 MGD measured at any point in time without the
approval of Oak Creek.

3.5 Emergencies. Notwithstanding Sections 3.2 through 3.4, Oak Creek may restrict use of
water by Franklin as a result of the occurrence of any emergency, mcluding but not limited
to major firefighting, extraordinary hydrant flushing, major water main breaks or drought,
which will affect the water pressure or other performance capabilities of the water system
within Oak Creek. Oak Creek shall notify Franklin whenever it is unable to supply water
service in accordance withthe terms of this Agreement andFranklin may obtain emergency
water service from any other source without violating the terms of this Agreement but only
for the specific period of time in whuch Oak Creek is unable to provide such supply.

4 METERING

4.1 Connection Locations. Franklin's system connects to Oak Creek's system at four
connection points, the locations of which are shown on Exhibit A. The connect1on points
are located near the intersect1on of 27 Street (i) at Ryan Road, (ai) at Puetz Road, (1ii) at
Drexel Avenue, and (iv) at Rawson Avenue.

4.2 Metering Stations.

4.2.1 Franklm has furnished metenng stations, complete with meter setting but without the
meter, at the connection pomts between Oak Creek's system and Franklin's system.

4.2.2 Ifnew or replacement metenng stations are required in the future, Franklin shall construct
such metering stations located in Franklin. The plans and specifications for such meter
stations must conform to Oak Creek standards and be approved by Oak Creek. All
construct1on work incidental to construction ofmetering stations may be inspected by Oak
Creek in accordance with Oak Creek inspection standards.

4.3 Meters. The meters, including total recording and measuring devices, to be installed in
the metering stations shall be supplied, operated and maintained by the Oak Creek Water
and Sewer Utility. The wholesale meters shall be tested for accuracy as required by the
PSC. Franklin shall provide access to Oak Creek for meter reading and equipment
maintenance/repair.

4.4 Meter Malfunctions or Inaccuracies. If a wholesale meter is found to be moperative or
inaccurate, Oak Creek shall bill by estimating Franklin's usage based on the best available
information including, but not limited to, duration of flow, and the average of volume sold
at the affected meter station for the same month over the last 4 years.

4.5 SCADA. The meter stations shall accommodate Oak Creek's SCADA equipment to
monitor flow, pressure, access, and other water quality and quantity items as Oak Creek

3
August 7, 2024



determines from time to time. Both parties shall meet from time to time to discuss changes,
addrtions, or deletions to the SCADA information that might be shared by both parties.

4.6 Flow Control Equipment. Oak Creek grants Franklin authority to install, operate and
maintain flow control equipment at the connection points between the Oak Creek system
and the Franklin system. All flow control stations shall be set to unrestricted flow, unless
Franklin is actively controlling the flow. If Franklin intends to actively control the flow,
Franklin shall provide to Oak Creek the operational procedures detailing how Franklin
intends to operate the flow control stations. Franklin shall provide 48-hour notification to
Oak Creek of any deviations from the operational plan for the flow control stations.
Franklin shall grant Oak Creek access to real time flow control SCADA information.

5 INDIVIDUAL WATER SYSTEMS

5.1 Oak CreekWater Supply and Transmission System.

5.1.1 The Oak Creek water supply and transmission system includes the intake, raw water pump
station, raw water mains, treatment plant, high lift pump station, chlorine contact tank and
treatment plant storage, booster pump stations, transmission mains, and appurtenances.
The transmission mains shall include mains larger than 12" in diameter.

5 .1.2 Oak Creek shall be solely responsible for constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing
and replacing all parts of its water supply and transmission system located in the Caty of
Oak Creek which provides wholesale water to Franklin as set forth in this Agreement.

5.1.3 Oak Creek water supply and transmission system costs shall be recoverable in its rates
charged to all customers.

5.2 Oak Creek Distribution System.

5.2.1 The Oak Creek distribution system includes water mains that are 12" and smaller,
distribution system storage, fire hydrants, valves, retail services and meters, and
appurtenances.

5.2.2 Oak Creek shall be responsible for constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing and
replacing all parts of its water distribution system used to provide water to its retail
customers.

5.2.3 Oak Creek's costs related to its distribution system shall not be recoverable m its rates
charged to Franklin.

5 .3 Franklin Distribution System. Franklin shall be responsible for constructing, operating,
maintaining, repairing and replacing all parts of its water distribution system used to
provide water to its retail customers mn Franklin. Franklin's costs related to its distribution
system shall be recoverable in its rates charged to Franklin's retail customers. Oak Creek
shall not be responsible for any costs related to Franklin's distribution system.

4
August 7, 2024



6 OAK CREEK WATER SUPPLY AND TRANSMISSION CAPITAL PROJECTS

6.1 Underground Facilities Rehabilitation Project.

6.1.1 The Oak Creek Board of Public Works and Capital Assets selected an Underground
Facilities Rehabilitation (UFR) project on February 13, 2024 to resolve code compliance
1sues with the ex1sting treatment plant. The proposed UFR project includes a new
intermediate pump station, new ultraviolet disinfection facility, new above ground chlorine
contact tank, new high lift pump station and associated appurtenances such as fluoride
storage and feed quipment, electrical feed and equipment, building access control and
securty, and SCADA equipment. The UFR project is anticipated to be online in 2029.

6.1.2 Franklin agrees not to intervene in Oak Creek's PSC construction authorization process for
the UFR project, as long as it remains substantially similar to the alternative selected by
the Oak Creek Board of Public Works and Capital Assests on February 13, 2024. Oak
Creek acknowledges Franklin's right to intervene in a PSC proceeding related to other Oak
Creek construction projects.

6.1.3 Oak Creek agrees to share the payment in lieu of taxes ("PILOT") calculated on its UFR
project with Franklin as described mn thus subsection. After all UFR project expenses are
capitalized as additions to Utility Plant In Service on Schedule W-08 of Oak Creek's latest
PSC annual report (PSC report), the amount of PILOT shared with Franklin will be based
on the percentage formula set forth below:

1. For Years 1-9, the percentage of the PILOT payment from the UFR project shared
with Frankin is determinedbydividing the total gallons sold to Franklin by the total
gallons of finished water pumped from the treatment plant. Both figures would be
sourced from Oak Creek's latest PSC report. In 2023, total gallons sold to Franklin
and finished water pumped are listed on Schedules W-14 and W-03, respectively
of the PSC report.

1u. In year 10 the percentage of the PILOT payment from the UFR project shared wth
Frankin would equal 75% of the calculation in (i).

iii. In year 11 the percentage of the PILOT payment from the UFR project shared with
Frankin would equal 50% of the calculation in (i).

Iv. In year 12 the percentage of the PILOT payment from the UFR project shared with
Frankin would equal 25% of the calculation in (i).

v. In year 13 and beyond, no further PILOT sharing payment would be made to
Franklin.

6.1 .4 The UFR project is not subject to review by the Capital Improvement Committee under
Section 6.2.

5
August 7, 2024



6.2 Capital Improvement Committee. Oak Creek will form a Capital Improvement
Committee consisting of representatives from Oak Creek and 1ts wholesale water
customers. Oak Creek will schedule a meeting of the Capital Improvement Committee to
review and discuss any Oak Creek water supply and/or transmission system capital project
anticipated to cost more than $1 million or the minimum threshold for PSC oversight
whichever is greater. The Committee meeting shall be held prior to beginning the design
of a capital project with an estimated cost above this cost threshold. The Capital
Improvement Committee will provide a recommendation on the capital project. If a
Committee vote 1s taken on the recommendation, each representative's vote will be
weighted by its percentage of water purchased from Oak Creek compared to the total
volume of water leaving the treatment plant and entermg the transmission mains averaged
over the previous four (4) years. Oak Creek shall consider the Committee's
recommendation on the capital project before taking final action to approve or reject the
project. Oak Creek distribution system projects are not subject to Capital Improvement
Committee review.

6.3 Capital Improvement Plan Presentation.

6.3.1 Oak Creek will provide an annual presentation to the Franklin Board of Water
Commissioners regarding Oak Creek's 5-year capital improvement plan.

6.3.2 Oak Creek agrees to attend a regular or special meetmg with the Franklin Board of Water
Commissioners to discuss an Oak Creek water supply and/or transmission system capital
project exceeding $1 million or the minimum threshold for PSC oversight whichever 1s
greater. Oak Creek distribution system capital projects are not subject to this Section.

6.4 No Tax on Facilities. Neither party will tax or charge payments mn lieu of taxes on owned
capital facilities located in the other's jurisdiction.

7 RATES

7.1 Wholesale Supply. Franklin shall be a wholesale customer of Oak Creek.

7.2 Wholesale Rates Subject to PSC Approval. Oak Creek's rates and charges for the
provision ofwholesale water to Franklin shall be establishedby the PSC on a cost of service
bas1s. Oak Creek's rate schedule may be modified during the term of ths Agreement
provided such change is approved by the PSC.

7.3 Timing of Full Rate Cases. Oak Creek will not file an application with the PSC for a full
rate case unless (i) its realized rate of return is less than its cost of debt (on a percentage
basis), or (ii) five years have elapsed smce the last PSC rate order. In 2023, the realized
rate of return ("net operating income as a percent of average net rate base") is listed on
Schedule F-23 of the PSC report. Cost of debt is the total interest charges (PSC report
Schedule F-01) divided by the total long-term debt (PSC report Schedule F-07). If Oak

6
August 7, 2024



Creek has no debt, then the current market rate of Wisconsin's safe drinking water loan
program under Wis. Stat. $ 281.61 shall be used in the above calculation as the cost of debt.

7.4 Rate Making Methodology. The Parties agree for the term of this Agreement that they
will mutually support and request that the PSC establish water rates in accordance with the
methodology described m Exhibit C.

7.5 Billing and Due Date. Oak Creek shall submit invoices to Franklin on a quarterly or
monthly basis. All such invoices shall be payable to Oak Creek within twenty (20) days. If
payments are not received within thirty (30) days a penalty of 1% per month on any
delinquency shall be due and payable by Franklin.

7. 6 Franklin Retail Customers. Franklinprovides retail water service to its customers withm
Franklin. Franklin shall be solely responsible for billing and collecting all fees or charges
from its retail customers for water service. If Oak Creek receives payments for services
providedby Franklin fromFranklin retail customers, Oak Creek shall promptly deliver and
endorse such payments to Franklin.

7. 7 Wheeling Charges. If Oak Creek proposes to serve additional wholesale customers
utilizing Franklin's water system for water transmission, Oak Creek acknowledges
Franklin shall be entitled to receive PSC-determined wheeling charges.

8 RECORDS

8.1 Maintenance of Records. Franklin and Oak Creek shall create and maintam records
relatmg to the 1994 Agreement and this Agreement.

8.2 Record Access. Each Party agrees to allow representatives of the other Party to evaluate
and inspect information, documents, and records regarding any matters relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement. This Article 8 shall not be construed to eliminate (i) any
requirement for public record keeping in conformance with Wisconsin state statutes,or (ii)
any record inspection or record access restrictions under Wis. Stat. § 19.35, as may be
amended from time to time.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 Insurance. During the term of this Agreement each Party shall mamtain comprehensive
general liability insurance in the minimum amount of$1,000,000. Upon request each Party
shall provide evidence to the other Party of the existence of an effective polcy and the
policy limits. Each Party shall be named as additional insured on the insurance policy of
the other Party hereto. Each Party shall properly notify the other if the policy limits are
reduced or the policy 1s canceled or not renewed. In addition, each Party shall obtain and
maintain worker's compensation insurance covering its employees performing the services
for that Party in at least the mimmum amounts requtred from time to time by applicable
State of Wisconsin statutory requirements.

7
August 7, 2024



9.2 Indemnification. The Parties understand and agree that this Agreement is not one to
ensure or indemnify the other and shall not be construed as such. Each Party is solely
responsible for its own negligence, acts or omissions.

10 EFFECTIVE DATE; TERMINATION

10.1 Effective Date. This Agreement shall take effect on the date the last Party duly
approves and signs th1s Agreement. This date is the Effective Date.

10.2 Term of this Agreement. The term of the Agreement shall be forty (40) years from the
Effective Date of this Agreement. After the initial term, the Agreement shall automatically
renew for another forty (40) years, unless a Party (i) provides written notice to the other
Party no later than ten (10) years prior to the end of the Agreement's term of its intent to
not renew; and (it) timely submits an apphcation to the PSC to approve service
discontinuation at the end of the Agreement's term. lfthe application to the PSC for service
discontinuation is withdrawn, rejected or denied, this Agreement will automatically renew.

11 MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 Regional Water Authority. Both Parties agree to engage in discussions related to the
creation of a Regional Water Authority ("RWA"), the purpose of which would be to own
and operate a treatment facility and the facility's related infrastructure. Such discussions
would mvestigate the potential for the RWA to serve Oak Creek and its wholesale
customers and the ownership and governing structure of the potential RWA. If such RWA
purchases Oak Creek's ex1sting water treatment facility and the facility's related
infrastructure, Oak Creek will receive fair and equitable monetary compensation for the
sale. Both parties agree to discuss other future regional oppurtumties.

11.2 Applicabilty of PSC Rules and Regulations. This Agreement shall be subject to
applicable rules and regulations of Oak Creek which are on file with the PSC as such rules
and regulations may be amended from time to time.

11.3 No Waiver. The failure of either Party to msist on strict performance of any of the terms
or conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a warver or relinquishment of any
right granted under this Agreement.

11.4 Severability. In the event that any portion of thus Agreement 1s held invalid or
unenforceable such invahdity or unenforceability shall not affect the other portions of this
Agreement.

11.5 No Third-Party Rights. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of and be enforceable by the Parties, their agents, employees, officers and directors.
However, it is not intended by the Parties that this Agreement in any way inure to the
benefit of any third party.

8
August 7, 2024



11.6 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon any successor
organization or entity assigns or other successor political entity of either Party to this
Agreement.

11. 7 Assignment. This Agreement shall not be assigned by any of the Parties without the prior
written consent of the other Party.

11.8 Legal Relationship. Nothing in thus Agreement shall be construed to create an
employer/employee relationship, a joint venture relationship or a princ1pal/agent
relationship.

11.9 Notices. Notces requiredby this Agreement shall be inwriting unless an emergency exists
and shall be deemed given upon delivery in person or by first class mail postage prepaid to
the other Party at the following address:

City of Franklin Water Utility
9229 West Loomis Road

Franklin, WI 53132

Oak Creek Water & Sewer Utility
170 West Drexel Avenue
Oak Creek, WI 53114

11.10 Amendment. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by
both Partes.

11.11 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted under the laws of the
State of Wisconsin.

11.12 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. All prior understandings, agreements,
correspondence and discussions of the Parties are merged into and made a part of this
Agreement.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

9
August 7, 2024



CITY OF OAK CREEK

By:
Mayor Daniel J. Bukiewicz

Dated:------------

By:
Catherine Roeske, City Clerk

Dated:-------------

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By:
Mayor John R. Nelson

Dated:-------------

By:
Shirley J. Roberts, City Clerk

Dated:-------------

APPROVED:

Cty Attorney, City of Franklin

City Attorney, City of Oak Creek

10
August 7, 2024



Exhibit A:
Oak Creek Wholesale Service Area

I

3 I
I (

I -- ·- · 7,,
I / · ,-! / I t

/

\
/

I
1/

-- __J -
i
I

!

./
'I

0.
-- ·- ---Rawsoh'

Ave Meter
Station

••Drexel
Ave Meter

Station

i
City of
Franl(lin

'

•
Puetz Rd

Meter
Station

-~•~
Ryan Rd -

Meter
Station

$<
Q)

~u
$'
ro
0
k
0.z
U

1.81.2 2.4
amMiles
0 0.3 0.6Legend:

tz:::21 Milwaukee Retail Water Service Area
t::J Corporate Boundaries of City of Franklin
• Meter Station



Exhibit B:
Limited Raymond Retail Service Area

City of Franklin

(

Village of
Raymond

Village of Yorkville

City of Oak Creek

_I I
I

ii

l
I
i

'
11

Village of
Caledonia

,,
\\ I
w ]
w p

\
,\
I

Village of Mount Pleasant

1.81.2 2.4
NmJMiles
Spatial Reference
PCS. NAO 1983 2011 StatePlane Wiscon sin South FIPS 4803 Ft US
GCS GCS NAO 1983 2011
Datum. NAO 1983 2011
Projection Lambert Con formal Conic

0 0.3 0.6

Legend:

~ Limited Retail Service Area
rI Municipal Boundaries



EXHIBITC

RATE METHODOLOGY

The Parties agree to support and request the PSC establish rates in accordance with the rate
methodology described mn this Exhibit C. Exhibit C-1 is an example of a rate study that applies
the methodology described in this Exhibit. Exhibit C-1 will be updated with the most recent
available data at the time Oak Creek files its next application to PSC, and any subsequent
applications.

DESCRIPTION OF RATE METHODOLOGY

A. Revenue Requirement

Oak Creek's total revenue requirement will be developed using the methodology currently used
by the PSC at the time the rate application is filed. IfOak Creek or its treatment plant is no longer
regulated by the PSC, Oak Creek's revenue requirements will be developed usmg guidance from
the American Water Works Association's Manual of Water Supply Practices Ml.

Oak Creek, in a rate apphcat10n, will request a lower rate of return (ROR) than the PSC benchmark
ROR if it determines such lower ROR wll be sufficient for its financial management. Oak Creek
will not request a rate of return for Franklin higher than the rate of return requested for Oak Creek.

B. Cost-Of-ServiceAllocation

Revenue requirements will be allocated to different utility functions using the Base-Extra Capacity
method described in more detail in the Section on "Cost-of-Service Allocation."

C. Distribution of Costs to Customers

After the functional cost-of-service allocation is complete, costs will be allocated between
customers mn two steps. In Step One, costs will be allocated between Oak Creek and each of Oak
Creek's wholesale customers. In Step One, Oak Creek is treated as one municipal entity. In Step
Two, the costs attributed to Oak Creek in Step One will be allocated to Oak Creek's individual
retail customer classes. These customer allocations are described in more detail in the Section on
"Distribution ofCosts to Customers."

COST-OF-SERVICE ALLOCATION

Oak Creek's total revenue requirements will be allocated to utility functional cost categories using
the Base-Extra Capacity method described mn the American Water Works Association's Manual of
Water Supply Practices M 1 as applied by the Public Service Commission ofWisconsm. The Parties
also agree to request that at a minimum the provisions described in this Section be followed in the
allocation to functional costs.

C-1



A. Separating Transmission and Distribution Plant

Oak Creek's plant records include both transmission and distribution mains in the same account.
For the purposes of developing rates, transmission and distribution main plant will be separated as
described below and associated transmission and distribution main costs will be separately
allocated.

Mains larger than 12 inches mn diameter will be considered transmission mains. Mains of 12 inches
or less in diameter will be considered distribution mains.

Transmission and distribution main total plant will be divided between transmission and
distribution on the basis of the onginal cost of total mains (whether utility financed or contributed).
Transmission and distribution main utilityfinancedplant and deprecation expense will be divided
between the transmission and distribution based on the original cost of all utility financed mains.

B. Utility Functional Cost Categories

Costs will be allocated to System Base, System Max Day, Distribution Base, Distribution Max
Hour, Storage, Consumer Costs, and Public Fire Protection Costs.

References to any of the functional cost categories in this document refer to all costs included in
that column in any of the spreadsheets within Exhibit C-1. For example, Base Distnbut10n costs
include all costs allocated to the columns labeled Base Distribution with the cost-of-service
allocation. Storage costs mclude all costs allocated to the columns labeled Storage within the cost
of-service allocation.

C. Costs by Categories

1. System Base and System Max Day Costs

Costs allocated to System Base and System Max Day will include the following costs:

• Operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses associated with Source of Supply,
Pumping, Water Treatment, and Transmission Mains, other than $64,300 of Fuel or
Power Purchased for Pumping (Account 623), allocated to Distribution, allocated
as described in Paragraphs D.1 and D.2.

• Depreciation expense on utility financed plant associated with Source of Supply,
Pumping, Water Treatment, and Transmission Mains, allocated as described in
Paragraph D.2.

• Return on Investment on utility financed plant associated with Source of Supply,
Pumping, Water Treatment, and Transmission Mains, allocated as described in
Paragraph D.12.

• Payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) and other taxes on total plant associated with
Source of Supply, Pumping, Water Treatment, and Transmission Mains, determined
as described in Paragraph D.13.

C-2



• A share of certain other expenses and costs described in Paragraph C.6., allocated
between all cost categories as described mn Paragraphs D. 8 through D.13.

2. Distribution Base and Distribution Max Hour Costs

Costs allocated to Distribution Base and Distribution Max Hour wll include the following costs:

• $64,300 of Fuel or Power Purchased for Pumping (Account 623), allocated to Base
as described in Paragraph D.3.

• A share of O&M expenses associated with Distribution Mains, determined as
described in Paragraph D.4.

• A share of depreciation expense on utility financed plant associated with
Distribution Mains, allocated between Base, Max Day and Pubhc Fire Protection
as described in Paragraph D.4.

• A share of Return on Investment on utility financed plant associated with
Distribution Mains determined as described in Paragraph D.12.

• A share of PILOT and other taxes on total plant associated with Distribution Mams
detenmned as described m Paragraph D.13.

• A share of certain other expenses and costs described in Paragraph C.6., allocated
between all cost categories as described in Paragraphs D.8 through D.13.

3. Storage Costs

Costs allocated to Storage will include the following costs:

• A share of O&M expenses associated with distribution system reservoirs and
standpipes, allocated between Storage and Public Fire Protection as described in
Paragraph D.5.

• A share of depreciat10n expense on utility financed plant associated with
distribution system reservoirs and standpipes, allocated between Storage and Public
Fire Protection as described in Paragraph D.5.

• A share of Return on Investment on utility financed plant associated with
distribution system reservoirs and standpipes, allocated as described in Paragraph
D.12.

• A share of PILOT and other taxes on total plant associated with distribution system
reservoirs and standpipes, determined as described m Paragraph D .13.

• A share of certain other expenses and costs described m Paragraph C.6., allocated
between all cost categones as described in Paragraphs D.8 through D.13.

4. Consumer Costs

Costs allocated to Consumer Costs will include the following costs:

• O&M expenses associated with billing, meters, and services, allocated as described
in Paragraph D.6.

C-3



• Depreciation expense and Return on Investment on utility financed plant associated
wIth meters and services, allocated as described mn Paragraphs D.6 and D.12.

• PILOT and other taxes on total plant associated with meters and services, allocated
as described in Paragraph D.13.

• A share of certain other expenses and costs described in Paragraph C.6., allocated
between all cost categories as described in Paragraphs D. 8 through D.13.

5. Public Fire Protection Costs

Costs allocated to Public Fire Protection Costs will include the following costs:

• O&M expenses and depreciation expense associated with hydrants as described m
Paragraph D.7.

• A share of O&M expenses associated with (i) distribution mains, allocated between
Distribution Base, Distribution Max Hour and Public Fire Protection as described
in Paragraph D.4 and (ii) distribution system reservoirs and standpipes allocated
between Public Fire Protection and Storage as described m Paragraph D.5.

• Return on Investment on utility financed hydrants allocated as described in
Paragraph D.12.

• A share of depreciation expense on utihty fmanced plant associated with (i)
distribution mains allocated between Distribution Base, Distribution Max Hour and
Public Fire Protection as described in Paragraph D.4 and (ii) distribution system
reservoirs and standpipes allocated between Public Fire Protection and Storage as
described 1 Paragraph D.5.

• A share of Return on Investment on utility financed plant associated with (i)
distribution mains allocated as described in Paragraph D.12 and (ii) distribution
system reservoirs and standpipes allocated as described in Paragraph D.12.

• PILOT and other taxes on total hydrant plant, determined as descnbed in Paragraph
D.13.

• A share of PILOT and other taxes on total plant associated with (i) distnbution
mains, and (ii) distribution system reservoirs and standpipes (costs shared with
Distribution and Storage) determined as described in Paragraph D .13.

• A share of certain other expenses and costs described in Paragraph C.6., allocated
between all cost categones as described in Paragraph D.8 through D.13.

6. Other Expenses and Costs

All the above cost categories wll be allocated a share of:

• O&M expenses associated with other transmission and distribution (T&D)
• expenses not directly allocated, allocated as described in Paragraph D.8.1

'Account 660 (Operation supervision and engineering); Account 665 (Miscellaneous expenses);
Account666 (Rents); Account 670 (Maintenance supervuson and engineering); Account 671
(Mamtenance of structures and improvements), and Account 678 (Mamtenance of miscellaneous plant).

C-4



• General andAdmimstrative expenses allocated as described in Paragraph D.9.2

• Depreciation expense, Return on Investment , and PILOT and other taxes
associated with other T&D Plant not directly allocated, allocated as described 1n
Paragraphs D.10, D.12, and D.13.3

• Depreciation expense, Return on Investment , and PILOT and other taxes
associated with General Plant, allocated as described in Paragraphs D.11, D.12, and
D.13.4

D. Allocation Methods

1. Allocation to System Base Only

Operation and maintenance expenses for Fuel or power purchased for pumping (Account
623)(except for the $64,300 allocated to Distribution Base), and Chemicals (Account 641) will be
allocated entirely to System Base.

2. Allocation between System Base and System Max Day°

System costs to be allocated under this method will be allocated between System Base and System
Max Day based on the Oak Creek total system's most recent four-year average of Average Day
pumpage and Maximum Day system pumpage.

The percentage of costs allocated to System Base will be equal to the Average Day system
pumpage as a percentage of Maximum Day system pumpage.

The percentage of costs allocated to System Max Day will be equal to the percentage of Maximum
Day Extra Capacity system pumpage (over and above Average Day system pumpage) as a
percentage of Maximum Day system pumpage.

Average Day system pumpage is the Finished Water pumped for each year divided by 365 days.
Maximum Day system pumpage is the maximum amount of Finished Water pumped by the Oak
Creek System during any given day of each calendar year. For purposes of this methodology, a
day is a 24-hour period beginning at midnight.

2 All 900-level Accounts.

3 Account 340 (Land and land nghts); Account 341 (Structures and improvements); and Account 349
(Other transmission and distribution plant).
4 General Plant includes Accounts 389 through 398

See Exhibit C-1, System Demand Factors tab, Allocation Method 1

C-5



3. Allocation to Distribution Base Only

Operation and maintenance expenses for Fuel or power purchased for pumping (Account 623), 1

the amount of $64,300 will be allocated to Distribution Base.

4. Allocation between DistributionBase, DistributionMax Hour, and Public Fire
Protection6

Costs to be allocated under this method will be allocated between Distribution Base, Distribution
Max Hour and Public Fue Protection based on the Oak Creek total system's most recent four-year
average of Average Day pumpage, Maximum Hour system pumpage, and estimated Fire Flow
demands based on Insurance Services Office (ISO) demands.

The percentage of costs allocated to Distribution Base will be equal to Average Day system
pumpage as a percentage of the sum of Maximum Hour system pumpage and estimated Fire Flow
Demands (both converted to a 24-hour day pumpage).

The percentage of costs allocated to Distribution Max Hour will be equal to the percentage of
Maximum Hour Extra Capacity system pumpage (over and above Average Day system pumpage)
as a percentage of the sum of Maximum Hour system pumpage and estimated Fire Flow Demands
(both converted to a 24-hour day pumpage).

The percentage of costs allocated to Public Fire Protection will be equal to the estimated Fire Flow
Demands as a percentage of the sum of Maximum Hour system pumpage and estimated Fire Flow
Demands (both converted to a 24-hour day pumpage).

Average Day system pumpage is the Fimshed Water pumped for each year divided by 365 days.
Maximum Hour system pumpage is the maximum amount of Fmished Water pumped by the Oak
Creek system during any grven hour in each calendar year.

5. Allocation between Storage and Public Fire Protection7

Costs to be allocated under this method will be allocated between Storage and Public Fire
Protection based on the Oak Creek total system's most recent four-year average of Maximum Hour
system pumpage, and estimated Fire Flow demands based on Insurance Services Office (ISO)
demands.

The percentage of costs allocated to Storage wll be equal to the percentage of Max1mum Hour
system pumpage as a percentage of the sum of Maximum Hour system pumpage and estimated
Fire Flow Demands (both converted to a 24-hour day pumpage).

° See Exhibit C-1, System Demand Factors tab, Allocation Method 5.

' See Exhibit C-1, System Demand Factors tab, Allocation Method 4

C-6



The percentage of costs allocated to Public Fire Protect1on will be equal to the estimated Fire Flow
Demands as a percentage of the sum ofMaximum Hour system pumpage and estimated Fire Flow
Demands (both converted to a 24-hour day pumpage).

Total system maximum hour is the one hour each calendar year during which the maximum amount
of Finished Water 1s pumped by the Oak Creek system.

6. Allocation of Consumer Costs

Consumer Costs as hsted in Paragraph C.2.d. above will be allocated as follows:

• Customer Accounts expenses will be allocated to Billing costs
• Meter expenses and plant will be allocated to Equivalent Meter costs
• Customer installation expenses, and services expenses and plant will be allocated

to Equivalent Services costs.

7. Allocation to Public Fire Protection Only

Hydrant expenses and plant will be allocated entirely to Public Fire Protection.

8. Allocation of Other T&D Operation and Maintenance Expenses not Directly
Allocated

Other T&D operation and maintenance expenses not directly allocated will be allocated to System,
Distribution, Storage, Consumer, and PFP categories in proportion to the percentage of T&D
expenses allocated to each category.

9. Allocation ofGeneral andAdministrative Expenses

General and Administrative expenses will be allocated to System, Distribution, Storage,
Consumer, and PFP categories in proportion to the percentage of all other expenses, except for
Chemicals (Account 641) and Fuel or power purchased for pumping (Account 623), allocated to
each category.

10. Allocation of Other T&D Depreciation Expense and Plant not Directly
Allocated

Other T&D depreciation expenses and plant not directly allocated will be allocated to System,
Distribution, Storage, Consumer, and PFP categories in proportion to the percentage of T&D
expenses or plant allocated to each category.

11. Allocation of General Plant

General Plant and depreciation expense on General Plant will be allocated to System, Distribution,
Storage, Consumer, and PFP categones m proportion to the percentage of all other deprecation
expense and plant allocated to each category.

C-7



12. Allocation ofReturn on Investment

After Oak Creek's total Return on Investment is determined, that amount will be allocated to each
utihty function in proportion to the amount of utility financed plant allocated to each utility
function. The Return on Investment allocated to each utility function will reflect each function's
appropriate share of Return on Investment consistent with Paragraph C.2. above.

13. Allocation of PILOT and Other Taxes

After the total amount of PILOT and other taxes is determined, that amount will be allocated to
each utility function in proportion to the amount of total plant allocated to each utility function.
The amount of PILOT and other taxes allocated to each utility function will reflect each function's
appropriate share of PILOT of and other taxes consistent with Paragraph C.2. above.

DISTRIBUTIONOF COSTS TO CUSTOMERS

A. First Step of Customer Allocation

1. Allocation of System Base Costs between Oak Creek and its Wholesale
Customer

a. Allocation

System Base Costs will be allocated between Oak Creek and each of Oak Creek's wholesale
customers based on each entity's allocated share of Total System Base Demands.

b. Total System Base Demands

Total System Base Demands equal the annual volume of Finished Water, less Unbilled Authorized
Consumption, averaged over the last four years.

Finished Water in this Exhibit means the amount of treated water entering the Oak Creek
Transmission System. For the 2023 Annual Report, this amount was reported on Schedule W-14
as 'Finished Water Pumped'.

Unbilled Authorized Consumpton m this Exhibit means both unbilled metered and unbilled
unmetered water reported as Unbilled Authorized Consumption. In the 2023 Annual Report, this
amount was reported on Schedule W-15 as 'Unbilled Authorized Consumption'.

c. Wholesale Customer Base Demands

A wholesale customer's annual water pumpage equals Oak Creek's annual water sales to the
wholesale customer averaged over the last four years. A wholesale customer's share of Total
System Base Demands equals the wholesale customer's annual water pumpage divided by the
Total System Base Demand.

C-8



Actual mdividual wholesale customer master metered data will be used to determine each
wholesale customer's pumpage.

d. Oak Creek Base Demands

Oak Creek's annual water pumpage equals Total System Base Demands, less pumpage attributed
to Oak Creek's wholesale customers. Oak Creek's share of Total System Base Demands equals
Oak Creek's annual water pumpage divided by Total System Base Demands.

2. Allocation of System Max Day Costs between Oak Creek and its Wholesale
Customer

a. Allocation

System Max Day Costs will be allocated between Oak Creek and each of Oak Creek's wholesale
customers based on the percentage of maximum day extra capacity pumpage (over and above
average day pumpage) attributable to each entity. Average day pumpage equals annual water
pumpage divided by 365.

b. Wholesale Customer Max Day Demands

The amount ofmaximum day pumpage attributable to a wholesale customer each year is calculated
by taking the maximum amount of water pumped to that wholesale customer on any one day of a
calendar year. A day is a 24-hour period beginning at midnight. A wholesale customer's maximum
day pumpage wIll be calculated annually and averaged over the last four years.

The maximum day extra capacity demand for a wholesale customer equals that wholesale
customer's maximum day pumpage based on a four-year average, less the average day pumpage
allocated to that wholesale customer based on a four-year average.

The wholesale customer's percentage share of System Max Day Extra Capacity Demand is
determined by dividing the maximum day extra capacity demand for the wholesale customer by
the maximum day extra capacity demand of the combined maximum day extra capacity demand
of Oak Creek and each wholesale customer.

c. Oak Creek Max Day Demands

The amount of maximum day pumpage attributable to Oak Creek each year is calculated by taking
the amount of water pumped to each of the wholesale customers on each day, subtracting this
amount from the total system pumpage, and taking the maximum of this amount on any one day
of a calendar year. A day is a 24-hour period beginning at midnight. Oak Creek's maximum day
pumpage will be calculated annually and averaged over the last four years.

The max1mum day extra capacity demand for Oak Creek equals the Oak Creek maximum day
pumpage based on a four-year average, less the average day pumpage allocated to Oak Creek based

C-9



on a four-year average. Oak Creek's percentage share of System Max Day Extra Capacity Demand
is determined by dividing the maximum day extra capacity demand for Oak Creek by the
maximum day extra capacity demand of the combined maximum day extra capacity demand of
Oak Creek and each wholesale customer.

d. Adjustments

The Parties agree that maximum day demands caused by unusual and uncontrollable events, such
as large water main breaks may be excluded from the calculations below for purposes of Step One,
but that maximum day demands caused by fire events or flushing will not be excluded.

3. Allocation ofDistribution Costs

In Step One, 100% of Distribution Base and Max Hour costs will be allocated to Oak Creek.

4. Allocation of Storage Costs

In Step One, 100% of Storage costs will be allocated to Oak Creek.

5. Allocation of Consumer Costs

Costs allocated to the Customer category will be allocated between Oak Creek and each of its
wholesale customers in Step One based on the forecasted number of meters, equivalent meters,
and equivalent services for each entity for the test year.

6. Allocation of Public Fire Protection Costs

Costs allocated to the functional category of Public Fire Protection will be allocated between Oak
Creek and each wholesale customer who relies upon Oak Creek's public fire protection m Step
One.

The Parties agree that Franklin does not rely on Oak Creek's public fire protection.

Public Fire Protection costs associated with hydrants shall be allocated to Oak Creek only. All
other costs allocated to the Public Fire Protection category will be allocated between Oak Creek
and each wholesale customer who rehes on Oak Creek's public fire protection based on the
estimated fire flow demands of each entity.

B. Second Step of CustomerAllocation

1. Allocation To OakCreekRetail Customers

Costs allocated to Oak Creek in Step One will be allocated to Oak Creek's individual retail
customer classes in Step Two on the basis of test year forecast sales and non-coincident Max Day
and Max Hour demand ratios for those retail customer classes. Demand ratios will be determined
by Oak Creek based on its customer demand study, as updated from time to time.

C-10



2. Allocation To Oak CreekWholesale Customers

Costs allocated to Wholesale Customers m Step One will not be allocated any differently among
the wholesale customers in Step Two. Regardless of the method of allocation for wholesale
customers, wholesale water rates will be calculated based on each customer's allocated costs
divided by projected test year water sales, for proper cost recovery.

C-11



EXHIBIT C-1

Historical Utility Demands
Trend

2020 2021 2022 2023 4 Year Average 2024 Use
(gallons) (gallons) (gallons) (gallons) (gallons) (gallons) (gallons)

Total Annual Pumpage 2,865,950,000 2,993,495,000 3,058,120,000 3,297,754,000 3,053,829,750 3,023,166,213 3,256,625,137
FinishedWater Pumpage 2,792,288,000 2,923,261,000 2,969,971,000 3,211,836,000 2,974,339,000 3,023,166,213 2,974,339,000
Total Water Sold 2,613,027,000 2,740,399,000 2,787,255,000 3,009,617,000 2,787,574,500 2,836,652,280 2,972,630,000
Sales as % of Pumpage 93.6% 93.7% 93.8% 93.7% 93.7% 93.8% 91.3%
Maximum Day Pumpage 11,660,000 13,740,000 13,400,000 13,860,000 13,165,000 12,671,666 13,172,288
Maximum Day Date 8/22/2020 8/16/2021 8/6/2022 5/31/2023
Average Day Pumpage 7,629,202 8,008,934 8,136,907 8,799,551 8,148,874 8,282,647 8,148,874
Max Day/Average Day Ratio 1.53 1.72 1.65 1.58 1.62 1.s9] T]
Maximum Hour Pumpage (MGD) 14,627,000 16,656,000 16,088,000 23,005,000 I 17,594,000 729,020
Max Hour/Average Day Ratio 1.92 2.08 1.98 2.61 2.15 71]
Water Used for Fire Protection

Residential Water Sales 452,636,000 463,797,000 438,579,000 452,460,000 451,868,000 447,196,499 447,196,499
Residential Customers 8,218 8,299 8,329 8,391 8,309 8,424 ' 8,424
Sales/ Customer 55,079 55,886 52,657 53,922 54,381 53,086 53,086

Multi-Family Water Sales 261,920,000 262,950,000 266,305,000 269,025,000 265,050,000 296,467,776 272,618,265
Multi-Family Customers 454 455 464 475 462 503 475
Sales/ Customer 576,916 577,912 573,933 566,368 573,701 589,804 573,933

Commercial Water Sales 226,333,000 249,787,000 247,824,000 274,620,000 249,641,000 243,449,711

1

247,824,000

1Commercial Customers 660 671 673 683 672 679 683
Sales/ Customer 342,929 372,261 368,238 402,079 371,628 358,599 362,846

Industrial Water Sales 494,969,000 539,093,000 628,400,000 700,350,000 590,703,000 ms%;] 7w7mp]Industrial Customers 42 42 42 42 42
Sales/Customer 11,784,976 12,835,548 14,961,905 16,675,000 14,064,357 16,521,152 16,675,000

Public Authority Water Sales 10,967,000 15,287,000 19,830,000 19,581,000 16,416,250 ;[ 77mm%7]
Public Authority Customers 35 35 35 35 35
Sales/Customer 313,343 436,771 566,571 559,457 469,036 501,809 559,457

Irrigation Water Sales #Iv/o!
Irrigation Customers #DIV/o!
Sales/Customer #DIV/0I #DIV/o! #Iv/0I #Iv/o! #DIV/o! Iv/o!

Total Retail Sales 1,446,825,000 1,530,914,000 1,600,938,000 1,716,036,000 1,573,678,250 1,679,543,741 1,687,569,764

Oak Creek Retail Combined
Total Annual Pumpage 1,699,748,000 1,784,010,000 1,871,803,000 2,012,693,000 1,842,063,500 1,842,063,500
Average Day Pumpage 4,644,120 4,887,699 5,128,227 5,514,227 5,046,749 5,046,749
Maximum Day Pumpage 7,058,600 9,191,000 8,794,266 8,405,100 8,362,242 8,362,242
Max Day/Average Day Ratio 1.52 1.88 1.71 1.52 1.66 I]
Maximum Hour Pumpage #Div/o! 14,900,101
Max Hour/Average Day Ratio #DIV/0I in]

Franklin 1,019,131,000 1,048,355,000 1,022,077,000 1,111,546,000 I 1,050,277,250 1,017,169.11s [ 1,111,546,000 I
Average Day Pumpage 2,784,511 2,872,205 2,800,211 3,045,332 2,877,472 2,786,765 3,045,332
Maximum Day Pumpage 4,752,000 5,846,000 5,227,664 5,566,000 5,347,916 4,821,112 5,659,891
Maximum Day Date 6/17/2020 7/25/2021 7/1/2022 6/2/2023
Max Day/Average Day Ratio 1.71 2.04 1.87 1.83 1.86 1.7»[ T@]
Maximum Hour Pumpage 8,736,000 9,288,000 7,512,000 9,048,ooo I 8,646,000 9,150,371
Max Hour/Average Day Ratio 3.14 3.23 2.68 2.97 3.00

139,939,4231
• 300 I

Caledonia 147,071,000 161,130,000 164,240,000 73To] 161,489,000 ca±ea]
Average Day Pumpage 401,833 441,452 449,973 475,384 442,436 383,396 475,384
Maximum Day Pumpage 863,900 954,670 764,900 886,000 867,368 931,960
Maximum Day Date 7/.5/2020 6/6/2021 6/27/2022 7/23/2023
Max Day/Average Day Ratio 2.15 2.16 1.70 1.86 1.96 Ta]
Maximum Hour Pumpage 2,484,000 1,426,968 1,228,800 1,305,600 I 1,611,342 1,731,338
Max Hour/Average Day Ratio 6.18 3.23 2.73 2.75 3.64 GT]

Total Wholesale 1,166,202,000 1,209,485,000 1,186,317,000 1,285,061,000 1,211,766,250 1,157,108,538 1,285,061,000

Unsold Water Analysis
Water Used During Treatment 73,662,000 70,234,000 88,149,000 85,918,000 79,490,750 79,061,193 84,767,811
Unbilled Authorized Uses 7,553,000 18,506,000 10,443,000 20,187,000 14,172,250 8,823,607 15,177,393
Total losses 171,708,000 164,356,000 172,273,000 182,032,000 172,592,250 181,144,758 184,049,933
Total Unsold Water 252,923,000 253,096,000 270,865,000 288,137,000 266,255,250 269,029,558 283,995,137
Water Used During Treatment as% of Total Sales 2.8% 2.6% 3.2% 2.9% 2.9% 2.8%C:]5].9%
Unbilled Authorized Uses as % of Retail Sales 0.5% 1.2% 0.7% 1.2% 0.9% 0.5% 0.9%
Total Losses as % of Total Sales 6.6% 6.0% 6.2% 6.0% 6.2% 6.4% 6.2%



h%;p
<t <t U) a <t 3° a° ° a° ° ll.')ti!C ID r-- .-i "' a 00 a <t .-< L1'l a 0%£.g 00 <t .-< a <t a M L1'l .-< a,, co "'- <f o' .,,- ,.,; o N' cri o _, ..

0 [l"' .s <t N N a "' nn N .-< N au .-< a M N U) .-i
.!a QI oo' LJ'l- <f ,.__- <fz ::i: N

<t 0 §' 3 3° 3° 3° 3° 3°
C in r-- .... , a a L1'l L1'l ag :a 00 ID . '<t a a 00 .-< a

0 g ,.__- 8 .,s ,.,; o r cri 0g £€
'<t m M "" N a.... "" N .-<

0o O') r,,,:- ,,:t'z :E N

.-'.. 3° a° a° a° 3°
C ., a a L1'l L1'l a
0 a a 00 .-i a.. "'8 o a o cri o
£ .c r-- N a.. .-<cu,z :E

<t <t U) <t ° ° 3° a° 3°
C M r-- .-i "' 00 r-- .-i .-< a ag ,, 00 <t .-< '<t L1'l r-- r-- a a

0 o e <f o .,; oci <i o o
"' £ <t N N "' <t N N au .-< a "" <t .-i
.!a QI oo' LJ'l- <t' ,.__-
z ::i: .-i

<t a <t 3° 3° 3° a° °C N r-- .-i 00 r-- a M a a
0 00 ID <t L1'l a <t a a

·;:, ,, 0o ,.__- o .,; o ,.,; o o0"' .c <t <t "' <t L1'l au ~ .-< M <t .-i
.!a oo o ,.__-z :E .-<

3° ° 3e ° 3°
U) <t a a a00 .-< a a a....; 00 o o o
U) "" a

.-<

C C
0 0
5 ~ B

> 5 2l QI> :, 0"' 0 g "' 0C I c.. C I a:% X X
8 % X X

"' "' "' "' "' "' g
co 5 5 u: co 5 > u:

\D
M
L1'lo
"'\D

V,
C

_Q
"iii
I.!)

a
Na
a,'
N
r--

QI
t>D
"'a.
E
:,

c..
i
:,
0
I
E
:,
E·x
"'5

>
"'C
X

"'2
C
0
5
0
I
QI
t>Dg
QI
>
<(

L1'l
;;/;
oo'
<t
L1'l

V,
C
.!a
"iii
I.!)

~
:,
0
I
QI
t>De
QI

?

IDn
L1'lo
"'n

,,
C
"'E
QI
0
E
%
Ill
l
:::,
0
I
E
:::,
E·x
"'::i:

V,
Cg
"'I.!)

<t
r--
00
oo'
<t
M
a,'

,:
0
;:;:
g
u:
V,
:,
0::
>
"'C
QI
t>Dg
QI
>
<(

[J
3 .s V'I

..Q ~ :5
LL -._ 0
w ro ..c
E

0.:;e
:,
C

QI
t>D
"'a.
E
:,

c..
>
"'C
E
:,
E·x
"'5

QI
t>D
"'a.
E
:,

c..
>
'iii
C
QI
t>Dg
QI
>
<(

QI
t>D
"'a.
E
:,

c..
"iii:,
C
C
<(

aaao
"'"'<t'
""'N'

V,
C
.!a
"iii
I.!)

,,
C

"'E
QI
C
E
%
Ill

"'C
E
:::,
E·x
"'::i:

"tj
0
5
Cl>
£
C:
0·.c
O
\,Jg
;:
"'tl
C:
O

"'0·.c
0a:::
"'tl
C:

~
Cl>
0
E
Cl>....
3 ,.._ ....J



Allocation of Transmission and Distribution Mains

Utility-Financed " lnside Municipality
Inch-Feet Sook Cost

Size
Function (Inches) Total Distribution Transmission Total Distribution Transmission

D 6 1S1 151 13,055.11 13,0SS
D 8 307,145 307,145 $ 5,597,004.02 5,597,004
D 10 7S 7S $ 359.56 360
D 12 548,199 548,199 $ 3,658,656.52 3,658,657
D 12 548,199 548,199 $ 3,658,656.52 3,658,657
T 16 731,249 731,249 $ 2,755,497 89 2,755,498
T 18 2,078 2,078 $ 3,214.41 3,214
T 20 958,815 958,815 $ 3,371,729.74 3,371,730
T 24 719,067 719,067 $ 3,062,154.99 3,062,155
T 30 557,216 557,216 $ 3,127,911 17 3,127,911
T 36 326,438 326,438 $ 2,406,500.47 2,406,500

4,698,632 1,403,769 3,294,863 $ 27,654,740.39 $ 12,927,731 72 $ 14,727,008.67
29 88% 70.12% 46.75% 53.25%

Contribute "" inside Municipality
Inch-Feet Sook Cost

Size
Function (Inches) Total Distribution Transmission Total Distribution Transmission

D 4 5,057 5,057 $ 8,697.25 8,697
D 6 397,344 397,344 $ 1,001,012.49 1,001,012
D 8 3,424,546 3,424,546 $ 14,956,344.46 14,956,344
D 10 38,362 38,362 $ 199,727.51 199,728
D 12 1,134,563 1,134,563 $ 5,143,135.61 5,143,136
D 12 1,134,563 1,134,563 $ 5,143,135.61 5,143,136
T 16 820,020 820,020 $ 3,552,927.97 3,552,928
T 18 1,667 1,667 $ 2,578.58 2,579
T 20 634,008 634,008 $ 2,078,752.79 2,078,753
T 24 8,165 8,165 $ 495,194.89 495,195
T 30 26,875 26,875 $ 121,143.34 121,143
T 36 60 60 $ 4,751.95 4,752

7,625,229 6,134,434 1,490,795 $ 32,707,402.44 $ 26,452,052.92 $ 6,255,349.52
80.45% 19.55% 80.87% 19 13%

Combined 1,053,923 12,323,862 7,538,203 4,785,658 60,362,143 39,379,785 20,982,358

Use for Allocation
0&M UF Plant/Dep Total Plant

Transmission Mains
Distribution Mains

(1) All values as of year end 2023

IRloGY
CSU7uG, uc



Allocation of Operation andMaintenance Expenses to Service Cost Functions

Trend Budget
Use for Test

Acct No. AccountDescription 2020 2021 2022 2023 4-Year Average 2024 2024 Year
($) ($) ($) ($) ($) ($)

SOURCE OF SUPPLY EXPENSES
600 Operation supervision and engineering 24,663 25,148 25,780 27,018 25,652 25,891 29,003
601 Operation labor and expenses 23,993 25,509 27,130 28,591 26,306 27,593 30,440
602 Purchased water 0 0 0 0 0 0
603 Miscellaneous expenses 363 180 180 195 230 230
604 Rents 0 0 0 0 0 0
610 Maintenance supervision and engineering 0 0 0 0 0 o'
611 Maintenance of structures and improvements 288 0 72 0
612 Maint. of collecting and impounding reservoirs 0 0
613 Maintenance of lake, river andother intakes 0 3,793 3,910 4,490 3,048 246 I 3,910
614 Maintenance of wells and springs 0 0 0 0 0 0
616 Maintenance of supply mains t 0 0 0 o
617 Maintenance of misc. water source plant 0 0 0

SUBTOTAL SOURCE OF SUPPLY EXPENSES 49,307 54,630 57,000 60,294 SS,308 53,731 56,500 63,582
PUMPING EXPENSES

620 Operation supervision and engineering 41,027 41,358 44,294 43,977 42,664 43,544 48,723
621 Fuel for power production 0 0 0 0 0 0
622 Power production labor and expenses 46 1,217 791 2,769 1,206 1,771 1,206
623 Fuel or power purchased for pumping 378,925 416,315 420,582 521,407 434,307 456,579 462,640
624 Pumping labor and expenses 93,493 95,716 94,394 108,526 98,032 103,855 107,835
625 Expenses transferred - credit 0 0 0 0 0 0
626 Miscellaneous expenses 92,620 112,887 145,664 126,475 119,412 131,597 160,230
627 Rents 0 0 0 0
630 Maintenance supervision and engineering 11,851 10,842 12,829 12,180 11,926 11,742 14,112
631 Maintenance of structures and improvements 2,443 6,620 6,737 6,148 5,487 11,458 7,411
632 Maintenance of power productionequipment 9,025 10,654 17,982 14,973 13,159 13,807 19,780
633 Maintenance of pumping equipment 188,084 175,831 207,153 221,301 198,092 197,428 229,940

SUBTOTAL PUMPING EXPENSES 817,514 871,440 950,426 l,057,7S6 924,284 971,782 931,000 1,051,878
WATER TREATMENT EXPENSES

640 Operation supervisionandengineering 33,714 37,380 35,685 33,196 34,994 30,550 41,038
641 Chemicals 153,561 176,532 245,947 283,527 214,892 241,263 281,609
642 Operation labor and expenses 303,913 310,851 317,176 329,653 31S,398 324,251 364,752
643 Miscellaneous expenses 105,211 131,618 127,545 139,028 125,851 0 146,677
644 Rents 0 0 0 0 0
650 Maintenance Supervision and engineering 23,250 24,398 24,806 26,984 24,860 24,905 28,527
651 Maintenance of structures and improvements 3,334 3,809 32,514 7,998 11,914 13,701
652 Maintenance of water treatment equipment 228,334 211,476 249,042 263,572 238,106 24S,9S7 286,398

SUBTOTAL WATER TREATMENT EXPENSES 851,317 896,064 1,032,715 l,083,9S8 966,014 866,927 1,033,600 1,162,702
TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

660 Operation supervision and engineering 237,540 228,379 224,666 198,863 222,362 224,9S8 258,366
661 Storage facilities expenses 9,659 11,523 13,459 13,784 12,106 14,592 15,478
662 Transmission and distribution lines expenses 330,218 306,956 317,737 306,718 315,407 343,778 381,284
663 Meter expenses 9,239 5,620 21,583 18,402 13,711 12,461 24,820
664 Customer Installations expenses 15,140 23,184 27,001 30,512 23,959 20,549 l 31,051
665 Miscellaneous expenses 24,441 15,574 19,360 41,600 25,244 24,397 22,264
666 Rents 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
670 Maintenance supervision and engineering 45,507 41,195 44,792 43,844 43,83S 44,913 51,511
671 Maintenance of structures and improvements 987 0 33 0 255 208 0
672 Maintenance of distr. reservoirs and standpipes 11,473 2,162 11,472 14,022 9,782 5,925 13,193
673 Maintenance of trans. and dist. mains 188,828 231,781 121,243 76,575 1S4,607 137,939 151,554
675 Maintenance of services 9,006 8,155 19,333 24,222 15,179 8,400 22,233
676 Maintenance of meters 15,401 13,262 14,725 21,217 16,151 18,081 16,934
677 Maintenance of hydrants 33,643 71,085 94,366 127,748 81,711 50,912 116,542
678 Maintenance of miscellaneous plant 1,043 2,249 4,646 10,093 4,508 5,949 5,343

SUBTOTAL TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 932,12S 961,12S 934,416 927,600

0
13,339

123,389
0
0

938,817

0
12,188

115,686

913,063

0
11,863

117,767
1,332

986,700 1,110,573

13,015
119,473

0
0
0

o]
117,700 132,488

175,951
94,938

0
360,129
50,702
61,107

999,968
157

0
l 46,249

0
0

1,S90,175 1,789,201

4,715,675 5,310,424

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS EXPENSES
901 Supervision 0 0
902 Meter reading labor 10,876 12,704 11,832
903 Customer records and collection expenses 115,965 112,869 110,521
904 Uncollectible accounts 0 0 0
905 Miscellaneous customer accounts expenses 0 0
906 Customer service and Information expenses ssh 0

SALES EXPENSES
910 Sales expenses 0

SUBTOTAL CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS AND SALES EXPENSES 126,841 12S,573 122,3S3
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

920 Administrative and general salaries 125,679 128,554 109,306
921 Office supplies and expenses 67,813 50,491 43,528
922 Administrative expenses transferred - credit 0 0 0
923 Outside services employed 257,235 110,637 134,957
924 Property insurance 36,216 47,829 47,446
925 Injuries anddamages 43,648 47,982 41,300
926 Employee pensions and benefits 653,574 473,296 437,855
928 Regulatory commission expenses 112 0 0
929 Duplicate charges - credit 0 0
930 Miscellaneous general expenses 33,035 31,540 38,760
931 Rents I 0 0 0
932 Maintenance of general plant 645 0

SUBTOTAL GENERAL ANO ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 1,217,312 890,974 8S3,1S2

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,994,416 3,799,806 3,950,062

136,728 127,874 130,963

131,691 123,808 12S,S07
46,299 52,033 50,967

0
296,354 199,796 384,476
48,574 4S,016 S3,706
41,402 43,583 46,442

1,029,651 648,S94 681,SlS
0 28 6,069

0
41,464 36,200 35,767

0
0 161 172

1,635,435 1,149,218 1,384,620

4,901,771 4,161,514 4,321,086



l! l-a: e ~...

000000000000 000 00000000 0 000000 0

o ot o
C

0000

te..

00 000000000 000 00000000 0 000000 0 0§

0
0000 0

0 0 00000 0

:goooo!ooo

Ii

i
; §§t~ ;:j;:j..

1.
¥ll
fei

if
±
i
2

j
i...
·=g
l
.§...
~
!
'ts'
.§

I L---------------------------



ii

I
iii

I
1
C

e$
ci

i

1·c
4

i

·£
0

·£
0

e$
ci

;i'. ~
N ..oml:l N

oooooaooooao

000000000000

O.-INl'f'l'O:t&nl.DOG0,0.--tN
NNNNNNNNNf'l'IMmcncnmo,cno,o,cncncnmcn



000 0000000 000000 00000 o!

·I 00 ! 0 n J§ 3345g°°-·a@1% ! IIJs
I 11• ·I 00 ,: 0 i! ± gg····g°33 s 'i i"

·I 00 0 • ·4 000000000000000 0 0

6

fs
01 ooi
d :;i

• A g# "g3+sR°°··&°Rs s £3 3 .4g ·s «· $ j
t

o og ot 000000000000000 o o
:l 0

0 05 05 000000000000000 0 0

o o

00 ~

o!I oo :!I
~ i

o! ooo o

o! oo I
0000000 000000 00000 on

0

UUUHUUU!

Hi!ii! U U ttil

u ilU

UUUU!

tu;

!
1s
i
i
"'~
§~,.__ _____.



et1911pell
000 0000000 000000 00000 ·4 ~o,.. o ... io ~; 34 §~:;;:;;:i:og~l8i::8i i I!:j!!I " l S i I= ., "' ..ri2ii ..t..ri~iii

II • ... '0 s° I 0 ;! t £3g1#°s95%83 i ;!Js ' "'" ., ""'::I"... ;:; ...

I 0 3° I 0 i! # 343'44s; I IUri ..,
!l

::l ::l

0 ·4 4 OOOOOOOOCIOOO 0 0

f ii
0 s°a 0 # i~ +444759A¥4 ~ ;ii .. !

I Iii
0 s° I 0 u u Ra#8°ggR"RE ISf .. gs? • • i(u., .,, ~

I 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000 00000 0 0 0 0 0 ·$ ·£ 000000000000 0 0

iii "

#: 0 0 0 0 0 ·4 ± 000000000000 0 0

I ! .... :!°lo #a3 l!l::!ifioiC i;! 5° I 0 H · i::;!!!!!!°!U_U:i_m I ~Js .... S a ii}t i ~- ., :;{= !; "is4 ·#3$£~ IC :..,.., g::l ., =

is s° ! 0 !I ·£ 93£8+°4¥34 § ,I;... ;:i i::: 3 ;:•ti 1111 "'= :f:! $ ~
::I ::I :.1

i 4°°8°3° =1 .. :.0• nri i! io O l 0 1# ~, •,~,..,o~ .. r!!~! ! i!js :;; ! if asfi s ., .: i::::i 3 3±? 342E 5..... .., :;f., a :! :! :;i ... s
00 0 ::;:oofo::io 333°£ 4£Rg I!! I I i:!!Ulii0 l!=U!~ ifjs g ~ ~.,_ 4rs ::! =~..f = a 3±rig «?is4ga3 • ~~= if ::I.... :U "

'Ii ::t i I ! i1 ::1Us :;: 11
ri .,

i =
1 i I !! i i]
i, ii iI ri !f

I I n u~

• +4 iI r p

,ll 111n 1t
,s

I J1 I 'Ii Ia II 11., fit I l I 111, 111 i . • 1 ..
I ,fih1 i l ..

1 111
1
J!l

1
1~
1
,11i11il

1
1liilil11i111 I I liihllullll ! Il!1ilh1i1 iii

~ sq + h;11,..
I Ii 1ml t~v,111 111111B'/ · ·_ · ull,IH.u UUHUUU't ; ::L~:;; :;: - ...
.g i 583 33333#2 UlrH!U U:!U g UUUU! UijUUUil.. i Iii± st
'(



l
18/1

000 0000000 000000 00000 ·g 20NO ° I ~ ±934472¥2£$± ~ ~IIh ::I

f 1- 0 .,, ~ 5 ~ i,s .,.~ ... ..., .....
It ~ .,,

0 s° I 0 J! f! ss3s#3gass ! Iijs §"'=::f "'t:a'i!i ~..: ~ ..:

I II•
0 ° I 0 i! al +4843414 I ;=""::I s ::I

0 00 0 ·4 4 000000000000 0 •
fs

0 3°£ 0 f! ;~ +443"1A3A ' IJs !

~ Is 0 !ilo I 0 ~, If 4a+°+am¢
~"' ! Aug .kg

l:; :( :( I:;

I 000 0000000 000000 00000 0 00 0 0 ·4 ·4 000000000000 0 0

l 0 0

}
0 ± ·$ 000000000000 0 0

0

II °°1°3° $818°3 n44g .tf e° ! 0 ;a !i!!I !19:!~ .... o=sc;;;~:!S§_ ill I... ~ ·.-? sa3%ale N :a a "'"'=~ ., :l!S{ :ut ... ! !! l! •= .,
3. a -~N N .. r;; 5... lir"' ... ;

± ao i
0 3! al!: l!!Uli!!i.0*i•s:::• ft., .. :i "a=a ++#kg# !i ~ :a

i
l5

000 see3°1° 333s"3 '°!1""0"' ~111 ~o o ~ 0 ii!! al 3±3 9 I I' ::i ! ., 3.4 3 ±a • =
-=

:a=tKe Ill g33 ~a~ a ! :I I.; Ill

1! ::oo!o::=o gs&3°E 4°g le 133±9%° ; i RR3&34gm3g !/I~ ~... =~!!ti = :Ia !!=l = 1 N !is.~!:! +gig ·slg 'J ~ ~ :1.-l :: 1 ..: ::I.,; a 5 ..
id 0000000 ; I 000 see° ! ! 0005000000~0

~ ilb ..: = i ~ i ~ ., ~:a ..
h ., ;e •• 1:(

j! ; I E ! !573° t

i! § I ; I !li '4

n
II 11

I

·j w # ii
' t I Ji

I -i 'a skyI 'a I! 1,lii, I I
j J #lhi4t l l

II. 1J!11111fjll111ljiil11t11 I I ,11 I t 1· 1 i Is lllllhih 1H1Luli a a
I , s+11-1p+4
2e Ii u Hu HUHUUU'.g 4 ~!HI ~aaa:!;;a !Sr:!!H!! U!:iU UUUU! !iiiiS!!!!!~i!" J±
1;



00000

00000

:;:: 0001:1

¥ ¥
N N

$
3 G
·c -
.lo
0

J;;;
lii -

I
I

I

j

000000

000000

;

e
i=.,,

I
I

I

Ii
&f

ji
'5 !

ti
Ii

000000

000000

C.g
:,_
.a "'·c -
ti
0II

I\

I

I



0z
$
w
0
w

3

I
I

0...
N±
00



0

~
5w
0

~

:c C
.Q

.:? ~ tlGIu u:: GI LI. LI.

~
....
2a.

C i !§ Ie .2 tl
5

tl
u:: .2l ::J ~ ~ g 0 g 8

2 I "
• t~

"0
~ " "I

co 8Ill
N

"i:i: N 00

£ " 0\
0

co " "0.-i



!!! !
44 !

ll:

:c

I

I..

tl
.!
\j

~
£..
d
_________________,



hp4
1
0~!

a° ° ° a° ° 8° 3e 3e IF. e IF. IF. IF. £ IF. IF. 2e ° IF. ±£ 2e 8° a IF. a° O~ c c [@itC: N O n O O 0 .,. m 0 m V, N 00 0 0 0 V, m ,.._ lO 0 00 0QJ ;;; ,.._ lO lO .,. n o o 0 o QJ ;;; ,.._ .,. "'! °' V, rv N o QJ ;;; v .,. V, m °' m rl oe 15 ,-.: <i .,; ci ci 0 0 ci 0 e 'o ui <i ,.._ <i ,.,; m .-< 0 e 15 00 co ci t ci ci ci 0QJ I- 00 g QJ I- V, rl rl 0 QJ I- ,.._ rl g0.. 0.. rl 0..

V, lO 0 ,.._ ,.._ 0 V, .,. rn ,.._ N e lO ,.._ ,.._ ,.._ lO 0 0 N "' 0 °' 0 lO N N 0 ,.._e m .,. m .,. m °' 0 s > V, lO 00 .,. ,.._ 00 00 0 ;;; > e .,. °' N .,. g m rl V,;;; % m .,. lO .,. V, 5 .'!! m rl lO ,.._ nr .,. rl °' 5 m 00 rl rl lO'o 00 o o C' QJ co N" v .,.- 15 C' £ o .... ciI- : I- w > rl I- w QJ rl
V)

rl rl 0 0 0 °' °'g lO
N N g rl.... rl .... :::: 0

0 .,. .,. .,.
0 0 N N
00 00 n m

0 0 0
.,. .,.

0.... rl N rl 00....
.... N .... rl .,.

0 0 0 0 ,.._ .,. ,.._ 0000 lO 00 N rl N
0

rl m00 00 00 00 ,.._

.... N m N N V, 0 0 0 0 lO :::: N 0V) 0 0 V, rl m
0

rl rl N
lO V, lO lO

,.._ .. nn .,. 0 .,.
"' 0 V, 0 "' 0 V, 0rl rl ,.._ 0 ,.._ V, n N rl ,.._

Lil
rl rl m.,.

N
.,. V,

Lil 00 m lO 0 lO V, 0 V, 0 0 N N .,.N m n ,.._ N .,. .. 0 m .... .,.
Lil

r .... V, .... ....m .... m ..
.... 0 N N <t <tN N .... ....

"'
Ne -- e .... "'

.... N 8 ....£ ± .... ,,;N N z N: :E .,
<II5 .... .... "' .... n .... 0 .... 1: 00 00 0 00 <t 00 ~ M m "' m °' nnCai Lil .... .... .... °' °' ., 0 N 00 0 N ., V, .,. m M ,.._.... .... N N ;;; N °' .... m ;;; <t m 00.c N > N 00 ,....- i > N mE 5 5::, C' C'z w w

°' 0 0 '° .,. 0 .,.
"' "' 0 0 0 00 00 0 N 00N 00 °' .... 0 0 N ::i: °' "' n N N ,.._

°' N rl 0-- N N .,. 0
rl

.... rl .,.rl
Lil ....- N

rl

0 0 0 0 0< .. .,.
rl rl ,.._

rl ,.._
,,; .-<rl rl rl

°' Lil Lil '° 00 r 0 m m m m V, 0 m N ,.._ V, 00 0 rl0 '° 0 0 N rl rl rl N 00 rl lO rl rl rlN rl m n Lil V, .,.
°' n N N V,rl rl ,.,; rl .-<

00 rl °' 0 O 00 rl 0 00 rl 0.. rl M .. .. .,. rl m .,. .. rl m .,.-- n 0 0tr rt m rt

,.._ rl '° .. N 0 0 0 ,.._ rl lO .. N 0 ,.._ rl lO <t N 000 0 00 0 0 00 0 00 0 00 0 00 0-- m rl V, V, m rl V, nn rl V,VI V) oo oo" coo "' .... oo" co V, .... oo" 00...
0....
0

$ oc::,
"' "'l.l... .,

QJ
..,

.c "' 5 "'C: u 0: 0:0 ;:§. e ;:§. "'·.c
i!l % i!l 8c::,

"' vi 5 "' vi z "'a "' "' QJ "'g "' > "' "' "'iJ Ez .'!! iJ z QJ > iJ Ez ai QJ 5 ai .; 5 5E  s QJ 5 g
E  5 : C' E -- 5VI "' .c 2 "' £ UJ "' .c.... £ ;;; Ee g 5 ;,: % 2 E ·e 5 % ;;; Ee g 5VI ..,

'+ 3 C:
C: QJ % '+ z ::, .,

'+
;;;0 ::, C: QJ <( .g 6 ::, C: QJ <( t ::, C: QJ £ <(\,.) u ., E u "' u ., E t, u ., E u"O .., "' .0 .c .!!! "O .., .!! .!!! "O ..,... ·;;; 'S E ::, :0 "" ::i 3: C: ·;;; 'S E ::, :0 ·;;; 'S E ::, :0., 0 "O ::, E "' ., 0 "O ::, "' C: ., 0 "O ::, "'Qi 0: : u .s 0.. 3 .!: ·c ;;; .g 0: 5 u .s 0.. .!: 'i: .g 0: 5 u .s 0.. c 'i:E C: C: C: C: s C: :;, 0 5 3 C: C: C: C: C: 5 0 "' s C: C: C: C: :;, 0::i "' "' "' "' "' "O "' "' "' "' "' "O 3 u "' "' "' "' "O.0 -e .0 .0 -e .0 .0 C: .,

.0 "' o .0 .0 -e .0 -e C: ., o -e .0 .0 .0 C: QJ "'VI ::i ::i ::i ::i ::, £ ;;; ::, 'o ::i ::i ::i £ ;;; ::i ::i -e ::i £ ;;; 'oC: :::, :::, V, u "' I- z :::, :::, u I- <i: :::, :::, u I-0
\,.)



.Ill

isa
n o 0 0 0
Bl
#

.5
a±

:=! 0 0 0 0

'"i
{..

0

I
i
le

I......
ci

0

0

0

0

0

000

000

000

~0000

\0 0 0 0 0;

35
0\ N

+11°
I!! IIt •I s



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE

08/20/2024

ITEM 02/NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
August 20, 2024.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the Minutes of the License Committee Meeting of August 20, 2024.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



License Committee Agenda*
Franklin City Hall Aldermen Room

9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI
August 20, 2024 - 5:30 p.m.

1. I Call to Order & Roll Call Time:
2. I Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Amanda Fecteau
2024-2025 Mimosa
New
5:30 p.m.

Operator Nicole Anderson
2024-2025 On Cloud Wine
New

Operator Hope Berens
2024-2025 Crossroads II Pizza & Subs
New

Operator Roberta Fenning
2024-2025 Romey's Place
New

Operator Kathleen Galipo
2024-2025 Pick'n Save #6360
New

Operator Jonathan George
2024-2025 Pick'n Save #6360
New

Operator Tamarie Homsa
2024-2025 Pick'n Save #6360
New

Operator Christine Lawler
2024-2025 The Landmark
New



License Committee Agenda
Alderman Room
August 20, 2024

Operator Jaclyn Ruos
2024-2025 No Location
New

Operator Matthew Saric
2024-2025 Croatian Park
New

People Uniting for Franklin Public Library Foundation
the Betterment of Fee Waiver: Temporary Class B License
Life and Date of the Event(s): October 3, 2024 (Fall Literary
Investment in the Fundraiser)
Community Location: Franklin Public Library-Fadrow Mtg Room
(PUBLIC) Grant
3. Adjournment Time:
Notice is given that a mayorrty of the Common Council may attend thus meetmng to gather information about an agenda 1tem over which they have
decision-making responsibility This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v Greendale Vllage Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal act1on at thus meeting

Page 2 of2



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

8/20/2024

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated August 2, 2024 through August 15, 2024, Nos. 198934 through Nos. 199072 in
the amount of $ 1,232,902.15. Also included in this listing are EFT Nos. 5783 through EFT Nos. 5792,
Library vouchers totaling$ 269.89, Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 13,547.58 and Property Tax Refunds
in the amount of$ 500.00.

Early release disbursements dated August 2, 2024 through August 14, 2024 in the amount of$ 553,570.64
are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing. These
payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

Attached is a list of property tax disbursements, EFT No. 522 dated August 12, 2024, in the amount of
$ 500.00. This payment has been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022
7834.

The net payroll dated August 9, 2024 is $ 486,499.99, previously estimated at$ 466,000. Payroll
deductions dated August 9, 2024 are$ 266,222.77, previously estimated at$ 265,000.

The estimated payroll for August 23, 2024 is$ 473,000 with estimated deductions and matching payments
of $ 522,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of August 15, 2024 in the amount of$ 1,232,902.15

• Payroll dated August 9, 2024 in the amount of $ 486,499.99 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 266,222.77 plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated August 23, 2024 in the amount of$ 473,000 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 522,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Fmance Dept - SB


